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Commissioners

The three initial Commissioners took office March 1, 1903. From 1903 to 1919 the Commissioners were appointed
by the Governor subject to confirmation by the General Assembly. Between 1919 and 1926 they were elected by popular
vote. Between 1926 and 1928 they were appointed by the Governor subject to confirmation by the General Assembly. Since
1928 they have been elected by the General Assembly.

The names and terms of office of the Commissioners:

Years
Beverley T. Crump March 1, 1903 to June 1, 1907 4
Henry C. Stuart March 1, 1903 to February 28, 1908 5
Henry Fairfax March 1, 1903 to October 1, 1905 3
Jos. E. Willard October 1, 1905 to February 18, 1910 4
Robert R. Prentis June 1, 1907 to November 17, 1916 9
Wm. F. Rhea February 28, 1908 to November 15, 1925 18
J. R. Wingfield February 18, 1910 to January 31, 1918 8
C. B. Garnett November 17, 1916 to October 28, 1918 2
Alexander Forward February 1, 1918 to December 5, 1923 5
Robert E. Williams November 12, 1918 to July 1, 1919 1
(Temporary Appointment during absence of Forward on military service)
S. L. Lupton October 28, 1918 to June 1, 1919 1
Berkley D. Adams June 12, 1919 to January 31, 1928 9
Oscar L. Shewmake December 16, 1923 to November 24, 1924 1
H. Lester Hooker November 25, 1924 to January 31, 1972 47
Louis S. Epes November 16, 1925 to November 16, 1929 4
Wm. Meade Fletcher February 1, 1928 to December 19, 1943 16
George C. Peery November 29, 1929 to April 17, 1933 3
Thos. W. Ozlin April 17, 1933 to July 14, 1944 11
Harvey B. Apperson January 31, 1944 to October 5, 1947 4
Robert O. Norris August 30, 1944 to November 20, 1944
L. McCarthy Downs December 16, 1944 to April 18, 1949 5
W. Marshall King October 7, 1947 to June 24, 1957 10
Ralph T. Catterall April 28, 1949 to January 31, 1973 24
Jesse W. Dillon July 16, 1957 to January 28, 1972 14
Preston C. Shannon March 10, 1972 to January 31, 1996 25
Junie L. Bradshaw March 10, 1972 to January 31, 1985 13
Thomas P. Harwood, Jr. February 20, 1973 to February 20, 1992 19
Elizabeth B. Lacy April 1, 1985 to December 31, 1988 4
Theodore V. Morrison, Jr. February 15, 1989 to December 31, 2007 19
Hullihen Williams Moore February 26, 1992 to January 31, 2004 13
Clinton Miller February 15, 1996 to January 31, 2006 11
Mark C. Christie February 1, 2004 to
Judith Williams Jagdmann February 1, 2006 to
James C. Dimitri September 3, 2008 to
From 1903 through 2010 the lines of succession were:

Years Years Years
Crump 4 Stuart 5 Fairfax 3
Prentis 9 Rhea 18 Willard 4
Garnett 2 Epes 4 Wingfield 8
Lupton 1 Peery 3 Forward 5
Adams 9 Ozlin 11 Williams 1
Fletcher 16 Norris 0 Shewmake 1
Apperson 4 Downs 5 Hooker 47
King 10 Catterall 24 Bradshaw 13
Dillon 14 Harwood 19 Lacy 4
Shannon 25 Moore 13 Morrison 19
Miller 11 Christie 7 Dimitri 2

Jagdmann 5
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Preface

The State Corporation Commission is vested with regulatory authority over many businesses and economic interests
in Virginia. These interests are as varied as the SCC's powers, which are derived from the Constitution of Virginia and state
statutes. The SCC's authority ranges from setting rates charged by public utilities to serving as the central filing office in
Virginia for corporate charters.

Established by the Virginia Constitution of 1902 to oversee the railroad and telephone and telegraph industries
operating in the Commonwealth, the SCC's jurisdiction now includes supervision of many businesses that have a direct impact
on Virginia consumers. The SCC is charged with administering the Virginia laws related to the regulation of public utilities,
insurance, state-chartered financial institutions, investment securities, retail franchising, and utility and railroad safety. In
addition, it is the state's central filing office for Uniform Commercial Code financing statements and for documents that create
corporations, limited liability companies, business trusts, and limited partnerships.

The SCC's structure is unique. No other state has placed in a single agency such a broad array of regulatory
responsibility. Created by the state constitution as a permanent department of government, the SCC possesses legislative,
judicial, and administrative powers. The decisions of the SCC can be appealed only to the Supreme Court of Virginia.
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COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
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CHAPTER 20

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

RULES OF PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE

PART I.
GENERAL PROVISIONS.
5 VAC 5-20-10. Applicability.

The State Corporation Commission Rules of Practice and Procedure are promulgated pursuant to the authority of 8 12.1-25 of the Code of
Virginia and are applicable to the regulatory and adjudicatory proceedings of the State Corporation Commission except where superseded by more specific
rules for particular types of cases or proceedings. When necessary to serve the ends of justicein a particular case, the commission may grant, upon motion or
its own initiative, a waiver or modification of any of the provisions of these rules, except 5 VAC 5-20-220, under terms and conditions and to the extent it
deems appropriate. These rules do not apply to the internal administration or organization of the commission in matters such as the procurement of goods
and services, personnel actions, and similar issues, nor to matters that are being handled administratively by a division or bureau of the commission.

5 VAC 5-20-20. Good faith pleading and practice.

Every pleading, written motion, or other document presented for filing by a party represented by an attorney shall be signed by at least one
attorney of record in the attorney's individual name, and the attorney's mailing address and telephone number, and where available, telefax number and email
address, shall be stated. An individual not represented by an attorney shall sign the individual's pleading, motion, or other document, and shall state the
individual's mailing address and telephone number. A partnership not represented by an attorney shall have a partner sign the partnership's pleading, motion,
or other document, and shall state the partnership's mailing address and telephone number. A nonlawyer may only represent the interests of another before
the commission in the presentation of facts, figures, or factual conclusions, as distinguished from legal arguments or conclusions. In the case of an individual
or entity not represented by counsel, each signature shall be that of the individual or a qualified officer or agent of the entity. Documents signed pursuant to
this rule need not be under oath unless so required by statute.

The commission allows electronic filing. Before filing electronically, the filer shall complete an electronic document filing authorization form,
establish a filer authentication password with the Clerk of the State Corporation Commission and otherwise comply with the electronic filing procedures
adopted by the commission. Upon establishment of a filer authentication password, a filer may make electronic filingsin any case. All documents submitted
eectronically must be capable of being printed as paper documents without loss of content or appearance.

The signature of an attorney or party constitutes a certification that (i) the attorney or party has read the pleading, mation, or other document; (ii)
to the best of the attorney's or party's knowledge, information, and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the pleading, motion or other document is well
grounded in fact and is warranted by existing law or a good faith argument for the extension, modification, or reversal of existing law; and (iii) the pleading,
motion or other document is not interposed for any improper purpose, such as to harass or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of
litigation. A pleading, written mation, or other document will not be accepted for filing by the Clerk of the Commission if it isnot signed.

An oral motion made by an attorney or party in a commission proceeding constitutes a representation that the motion (i) is well grounded in fact
and is warranted by existing law or a good faith argument for the extension, modification, or reversal of existing law; and (ii) is not interposed for any
improper purpose, such as to harass or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of litigation.

5 VAC 5-20-30. Counsel.

Except as otherwise provided in 5 VAC 5-20-20, no person other than a properly licensed attorney at law shall file pleadings or papers or appear
at a hearing to represent the interests of another person or entity before the commission. An attorney admitted to practice in another jurisdiction, but not
licensed in Virginia, may be permitted to appear in a particular proceeding pending before the commission in association with a member of the Virginia
State Bar. The Virginia State Bar member will be counsel of record for every purpose related to the conduct and disposition of the proceeding.

In al appropriate proceedings before the Commission, the Division of Consumer Counsdl, Office of the Attorney General, may appear and
represent and be heard on behalf of consumers' interests, and investigate matters relating to such appearance, and otherwise may participate to the extent
reasonably necessary to discharge its statutory duties.

5 VAC 5-20-40. Photographs and broadcasting of proceedings.

Electronic media and still photography coverage of commission hearings will be allowed at the discretion of the commission.

5 VAC 5-20-50. Consultation by parties with commissioners and hearing examiners.

No commissioner or hearing examiner shall consult with any party or any person acting on behalf of any party with respect to a pending formal
proceeding without giving adequate notice and opportunity for al partiesto participate.
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5 VAC 5-20-60. Commission staff.

The commissioners and hearing examiners shall be free at al times to confer with any member of the commission staff. However, no facts nor
legal arguments likely to influence a pending formal proceeding and not of record in that proceeding shall be furnished ex parte to any commissioner or
hearing examiner by any member of the commission staff.

5 VAC 5-20-70. Informal complaints.

All correspondence and informal complaints shall be referred to the appropriate division or bureau of the commission. The head of the divison
or bureau receiving this correspondence or complaint shall attempt to resolve the matter presented. Matters not resolved to the satisfaction of all
participating parties by the informal process may be reviewed by the full commission upon the proper filing of a formal proceeding in accordance with the
rules by any party to the informal process.

PART I1.
COMMENCEMENT OF FORMAL PROCEEDINGS.
5 VAC 5-20-80. Regulatory proceedings.

A. Application. Except where otherwise provided by statute, rule or commission order, a person or entity seeking to engage in an industry or
business subject to the commission's regulatory authority, or to make changes in any previously authorized service, rate, facility, or other aspect of such
industry or business that, by statute or rule, must be approved by the commission, shall file an application requesting authority to do so. The application shall
contain (i) a specific statement of the action sought; (ii) a statement of the facts that the applicant is prepared to prove that would warrant the action sought;
(iii) a statement of the legal basis for such action; and (iv) any other information required by law or regulation. Any person or entity filing an application
shall be aparty to that proceeding.

B. Participation as a respondent. A notice of participation as a respondent is the proper initial response to an application. A notice of
participation shall be filed within the time prescribed by the commission and shall contain (i) a precise statement of the interest of the respondent; (ii) a
statement of the specific action sought to the extent then known; and (iii) the factual and legal basis for the action. Any person or entity filing a notice of
participation as a respondent shall be a party to that proceeding.

C. Public witnesses. Any person or entity not participating in a matter pursuant to subsection A or B of this section may make known their
position in any regulatory proceeding by filing written comments in advance of the hearing if provided for by commission order or by attending the hearing,
noting an appearance in the manner prescribed by the commission, and giving oral testimony. Public witnesses may not otherwise participate in the
proceeding, be included in the service list, or be considered a party to the proceeding.

D. Commission staff. The commission staff may appear and participate in any proceeding in order to see that pertinent issues on behalf of the
general public interest are clearly presented to the commission. The staff may, inter alia, conduct investigations and discovery, evaluate the issues raised,
testify and offer exhibits, file briefs and make argument, and be subject to cross-examination when testifying. Neither the commission staff collectively nor
any individual member of the commission staff shall be considered a party to the case for any purpose by virtue of participation in a proceeding.

5 VAC 5-20-90. Adjudicatory proceedings.

A. Initiation of proceedings. Investigative, disciplinary, penal, and other adjudicatory proceedings may be initiated by motion of the
commission staff or upon the commission's own motion. Further proceedings shall be controlled by the issuance of a rule to show cause, which shall give
notice to the defendant, state the allegations against the defendant, provide for a response from the defendant and, where appropriate, set the matter for
hearing. A ruleto show cause shall be served in the manner provided by 8 12.1-19.1 or § 12.1-29 of the Code of Virginia. The commission staff shall prove
the case by clear and convincing evidence.

B. Answer. An answer or other responsive pleading shall be filed within 21 days of service of the rule to show cause, unless the commission
shall order otherwise. The answer shall state, in narrative form, each defendant's responses to the allegations in the rule to show cause and any affirmative
defenses asserted by the defendant. Failure to file atimely answer or other responsive pleading may result in the entry of judgment by default against the
party failing to respond.

5 VAC 5-20-100. Other proceedings.

A. Promulgation of general orders, rules, or regulations. Before promulgating a general order, rule, or regulation, the commission shall, by
order upon an application or upon its own motion, require reasonable notice of the contents of the proposed general order, rule, or regulation, including
publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations, and afford interested persons an opportunity to comment, present evidence, and be heard. A copy of
each general order, rule, and regulation adopted in final form by the commission shall be filed with the Registrar of Regulations for publication in the
Virginia Register of Regulations.

B. Petitions in other matters. Persons having a cause before the commission, whether by statute, rule, regulation, or otherwise, against a
defendant, including the commission, a commission bureau, or acommission division, shall proceed by filing a written petition containing (i) the identity of
the parties; (ii) a statement of the action sought and the legal basis for the commission's jurisdiction to take the action sought; (iii) a statement of the facts,
proof of which would warrant the action sought; (iv) a statement of the legal basis for the action; and (v) a certificate showing service upon the defendant.

Within 21 days of service of a petition under this rule, the defendant shall file an answer or other responsive pleading containing, in narrative
form, (i) a response to each allegation of the petition and (ii) a statement of each affirmative defense asserted by the defendant. Failure to file a timely
answer may result in entry of judgment by default against the defendant failing to respond. Upon order of the commission, the commission staff may
participate in any proceeding under thisrulein which it is not a defendant to the same extent as permitted by 5 VAC 5-20-80 D.
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C. Declaratory judgments. Persons having no other adequate remedy may petition the commission for a declaratory judgment. The petition
shall meet the requirements of subsection B of this section and, in addition, contain a statement of the basis for concluding that an actual controversy exists. In
the proceeding, the commission shall by order provide for the necessary notice, responsive pleadings, and participation by interested parties and the
commission staff.

PART 1.
PROCEDURES IN FORMAL PROCEEDINGS.

5 VAC 5-20-110. Motions. Motions may be filed for the same purposes recognized by the courts of record in the Commonwealth. Unless
otherwise ordered by the commission, any response to a motion must be filed within 14 days of the filing of the motion, and any reply by the moving party
must be filed within ten days of thefiling of the response.

5 VAC 5-20-120. Procedure before hearing examiners.

A. Assignment. The commission may, by order, assign a matter pending before it to a hearing examiner. Unless otherwise ordered, the hearing
examiner shall conduct all further proceedings in the matter on behalf of the commission in accordance with these rules. In the discharge of his duties, the
hearing examiner shall exercise all the adjudicatory powers possessed by the commission including, inter aia, the power to administer oaths; require the
attendance of witnesses and parties; require the production of documents; schedule and conduct pre-hearing conferences; admit or exclude evidence; grant or
deny continuances; and rule on motions, matters of law, and procedural questions. The hearing examiner shall, upon conclusion of all assigned duties, issuea
written final report and recommendation to the commission at the conclusion of the proceedings.

B. Objections and certification of issues. An objection to a ruling by the hearing examiner during a hearing shall be stated with the reasons
therefor at the time of the ruling. Any objection to a hearing examiner's ruling may be argued to the commission as part of a response to the hearing
examiner's report. A ruling by the hearing examiner that denies further participation by a party in interest or the commission staff in a proceeding that has not
been concluded may be immediately appealed to the commission by filing awritten motion with the commission for review. Upon the motion of any party or
the staff, or upon the hearing examiner's own initiative, the hearing examiner may certify any other material issue to the commission for its consideration and
resolution. Pending resolution by the commission of aruling appealed or certified, the hearing examiner shall retain procedural control of the proceeding.

C. Responsesto hearing examiner reports.  Unless otherwise ordered by the hearing examiner, responses supporting or objecting to the hearing
examiner's final report must be filed within 21 days of the issuance of the report. A reply to a response to the hearing examiner's report may only be filed
with leave of the commission. The commission may accept, modify, or reject the hearing examiner's recommendations in any manner consistent with law
and the evidence, notwithstanding an absence of objections to the hearing examiner's report.

5 VAC 5-20-130. Amendment of pleadings.

No amendment shall be made to any pleading after it is filed except by leave of the commission, which leave shall be liberally granted in the
furtherance of justice. The commission shall make such provision for notice and for opportunity to respond to the amended pleadings as it may deem

necessary and proper.
5 VAC 5-20-140. Filing and service.

A pleading or other document shall be considered filed with the commission upon receipt of the original and required copies by the Clerk of the
Commission no later than the time established for the closing of business of the clerk's office on the day the item is due. The original and copies shall be
stamped by the Clerk to show the time and date of receipt.

Electronic filings may be submitted at any time and will be deemed filed on the date and at the time the electronic document is received by the
commission's database; provided, that if a document is received when the clerk's office is not open for public business, the document shall be deemed filed
on the next regular business day. A filer will receive an electronic notification identifying the date and time the document was received by the commission's
database. An electronic document may be rejected if it is not submitted in compliance with these rules.

When a filing would otherwise be due on a day when the clerk's office is not open for public business during all or part of a business day, the
filing will be timely if made on the next regular business day that the office is open to the public. Except as otherwise ordered by the commission, when a
period of 15 days or fewer is permitted to make a filing or take other action pursuant to commission rule or order, intervening weekends or holidays shall not
be counted in determining the due date.

Service of a pleading, brief, or other document filed with the commission required to be served on the parties to a proceeding or upon the
commission staff, shall be effected by delivery of a true copy to the party or staff, or by deposit of a true copy into the United States mail or overnight
express mail delivery service properly addressed and postage prepaid, or via hand-delivery, on or before the date of filing. Service on a party may be made
by service on the party's counsel. Alternatively, eectronic service shall be permitted on parties or staff in cases where al parties and staff have agreed to
such service, or where the commission has provided for such service by order. At the foot of a formal pleading, brief, or other document required to be
served, the party making service shall append a certificate of counsel of record that copies were mailed or delivered as required. Notices, findings of fact,
opinions, decisions, orders, or other documents to be served by the commission may be served by United States mail. However, all writs, processes, and
orders of the commission, when acting in conformity with § 12.1-27 of the Code of Virginia, shall be attested by the Clerk of the Commission and served in
compliance with § 12.1-19.1 or 12.1-29 of the Code of Virginia.

5 VAC 5-20-150. Copies and format.

Applications, petitions, motions, responsive pleadings, briefs, and other documents filed by parties must be filed in an original and 15 copies
unless otherwise directed by the commission. Except as otherwise stated in these rules, submissions filed electronically are exempt from the copy
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requirement. One copy of each responsive pleading or brief must be served on each party and the commission staff counsel assigned to the matter, or, if no
counsel has been assigned, on the general counsdl.

Each document must be filed on standard size white opaque paper, 8-1/2 by 11 inches in dimension, must be capable of being reproduced in
copies of archival quality, and only one side of the paper may be used. Submissions filed electronically shall be made in portable document format (PDF).

Each document shall be bound or attached on the left side and contain adequate margins. Each page following the first page shall be numbered. If
necessary, a document may be filed in consecutively numbered volumes, each of which may not exceed three inches in thickness. Submissions filed
electronically may not exceed 100 pages of printed text of 8-1/2 by 11 inches.

Each document containing more than one exhibit should have dividers separating each exhibit and should contain an index. Exhibits such as
maps, plats, and photographs not easily reduced to standard size may befiled in a different size, as necessary. Submissions filed electronically that otherwise
would incorporate large exhibits impractical for conversion to electronic format shall be identified in the filing and include a statement that the exhibit was
filed in hardcopy and is available for viewing at the commission or that a copy may be obtained from the filing party. Such exhibit shall be filed in an
original and 15 copies.

All filed documents shall be fully collated and assembled into complete and proper sets ready for distribution and use, without the need for
further assembly, sorting, or rearrangement.

The Clerk of the Commission may reject the filing of any document not conforming to the requirements of thisrule.
5 VAC 5-20-160. Memorandum of completeness.

With respect to the filing of arate application or an application seeking actions, that by statute or rule must be completed within a certain number
of days, a memorandum shall be filed by an appropriate member of the commission staff within ten days of the filing of the application stating whether all
necessary requirements imposed by statute or rule for filing the application have been met and all required information has been filed. If the requirements
have not been met, the memorandum shall state with specificity the remaining items to be filed. The Clerk of the Commission immediately shall serve a
copy of the memorandum on the filing party. The first day of the period within which action on the application must be concluded shall be set forth in the
memorandum and shall be theinitial date of filing of applications that are found to be complete upon filing. Applications found to require supplementation
shall be complete upon the date of filing of the last item identified in the staff memorandum. Applications shall be deemed complete upon filing if the
memorandum of completenessisnot timely filed.

5 VAC 5-20-170. Confidential information.

A person who proposes in good faith in a formal proceeding that information to be filed with or delivered to the commission be withheld from
public disclosure on the ground that it contains trade secrets, privileged, or confidential commercial or financial information shall file this information under
seal with the Clerk of the Commission, or otherwise deliver the information under seal to the commission staff, or both, as may be required. Items filed or
delivered under seal shall be securely sealed in an opague container that is clearly labeled "UNDER SEAL," and, if filed, shall meet the other requirements
for filing contained in these rules. An original and 15 copies of al such information shall be filed with the clerk. One additional copy of al such information
shall also be delivered under seal to the commission staff counsel assigned to the matter, or, where no counsel has been assigned, to the general counsel who,
until ordered otherwise by the commission, shall disclose the information only to the members of the commission staff directly assigned to the matter as
necessary in the discharge of their duties. Staff counsel and all members of the commission staff, until otherwise ordered by the commission, shall maintain
the information in strict confidence and shall not disclose its contents to members of the public, or to other staff members not assigned to the matter. The
commission staff or any party may object to the proposed withholding of the information.

When an application (including supporting documents and prefiled testimony) contains information that the applicant claims to be confidential,
the filing shall be made under seal and accompanied by a motion for protective order or other confidential treatment. The provision to a party of information
claimed to be trade secrets, privileged, or confidential commercial or financia information shall be governed by a protective order or other individual
arrangements for confidential treatment.

On every document filed or delivered under seal, the producing party shall mark each individual page of the document that contains confidential
information, and on each such page shall clearly indicate the specific information requested to be treated as confidential by use of highlighting, underscoring,
bracketing or other appropriate marking. All remaining materials on each page of the document shall be treated as nonconfidential and available for public
use and review. If an entire document is confidential, or if all information provided in electronic format under Part 1V of these rules is confidential, a
marking prominently displayed on the first page of such document or at the beginning of any information provided in electronic format, indicating that the
entire document is confidential shall suffice.

Upon challenge, the information shall be treated as confidential pursuant to these rules only where the party requesting confidential treatment can
demonstrate to the satisfaction of the commission that the risk of harm of publicly disclosing the information outweighs the presumption in favor of public
disclosure. If the commission determines that the information should be withheld from public disclosure, it may nevertheless require the information to be
disclosed to parties to a proceeding under appropriate protective order.

Whenever a document is filed with the clerk under seal, an original and one copy of an expurgated or redacted version of the document deemed
by the filing party or determined by the commission to be confidential shall be filed with the clerk for use and review by the public. A document containing
confidential information shall not be submitted electronically. An expurgated or redacted version of the document may be filed electronically. Documents
containing confidential information must be filed in hardcopy and in accordance with all requirements of these rules. Upon a determination by the
commission or a hearing examiner that all or portions of any materials filed under seal are not entitled to confidential treatment, the filing party shall file one
original and one copy of the expurgated or redacted version of the document reflecting the ruling.

When the information at issue is not required to be filed or made a part of the record, a party who wishes to withhold confidential information
from filing or production may move the commission for a protective order without filing the materials. In considering such a motion, the commission may
require production of the confidential materials for inspection in camera, if necessary.
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A party may request additional protection for extraordinarily sensitive information by motion filed pursuant to 5 VAC 5-20-110, and filing the
information with the Clerk of the Commission under seal and delivering a copy of the information to commission staff counsel under seal as directed above.
Whenever such treatment has been requested under Part IV of these rules, the commission may make such orders as necessary to permit parties to chalenge
the requested additional protection.

The commission, hearing examiners, any party and the commission staff may make use of confidential material in orders, filing pleadings,
testimony, or other documents, as directed by order of the commission. When a party or commission staff uses confidential material in a filed pleading,
testimony, or other document, the party or commission staff must file both confidential and nonconfidential versions of the pleading, testimony, or other
document. Confidential versions of filed pleadings, testimony, or other documents shall clearly indicate the confidential material contained within by
highlighting, underscoring, bracketing or other appropriate marking. When filing confidential pleadings, testimony, or other documents, parties must submit
the confidential version to the Clerk of the Commission securely sealed in an opague container that is clearly labeled "UNDER SEAL." Nonconfidential
versions of filed pleadings, testimony, or other documents shall expurgate, redact, or otherwise omit all references to confidential material.

The commission may issue such order asit deems necessary to prevent the use of confidentiality claims for the purpose of delay or obstruction of
the proceeding.

A person who proposes in good faith that information to be delivered to the commission staff outside of a formal proceeding be withheld from
public disclosure on the ground that it contains trade secrets, privileged, or confidential commercial or financial information may deliver the information
under seal to the commission staff, subject to the same protections afforded confidential information in formal proceedings.

5 VAC 5-20-180. Official transcript of hearing.

The official transcript of a hearing before the commission or a hearing examiner shall be that prepared by the court reporters retained by the
commission and certified by the court reporter as a true and correct transcript of the proceeding. Transcripts of proceedings shall not be prepared except in
cases assigned to a hearing examiner, when directed by the commission, or when requested by a party desiring to purchase a copy. Parties desiring to
purchase copies of the transcript shall make arrangement for purchase with the court reporter. When a transcript is prepared, a copy thereof shall be made
available for public inspection in the clerk's office. If the transcript includes confidential information, an expurgated or redacted version of the transcript
shall be made available for public inspection in the clerk's office. Only the parties who have executed an agreement to adhere to a protective order or other
arrangement for access to confidentia treatment in such proceeding and the commission staff shall be entitled to access to an unexpurgated or unredacted
version of the transcript. By agreement of the parties, or as the commission may by order provide, corrections may be made to the transcript.

5 VAC 5-20-190. Rules of evidence.

In proceedings under 5 VAC 5-20-90, and all other proceedings in which the commission shall be called upon to decide or render judgment only
in its capacity as a court of record, the common law and statutory rules of evidence shall be as observed and administered by the courts of record of the
Commonwealth. In other proceedings, evidentiary rules shall not be unreasonably used to prevent the receipt of evidence having substantial probative effect.

5 VAC 5-20-200. Briefs.

Written briefs may be authorized at the discretion of the commission, except in proceedings under 5 VAC 5-20-100 A, where briefs may be filed
by right. The time for filing briefs and reply briefs, if authorized, shall be set at the time they are authorized. The commission may limit the length of a
brief. The commission may by order provide for the electronic filing or service of briefs.

5 VAC 5-20-210. Oral argument.

The commission may authorize oral argument, limited as the commission may direct, on any pertinent matter at any time during the course of the
proceeding.

5 VAC 5-20-220. Petition for rehearing or reconsideration.

Final judgments, orders, and decrees of the commission, except judgments prescribed by § 12.1-36 of the Code of Virginia, and except as
provided in §8§ 13.1-614 and 13.1-813 of the Code of Virginia, shall remain under the control of the commission and subject to modification or vacation for
21 days after the date of entry. Except for good cause shown, a petition for rehearing or reconsideration must be filed not later than 20 days after the date of
entry of the judgment, order, or decree. The filing of a petition will not suspend the execution of the judgment, order, or decree, nor extend the time for
taking an appeal, unless the commission, within the 21-day period following entry of the final judgment, order or decree, shall provide for a suspension in an
order or decree granting the petition. A petition for rehearing or reconsideration must be served on al parties and delivered to commission staff counsel on
or before the day on which it is filed. The commission will not entertain responses to, or requests for oral argument on, a petition. An order granting a
rehearing or reconsideration will be served on all parties and commission staff counsel by the Clerk of the Commission.

5 VAC 5-20-230. Extension of time.

The commission may, at its discretion, grant a continuance, postponement, or extension of time for the filing of a document or the taking of an
action required or permitted by these rules, except for petitions for rehearing or reconsideration filed pursuant to 5 VAC 5-20-220. Except for good cause
shown, motions for extensions shall be made in writing, served on al parties and commission staff counsel, and filed with the commission at least three days
prior to the date the action sought to be extended is due.
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PART IV.
DISCOVERY AND HEARING PREPARATION PROCEDURES.
5 VAC 5-20-240. Prepared testimony and exhibits.

Following the filing of an application dependent upon complicated or technical proof, the commission may direct the applicant to prepare and file
the testimony and exhibits by which the applicant expects to establish its case. In al proceedings in which an applicant is required to file testimony,
respondents shall be permitted and may be directed by the commission or hearing examiner to file, on or before a date certain, testimony and exhibits by
which they expect to establish their case. Any respondent that chooses not to file testimony and exhibits by that date may not thereafter present testimony or
exhibits except by leave of the commission, but may otherwise fully participate in the proceeding and engage in cross-examination of the testimony and
exhibits of commission staff and other parties. The commission staff also shall file testimony and exhibits when directed to do so by the commission. Failure
to comply with the directions of the commission, without good cause shown, may result in rejection of the testimony and exhibits by the commission. With
leave of the commission and unless a timely objection is made, the commission staff or a party may correct or supplement any prepared testimony and
exhibits before or during the hearing. In all proceedings, all evidence must be verified by the witness before introduction into the record, and the
admissibility of the evidence shall be subject to the same standards as if the testimony were offered orally at hearing, unless, with the consent of the
commission, the staff and all parties stipulate the introduction of testimony without need for verification. An original and 15 copies of prepared testimony
and exhibits shall be filed unless otherwise specified in the commission's scheduling order and public notice, or unless the testimony and exhibits are filed
electronically and otherwise comply with these rules. Documents of unusual bulk or weight and physical exhibits other than documents need not be filed in
advance, but shall be described and made available for pretrial examination.

5 VAC 5-20-250. Process, witnesses, and production of documents and things.

A. Subpoenas. Commission staff and any party to a proceeding shall be entitled to process, to convene parties, to compe the attendance of
witnesses, and to compel the production of books, papers, documents, or things provided in thisrule.

B. Commission issuance and enforcement of other regulatory agency subpoenas. Upon motion by commission staff counsel, the commission
may issue and enforce subpoenas at the request of a regulatory agency of another jurisdiction if the activity for which the information is sought by the other
agency, if occurring in the Commonwealth, would be a violation of the laws of the Commonwealth that are administered by the commission.

A moation requesting the i ssuance of a commission subpoena shall include:

1. A copy of the original subpoenaissued by the regulatory agency to the named defendant;

2. Anaffidavit of the requesting agency administrator stating the basis for the i ssuance of the subpoena under that state's laws; and

3. A memorandum from the commission's corresponding division director providing the basis for the issuance of the commission subpoena.

C. Document subpoenas. In a pending proceeding, at the request of commission staff or any party, the Clerk of the Commission shall issue a
subpoena. When a matter is under investigation by commission staff, before a formal proceeding has been established, whenever it appears to the
commission by affidavit filed with the Clerk of the Commission by the commission staff or an individual, that a book, writing, document, or thing
sufficiently described in the affidavit, is in the possession, or under the control, of an identified person and is material and proper to be produced, the
commission may order the Clerk of the Commission to issue a subpoena and to have the subpoena duly served, together with an attested copy of the
commission's order compelling production at a reasonable place and time as described in the commission's order.

D. Witness subpoenas. In a pending proceeding, at the request of commission staff or any party, the Clerk of the Commission shall issue a
subpoena.

5 VAC 5-20-260. Interrogatories to parties or requests for production of documents and things.

The commission staff and any party in a formal proceeding before the commission, other than a proceeding under 5 VAC 5-20-100 A, may serve
written interrogatories or requests for production of documents upon a party, to be answered by the party served, or if the party served is an entity, by an
officer or agent of the entity, who shall furnish to the staff or requesting party information as is known. Interrogatories or requests for production of
documents, including workpapers pursuant to 5 VAC 5-20-270, that cannot be timely answered before the scheduled hearing date may be served only with
leave of the commission for good cause shown and upon such conditions as the commisson may prescribe. Such otherwise untimely interrogatories or
requests for production of documents, including workpapers pursuant to 5 VAC 5-20-270, may not be served until such leave is granted. No interrogatories
or reguests for production of documents may be served upon a member of the commission staff, except to discover factual information that supports the
workpapers submitted by the staff pursuant to 5 VAC 5-20-270. All interrogatories and requests for production of documents shall be filed with the Clerk of
the Commission. Responses to interrogatories and requests for production of documents shall not be filed with the Clerk of the Commission.

The response to each interrogatory or document request shall identify by name the person making the response. Any objection to an interrogatory
or document request shall identify the interrogatory or document request to which the objection is raised, and shall state with specificity the basis and
supporting legal theory for the objection. Objections shall be served with the list of responses or in such manner as the commission may designate by order.
Responses and objections to interrogatories or requests for production of documents shall be served within 10 days of receipt, unless otherwise ordered by
the commission. Upon motion promptly made and accompanied by a copy of the interrogatory or document request and the response or objection that is
subject to the mation, the commission will rule upon the validity of the objection; the objection otherwise will be considered sustained.

Interrogatories or requests for production of documents may relate to any matter not privileged, which is relevant to the subject matter involved,
including the existence, description, nature, custody, condition, and location of any books, documents, or other tangible things, and the identity and location
of persons having knowledge of evidentiary value. It is not grounds for objection that the information sought will be inadmissible at the hearing if the
information appears reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.
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Where the response to an interrogatory or document request may only be derived or ascertained from the business records of the party questioned,
from an examination, audit, or inspection of business records, or from a compilation, abstract, or summary of business records, and the burden of deriving or
ascertaining the response is substantially the same for one entity as for the other, a response is sufficient if it (i) identifies by name and location all records
from which the response may be derived or ascertained; and (ii) tenders to the inquiring party reasonable opportunity to examine, audit, or inspect the
records subject to objection as to their proprietary or confidential nature. The inquiring party bears the expense of making copies, compilations, abstracts, or
summaries.

5 VAC 5-20-270. Hearing preparation.

In aformal proceeding, a party or the commission staff may serve on a party a request to examine the workpapers supporting the testimony or
exhibits of a witness whose prepared testimony has been filed in accordance with 5 VAC 5-20-240. The movant may request abstracts or summaries of the
workpapers, and may request copies of the workpapers upon payment of the reasonable cost of duplication or reproduction. Copies requested by the
commission staff shall be furnished without payment of copying costs. In actions pursuant to 5 VAC 5-20-80 A, the commission staff shall, upon the filing
of its testimony, exhibits, or report, provide (in either paper or electronic format) a copy of any workpapers that support the recommendations made in its
testimony or report to any party upon request and may additionally file a copy of such workpapers with the Clerk of the Commission. The Clerk of the
Commission shall make any filed workpapers available for public inspection and copying during regular business hours.

5 VAC 5-20-280. Discovery applicable only to 5 VAC 5-20-90 proceedings.

This rule applies only to a proceeding in which a defendant is subject to a monetary penalty or injunction, or revocation, cancellation, or
curtailment of alicense, certificate of authority, registration, or similar authority previously issued by the commission to the defendant:

1. Discovery of material in possession of the commission staff. Upon written motion of the defendant, the commission shall permit the
defendant to inspect and, at the defendant's expense, copy or photograph any relevant written or recorded statements, the existence of which is known, after
reasonable inquiry, by the commission staff counsel assigned to the matter to be within the custody, possession, or control of commission staff, made by the
defendant, or representatives, or agents of the defendant if the defendant is other than an individual, to a commission staff member or law enforcement
officer.

A motion by the defendant under this rule shall be filed and served at least 10 days before the hearing date. The motion shall include all relief
sought. A subsequent motion may be made only upon a showing of cause as to why the motion would be in the interest of justice. An order granting relief
under this rule shall specify the time, place, and manner of making discovery and inspection permitted, and may prescribe such terms and conditions as the
commission may determine.

Nothing in this rule shall require the disclosure of any information, the disclosure of which is prohibited by statute. The disclosure of the results
of acommission staff investigation or work product of commission staff counsel shall not be required.

2. Depositions. After commencement of a proceeding to which this rule applies, the commission staff or a party may take the testimony of a
party or a person not a party, other than a member of the commission staff, by deposition on oral examination or by written questions. Depositions may be
used for any purpose for which they may be used in the courts of record of the Commonwealth. Except where the commission or hearing examiner finds that
an emergency exists, no deposition may be taken later than 10 days in advance of the formal hearing. The attendance of witnesses at depositions may be
compelled by subpoena. Examination and cross-examination of the witness shall be as at hearing. Depositions may be taken in the City of Richmond or in
the town, city, or county in which the deposed person resides, is employed, or does business. The parties and the commission staff, by agreement, may
designate another place for the taking of the deposition. Reasonable notice of the intent to take a deposition must be given in writing to the commission staff
counsel and to each party to the action, stating the time and place where the deposition is to be taken. A deposition may be taken before any person (the
"officer") authorized to administer oaths by the laws of the jurisdiction in which the deposition is to be taken. The officer shall certify his authorization in
writing, administer the oath to the deponent, record or cause to be recorded the testimony given, and note any objections raised. In lieu of participating in the
oral examination, a party or the commission staff may deliver sealed written questions to the officer, who shall propound the questions to the witness. The
officer may terminate the deposition if convinced that the examination is being conducted in bad faith or in an unreasonable manner. Costs of the deposition
shall be borne by the party noticing the deposition, unless otherwise ordered by the commission.

3. Requests for admissions. The commission staff or a party to a proceeding may serve upon a party written requests for admission. Each
matter on which an admission is requested shall be stated separately. A matter shall be deemed admitted unless within 21 days of the service of the request,
or some other period the commission may designate, the party to whom the request is directed serves upon the requesting party a written answer addressing
or objecting to the request. The response shall set forth in specific terms a denial of the matter set forth or an explanation as to the reasons the responding
party cannot truthfully admit or deny the matter set forth. Requests for admission shall be filed with the Clerk of the Commission and simultaneously served
on commission staff counsel and on all parties to the proceeding.

Adopted: September 1, 1974

Revised: May 1, 1985 by Case No. CLK850262

Revised: August 1, 1986 by Case No. CLK860572 and Repealed June 1, 2001 by Case No. CLK000311
Adopted: June 1, 2001 by Case No. CLK000311

Revised: January 15, 2008 by Case No. CLK-2007-00005

Revised: February 24, 2009 by Case No. CLK-2008-00002
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LEADING MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY FORMAL ORDERS

BUREAU OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

CASE NO. BAN20090531
MAY 12, 2010

APPLICATION OF
EZ LOANS OF VIRGINIA, INC.

For authority for an other business operator to conduct open-end auto title lending business from the licensee's payday lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

EZ Loans of Virginia, Inc. ("Licensee"), a licensed payday lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to
10 VAC 5-200-100 and § 6.1-463 of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business operator to conduct open-end auto title lending business from
its payday lending offices. The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-200-100 B.

THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1.

10.

11.

The Licensee shall not make a payday loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in connection with the
(i) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the Licensee's payday lending offices.

The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business, or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

The Licensee shall not make a payday loan or vary the terms of a payday loan on the condition or requirement that a person also (i) purchase
a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business operator shall not (a) sell its
goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the condition or requirement
that a person also obtain a payday loan from the Licensee.

The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's payday lending
business and in a different location within the Licensee's payday lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all such books and
records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all applicable
conditions, laws, and regulations.

Any loan made by the other business operator pursuant to an open-end credit agreement shall be secured by a security interest in a motor
vehicle, as defined in § 46.2-100 of the Code of Virginia.

The Licensee shall not make a payday loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding open-end loan from the other business operator,
or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full an open-end loan from the other business operator.

The other business operator shall not make an open-end loan to a person pursuant to an open-end credit agreement if (i) the person has an
outstanding payday loan from the Licensee, or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a payday loan from the Licensee.

The other business operator and the Licensee shall not make an open-end loan and a payday loan contemporaneously or in response to a
single request for a loan or credit.

The Licensee and other business operator shall provide each applicant for a payday loan or open-end credit plan with a separate disclosure,
signed by the applicant, that clearly identifies all of the loan products available in the Licensee's payday lending offices along with the
corresponding Annual Percentage Rate, interest rate, and other costs associated with each loan product.

Upon entering into an open-end credit plan secured by a borrower's motor vehicle, the other business operator shall record its security
interest with the Department of Motor Vehicles and maintain adequate supporting documentation thereof in its loan file.

The other business operator shall not enter into an open-end credit plan secured by a prospective borrower's motor vehicle if the motor
vehicle is already subject to a purchase money security interest or other outstanding lien. The other business operator shall maintain
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adequate supporting documentation in its loan file that a borrower's motor vehicle was not subject to a purchase money security interest or
other outstanding lien at the time the borrower entered into the open-end credit plan.

CASE NO. BAN-2009-00540
APRIL 8, 2010

APPLICATION OF
CHEQUE CASHING, INC. D/B/A ACE AMERICA'S CASH EXPRESS

For authority for an other business operator to conduct open-end auto title lending business from the licensee's payday lending office(s)

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Cheque Cashing, Inc. d/b/a Ace America's Cash Express ("Licensee"), a licensed payday lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission
("Commission"), pursuant to 10 VAC 5-200-100 and § 6.1-463 of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business operator to conduct open-end auto
title lending business from its payday lending office(s). The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-200-100 B.

THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1.

10.

11.

12.

The Licensee shall not make a payday loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in connection with the
(1) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the Licensee's payday lending office(s).

The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business, or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

The Licensee shall not make a payday loan or vary the terms of a payday loan on the condition or requirement that a person also (i) purchase
a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business operator shall not (a) sell its
goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the condition or requirement
that a person also obtain a payday loan from the Licensee.

The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's payday lending
business and in a different location within the Licensee's payday lending office(s). The Bureau shall be given access to all such books and
records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all applicable
conditions, laws, and regulations.

Any loan made by the other business operator pursuant to an open-end credit agreement shall be secured by a security interest in a motor
vehicle, as defined in § 46.2-100 of the Code of Virginia.

The Licensee shall not make a payday loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding open-end loan from the other business operator,
or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full an open-end loan from the other business operator.

The other business operator shall not make an open-end loan to a person pursuant to an open-end credit agreement if (i) the person has an
outstanding payday loan from the Licensee, or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a payday loan from the Licensee.

The other business operator and the Licensee shall not make an open-end loan and a payday loan contemporaneously or in response to a
single request for a loan or credit.

The Licensee and other business operator shall provide each applicant for a payday loan or open-end credit plan with a separate disclosure,
signed by the applicant, that clearly identifies all of the loan products available in the Licensee's payday lending offices along with the
corresponding Annual Percentage Rate, interest rate, and other costs associated with each loan product.

Upon entering into an open-end credit plan secured by a borrower's motor vehicle, the other business operator shall record its security
interest with the Department of Motor Vehicles and maintain adequate supporting documentation thereof in its loan file.

The other business operator shall not enter into an open-end credit plan secured by a prospective borrower's motor vehicle if the motor
vehicle is already subject to a purchase money security interest or other outstanding lien. The other business operator shall maintain
adequate supporting documentation in its loan file that a borrower's motor vehicle was not subject to a purchase money security interest or
other outstanding lien at the time the borrower entered into the open-end credit plan.
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CASE NO. BAN20091343
DECEMBER 20, 2010

APPLICATION OF
EXPRESS CHECK ADVANCE OF VIRGINIA, LLC, D/B/A EXPRESS CHECK ADVANCE

For authority for an other business operator to conduct the business of tax preparation and electronic tax filing services from the licensee's payday
lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Express Check Advance of Virginia, LLC d/b/a Express Check Advance ("Licensee"), a licensed payday lender, has applied to the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to 10 VAC 5-200-100 and § 6.2-1820 of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business
operator to conduct the business of tax preparation and electronic tax filing services from the licensee's payday lending offices. The application was
investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-200-100 B.
THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

(1) The licensee shall not make a payday loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in connection with the
(i) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the licensee's payday lending offices.

(2) The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

(3) The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business, or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

(4) The licensee shall not make a payday loan or vary the terms of a payday loan on the condition or requirement that a person also (i) purchase
a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business operator shall not (a) sell its
goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the condition or requirement
that a person also obtain a payday loan from the licensee.

(5) The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the licensee's payday lending
business and in a different location within the licensee's payday lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all such books and
records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all applicable
conditions, laws, and regulations.

(6) The licensee shall not make, arrange, or broker a payday loan that is secured by an interest in a borrower's tax refund, or in whole or in part
by (i) any other assignment of income payable to a borrower, or (ii) any assignment of an interest in a borrower's account at a depository
institution. This condition shall not be construed to prohibit the licensee from making a payday loan that is secured solely by a check
payable to the licensee drawn on a borrower's account at a depository institution.

(7) The other business operator shall not engage in the business of (i) accepting funds for transmission to the Internal Revenue Service or other

government instrumentalities, or (ii) receiving tax refunds for delivery to individuals, unless licensed or exempt from licensing under
Chapter 19 of Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia.

CASE NO. BAN20091409
FEBRUARY 18, 2010

APPLICATION OF
FIRST MARKET BANK

For a certificate of authority to conduct a banking and trust business following a merger with Union Bank and Trust Company and for authority to
operate the authorized offices of the merging banks

ORDER GRANTING AUTHORITY

First Market Bank, a Virginia state-chartered bank, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to § 6.1-44 of the
Code of Virginia, for a certificate of authority to conduct a banking and trust business following a merger with Union Bank and Trust Company, a Virginia
state-chartered bank. Both banks are subsidiaries of Union Bankshares Corporation, a bank holding company based in Bowling Green, Virginia. First
Market Bank proposes to be the surviving bank in the merger and seeks authority to operate all of the currently authorized offices of the merging banks. The
resulting bank will be renamed "Union First Market Bank." The application was investigated by the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that: (1) the provisions of law have been complied with;
(2) the capital stock of the resulting bank will be $20,949,000, and its surplus will be not less than $297,749,000; (3) the public interest will be served by the
banking facilities of the resulting bank in the communities where its offices will be located; (4) the oaths of all directors have been taken and filed in
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accordance with the provisions of § 6.1-48 of the Code of Virginia; (5) the resulting bank will conduct a legitimate banking business; (6) the moral fitness,
financial responsibility, and business qualifications of those named as officers and directors of the resulting bank are such as to command the confidence of
the community; and (7) the deposits of the resulting bank will be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

THEREFORE, a certificate of authority to conduct a banking and trust business is GRANTED to First Market Bank, effective upon the issuance
by the Clerk of the Commission of a certificate of merger in the proposed transaction. The resulting bank is authorized to operate a main office at
111 Virginia Street, Suite 200, City of Richmond, Virginia, and is authorized to maintain and operate, in addition to its current offices and facilities, all of
the previously authorized office locations of Union Bank and Trust Company, as listed in Attachment A. The authority granted herein shall expire one
(1) year from the date of this Order unless extended by Commission order prior to the expiration date.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation Commission, Bureau of Financial Institutions, Tyler
Building, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. BAN20100368
JUNE 15, 2010

APPLICATION OF
GULFPORT FINANCIAL, L.L.C. D/B/A VIRGINIA CASH ADVANCE

For authority for an other business operator to conduct business as an authorized delegate or agent of a money order seller or money transmitter
from the licensee's payday lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Gulfport Financial, L.L.C. d/b/a Virginia Cash Advance ("Licensee"), a licensed payday lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission
("Commission"), pursuant to 10 VAC 5-200-100 and § 6.1-463 of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business operator to conduct business as an
authorized delegate or agent of a money order seller or money transmitter from its payday lending offices. The application was investigated by the
Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-200-100 B.
THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. The Licensee shall not make a payday loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in connection with the
(1) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the Licensee's payday lending offices.

2. The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

3. The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false, misleading,
or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products, services, or
loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being licensed to
conduct the other business, or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

4. The Licensee shall not make a payday loan or vary the terms of a payday loan on the condition or requirement that a person also (i) purchase
a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business operator shall not (a) sell its
goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the condition or requirement
that a person also obtain a payday loan from the Licensee.

5. The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's payday lending
business and in a different location within the Licensee's payday lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all such books and
records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all applicable
conditions, laws, and regulations.

6. The other business operator shall be and remain a party to a written agreement to act as an authorized delegate or agent of a person licensed
or exempt from licensing as a money order seller or money transmitter under Chapter 12 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia. The other
business operator shall not engage in money order sales or money transmission services on its own behalf or on behalf of any person other
than a licensed or exempt money order seller or money transmitter with whom it has a written agreement.
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CASE NO. BANZ20100379
DECEMBER 1, 2010

APPLICATION OF
CORDIA BANCORP INC.

To acquire control of Bank of Virginia

ORDER OF APPROVAL

Cordia Bancorp Inc., a Virginia corporation, has filed with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") the application required by
§ 6.2-704 of the Code of Virginia to acquire control of Bank of Virginia, a Virginia state-chartered bank. The Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau")
investigated the proposed acquisition.

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in § 6.2-705 of the
Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the proposed acquisition of Bank of Virginia by Cordia Bancorp Inc. is APPROVED, provided the acquisition takes place within
one (1) year from the date of this Order and the applicant notifies the Bureau of the effective date of the transaction within ten (10) days thereof.

CASE NO. BAN20100482
JULY 14, 2010

APPLICATION OF
ADVANCE FINANCIAL SERVICES, LLC

For authority to relocate an office

ORDER APPROVING RELOCATION OF AN OFFICE

Advance Financial Services, LLC, a licensed payday lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to
Chapter 18 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia, for authority to relocate an office from 5501 Patterson Avenue, Suite 203, Richmond, Virginia 23220 to
621-623 N. 3rd Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219. The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in § 6.1-451 of the
Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the application is APPROVED provided that the licensee relocates the office within one (1) year from this date and the licensee
gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun at the new office location within ten (10) days thereafter.

CASE NO. BAN20100514
AUGUST 27, 2010

APPLICATION OF
UNION FIRST MARKET BANK

For a certificate of authority to conduct a banking and trust business following a merger with Northern Neck State Bank and The Rappahannock
National Bank of Washington and for authority to operate the authorized offices of the merging banks

ORDER GRANTING AUTHORITY

Union First Market Bank, a Virginia state-chartered bank, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to § 6.1-44
of the Code of Virginia, for a certificate of authority to conduct a banking and trust business following a merger with Northern Neck State Bank, a Virginia
state-chartered bank, and The Rappahannock National Bank of Washington, a national bank headquartered in Virginia. All three banks are subsidiaries of
Union First Market Bankshares Corporation, a multi-bank holding company based in Richmond, Virginia. Union First Market Bank proposes to be the
surviving bank in the merger and seeks authority to operate all of the currently authorized offices of the merging banks. The application was investigated by
the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that: (1) the provisions of law have been complied with;
(2) the capital stock of the resulting bank will be $12,088,000, and its surplus will be not less than $404,003,000; (3) the public interest will be served by the
banking facilities of the resulting bank in the communities where its offices will be located; (4) the oaths of all directors have been take and filed in
accordance with the provisions of § 6.1-48 of the Code of Virginia; (5) the resulting bank will conduct a legitimate banking business; (6) the moral fitness,
financial responsibility, and business qualifications of those named as officer and directors of the resulting bank are such as to command the confidence of
the community; and (7) the deposits of the resulting bank will be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

THEREFORE, a certificate of authority to conduct a banking and trust business is GRANTED to Union First Market Bank, effective upon the
issuance by the Clerk of the Commission of a certificate of merger in the proposed transaction. The resulting bank is authorized to operate a main office at
111 Virginia Street, Suite 200, City of Richmond, Virginia, and is authorized to maintain and operate, in addition to its current offices and facilities, the
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offices of Northern Neck Bank and The Rappahannock National Bank of Washington listed in Attachment A. The authority granted herein shall expire one
(1) year from the date of this Order unless extended by Commission order prior to the expiration date.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation Commission, Bureau of Financial Institutions, Tyler
Building, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. BAN20100564
SEPTEMBER 29, 2010

APPLICATION OF
FAST AUTO LOANS, INC.

For a license to engage in business as a motor vehicle title lender

ORDER GRANTING A LICENSE

Fast Auto Loans, Inc., a Virginia corporation, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to § 6.1-483 of the
Code of Virginia, for a license to engage in the business of making motor vehicle title loans at forty-one (41) locations (see attachment). The application
was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in Chapter 21 of
Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the license requested in the application is GRANTED effective October 1, 2010, provided that the applicant begins business
within one (1) year from the date of this Order and the applicant gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun within ten (10) days

thereafter.

NOTE: A copy of the Attachment is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation Commission, Bureau of Financial Institutions, Tyler
Building, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. BAN20100565
OCTOBER 1, 2010

APPLICATION OF
FAST AUTO LOANS, INC.

For authority for an other business operator to conduct a consumer finance business from the licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Fast Auto Loans, Inc., a licensed motor vehicle title lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant
t010 VAC 5-120-70 and § 6.2-2215 (18) of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business operator to conduct a consumer finance business from
the licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-210-70 (B).
THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in
connection with the (i) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the Licensee's
motor vehicle title lending offices.

2. The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

3. The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

4. The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan or vary the terms of a motor vehicle title loan on the condition or requirement that a
person also (i) purchase a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business
operator shall not (a) sell its goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the
condition or requirement that a person also obtain a motor vehicle title loan from the Licensee.

5. The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's motor vehicle title
lending business and in a different location within the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all
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such books and records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all
applicable conditions, laws, and regulations.

6. The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding consumer finance loan from the other
business operator or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a consumer finance loan from the other business operator.

7. The other business operator shall not make a consumer finance loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding motor vehicle title loan
from the Licensee or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a motor vehicle title loan from the Licensee.

8. The Licensee and other business operator shall not make a motor vehicle title loan and a consumer finance loan contemporaneously or in
response to a single request for a loan or credit.

9.  The Licensee and other business operator shall provide each applicant for a motor vehicle title loan or consumer finance loan with a separate
disclosure, signed by the applicant, that clearly identifies all of the loan products available in the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending
offices along with the corresponding Annual Percentage Rate, interest rate, and other costs associated with each loan product. The disclosure
shall also identify the collateral, if any, that will be used to secure repayment of each loan product.

CASE NO. BAN20100566
AUGUST 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF

JEFFREY T. VALCOURT,

JNV LIMITED PARTNERSHIP II,
and

JNV LIMITED PARTNERSHIP III

To acquire control of United Financial Banking Companies, Inc.

ORDER OF APPROVAL

Jeffrey T. Valcourt, INV Limited Partnership II, and JNV Limited Partnership III, acting as a group, have jointly filed with the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") the application required by § 6.1-383.1 of the Code of Virginia to acquire control of United Financial Banking Companies,
Inc., a Virginia bank holding company. The Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") investigated the proposed acquisition.

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in § 6.1-383.2 of the
Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the proposed acquisition of United Financial Banking Companies, Inc. by Jeffrey T. Valcourt, JNV Limited Partnership II, and

JNV Limited Partnership III is APPROVED, provided the acquisition takes place within one (1) year from the date of this Order and the applicants notify
the Bureau of the effective date of the transaction within ten (10) days thereof.

CASE NO. BAN20100583
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

APPLICATION OF
ANDERSON FINANCIAL SERVICES, LLC LOANMAX
(USED IN VIRGINIA BY: ANDERSON FINANCIAL SERVICES, LLC) D/B/A LOANMAX

For a license to engage in business as a motor vehicle title lender

ORDER GRANTING A LICENSE

Anderson Financial Services, LLC LoanMax (Used in Virginia by: Anderson Financial Services, LLC) d/b/a LoanMax, an Idaho limited liability
company, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to § 6.1-483 of the Code of Virginia, for a license to engage in the
business of making motor vehicle title loans at fifty-one (51) locations (see attachment). The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of
Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in Chapter 21 of
Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the license requested in the application is GRANTED effective October 1, 2010, provided that the applicant begins business
within one (1) year from the date of this Order and the applicant gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun within ten (10) days
thereafter.

NOTE: A copy of the Attachment is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation Commission, Bureau of Financial Institutions, Tyler
Building, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.
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CASE NO. BAN20100584
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

APPLICATION OF
KIPLING FINANCIAL SERVICES, LLC D/B/A MONEYMAX TITLE LOANS

For a license to engage in business as a motor vehicle title lender

ORDER GRANTING A LICENSE

Kipling Financial Services, LLC d/b/a MoneyMax Title Loans, a Georgia limited liability company, has applied to the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to § 6.1-483 of the Code of Virginia, for a license to engage in the business of making motor vehicle title loans at the
following locations: (1) 569 Piney Forest Drive, Danville, Virginia 24540; and (2) 1122 W. Main Street, Salem, Virginia 24153. The application was
investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in Chapter 21 of
Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the license requested in the application is GRANTED effective October 1, 2010, provided that the applicant begins business

within one (1) year from the date of this Order and the applicant gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun within ten (10) days
thereafter.

CASE NO. BAN20100585
SEPTEMBER 29, 2010

APPLICATION OF
LOANSMART, LLC

For a license to engage in business as a motor vehicle title lender

ORDER GRANTING A LICENSE

LoanSmart, LLC, a Virginia limited liability company, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to § 6.1-483
of the Code of Virginia, for a license to engage in the business of making motor vehicle title loans at the following locations: (1) 4209 East Indian River
Road, Chesapeake, Virginia 23325; (2) 4651 Melrose Avenue N.W., Roanoke, Virginia 24017; (3) 503 E. Laburnum Avenue, Richmond, Virginia 23222;
(4) 11201 Jefferson Avenue, Newport News, Virginia 23601; (5) 10053 Greensboro Road, Ridgeway, Virginia 24148; (6) 398 Denbigh Boulevard, Newport
News, Virginia 23608; (7) 6116 Jefferson Avenue, Newport News, Virginia 23605; (8) 2641 Valley Avenue, Winchester, Virginia 22601; and
(9) 7816 N. Military Highway, Norfolk, Virginia 23518. The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in Chapter 21 of
Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the license requested in the application is GRANTED effective October 1, 2010, provided that the applicant begins business

within one (1) year from the date of this Order and the applicant gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun within ten (10) days
thereafter.

CASE NO. BAN20100628
SEPTEMBER 24, 2010

CAPGEN CAPITAL GROUP VI LP
and
CAPGEN CAPITAL GROUP VI LLC

To acquire control of Hampton Roads Bankshares, Inc.

ORDER OF APPROVAL

CapGen Capital Group VI LP, a Delaware limited partnership, and CapGen Capital Group VI LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, have
jointly filed with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") the application required by § 6.1-383.1 of the Code of Virginia to acquire control of
Hampton Roads Bankshares, Inc., a Virginia bank holding company. The Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") investigated the proposed acquisition.

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in § 6.1-383.2 of the
Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the proposed acquisition of Hampton Roads Bankshares, Inc. by CapGen Capital Group VI LP and CapGen Capital Group VI
LLC is APPROVED, provided the acquisition takes place within one (1) year from the date of this Order and the applicants notify the Bureau of the
effective date of the transaction within ten (10) days thereof.
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CASE NO. BAN20100655
OCTOBER 29, 2010

APPLICATION OF
BROOKE ENTERPRISES, INC. D/B/A CASH TODAY

For a license to engage in business as a motor vehicle title lender

ORDER GRANTING A LICENSE

Brooke Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Cash Today, a Virginia corporation, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to
§ 6.2-2203 of the Code of Virginia, for a license to engage in the business of making motor vehicle title loans at the following locations: (1) 151 Plaza Road
SW, Wise, Virginia 24293; and (2) 282 Westgate Mall Circle, Suite 118, Pennington Gap, Virginia 24277. The application was investigated by the
Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the bureau, the commission finds that the application meets the criteria in Chapter 22 of
Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia.

Therefore, the license requested in the application is granted provided that the applicant begins business within one (1) year from the date of this
order and the applicant gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun within ten (10) days thereafter.

CASE_NO. BAN20100668
OCTOBER 29, 2010

APPLICATION OF
JUSTIN ENTERPRISES, INC. D/B/A CASH TO PAYDAY

For authority for an other business operator to conduct a payday lending business from the licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Justin Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Cash To Payday, a licensed motor vehicle title lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission
("Commission"), pursuant to 10 VAC 5-210-70 and § 6.2-2215 (18) of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business operator to conduct a payday
lending business from the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial
Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-210-70 B.
THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in
connection with the (i) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the Licensee's
motor vehicle title lending offices.

2. The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

3. The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

4. The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan or vary the terms of a motor vehicle title loan on the condition or requirement that a
person also (i) purchase a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business
operator shall not (a) sell its goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the
condition or requirement that a person also obtain a motor vehicle title loan from the Licensee.

5. The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's motor vehicle title
lending business and in a different location within the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all
such books and records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all
applicable conditions, laws, and regulations.

6. The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding payday loan from the other business
operator or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a payday loan from the other business operator.

7. The other business operator shall not make a payday loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding motor vehicle title loan from the
Licensee or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a motor vehicle title loan from the Licensee.

8. The other business operator and the Licensee shall not make a payday loan and a motor vehicle title loan contemporaneously or in response
to a single request for a loan or credit.



24
ANNUAL REPORT OF THE STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

9. The Licensee and other business operator shall provide each applicant for a motor vehicle title loan or payday loan with a separate
disclosure, signed by the applicant, that clearly identifies all of the loan products available in the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending
offices along with the corresponding Annual Percentage Rate, interest rate, and other costs associated with each loan product. The disclosure
shall also identify the collateral, if any, that will be used to secure repayment of each loan product.

CASE NO. BAN20100669
OCTOBER 29, 2010

APPLICATION OF
JUSTIN ENTERPRISES, INC. D/B/A CASH TO PAYDAY

For a license to engage in business as a motor vehicle title lender

ORDER GRANTING A LICENSE

Justin Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Cash To Payday, a Virginia corporation, has applied to the State Corporation Commission (""Commission"), pursuant
to § 6.2-2203 of the Code of Virginia, for a license to engage in the business of making motor vehicle title loans at the following locations: (1) 16266 Fancy
Gap Highway, Cana, Virginia 24317; (2) 525 Commerce Drive, Bluefield, Virginia 24605; and (3) 650 East Main Street, Suite A, Wytheville, Virginia
24382. The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in Chapter 22 of
Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia.

Therefore, the license requested in the application is granted provided that the applicant begins business within one (1) year from the date of this
order and the applicant gives written notice to the bureau stating the date business was begun within ten (10) days thereafter.

CASE _NO. BAN20100673
OCTOBER 27, 2010

APPLICATION OF
CNC FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. D/B/A CASH-N-A-FLASH

For a license to engage in business as a motor vehicle title lender

ORDER GRANTING A LICENSE

CNC Financial Services, Inc. d/b/a Cash-N-A-Flash, a Virginia Corporation, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"),
pursuant to § 6.2-2203 of the Code of Virginia, for a license to engage in the business of making motor vehicle title loans at 52 West Mercury Boulevard,
Hampton, Virginia 23669. The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in Chapter 22 of
Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia.

Therefore, the license requested in the application is GRANTED provided that the applicant begins business within one (1) year from the date of
this order and the applicant gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun within ten (10) days thereafter.

CASE NO. BAN20100685
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
CREDITCORP OF VIRGINIA, LLC D/B/A CHECK INTO CASH

For authority for an other business operator to conduct business as an agent of a money order seller or money transmitter from the licensee's
motor vehicle title lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Creditcorp of Virginia, LLC d/b/a Check into Cash, a licensed motor vehicle title lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission
("Commission"), pursuant to 10 VAC 5-210-70 and § 6.2-2215 (18) of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business operator to conduct business
as an agent of a money order seller or money transmitter from the licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The application was investigated by the
Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the bureau's report, the commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-210-70 B.

Therefore, the authority requested in the application is granted subject to the following conditions:
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1. The licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in
connection with the (i) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the licensee's motor
vehicle title lending offices.

2. The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

3. The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false, misleading,
or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products, services, or
loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being licensed to
conduct the other business or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

4. The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan or vary the terms of a motor vehicle title loan on the condition or requirement that a
person also (i) purchase a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business operator
shall not (a) sell its goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the
condition or requirement that a person also obtain a motor vehicle title loan from the Licensee.

5. The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's motor vehicle title
lending business and in a different location within the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all
such books and records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all
applicable conditions, laws, and regulations.

6. The other business operator shall be and remain a party to a written agreement to act as an authorized delegate or agent of a person licensed
or exempt from licensing as a money order seller or money transmitter under Chapter 19 (§ 6.2-1900 et seq.) of Title 6.2 of the Code of
Virginia. The other business operator shall not engage in money order sales or money transmission services on its own behalf or on behalf of
any person other than a licensed or exempt money order seller or money transmitter with whom it has a written agreement.

CASE NO. BAN20100686
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
CREDITCORP OF VIRGINIA, LLC D/B/A CHECK INTO CASH

For authority for an other business operator to facilitate third party tax preparation and electronic tax filing services business from the licensee's
motor vehicle title lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Creditcorp of Virginia, LLC d/b/a Check into Cash, a licensed motor vehicle title lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission
("Commission"), pursuant to 10 VAC 5-210-70 and § 6.2-2215 (18) of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business operator to facilitate third
party tax preparation and electronic tax filing services business from the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The application was investigated by
the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-210-70 B.
THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in
connection with the (i) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the Licensee's
motor vehicle title lending offices.

2. The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

3. The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

4. The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan or vary the terms of a motor vehicle title loan on the condition or requirement that a
person also (i) purchase a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business
operator shall not (a) sell its goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the
condition or requirement that a person also obtain a motor vehicle title loan from the Licensee.

5. The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's motor vehicle title
lending business and in a different location within the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all
such books and records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all
applicable conditions, laws, and regulations.
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6.  The Licensee shall not make, arrange, or broker a motor vehicle title loan that is secured by (i) an interest in a borrower's tax refund, (ii) an
assignment of income payable to a borrower, or (iii) an assignment of an interest in a borrower's account at a depository institution.
7. The other business operator shall not engage in the business of (i) accepting funds for transmission to the Internal Revenue Service or other

government instrumentalities, or (ii) receiving tax refunds for delivery to individuals, unless licensed or exempt from licensing under
Chapter 19 (§ 6.2-1900 et seq.) of Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia.

CASE NO. BAN20100688
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
CREDITCORP OF VIRGINIA, LLC D/B/A CHECK INTO CASH

For a license to engage in business as a motor vehicle title lender

ORDER GRANTING A LICENSE

Creditcorp of Virginia, LLC d/b/a Check into Cash, a Delaware limited liability company, has applied to the State Corporation Commission
("Commission"), pursuant to § 6.2-2203 of the Code of Virginia, for a license to engage in the business of making motor vehicle title loans at forty four (44)
locations (see attachment). The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in Chapter 22 of
Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the license requested in the application is GRANTED provided that the applicant begins business within one (1) year from the
date of this Order and the applicant gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun within ten (10) days thereafter.

CASE NO. BAN20100756
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
CASH-2-U FINANCIAL SERVICES OF VIRGINIA, LLC D/B/A CASH-2-U TITLE LOANS

For a license to engage in business as a motor vehicle title lender

ORDER GRANTING A LICENSE

Cash-2-U Financial Services of Virginia, LLC d/b/a Cash-2-U Title Loans, a Virginia limited liability company, has applied to the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to § 6.2-2203 of the Code of Virginia, for a license to engage in the business of making motor vehicle
title loans at eighteen (18) locations (see attachment). The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in Chapter 22 of
Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the license requested in the application is GRANTED provided that the applicant begins business within one (1) year from the
date of this Order and the applicant gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun within ten (10) days thereafter.

CASE NO. BAN20100756
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
CASH-2-U FINANCIAL SERVICES OF VIRGINIA, LLC D/B/A CASH-2-U TITLE LOANS

For a license to engage in business as a motor vehicle title lender

CORRECTING AND LICENSE REISSUANCE ORDER

On November 16, 2010, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") entered an Order in this case granting Cash-2-U Financial Services
of Virginia, LLC d/b/a Cash-2-U Title Loans ("Company") authority to engage in the business of making motor vehicle title loans at eighteen (18) locations
pursuant to Chapter 22 of Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia. Thereafter, the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") reported to the Commission that an
office address contained in the Order is incorrect, and that the company has subsequently requested reissuance of its license certificate.
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THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1)  The reference to the ninth office location in the Order granting a license to engage in the business of making motor vehicle title loans entered on
November 16, 2010, is hereby corrected nunc pro tunc to that date, to read "1330 S. Main Street, Blackstone, Virginia 23824" rather than
"1300 S. Main Street, Blackstone, Virginia 23824";

(2)  All other provisions of the Order granting a license to engage in the business of making motor vehicle title loans entered on November 16, 2010
shall remain in full force and effect; and

(3) The Bureau shall issue and deliver to the Company a corrected license certificate.

CASE NO. BAN20100757
NOVEMBER 12, 2010

APPLICATION OF
CASH-2-U FINANCIAL SERVICES OF VIRGINIA, LLC D/B/A CASH-2-U TITLE LOANS

For authority for an other business operator to conduct a payday lending business from the licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Cash-2-U Financial Services of Virginia, LLC d/b/a Cash-2-U Title Loans ("Licensee"), a licensed motor vehicle title lender, has applied to the
State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to 10 VAC 5-210-70 and § 6.2-2215 (18) of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other
business operator to conduct a payday lending business from the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The application was investigated by the
Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-210-70 B.

THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1.

The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in
connection with the (i) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the Licensee's
motor vehicle title lending offices.

The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan or vary the terms of a motor vehicle title loan on the condition or requirement that a
person also (i) purchase a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business
operator shall not (a) sell its goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the
condition or requirement that a person also obtain a motor vehicle title loan from the Licensee.

The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's motor vehicle title
lending business and in a different location within the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all
such books and records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all
applicable conditions, laws, and regulations.

The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding payday loan from the other business
operator or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a payday loan from the other business operator.

The other business operator shall not make a payday loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding motor vehicle title loan from the
Licensee or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a motor vehicle title loan from the Licensee.

The other business operator and the Licensee shall not make a payday loan and a motor vehicle title loan contemporaneously or in response
to a single request for a loan or credit.

The Licensee and other business operator shall provide each applicant for a motor vehicle title loan or payday loan with a separate
disclosure, signed by the applicant, that clearly identifies all of the loan products available in the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending
offices along with the corresponding Annual Percentage Rate, interest rate, and other costs associated with each loan product. The disclosure
shall also identify the collateral, if any, that will be used to secure repayment of each loan product.
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CASE NO. BAN20100758
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
CASH-2-U FINANCIAL SERVICES OF VIRGINIA, LLC D/B/A CASH-2-U TITLE LOANS

For authority for an other business operator to conduct business as an authorized delegate or agent of a money order seller or money transmitter
from the licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Cash-2-U Financial Services of Virginia, LLC d/b/a Cash-2-U Title Loans ("Licensee"), a licensed motor vehicle title lender, has applied to the
State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to 10 VAC 5-210-70 and § 6.2-2215 (18) of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other
business operator to conduct business as an authorized delegate or agent of a money order seller or money transmitter from the Licensee's motor vehicle title
lending offices. The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-210-70 B.
THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in
connection with the (i) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the Licensee's
motor vehicle title lending offices.

2. The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

3. The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

4. The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan or vary the terms of a motor vehicle title loan on the condition or requirement that a
person also (i) purchase a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business
operator shall not (a) sell its goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the
condition or requirement that a person also obtain a motor vehicle title loan from the Licensee.

5. The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's motor vehicle title
lending business and in a different location within the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all
such books and records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all
applicable conditions, laws, and regulations.

6.  The other business operator shall be and remain a party to a written agreement to act as an authorized delegate or agent of a person licensed
or exempt from licensing as a money order seller or money transmitter under Chapter 19 (§ 6.2-1900 et seq.) of Title 6.2 of the Code of

Virginia. The other business operator shall not engage in money order sales or money transmission services on its own behalf or on behalf
of any person other than a licensed or exempt money order seller or money transmitter with whom it has a written agreement.

CASE NO. BAN20100762
DECEMBER 22, 2010

APPLICATION OF
EXPRESS CHECK ADVANCE OF VIRGINIA, LLC

For a license to engage in business as a motor vehicle title lender

ORDER GRANTING A LICENSE

Express Check Advance of Virginia, LLC, a Tennessee corporation, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant
to § 6.2-2203 of the Code of Virginia, for a license to engage in the business of making motor vehicle title loans at sixteen (16) locations (see attachment).
The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the bureau, the commission finds that the application meets the criteria in Chapter 22 of
Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the license requested in the application is GRANTED provided that the applicant begins business within one (1) year from the
date of this Order and the applicant gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun within ten (10) days thereafter.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation Commission, Bureau of Financial Institutions, Tyler
Building, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.
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CASE NO. BAN20100763
DECEMBER 27, 2010

APPLICATION OF
EXPRESS CHECK ADVANCE OF VIRGINIA, LLC

For authority for an other business operator to conduct a payday lending business from the licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Express Check Advance of Virginia, LLC, a licensed motor vehicle title lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission
("Commission"), pursuant to 10 VAC 5-210-70 and § 6.2-2215 (18) of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business operator to conduct a payday
lending business from the licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. the application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial
Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-210-70 B.

THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1.

The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in
connection with the (i) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the licensee's motor
vehicle title lending offices.

The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan or vary the terms of a motor vehicle title loan on the condition or requirement that a
person also (i) purchase a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business
operator shall not (a) sell its goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the
condition or requirement that a person also obtain a motor vehicle title loan from the Licensee.

The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's motor vehicle title
lending business and in a different location within the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all
such books and records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all
applicable conditions, laws, and regulations.

The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding payday loan from the other business
operator or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a payday loan from the other business operator.

The other business operator shall not make a payday loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding motor vehicle title loan from the
Licensee or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a motor vehicle title loan from the Licensee.

The other business operator and the Licensee shall not make a payday loan and a motor vehicle title loan contemporaneously or in response
to a single request for a loan or credit.

The Licensee and other business operator shall provide each applicant for a motor vehicle title loan or payday loan with a separate
disclosure, signed by the applicant, that clearly identifies all of the loan products available in the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending
offices along with the corresponding Annual Percentage Rate, interest rate, and other costs associated with each loan product. The
disclosure shall also identify the collateral, if any, that will be used to secure repayment of each loan product.

CASE NO. BAN20100769
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
F & L MARKETING ENTERPRISES LLC D/B/A CASH-2-U PAYDAY LOANS

For authority for an other business operator to conduct a motor vehicle title lending business from the licensee's payday lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

F & L Marketing Enterprises LLC d/b/a Cash-2-U Payday Loans ("Licensee"), a licensed payday lender, has applied to the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to 10 VAC 5-200-100 and § 6.2-1820 of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business operator to conduct
a motor vehicle title lending business from its payday lending offices. The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial
Institutions ("Bureau").
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Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-200-100 B.
THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. The Licensee shall not make a payday loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in connection with the
(i) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the Licensee's payday lending offices.

2. The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

3. The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business, or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

4.  The Licensee shall not make a payday loan or vary the terms of a payday loan on the condition or requirement that a person also (i) purchase
a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business operator shall not (a) sell its
goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the condition or requirement
that a person also obtain a payday loan from the Licensee.

5. The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's payday lending
business and in a different location within the Licensee's payday lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all such books and
records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all applicable
conditions, laws, and regulations.

6. The other business operator shall be licensed or exempt from licensing under Chapter 22 (§ 6.2-2200 et seq.) of Title 6.2 of the Code of
Virginia.

7. The Licensee shall not make a payday loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding motor vehicle title loan from the other business
operator, or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a motor vehicle title loan from the other business operator.

8. The other business operator shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding payday loan from the
Licensee, or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a payday loan from the Licensee.

9.  The other business operator and the Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan and a payday loan contemporaneously or in response
to a single request for a loan or credit.

10. The Licensee and other business operator shall provide each applicant for a payday loan or motor vehicle title loan with a separate
disclosure, signed by the applicant, that clearly identifies all of the loan products available in the Licensee's payday lending offices along

with the corresponding Annual Percentage Rate, interest rate, and other costs associated with each loan product. The disclosure shall also
identify the collateral, if any, that will be used to secure repayment of each loan product.

CASE NO. BAN20100779
DECEMBER 2, 2010

APPLICATION OF
DOMINION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC, D/B/A CASHPOINT

For a license to engage in business as a motor vehicle title lender

ORDER GRANTING A LICENSE

Dominion Management Services, Inc. d/b/a CashPoint, a Virginia corporation, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"),
pursuant to § 6.2-2203 of the Code of Virginia, for a license to engage in the business of making motor vehicle title loans at fourteen (14) locations (see
attachment). The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in Chapter 22 of
Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the license requested in the application is GRANTED provided that the applicant begins business within one (1) year from the
date of this Order and the applicant gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun within ten (10) days thereafter.

NOTE: A copy of the Attachment is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation Commission, Bureau of Financial Institutions, Tyler
Building, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.
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CASE NO. BAN20100788
DECEMBER 27, 2010

APPLICATION OF
EXPRESS CHECK ADVANCE OF VIRGINIA, LLC

For authority for an other business operator to conduct business as an authorized delegate or agent of a money order seller or money transmitter
from the licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Express Check Advance of Virginia, LLC, a licensed motor vehicle title lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission
("Commission"), pursuant to 10 VAC 5-210-70 and § 6.2-2215 (18) of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business operator to conduct business
as an authorized delegate or agent of a money order seller or money transmitter from the licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The application was
investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-210-70 b.
THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in
connection with the (i) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the licensee's motor
vehicle title lending offices.

2. The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

3. The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

4. The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan or vary the terms of a motor vehicle title loan on the condition or requirement that a
person also (i) purchase a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business
operator shall not (a) sell its goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the
condition or requirement that a person also obtain a motor vehicle title loan from the Licensee.

5. The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's motor vehicle title
lending business and in a different location within the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all
such books and records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all
applicable conditions, laws, and regulations.

6.  The other business operator shall be and remain a party to a written agreement to act as an authorized delegate or agent of a person licensed
or exempt from licensing as a money order seller or money transmitter under Chapter 19 (§ 6.2-1900 et seq.) of Title 6.2 of the Code of
Virginia. The other business operator shall not engage in money order sales or money transmission services on its own behalf or on behalf
of any person other than a licensed or exempt money order seller or money transmitter with whom it has a written agreement.

CASE NO. BAN20100789
DECEMBER 27, 2010

APPLICATION OF
EXPRESS CHECK ADVANCE OF VIRGINIA, LLC

For authority for an other business operator to conduct the business of tax preparation and electronic tax filing services from the licensee's motor
vehicle title lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Express Check Advance of Virginia, LLC, a licensed motor vehicle title lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission
("Commission"), pursuant to 10 VAC 5-210-70 and § 6.2-2215 (18) of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business operator to conduct the
business of tax preparation and electronic tax filing services from the licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. the application was investigated by the
Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-210-70 b.
THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
1. The licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in

connection with the (i) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the licensee's motor
vehicle title lending offices.
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The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan or vary the terms of a motor vehicle title loan on the condition or requirement that a
person also (i) purchase a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business
operator shall not (a) sell its goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the
condition or requirement that a person also obtain a motor vehicle title loan from the Licensee.

The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's motor vehicle title
lending business and in a different location within the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all
such books and records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all
applicable conditions, laws, and regulations.

The Licensee shall not make, arrange, or broker a motor vehicle title loan that is secured by (i) an interest in a borrower's tax refund, (ii) an
assignment of income payable to a borrower, or (iii) an assignment of an interest in a borrower's account at a depository institution.

The other business operator shall not engage in the business of (i) accepting funds for transmission to the Internal Revenue Service or other
government instrumentalities, or (ii) receiving tax refunds for delivery to individuals, unless licensed or exempt from licensing under
Chapter 19 (§ 6.2-1900 et seq.) of Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia.

CASE NO. BAN20100790
DECEMBER 22, 2010

APPLICATION OF
EXPRESS CHECK ADVANCE OF VIRGINIA, LLC

For authority to conduct motor vehicle title lending business from its payday lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Express Check Advance of Virginia, LLC, a licensed payday lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant
to 10 VAC 5-200-100 and § 6.2-1820 of the Code of Virginia, for authority to conduct motor vehicle title lending business from its payday lending offices.
The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the proposed other business is financial in nature, and the
application should be approved.

THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1.

The Licensee shall not make a payday loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in connection with the
(1) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the Licensee's payday lending offices.

The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business, or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

The Licensee shall not make a payday loan or vary the terms of a payday loan on the condition or requirement that a person also (i) purchase
a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business operator shall not (a) sell its
goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the condition or requirement
that a person also obtain a payday loan from the Licensee.

The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's payday lending
business and in a different location within the Licensee's payday lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all such books and
records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all applicable
conditions, laws, and regulations.

The other business operator shall be licensed or exempt from licensing under Chapter 22 (§ 6.2-2200 et seq.) of Title 6.2 of the Code of
Virginia.
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7. The Licensee shall not make a payday loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding motor vehicle title loan from the other business
operator, or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a motor vehicle title loan from the other business operator.

8. The other business operator shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding payday loan from the
Licensee, or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a payday loan from the Licensee.

9.  The other business operator and the Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan and a payday loan contemporaneously or in response
to a single request for a loan or credit.

10. The Licensee and other business operator shall provide each applicant for a payday loan or motor vehicle title loan with a separate
disclosure, signed by the applicant, that clearly identifies all of the loan products available in the Licensee's payday lending offices along

with the corresponding Annual Percentage Rate, interest rate, and other costs associated with each loan product. The disclosure shall also
identify the collateral, if any, that will be used to secure repayment of each loan product.

CASE NO. BAN20100797
NOVEMBER 12, 2010

APPLICATION OF
DANNY'S AUTO LOANS, LLC

For a license to engage in business as a motor vehicle title lender

ORDER GRANTING A LICENSE

Danny's Auto Loans, LLC, a Virginia limited liability company, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to
§ 6.2-2203 of the Code of Virginia, for a license to engage in the business of making motor vehicle title loans at the following locations: (1) 1575 Roanoke
Street, Christiansburg, Virginia 24073; and (2) 7367 Lee Highway, Suite A, Radford, Virginia 24141. The application was investigated by the Commission's
Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in Chapter 22 of
Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the license requested in the application is GRANTED provided that the applicant begins business within one (1) year from the
date of this Order and the applicant gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun within ten (10) days thereafter.

CASE_NO. BAN20100843
OCTOBER 29, 2010

APPLICATION OF
JUSTIN ENTERPRISES, INC. D/B/A CASH TO PAYDAY

For authority for an other business operator to conduct a motor vehicle title lending business from the licensee's payday lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Justin Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Cash To Payday, a licensed payday lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"),
pursuant to 10 VAC 5-200-100 and § 6.2-1820 of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business operator to conduct a motor vehicle title lending
business from the Licensee's payday lending offices. The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-200-100 B.
THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. The Licensee shall not make a payday loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in connection with the
(1) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the Licensee's payday lending offices.

2. The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

3. The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business, or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

4.  The Licensee shall not make a payday loan or vary the terms of a payday loan on the condition or requirement that a person also (i) purchase
a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business operator shall not (a) sell its
goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the condition or requirement
that a person also obtain a payday loan from the Licensee.
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5. The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's payday lending
business and in a different location within the Licensee's payday lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all such books and
records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all applicable
conditions, laws, and regulations.

6.  The other business operator shall be licensed or exempt from licensing under Chapter 22 (§ 6.2-2200 et seq.) of Title 6.2 of the Code of
Virginia.

7. The Licensee shall not make a payday loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding motor vehicle title loan from the other business
operator, or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a motor vehicle title loan from the other business operator.

8. The other business operator shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding payday loan from the
Licensee, or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a payday loan from the Licensee.

9. The other business operator and the Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan and a payday loan contemporaneously or in response
to a single request for a loan or credit.

10. The Licensee and other business operator shall provide each applicant for a payday loan or motor vehicle title loan with a separate
disclosure, signed by the applicant, that clearly identifies all of the loan products available in the Licensee's payday lending offices along

with the corresponding Annual Percentage Rate, interest rate, and other costs associated with each loan product. The disclosure shall also
identify the collateral, if any, that will be used to secure repayment of each loan product.

CASE_NO. BAN20100844
OCTOBER 29, 2010

APPLICATION OF
BROOKE ENTERPRISES, INC. D/B/A CASH TODAY

For authority for an other business operator to conduct a motor vehicle title lending business from the licensee's payday lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Brooke Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Cash Today, a licensed payday lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant
to 10 VAC 5-200-100 and § 6.2-1820 of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business operator to conduct a motor vehicle title lending business
from the Licensee's payday lending offices. The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-200-100 B.
THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. The Licensee shall not make a payday loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in connection with the
(1) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the Licensee's payday lending offices.

2. The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

3. The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business, or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

4.  The Licensee shall not make a payday loan or vary the terms of a payday loan on the condition or requirement that a person also (i) purchase
a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business operator shall not (a) sell its
goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the condition or requirement
that a person also obtain a payday loan from the Licensee.

5. The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's payday lending
business and in a different location within the Licensee's payday lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all such books and
records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all applicable
conditions, laws, and regulations.

6.  The other business operator shall be licensed or exempt from licensing under Chapter 22 (§ 6.2-2200 et seq.) of Title 6.2 of the Code of
Virginia.
7. The Licensee shall not make a payday loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding motor vehicle title loan from the other business

operator, or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a motor vehicle title loan from the other business operator.

8. The other business operator shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding payday loan from the
Licensee, or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a payday loan from the Licensee.
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The other business operator and the Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan and a payday loan contemporaneously or in response
to a single request for a loan or credit.

The Licensee and other business operator shall provide each applicant for a payday loan or motor vehicle title loan with a separate
disclosure, signed by the applicant, that clearly identifies all of the loan products available in the Licensee's payday lending offices along
with the corresponding Annual Percentage Rate, interest rate, and other costs associated with each loan product. The disclosure shall also
identify the collateral, if any, that will be used to secure repayment of each loan product.

CASE NO. BAN20100846
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
CM TITLE LOANS, INC.

For a license to engage in business as a motor vehicle title lender

ORDER GRANTING A LICENSE

CM Title Loans, Inc., a Virginia corporation, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to § 6.2-2203 of the
Code of Virginia, for a license to engage in the business of making motor vehicle title loans at 3956 S. Main Street, Suite 5, Blacksburg, Virginia 24060.
The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in Chapter 22 of
Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the license requested in the application is GRANTED provided that the applicant begins business within one (1) year from the
date of this Order and the applicant gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun within ten (10) days thereafter.

CASE NO. BAN20100877
DECEMBER 17, 2010

APPLICATION OF
TITLE LOANS OF VIRGINIA, LLC

For authority for an other business operator To conduct a payday lending business From the licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

Title Loans of Virginia, LLC, a licensed motor vehicle title lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to
10 VAC 5-210-70 and § 6.2-2215 (18) of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business operator to conduct a payday lending business from the
Licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-210-70 b of
the Code of Virginia.

Therefore, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1.

The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in
connection with the (i) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the licensee's motor
vehicle title lending offices.

The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan or vary the terms of a motor vehicle title loan on the condition or requirement that a
person also (i) purchase a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business
operator shall not (a) sell its goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the
condition or requirement that a person also obtain a motor vehicle title loan from the Licensee.

The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's motor vehicle title
lending business and in a different location within the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all
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such books and records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all
applicable conditions, laws, and regulations.

The Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding payday loan from the other business
operator or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satistied in full a payday loan from the other business operator.

The other business operator shall not make a payday loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding motor vehicle title loan from the
Licensee or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a motor vehicle title loan from the Licensee.

The other business operator and the Licensee shall not make a payday loan and a motor vehicle title loan contemporaneously or in response
to a single request for a loan or credit.

The Licensee and other business operator shall provide each applicant for a motor vehicle title loan or payday loan with a separate
disclosure, signed by the applicant, that clearly identifies all of the loan products available in the Licensee's motor vehicle title lending
offices along with the corresponding Annual Percentage Rate, interest rate, and other costs associated with each loan product. the disclosure
shall also identify the collateral, if any, that will be used to secure repayment of each loan product.

CASE NO. BAN20100878
DECEMBER 17, 2010

APPLICATION OF
PAYDAY ADVANCE, L.L.C.

For authority for an other business operator to conduct a motor vehicle title lending business from the licensee's payday lending offices

ORDER GRANTING OTHER BUSINESS AUTHORITY

PayDay Advance, L.L.C., a licensed payday lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to
10 VAC 5-200-100 and § 6.2-1820 of the Code of Virginia, for authority for an other business operator to conduct a motor vehicle title lending business
from the Licensee's payday lending offices. The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the Bureau's report, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in 10 VAC 5-200-100 B
of the Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the authority requested in the application is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1.

The Licensee shall not make a payday loan to a borrower to enable the borrower to purchase or pay any amount owed in connection with the
(i) goods or services sold, or (ii) loans offered, facilitated, or made, by the other business operator at the Licensee's payday lending offices.

The other business operator shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to its other business, including any
applicable licensing requirements.

The other business operator shall not use or cause to be published any advertisement or other information that contains any false,
misleading, or deceptive statement or representation concerning its other business, including the rates, terms, or conditions of the products,
services, or loans that it offers. The other business operator shall not make or cause to be made any misrepresentation as to (i) its being
licensed to conduct the other business, or (ii) the extent to which it is subject to supervision or regulation.

The Licensee shall not make a payday loan or vary the terms of a payday loan on the condition or requirement that a person also (i) purchase
a good or service from, or (ii) obtain a loan from or through, the other business operator. The other business operator shall not (a) sell its
goods or services, (b) offer, facilitate, or make loans, or (c) vary the terms of its goods, services, or loans, on the condition or requirement
that a person also obtain a payday loan from the Licensee.

The other business operator shall maintain books and records for its other business separate and apart from the Licensee's payday lending
business and in a different location within the Licensee's payday lending offices. The Bureau shall be given access to all such books and
records and be furnished with any information and records that it may require in order to determine compliance with all applicable
conditions, laws, and regulations.

The other business operator shall be licensed or exempt from licensing under Chapter 22 (§ 6.2-2200 et seq.) of Title 6.2 of the Code of
Virginia.
The Licensee shall not make a payday loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding motor vehicle title loan from the other business

operator, or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a motor vehicle title loan from the other business operator.

The other business operator shall not make a motor vehicle title loan to a person if (i) the person has an outstanding payday loan from the
Licensee, or (ii) on the same day the person repaid or satisfied in full a payday loan from the Licensee.

The other business operator and the Licensee shall not make a motor vehicle title loan and a payday loan contemporaneously or in response
to a single request for a loan or credit.
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10. The Licensee and other business operator shall provide each applicant for a payday loan or motor vehicle title loan with a separate
disclosure, signed by the applicant, that clearly identifies all of the loan products available in the Licensee's payday lending offices along
with the corresponding Annual Percentage Rate, interest rate, and other costs associated with each loan product. The disclosure shall also
identify the collateral, if any, that will be used to secure repayment of each loan product.

CASE NOS. BAN20100901, BAN20100912-BAN20100918,
BAN20100920, BAN20100929 AND BAN20100930
NOVEMBER 19, 2010

APPLICATIONS OF
FAST AUTO LOANS, INC.

For authority to establish additional offices

ORDER APPROVING ADDITIONAL OFFICES

Fast Auto Loans, Inc., a licensed motor vehicle title lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to
Chapter 22 of Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia, for authority to establish additional offices at eleven (11) locations (see attachment). The applications were
investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the applications and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the applications meet the criteria in § 6.2-2207 B of
the Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the applications are APPROVED provided that the licensee opens the offices within one (1) year from the date of this Order and
the licensee gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun at the new office locations within ten (10) days thereafter.

CASE NO. BAN20100921
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
FAST AUTO LOANS, INC.

For authority to establish an additional office

ORDER APPROVING AN ADDITIONAL OFFICE

Fast Auto Loans, Inc., a licensed motor vehicle title lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to
Chapter 22 of Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia, for authority to establish an additional office at 442 Jefferson Davis Highway, Fredericksburg, Virginia
22401. The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in § 6.2-2207 B of
the Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the license requested in the application is APPROVED provided that the licensee opens the office within one (1) year from the
date of this Order and the licensee gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun at the new office within ten (10) days thereafter.

CASE NOS. BAN20100963, BAN20100964, BAN20100965,
BAN20100966, AND BAN20100967
DECEMBER 17, 2010

APPLICATIONS OF
ANDERSON FINANCIAL SERVICES, LLC LOANMAX
(USED IN VA BY: ANDERSON FINANCIAL SERVICES, LLC) D/B/A LOANMAX

For authority to establish additional offices

ORDER APPROVING ADDITIONAL OFFICES

Anderson Financial Services, LLC LoanMax (Used in VA by: Anderson Financial Services, LLC) d/b/a LoanMax, a licensed motor vehicle title
lender, has applied to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to Chapter 22 of Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia, for authority to
establish additional offices at: (1) 3173 Lee Highway, Bristol, Virginia 24202; (2) 1135 Richmond Avenue, Staunton, Virginia 24401; (3) 447 Denbigh
Boulevard, Newport News, Virginia 23608; (4) 1224 W. Broad Street, Waynesboro, Virginia 22980; and (5) 1816 Peery Drive, Farmville, Virginia 23901.
The applications were investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the applications and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the applications meet the criteria in § 6.2-2207 B of
the Code of Virginia.
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THEREFORE, the licenses requested in the applications are APPROVED provided that the licensee opens the offices within one (1) year from
the date of this Order and the licensee gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun at the new offices within ten (10) days
thereafter.

CASE NO. BAN20100968
DECEMBER 15, 2010

APPLICATION OF
KIPLING FINANCIAL SERVICES, LLC D/B/A MONEYMAX TITLE LOANS

For authority to establish an additional office

ORDER APPROVING AN ADDITIONAL OFFICE

Kipling Financial Services, LLC d/b/a MoneyMax Title Loans, a licensed motor vehicle title lender, has applied to the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to Chapter 22 of Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia, for authority to establish an additional office at 2200 Valley
Avenue, Winchester, Virginia 22601. The application was investigated by the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau").

Having considered the application and the report of the Bureau, the Commission finds that the application meets the criteria in § 6.2-2207 B of
the Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, the license requested in the application is APPROVED provided that the licensee opens the office within one (1) year from the
date of this Order and the licensee gives written notice to the Bureau stating the date business was begun at the new office within ten (10) days thereafter.

CASE NO. BFI-2009-00308
JUNE 29, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

BUCKEYE CHECK CASHING OF VIRGINIA, INC. D/B/A CHECK$MART,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

ON A FORMER DAY, the Staff reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Buckeye Check Cashing of Virginia, Inc.
d/b/a Check$mart ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a payday lender under Chapter 18 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that on April 4,
2008, the Bureau of Financial Institutions examined the Defendant and alleged that it had violated § 6.1-459 (1) of the Code of Virginia in 19 instances,'
§ 6.1-459 (8) of the Code of Virginia in five instances,” § 6.1-459 (10) of the Code of Virginia in 13 instances,’ § 6.1-459 (14) of the Code of Virginia in six

! At the time of the examination, § 6.1-459 (1) provided as follows:

Each payday loan agreement shall be evidenced by a written agreement, which shall be signed by the borrower and a person
authorized by the licensee to sign such agreements and dated the same day the loan is made and disbursed. The loan agreement shall
set forth, at a minimum: (i) the principal amount of the loan; (ii) the fee charged; (iii) the annual percentage rate, which shall be stated
using that term, applicable to the transaction calculated in accordance with Federal Reserve Board Regulation Z; (iv) evidence of
receipt from the borrower of a check, dated the same date, as security for the loan, stating the amount of the check; (v) an agreement
by the licensee not to present the check for payment or deposit until a specified maturity date, which date shall be at least seven days
after the date the loan is made and after which date interest shall not accrue on the amount advanced at a greater rate than six percent
per year; (vi) an agreement by the licensee that the borrower shall have the right to cancel the loan transaction at any time before the
close of business on the next business day following the date of the transaction by paying to the licensee, in the form of cash or other
good funds instrument, the amount advanced to the borrower; and (vii) an agreement that the borrower shall have the right to prepay
the loan prior to maturity by paying the licensee the principal amount advanced and any accrued and unpaid fees.

% At the time of the examination, § 6.1-459 (8) provided that "[a] licensee shall not require or accept a post-dated check as security for, or in payment of, a
loan."

* Section 6.1-459 (10) provides that "[a] licensee shall not take an interest in any property other than a check payable to the licensee as security for a loan."
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instances,’ § 6.1-459 (17) of the Code of Virginia in one instance,’ and § 6.1-461 of the Code of Virginia in one instance;® that upon being informed that the
Commissioner of Financial Institutions intended to recommend the imposition of a fine, the Defendant offered to settle this case by paying a fine in the sum
of Twenty-five Thousand Dollars ($25,000), tendered said sum to the Commonwealth of Virginia, and waived its right to a hearing in the case; and the
Commissioner of Financial Institutions recommended that the Commission accept the Defendant's offer of settlement pursuant to the authority granted under
§ 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the Defendant's offer of settlement, and the recommendation of the Bureau of
Financial Institutions, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Defendant's offer in settlement of this case is accepted.
(2) This case is dismissed.

(3) The papers filed herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.

* At the time of the examination, § 6.1-459 (14) provided as follows:

Upon receipt of a check given as security for a loan, the licensee shall stamp the check with an endorsement stating: "This check is
being negotiated as part of a payday loan pursuant to Chapter 18 (§ 6.1-444 et seq.) of this title, and any holder of this check takes it
subject to all claims and defenses of the maker.

* Section 6.1-459 (17) provides as follows:

A borrower shall be permitted to make partial payments, in increments of not less than $5, on the loan at any time prior to maturity,
without charge. The licensee shall give the borrower signed, dated receipts for each payment made, which shall state the balance due
on the loan. Upon repayment of the loan in full, the licensee shall mark the original loan agreement with the word "paid" or
"canceled," return it to the borrower, and retain a copy in its records.

® At the time of the examination, § 6.1-461 provided as follows:

In addition to the loan principal and the fee permitted under § 6.1-460, no further or other amount whatsoever shall be directly or
indirectly charged, contracted for, collected, received or recovered except (i) any deposit item return fee incurred by the licensee, not
to exceed $25, if the check given by the borrower as security is returned because the account on which it was drawn was closed by the
borrower or contained insufficient funds, or the borrower stopped payment on the check, and (ii) if judgment is obtained against the
borrower, court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees if awarded by the court, incurred as a result of the returned check in an amount not
to exceed $250. A licensee shall not be entitled to collect or recover from a borrower any sum otherwise permitted pursuant to
§§ 6.1-330.54, 8.01-27.2, or § 8.01-382.

CASE NO. BFI-2009-00343
FEBRUARY 26, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
OPTIMA FUNDING GROUP, INC.
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

On December 29, 2009, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") issued a Rule to Show Cause ("Rule") in this case against Optima
Funding Group, Inc. ("Defendant"). The Rule, among other things, alleged that the Defendant: (i) violated §§ 6.1-416 and 6.1-417 of the Mortgage Lender
and Broker Act ("Act"), § 6.1-408 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, by conducting business from, and maintaining records in, unlicensed offices; (ii) violated
§ 6.1-422 A(1) of the Act by obtaining Broker Fee Agreements and Financing Agreements in which blanks were left to be filled in after execution;
(iii) violated § 6.1-2.9:5(3) of the Code of Virginia by failing to provide borrowers with a good faith estimate of the processing time required for their loan;
(iv) violated Rule 10 VAC 5-160-70 A by failing to obtain criminal history records on four prospective employees; (v) violated Rule 10 VAC 5-160-50 by
failing to provide documents requested by the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") as part of its examination of the Defendant; and (vi) engaged in
conduct that would be grounds for denial of a license under the Act, which constitutes a basis for license revocation under § 6.1-415 A(1) of the Act.
Additionally, the Rule required the Defendant to file a responsive pleading on or before January 29, 2010.

As a proposal to settle all matters arising from these allegations and have the Rule dismissed, the Defendant and Mr. WookHyun Nam ("Mr.
Nam"), the Defendant's president and one hundred percent (100%) owner, offered to abide by the provisions of this Order and waived their right to a hearing
in the case. The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") recommended that the Commission accept the Defendant's offer of settlement
pursuant to the authority granted under § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the Defendant's offer of settlement, and the recommendation of the
Commissioner, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.
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Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Defendant's offer in settlement of this case is accepted.

(2) The Defendant shall surrender the mortgage broker license.

(3) The Defendant and Mr. Nam shall cease and desist from violating the provisions of the Act.

(4) Mr. Nam shall not act as, or otherwise perform the duties of, a senior officer of director of a mortgage lender or mortgage broker that is (i) a
successor or assign of the Defendant, or (ii) owned or operated by an immediate family member of Mr. Nam. Additionally, Mr. Nam shall not acquire a ten
percent (10%) or greater interest in a mortgage lender or mortgage broker that is owned or operated by an immediate family member of Mr. Nam. For
purposes of this paragraph, a senior officer means a person who has a significant management responsibility within an organization or otherwise has the

authority to influence or control the conduct of the organization's affairs, including, but not limited to, its compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

(5) The Defendant shall not merge into, be acquire by, or otherwise consolidate with a mortgage lender or mortgage broker that is owned or
operated by an immediate family member of Mr. Nam.

(6) This case is dismissed.

(7) The papers filed herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. BFI-2009-00344
JANUARY 19, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In the matter of adopting rules for the conduct of other business in payday lending offices

ORDER GRANTING RECONSIDERATION

On December 29, 2009, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") entered an Order Adopting a Regulation in this matter. On
January 19, 2010, F & L Marketing Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Cash-2-U Payday Loans filed a Motion to Reconsider and to Delay the Effective Date of a
Regulation until July 1, 2010.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of this Motion, grants reconsideration for the purpose of continuing our jurisdiction over this
matter and considering the merits of the above-referenced Motion.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) Reconsideration is granted for the purpose of continuing our jurisdiction over this matter and considering the above-referenced Motion.

(2) This matter is continued pending further order of the Commission.

CASE NO. BFI-2009-00344
JANUARY 25, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In the matter of adopting rules for the conduct of other business in payday lending offices

ORDER ON RECONSIDERATION

On December 29, 2009, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") issued an Order Adopting a Regulation in this matter. Thereafter, on
January 19, 2010, F & L Marketing Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Cash-2-U Payday Loans ("F & L Marketing Enterprises") filed a Motion to Reconsider and to
Delay the Effective Date of a Regulation until July 1, 2010 ("Motion"). In its Motion, F & L Marketing Enterprises requested that the Commission
reconsider and delay the effective date of the amended regulation until July 1, 2010. In support of its Motion, F & L Marketing Enterprises stated that the
February 1, 2010 effective date (i) does not leave adequate time for affected parties to implement the required changes affecting motor vehicle title lending
in an orderly manner, and (ii) will result in a disruption of motor vehicle title loan services available to customers. On January 19, 2010, the Commission
issued an Order Granting Reconsideration for the purpose of continuing our jurisdiction over this matter and considering the merits of the Motion.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the Motion and the record in this proceeding, is of the opinion and finds that companies
currently engaged in open-end auto title lending business from one or more payday lending offices pursuant to a prior Commission approval order should be
given some additional time to comply with the two additional conditions set forth in subdivisions F 6 and F 7 of 10 VAC 5-200-100. However, we are not
persuaded by the Motion or the affidavit that was attached thereto that F & L Marketing Enterprises needs an additional five months to implement these two



41
ANNUAL REPORT OF THE STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

conditions. Furthermore, we do not believe that it is either necessary or appropriate to extend the effective date of the amended regulation, which would
impact a multitude of other provisions that are unrelated to auto title lending, in order to accommodate the concerns raised in the Motion. Accordingly, we
believe it is reasonable and in the public interest to give licensees and third parties who are currently offering open-end auto title loans from payday lending
offices pursuant to a prior Commission approval order until March 1, 2010, to comply with the conditions set forth in subdivisions F 6 and F 7 of
10 VAC 5-200-100.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:f

(1) F & L Marketing Enterprises' Motion is granted in part. The effective date of the amended regulation shall remain February 1, 2010, but
licensees and third parties who are currently offering open-end auto title loans from payday lending offices pursuant to a prior Commission approval order
shall have until March 1, 2010, to comply with the conditions set forth in subdivisions F 6 and F 7 of 10 VAC 5-200-100.

(2) This case is dismissed.

CASE NO. BFI1-2009-00371
MARCH 10, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

ALLIED HOME MORTGAGE CAPITAL CORPORATION,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

ON A FORMER DAY, the Staff reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Allied Home Mortgage Capital
Corporation ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage lender and mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia;
that on February 26, 2009, the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions examined the Defendant and alleged that it had violated §§ 6.1-2.9:5,
6.1-330.70, 6.1-416, and 6.1-422 of the Code of Virginia, 10 VAC 5-160-30, 10 VAC 5-160-60, 10 VAC 5-160-70, and 10 VAC 5-160-80; that the
Defendant offered to settle this case by payment of a fine in the sum of Twenty-five Thousand Dollars ($25,000), tendered said sum to the Commonwealth
of Virginia, and waived its right to a hearing in the case; and the Commissioner of Financial Institutions recommended that the Commission accept the
Defendant's offer of settlement pursuant to the authority granted under § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) Defendant's offer in settlement of this case is accepted.
(2) This case is dismissed.

(3) The papers filed herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. BFI-2009-00376
FEBRUARY 18, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

AMERICAN HOME LOAN, INC. D/B/A ALLYMAC MORTGAGE SERVICES,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

ON A FORMER DAY, the Staff reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that American Home Loan, Inc. d/b/a
Allymac Mortgage Services ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that
on May 13, 2009, the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") examined the Defendant and alleged that it had violated §§ 6.1-2.9:5, 6.1-416, 6.1-423.1,
and 6.1-424 of the Code of Virginia as well as 10 VAC 5-160-60; that upon being informed that the Commissioner of Financial Institutions intended to
recommend the imposition of a fine, the Defendant offered to settle this case by surrendering its mortgage broker license, surrendered said license, and
waived its right to a hearing in the case; and the Commissioner of Financial Institutions recommended that the Commission accept the Defendant's offer of
settlement pursuant to the authority granted under § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) Defendant's offer in settlement of this case is accepted.
(2) This case is dismissed.

(3) The papers filed herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. BFI-2009-00394
FEBRUARY 23, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
LOUDOUN MORTGAGE, LLC,

Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Loudoun
Mortgage, LLC ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the bond
filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on October 13, 2009; and the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated
authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on October 20, 2009, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license unless a
new bond was filed by November 20, 2009, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before
November 10, 2009. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond or written request for a hearing.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage broker.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED that the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2009-00397
JANUARY 8, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

COMMUNITY MORTGAGE SERVICES CORPORATION,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

ON A FORMER DAY, the Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") reported to the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") that Community Mortgage Services Corporation ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of
Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the Defendant failed to (i) pay its annual fee due May 25, 2009, in violation of § 6.1-420 of the Code of Virginia,
(ii) respond to the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") regarding complaints from appraisal companies, in violation of 10 VAC 5-160-50, and
(iii) pay fees for appraisal services described in § 6.1-425 A 5 of the Code of Virginia; that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written
notice to the Defendant by certified mail on November 4, 2009, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license, and (2) that a written request for
a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before December 4, 2009; and that no written request for a hearing was filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has failed to pay its annual fee, respond to the Bureau regarding complaints from appraisal
companies, and pay fees for certain appraisal services, which are grounds for license revocation under § 6.1-425 of the Code of Virginia, and

IT IS ORDERED that the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2009-00400
JANUARY 25, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
CENTRAL MORTGAGE SOLUTIONS LLC,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Central
Mortgage Solutions LLC ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the
bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on October 25, 2009; and the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated
authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on November 23, 2009, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license unless a
new bond was filed by December 23, 2009, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before
December 14, 2009. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond or written request for hearing.
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The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage broker.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2009-00401
JANUARY 25, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
PROVIDENT CAPITAL MORTGAGE, INC.,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Provident
Capital Mortgage, Inc. ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the
bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on October 28, 2009; and the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated
authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on November 23, 2009, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license unless a
new bond was filed by December 23, 2009, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before
December 14, 2009. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond or written request for hearing.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage broker.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, I T IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2009-00402
JANUARY 25, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
SUNNY VIEW MORTGAGE GROUP, L.L.C.,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Sunny
View Mortgage Group, L.L.C. ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia;
that the bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on October 30, 2009; and the Commissioner, pursuant to
delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on November 23, 2009, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license
unless a new bond was filed by December 23, 2009, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or
before December 14, 2009. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond or written request for
hearing.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage broker.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.
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CASE NO. BFI-2009-00405
JANUARY 25, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

FIRST GUARANTY COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE CORP.,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that First
Guaranty Commercial Mortgage Corp. ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of
Virginia; that the bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on November 4, 2009; and the Commissioner,
pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on November 23, 2009, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation
of its license unless a new bond was filed by December 23, 2009, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the
Clerk on or before December 14, 2009. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond or written
request for hearing.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage broker.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2009-00409
FEBRUARY 16, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

MICHAEL O. CRAWFORD D/B/A MICHAEL O. CRAWFORD FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that
Michael O. Crawford d/b/a Michael O. Crawford Financial Resources ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16
of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on November 25, 2009;
that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on December 17, 2009, (1) of his intention to
recommend revocation of the Defendant's license unless a new bond was filed by January 17, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required
to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before January 7, 2010; and that no new bond or written request for a hearing was received or filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain his bond in force as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2009-00411
FEBRUARY 16, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
GENESIS PROPERTIES, LLC,

Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Genesis
Properties, LLC ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the bond
filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on December 5, 2009; that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated
authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on December 17, 2009, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license unless a
new bond was filed by January 7, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before January 7,
2010; and that no new bond or written request for a hearing was received or filed.
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Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2009-00412
OCTOBER 21, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
VIP MORTGAGE, INC.,

Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that VIP
Mortgage, Inc. ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.2 (formerly, Chapter 16 of Title 6.1) of the
Code of Virginia; that the Defendant failed to respond to requests of the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") in violation of 10 VAC 5-160-50 of the
Virginia Administrative Code; that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on August 4,
2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license for failing to respond to requests of the Bureau, and (2) that a written request for a hearing
was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before September 1, 2010; and that no response to the Bureau's requests or written request for a
hearing was received or filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has failed to respond to requests of the Bureau as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2009-00413
FEBRUARY 16, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
GREEN LEAF MORTGAGE CORP.,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Green
Leaf Mortgage Corp. ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the
Defendant failed to respond in writing to the Bureau of Financial Institutions' ("Bureau's") July 21, 2009 examination report, in violation of
10 VAC 5-160-50; that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on December 17, 2009,
(1) of his intention to recommend revocation of the Defendant's license, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of
the Clerk on or before January 18, 2010; and that no written request for a hearing was filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has failed to respond in writing to the Bureau's examination report as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2009-00414
FEBRUARY 16, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

PACIFIC REVERSE MORTGAGE, INC. D/B/A FINANCIAL HERITAGE,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Pacific
Reverse Mortgage, Inc. d/b/a Financial Heritage ("Defendant"), is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker and mortgage lender under Chapter 16
of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the Defendant continuously failed to respond to the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") in order to schedule
an examination, in violation of 10 VAC 5-160-50; that the Defendant closed its office without notifying the Bureau, in violation of § 6.1-416 C of the Code
of Virginia; that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on December 17, 2009, (1) of his
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intention to recommend revocation of the Defendant's license, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk
on or before January 19, 2010; and that no written request for a hearing was filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has violated applicable law by failing to (1) respond to the Bureau in order to schedule an
examination, and (2) notify the Bureau that the Defendant closed its office, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker and mortgage lender is hereby
revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00001
MARCH 12, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

TRANSWORLD CONNECTION LTD. D/B/A SARATOGA MUTUAL,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that
Transworld Connection Ltd. d/b/a Saratoga Mutual ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the
Code of Virginia; that the bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on December 14, 2009; and the
Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on January 25, 2010, (1) of his intention to
recommend revocation of its license unless a new bond was filed February 15, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in
the Office of the Clerk on or before February 15, 2010. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new
bond or written request for hearing.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage broker.

NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED that the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00002
MARCH 12, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
DEXTER STANCIL D/B/A DESTINY FINANCIAL SERVICES,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Dexter
Stancil d/b/a Destiny Financial Services ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of
Virginia; that the bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on January 3, 2010; and the Commissioner,
pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on January 25, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of
his license unless a new bond was filed by February 25, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk
on or before February 15, 2010. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond or written request
for hearing.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage broker.

NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain his bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.
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CASE NO. BFI1-2010-00003
MARCH 12, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
ABACUS MORTGAGE CORPORATION,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Abacus
Mortgage Corporation ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the
bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on January 3, 2010; and the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated
authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on January 25, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license unless a
new bond was filed by February 25, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before
February 15, 2010. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond or written request for hearing.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage broker.

NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00004
MARCH 12, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
CAPITAL & TRUST MORTGAGE, LLC,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Capital &
Trust Mortgage, LLC ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the
bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on January 5, 2010; and the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated
authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on January 25, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license unless a
new bond was filed by February 25, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before
February 15, 2010. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond or written request for hearing.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage broker.

NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00005
MARCH 12, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
CLARK FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Clark
Financial Services Inc. ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage lender and a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code
of Virginia; that the bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on January 7, 2010; and the Commissioner,
pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on January 25, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of
its license unless a new bond was filed by February 25, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on
or before February 15, 2010. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond or written request for
hearing.
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The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage lender and a mortgage broker.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage lender and a mortgage broker
is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00006
MARCH 12, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
COLDWATER CANYON CAPITAL, LLC,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Coldwater
Canyon Capital, LLC ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the
bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on January 8, 2010; and the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated
authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on January 25, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license unless a
new bond was filed by February 25, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before
February 15, 2010. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond or written request for hearing.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage broker.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI1-2010-00009
MARCH 12, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
LOAN EXPRESS, INC.,

Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Loan
Express, Inc. ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the bond filed
by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on January 18, 2010; and the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority,
gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on January 25, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license unless a new bond was
filed by February 25, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before February 15, 2010. As
of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond or written request for hearing.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage broker.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.
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CASE NO. BFI-2010-00013
MARCH 10, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

CASHNET, INC. D/B/A CASH ADVANCE CENTERS,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that CashNet,
Inc. d/b/a Cash Advance Centers ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a payday lender under Chapter 18 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia;
that the Defendant has continuously failed to respond to communications from the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau"), in violation of
10 VAC 5-200-50; that the Defendant closed its offices without notifying the Bureau, in violation of § 6.1-451 C of the Code of Virginia; that the Defendant
failed to pay the annual fee as prescribed in § 6.1-457 of the Code of Virginia; that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to
the Defendant by certified mail on February 4, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license, and (2) that a written request for a hearing
was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before March 1, 2010. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has failed to respond to the
Bureau and has not filed a request for hearing with the Commission.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has requested that the Commission enter an order revoking the Defendant's
license to engage in business as a payday lender.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant's license should be revoked.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a payday lender is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00014
SEPTEMBER 24, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
AMERICAN AFFORDABLE HOMES, INC.,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

The Staff reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that American Affordable Homes, Inc. ("Defendant"), is licensed to
engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that on January 15, 2009, the Bureau of Financial Institutions
("Bureau") examined the Defendant and alleged that it had violated §§ 6.1-2.9:5, 6.1-416, 6.1-422 (B) (4), 6.1-422 (A) (1), 6.1-423.1, and 6.1-423.2 of the
Code of Virginia as well as 10 VAC 5-160-20 (6), 10 VAC 5-160-30, 10 VAC 5-160-70, 10 VAC 5-160-80, the requirements of RESPA, and the
requirements of Regulation B; and that upon being informed that the Commissioner of Financial Institutions intended to recommend the imposition of a fine,
the Defendant offered to settle this case by paying a fine in the sum of Twenty-five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) in two equal installments, with the first
installment due September 1, 2010, and the second installment due October 1, 2010, and waived its right to a hearing in the case. The Commissioner of
Financial Institutions recommended that the Commission accept the Defendant's offer of settlement pursuant to the authority granted under § 12.1-15 of the
Code of Virginia.

The Commission, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the Bureau, is of the
opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Defendant's offer in settlement of this case is accepted,
(2) The Defendant fully comply with the aforesaid terms and undertakings of this settlement; and

(3) The Commission shall retain jurisdiction in this matter for all purposes, including the institution of a show cause proceeding, or taking such
other action it deems appropriate, on account of the Defendant's failure to comply with the terms and undertakings of the settlement.
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CASE NO. BFI-2010-00015
AUGUST 6, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
MORTGAGE SOURCE LLC,

Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Mortgage Source LLC
("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage lender and mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that on
May 19, 2009, the Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions examined the Defendant and alleged that it had violated §§ 6.1-2.9:5 and 6.1-422 of the
Code of Virginia, 10 VAC 5-160-30, 10 VAC 5-160-50, 10 VAC 5-160-60, and 12 C.F.R. § 226.18; that upon being informed that the Commissioner of
Financial Institutions intended to recommend the imposition of a fine, the Defendant offered to settle this case by paying a fine in the sum of Five Thousand
Dollars ($5,000), tendered said sum to the Commonwealth of Virginia, and waived its right to a hearing in this case; and the Commissioner of Financial
Institutions recommended that the Commission accept the Defendant's offer of settlement pursuant to the authority granted under § 12.1-15 of the Code of
Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the Defendant's offer of settlement, and the recommendation of the
Commissioner, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Defendant's offer in settlement of this case is accepted.
(2) This case is dismissed.

(3) The papers filed herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00017
APRIL 2, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

LIFETIME FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC.,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Lifetime
Financial Partners, Inc. ("Defendant"), is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage lender and a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the
Code of Virginia; that the bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on February 4, 2010; and the
Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on February 10, 2010, (1) of his intention to
recommend revocation of its license unless a new bond was filed by March 10, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in
the Office of the Clerk on or before March 3, 2010. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond
or written request for hearing.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage lender and a mortgage broker.

NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage lender and a mortgage broker
is hereby revoked.
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CASE NO. BFI-2010-00019
MARCH 18, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
NATIONWIDE MORTGAGE CONCEPTS, LLC,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Nationwide Mortgage
Concepts, LLC ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage lender and mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of
Virginia; that the Defendant sent "VA BENEFITS" solicitations to Virginia consumers in violation of 10 VAC 5-160-60 and the Mortgage Lender and
Broker Act; and that upon being informed that the Commissioner of Financial Institutions intended to recommend the imposition of a fine, the Defendant
offered to settle this case by paying a fine in the sum of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) and abiding by the provisions of this Order, tendered said sum to the
Commonwealth of Virginia, and waived its right to a hearing in the case. The Commissioner of Financial Institutions has recommended that the
Commission accept the Defendant's offer of settlement pursuant to the authority granted under § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Defendant's offer in settlement of this case is accepted.

(2) The Defendant shall cease and desist from sending its "VA BENEFITS" solicitations or any other false, misleading, or deceptive
advertisements to Virginia consumers.

(3) The Defendant shall comply with all provisions of 10 VAC 5-160-60 and § 6.1-424 of the Code of Virginia.
(4) This case is dismissed.

(5) The papers filed herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00021
DECEMBER 2, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

A M C FUNDING CORPORATION D/B/A ATRIUM FINANCIAL GROUP,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that A M C
Funding Corporation d/b/a Atrium Financial Group ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the
Code of Virginia; that the Defendant violated § 6.2-406 of the Code of Virginia ("Code") (formerly § 6.1-2.9:5) by failing to provide required disclosures to
first mortgage applicants; that the Defendant violated § 6.2-1609 of the Code (formerly § 6.1-417) by failing to keep an original contract for compensation in
the file; that the Defendant violated § 6.2-1614 of the Code (formerly § 6.1-422) by obtaining agreements in which blanks were left to be filled in after
execution; that the Defendant violated § 6.2-1616 of the Code (formerly § 6.1-422) by allegedly forging borrower signatures on disclosures and agreements
resulting in the receipt of compensation from borrowers other than that specified in written agreements signed by the borrowers; that the Defendant violated
10 VAC 5-160-20 by (i) receiving credit report fees in excess of the actual cost, (ii) by failing to maintain third party fees in a separate escrow account, and
(iii) allegedly misrepresenting the qualifications for a mortgage loan; that the Defendant violated 10 VAC 5-160-60 by failing to disclose on advertisements
the license number and the statement that the licensee is licensed by the "Virginia State Corporation Commission"; that the Defendant violated the Real
Estate Settlement Procedures Act by failing to disclose the lender-paid broker fee on the Good Faith Estimate; that the Defendant violated Federal
Regulation Z by failing to provide required substantive disclosures; that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the
Defendant by certified mail on February 23, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was
required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before March 23, 2010; and that no written request for a hearing was received or filed.

The Commission finds that pursuant to § 6.1-425 of the Code, immediate regulatory action is needed in order to protect Virginia consumers.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.
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CASE NO. BFI-2010-00023
APRIL 8, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
FIRST RATE CAPITAL CORP.,

Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that First Rate
Capital Corp. ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage lender and a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of
Virginia; that the bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on February 19, 2010; and the Commissioner,
pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on February 26, 2010: (1) of his intention to recommend revocation
of its license unless a new bond was filed by March 26, 2010; and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk
on or before March 19, 2010. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond or written request for
hearing.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage lender and a mortgage broker.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage lender and a mortgage broker
is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00024
APRIL 7, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
JSI MORTGAGE, LLC,

Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that JSI
Mortgage, LLC ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the bond
filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on February 24, 2010; and the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated
authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on February 26, 2010: (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license unless a
new bond was filed by March 26, 2010; and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before March 19,
2010. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond or written request for hearing.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage broker.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00024
JULY 14, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
JST MORTGAGE, LLC,

Defendant

VACATING ORDER

On April 7, 2010, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") entered an Order revoking the mortgage broker license issued to JSI
Mortgage, LLC ("Defendant") under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia for failure to maintain its surety bond in force as required by law.
Thereafter, the Staff reported that said Order had been tendered erroneously to the Commission for entry inasmuch as the Defendant's license was
surrendered previously.
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THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Order revoking the mortgage broker license issued to the Defendant should be vacated.
Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Order entered herein on April 7, 2010, revoking the Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage broker is VACATED
effective as of that date.

(2) This case is dismissed as moot.

(3) The papers filed herein shall be placed among the ended causes.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00029
APRIL 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

SAVINGS FIRST MORTGAGE, LLC D/B/A SAVINGS 1ST MORTGAGE,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Savings
First Mortgage, LLC d/b/a Savings 1* Mortgage ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage lender and mortgage broker under Chapter 16
of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the Defendant failed to respond to the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") regarding a consumer complaint,
in violation of 10 VAC 5-160-50, and closed its office without notifying the Commissioner, in violation of § 6.1-416 C of the Code of Virginia; that the
Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on March 15, 2010: (1) of his intention to recommend
revocation of the Defendant's license, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before April 15,
2010; and that no written request for a hearing was filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has failed to respond to the Bureau regarding a consumer complaint and notify the
Commissioner of the closing of its office as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage lender and mortgage broker is hereby
revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00033
MARCH 26, 2010

CITIFINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.,
CITIFINANCIAL, INC.,

and
CITIFINANCIAL OF VIRGINIA, INC.

In Re: Approval of a Settlement Agreement between CitiFinancial Services, Inc., CitiFinancial, Inc., and CitiFinancial of Virginia, Inc., and the
State Mortgage Regulators of the affected States in the United States

ORDER APPROVING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

ON THIS DAY came the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("the Bureau"), by counsel, having found that (i) CitiFinancial Services, Inc.,
CitiFinancial, Inc., and CitiFinancial of Virginia, Inc., (collectively, "CitiFinancial") is a group of affiliated companies based in Baltimore, Maryland,
(ii) CitiFinancial, Inc. held a Virginia mortgage lender and broker license pursuant to Chapter 16 (§ 6.1-409 et seq.) of the Code of Virginia until June 2005,
(iii) CitiFinancial of Virginia, Inc., was a licensed Virginia industrial loan association pursuant to Chapter 5 (§ 6.1-227 et seq.) of the Code of Virginia until
2007, (iv) CitiFinancial Services, Inc. is a Virginia licensed consumer finance company pursuant to Chapter 6 (§ 6.1-244 et seq.) of the Code of Virginia,
(v) CitiFinancial failed inadvertently to report certain loans required to be reported pursuant to the federal Home Mortgage Disclosure Act ("HMDA"),
12 U.S.C. § 2801 et seq., for the reporting years 2004 through 2007, (vi) such underreporting was the result of an unintentional computer programming error,
(vii) CitiFinancial has corrected all of its reports for the affected years, and (viii) CitiFinancial has established and implemented internal controls to ensure
compliance with the reporting requirements of HMDA;

The Bureau requested Commission approval and acceptance of a Settlement Agreement dated March 23, 2010 ("the Agreement"), a copy of
which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, by and between the affected State Mortgage Regulators' and CitiFinancial, and authority to execute any
documents attendant to the Agreement necessary to evidence the Commission's acceptance of the Agreement;

' The affected State Mortgage Regulators are as follows: Alabama, Arizona, Connecticut, Delaware, Georgia, Hawaii, Idaho, Iowa, Illinois, Indiana,
Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts, Michigan, Mississippi, Montana, Nebraska, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York,
North Carolina, Ohio, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Virginia, Washington, and West Virginia.
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THE COMMISSION, having considered the terms of the Agreement together with the recommendation of the Bureau that the Commission
approve and accept the Agreement, is of the opinion, finds, and ORDERS that (i) the Agreement be, and it is hereby, APPROVED AND ACCEPTED,
and (ii) the Commissioner of Financial Institutions be, and he is hereby, authorized to execute any attendant documents necessary to evidence the
Commission's approval and acceptance of the Agreement.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Settlement Agreement" is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation Commission, Clerk's
Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00035
AUGUST 12, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
BANCOMER TRANSFER SERVICES, INC.,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions has reported allegations to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Bancomer
Transfer Services, Inc. ("Defendant") engaged in the business of money transmission without obtaining a license pursuant to § 6.1-371 of the Code of
Virginia; and that the Defendant offered to settle this matter by paying the sum of Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000), tendered said sum to the
Commonwealth of Virginia, and waived its right to a hearing in this case. The Commissioner of Financial Institutions has recommended that the
Commission accept the Defendant's offer of settlement pursuant to the authority granted under § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the Defendant's offer of settlement, and the recommendation of the
Commissioner, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Defendant's offer in settlement of this matter is accepted.
(2) This matter is closed.

(3) This case is dismissed.

(4) The papers filed herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00039
MAY 6, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
QUIK FUND, INC.,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Quik
Fund, Inc. ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage lender and a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia;
that the bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on March 28, 2010; and the Commissioner, pursuant to
delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on April 1, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license unless
a new bond was filed by May 1, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before April 21,
2010. As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond or written request for hearing.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage lender and a mortgage broker.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage lender and a mortgage broker
is hereby revoked.



55
ANNUAL REPORT OF THE STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00039
MAY 20, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
QUIK FUND, INC.,

Defendant

VACATING ORDER

On May 6, 2010, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") entered an Order revoking the mortgage broker license issued to Quik Fund,
Inc. ("Defendant") under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia for failure to maintain its surety bond in force as required by law. Thereafter, the
Staff reported that said Order had been tendered erroneously to the Commission for entry inasmuch as the Defendant's license was surrendered previously.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Order entered in this case on May 6, 2010, revoking the Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage lender and broker is
vacated effective as of that date.

(2) This case is dismissed as moot.

(3) The papers filed herein shall be placed among the ended cases.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00040
MAY 6, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
NEW WAVE LENDING CORP.,

Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that New
Wave Lending Corp. ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the
bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on March 29, 2010; and the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated
authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on April 1, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license unless a new
bond was filed by May 1, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before April 21, 2010. As
of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed, nor has the Commission received, a new bond or written request for hearing.

The Commissioner, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking the
Defendant's license to engage in business as a mortgage broker.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.
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CASE NOS. BFI-2010-00058, BFI-2010-00062, BFI-2010-00064, BFI-2010-00071, BFI-2010-00072,
BFI1-2010-00078, BFI-2010-00082, BFI-2010-00085, BFI-2010-00089, BFI-2010-00090,
BFI1-2010-00094, BFI-2010-00100, BFI1-2010-00101, BFI-2010-00106, BFI-2010-00108,
BFI1-2010-00110, BFI-2010-00111, BFI-2010-00115, BFI-2010-00124, BFI-2010-00127,

BFI1-2010-00129, BFI-2010-0(3]13E,YBJI-:I-22(())%(())-00134, and BFI-2010-00137

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
AMERICAN HOME MORTGAGE LENDERS, INC. D/B/A VETERANS MORTGAGE ; ANTHONY FORDE D/B/A ATLANTIC & PACIFIC
MORTGAGE SERVICES; ATLANTIC MORTGAGE LOANS, INC.; CAPITAL LENDING SERVICE, INCORPORATED; CHESAPEAKE
LENDING CORPORATION; DAY-1 MORTGAGE COMPANY, LL.C.; EAGLE LOANS, INC.; EVERGREEN LENDING LLC; FIDELITY
MORTGAGE DIRECT CORP.; FINANCIAL RESOURCES MORTGAGE, INC.; FREESTATE MORTGAGE SERVICES, INC.; HOME
MORTGAGE CORPORATION; HYBRID MORTGAGE, INC.; JIM YUN, INC. D/B/A PRIME FUNDING; KEYSTONE FUNDING GROUP
LLC; LINK MORTGAGE, LLC; MERIDIAN MORTGAGE LLC; NEW LIFE MORTGAGE, INC.; SARATOGA CAPITAL FINANCE LLC;
THE FINANCIAL WEB, INC.; TMC LENDING, INC.; USMAC CORP. (USED IN VIRGINIA BY: CITYWIDE MORTGAGE
CORPORATION); VETERANS HOME MORTGAGE, INC.; and VIRGINIA FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS, INC.

ORDER REVOKING LICENSES

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that the
Defendants are licensed to engage in business under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the Defendants failed to file the annual report
required under § 6.1-418 of the Code of Virginia; that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to each Defendant by certified
mail on April 29, 2010, (1) of his intentions to recommend revocation of their license unless the annual report was received by June 1, 2010, and (2) that a
written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before May 20, 2010; and that no annual report or written request for a
hearing was received or filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendants failed to file their annual reports as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the licenses granted to the Defendants to engage in business as a mortgage broker, mortgage lender, or both, as the
case may be, are hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00068
AUGUST 9, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

ALEXANDER S. RAMSEY, III d/b/a RAMSCOURT MORTGAGE,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that
Alexander S. Ramsey, III d/b/a RamsCourt Mortgage ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of
the Code of Virginia; that the bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on April 20, 2010; that the
Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on April 28, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend
revocation of its license unless a new bond was filed by May 28, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of
the Clerk on or before May 19, 2010; and that no new bond or written request for a hearing was received or filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00144
MAY 17, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In re: annual assessment of licensed money order sellers and money transmitters

ORDER TO TAKE NOTICE

In order to defray the costs of examining and supervising money order sellers and money transmitters licensed under Chapter 12 of Title 6.1 of
the Code of Virginia ("licensees"), § 6.1-373 B of the Code of Virginia requires licensees to pay an annual assessment calculated in accordance with a
schedule set by the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The schedule is required to bear a reasonable relationship to the dollar volume of
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money orders sold and money transmission business conducted by licensees, either directly or through their authorized delegates, the costs of their
examinations, and to other factors relating to their supervision and regulation.

NOW THE COMMISSION, based on information supplied by the Staff of the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau"), proposes to adopt a
regulation setting an assessment schedule that will promote the efficient and effective examination and supervision of licensees. Based on annual reports
filed with the Bureau by licensees for the calendar year ending 2009, the schedule set forth in the proposed regulation is projected to generate a total annual
assessment of $471,176.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The proposed regulation, entitled "Assessment Schedule for the Examination and Supervision of Money Order Sellers and Money
Transmitters," is appended hereto and made a part of the record herein.

(2) Comments or requests for a hearing on the proposed regulation must be submitted in writing to Joel H. Peck, Clerk, State Corporation
Commission, ¢/o Document Control Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218, on or before June 18, 2010. Requests for a hearing shall state why a
hearing is necessary and why the issues cannot be adequately addressed in written comments. All correspondence shall contain a reference to Case No.
BFI-2010-00144. Interested persons desiring to submit comments or request a hearing electronically may do so by following the instructions available at the
Commission's website: http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(3) This Order and the proposed regulation shall be posted on the Commission's website at http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(4) The Commission's Division of Information Resources shall send a copy of this Order, including a copy of the proposed regulation, to the
Virginia Registrar of Regulations for publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Assessment Schedule for the Examination and Supervision of Money Order Sellers and Money
Transmitters" is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building,
First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00144
JULY 21, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In re: annual assessment of licensed money order sellers and money transmitters

ORDER ADOPTING A REGULATION

On May 17, 2010, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") entered an Order to Take Notice of a proposal to adopt a regulation
pursuant to § 6.1-373 B of the Code of Virginia. The proposed regulation, 10 VAC 5-120-50, prescribes an assessment schedule for money order sellers and
money transmitters licensed under Chapter 12 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia ("licensees") in order to defray the cost of their examination and
supervision. The Order and proposed regulation were published in the Virginia Register of Regulations on June 7, 2010, posted on the Commission's
website, and mailed to all licensees and other interested parties. Licensees and other interested parties were afforded the opportunity to file written
comments or request a hearing on or before June 18, 2010.

Comments on the proposed regulation were filed by Mr. Randy Mersky on behalf of Global Express Money Orders, Inc.' In his comment letter,
Mr. Mersky contended that the examination process has historically been more complicated, involved, and time consuming for money transmitters, and that
the assessment rate for money orders should be much lower than the assessment rate for money transmission. Mr. Mersky also recommended that the
assessment schedule take into account a licensee's overall size or net worth.

On June 22, 2010, the Commission entered an Order directing the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") to file a written response to Mr.
Mersky's comments. On June 25, 2010, the Bureau filed a Response to Comments. The Bureau reported to the Commission that it had contacted regulators
in several other states (California, Ohio, Texas, and Wyoming) that have substantial experience regulating and examining money order sellers and money
transmitters, and that all of the state regulators uniformly indicated that (i) money order sellers must comply with the same laws as money transmitters, (ii)
regulators use the same programs and procedures to examine both products, and (iii) the time allotted by regulators for examinations is identical. The
Bureau also indicated that the complexity and length of a particular licensee's examination is already factored into the proposed assessment schedule, and
that the overall size or net worth of a licensee is redundant and/or inapt as a proxy for the amount of regulatory resources that need to be devoted to an
institution.

On July 8, 2010, the Bureau filed a Supplement to Response in which it requested leave to supplement its Response to Comments on the basis
that it had inadvertently omitted certain germane information. Specifically, the states of Ohio, Texas, and Wyoming had all informed the Bureau that they
apply the same assessment rate to money order sellers and money transmitters. The Bureau requested that this supplemental information be appended to its
Response to Comments.

! After the comment period deadline, a comment letter was filed by Mr. Ezra C. Levine on behalf of The Money Services Round Table. The Money Services
Round Table requested that the proposed regulation be amended to include a cap of $100,000 per licensee.

2 In his comments, Mr. Mersky also "suggested" that a hearing be held to discuss this matter further.
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NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the proposed regulation, the comments timely filed, the Bureau's Response to Comments, the
record herein, and applicable law, finds that the Bureau's request for leave to supplement its Response to Comments should be granted, that a hearing is
unnecessary, and that the regulation should be adopted as proposed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The proposed regulation, 10 VAC 5-120-50, attached hereto is adopted effective July 27, 2010.

(2) This Order and the attached regulation shall be posted on the Commission's website at http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(3) The Commission's Division of Information Resources shall send a copy of this Order, including a copy of the attached regulation, to the
Virginia Registrar of Regulations for publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations.

(4) This case is dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Chapter 120. Money Order Sellers and Money Transmitters" is on file and may be examined at the
State Corporation Commission, Bureau of Financial Institutions, Tyler Building, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00155
AUGUST 12, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
PREMIER PROCESSING SOLUTIONS, INC.,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Premier
Processing Solutions, Inc. ("Defendant"), is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that
the bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on April 30, 2010; that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated
authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on July 1, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license unless a new
bond was filed by August 1, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before July 22, 2010;
and that no new bond or written request for a hearing was received or filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00162
SEPTEMBER 13, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
STANDARD CAPITAL CORP.,

Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Standard
Capital Corp. ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the bond filed
by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on June 10, 2010; that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority,
gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on July 19, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license unless a new bond was
filed by August 19, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before August 9, 2010; and that
no new bond or written request for a hearing was received or filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.
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CASE NO. BFI-2010-00163
SEPTEMBER 13, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
AMERICAN PROSPERITY MORTGAGE, LLC d/b/a
AFFORDABLE FINANCE AND LOAN MODIFICATIONS LLC,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that American
Prosperity Mortgage, LLC d/b/a Affordable Finance and Loan Modifications LLC ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker
under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia; that the bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on
June 22, 2010; that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on July 19, 2010, (1) of his
intention to recommend revocation of its license unless a new bond was filed by August 19, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to
be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before August 9, 2010; and that no new bond or written request for a hearing was received or filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00165
JULY 22, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In re: motor vehicle title lending regulations

ORDER TO TAKE NOTICE

Chapter 477 of the 2010 Virginia Acts of Assembly amends the Code of Virginia by adding Chapter 21 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia
("Chapter 21"), which establishes a comprehensive licensing and regulatory framework for motor vehicle title lenders and motor vehicle title loans.
Chapter 21 will become effective on October 1, 2010. Section 6.1-494 of Chapter 21 authorizes the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") to adopt
regulations that it deems appropriate to effect the purposes of such chapter.

The Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") has submitted to the Commission proposed regulations that define various terms used in
Chapter 21, clarify and implement certain requirements, limitations, and prohibitions applicable to motor vehicle title lenders and motor vehicle title loans,
and prescribe the contents of the pamphlet that licensees must furnish to prospective borrowers. Since the final regulations will be made effective on or after
the date that Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia is replaced by Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia,' all of the affected statutory citations that appear in the
proposed regulations reference Title 6.2 rather than Title 6.1.

NOW THE COMMISSION, based on the information supplied by the Bureau, is of the opinion and finds that the proposed regulations should
be considered for adoption with an effective date of October 1, 2010.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The proposed regulations, entitled "Motor Vehicle Title Lending," are appended hereto and made a part of the record herein.
(2) Comments on the proposed regulations must be submitted in writing to Joel H. Peck, Clerk, State Corporation Commission, ¢/o Document

Control Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218, on or before August 30, 2010. All correspondence shall contain a reference to Case No.
BFI-2010-00165. Interested persons desiring to submit comments electronically may do so by following the instructions available at the Commission's

website: http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(3) The Commission shall conduct a hearing in the Commission's Courtroom, Second Floor, Tyler Building, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond,
Virginia, at 2:00 p.m. on September 7, 2010, to consider the adoption of the proposed regulations.

(4) This Order and the attached proposed regulations shall be posted on the Commission's website at http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(5) The Commission's Division of Information Resources shall send a copy of this Order, including a copy of the attached proposed regulations,
to the Virginia Registrar of Regulations for publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Chapter 210 Motor Vehicle Lending" is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation
Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

! Chapter 794 of the 2010 Virginia Acts of Assembly recodifies Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia as Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia effective October 1,
2010. Chapter 21 of Title 6.1 will become Chapter 22 of Title 6.2.
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CASE NO. BFI-2010-00165
SEPTEMBER 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In re: motor vehicle title lending regulations

ORDER ADOPTING REGULATIONS

On July 22, 2010, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") entered an Order to Take Notice of a proposal by the Bureau of Financial
Institutions to adopt regulations pursuant to Chapter 21 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia ("Chapter 21")," which establishes a comprehensive licensing and
regulatory framework for motor vehicle title lenders and motor vehicle title loans. The proposed regulations define various terms used in Chapter 21, clarify
and implement certain requirements, limitations, and prohibitions applicable to motor vehicle title lenders and motor vehicle title loans, and prescribe the
contents of the pamphlet that licensees must furnish to prospective borrowers. The Order to Take Notice and proposed regulations were published in the
Virginia Register of Regulations on August 16, 2010, posted on the Commission's website, and mailed to various interested parties. Interested parties were
afforded the opportunity to file written comments on or before August 30, 2010, and a public hearing was scheduled for September 7, 2010.

Comments on the proposed regulations were filed by Mr. Blake Sims, Buckeye Title Loans of Virginia, LLC, Select Management Resources,
LLC, the Virginia Department of Motor Vehicles, the Virginia Poverty Law Center, Dominion Management Services, Inc., the Office of the Attorney
General, and ACE Cash Express, Inc.

On September 7, 2010, the Commission convened a hearing to consider the adoption of the proposed regulations. Staff counsel responded to the
written comments filed and offered alternative suggestions for addressing some of the concerns that were raised in the written comments. The suggestions
from Staff counsel pertained to the definition of "good funds instrument” in 10 VAC 5-210-10, the references to "active duty" in subsection D of
10 VAC 5-210-50, and the prohibition set forth in subsection F of 10 VAC 5-210-50. Staff counsel also responded to questions from the Commission
regarding (i) subsection D of 10 VAC 5-210-30, which in specitying the text of the borrower rights and responsibilities pamphlet states that a motor vehicle
title lender is required to record its lien with the Virginia Department of Motor Vehicles;? and (ii) subsection B of 10 VAC 5-210-70, which contains the
standards for approving other business in motor vehicle title lending offices.

The only members of the public who participated in the hearing were David B. Irvin, representing the Office of the Attorney General, and
James W. Speer, Executive Director of the Virginia Poverty Law Center. Mr. Irvin offered testimony in furtherance of the suggestion in his comment letter
that the words "and conditions" be inserted after the word "costs" in three locations in 10 VAC 5-210-70 of the proposed regulations. Mr. Irvin indicated
that the primary purpose of his suggestion was to ensure that consumers are aware of the type of security interest that a lender may take in connection with
the various loan products that are available in a motor vehicle title lender's office. Mr. Speer testified at the hearing in support of the proposed regulations.
In particular, Mr. Speer emphasized the importance of retaining the proposed requirement in subsection N of 10 VAC 5-210-50 that a licensee obtain proof
of mailing from the United States Postal Service or other common carrier when sending the written notices and accounting specified by § 6.2-2217 of the
Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the proposed regulations, the written comments filed, the record herein, and applicable law,
concludes that the proposed regulations should be modified to incorporate certain suggestions that were made by commenters and Staff counsel. The
Commission further concludes that the proposed standards for approving other business in motor vehicle title lending offices should be clarified, and that the
proposed regulations, as modified, should be adopted with an eftective date of October 1, 2010.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The proposed regulations, as modified herein and attached hereto, are adopted effective October 1, 2010.

(2) This Order and the attached regulations shall be posted on the Commission's website at http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(3) The Commission's Division of Information Resources shall send a copy of this Order, including a copy of the attached regulations, to the
Virginia Registrar of Regulations for publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations.

(4) This case is dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Chapter 210, Motor Vehicle Title Lending" is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation
Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

' Chapter 794 of the 2010 Virginia Acts of Assembly recodifies Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia as Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia effective October 1,
2010. Chapter 21 of Title 6.1 will become Chapter 22 of Title 6.2.

% In order to accommodate loans secured by motor vehicles that are titled in other jurisdictions, Dominion Management Services, Inc. suggested in its
comment letter that the regulations require licensees to record their liens with the Virginia Department of Motor Vehicles "or applicable division of motor
vehicles in the state / territory / district where titled." However, as Staff counsel pointed out during the hearing, this suggestion conflicts with subsection 11
of § 6.2-2215 of the Code of Virginia, which requires a licensee to "file to have its security interest in a motor vehicle added to a certificate of title by
complying with the requirements of § 46.2-637 [of the Code of Virginia]." In prescribing the procedure for recording a security interest, § 46.2-637
specifically references the Department of Motor Vehicles of the Commonwealth.
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CASE NO. BFI-2010-00166
SEPTEMBER 7, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
MATRIX INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC.,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Matrix
International Holdings, Inc. ("Defendant"), is licensed to engage in business as a money order seller and money transmitter under Chapter 12 of Title 6.1 of
the Code of Virginia; that the Defendant failed to file the annual report required by § 6.1-373 of the Code of Virginia; that the Commissioner, pursuant to
delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on July 19, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license
unless the annual report was filed by August 19, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or
before August 9, 2010, and that no annual report or written request for a hearing was received or filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has failed to file an annual report as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a money order seller and money transmitter is hereby
revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00168
OCTOBER 6, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

NORTHPOINT FINANCIAL, INC. d/b/a NORTHPOINT MORTGAGE,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that
NorthPoint Financial, Inc. d/b/a NorthPoint Mortgage ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.2
(formerly, Chapter 16 of Title 6.1) of the Code of Virginia; that the bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.1-413 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled
on July 25, 2010; that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on July 27, 2010, (1) of his
intention to recommend revocation of its license unless a new bond was filed by August 27, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to
be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before August 17, 2010; and that no new bond or written request for a hearing was received or filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00171
SEPTEMBER 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

WILLIAM DAVID TIMBERLAKE,
Defendant

ORDER

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that William
David Timberlake ("Defendant"), of Virginia Beach, Virginia, is the Chief Executive Officer and majority owner of Cornerstone Mortgage Funding
Corporation, a mortgage broker licensed under Chapter 16 of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia ("Mortgage Lender and Broker Act"); that on May 17, 2010,
the Defendant pled guilty to the felony of wire fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1343; that on August 27, 2010, the Defendant was convicted of wire fraud
in the United States District Court, Eastern District of Virginia (Norfolk Division); and that in the opinion of the Commissioner, the conviction and the acts
that led to it are reasonably related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a person employed by, or having an ownership interest in, a licensee under the
Mortgage Lender and Broker Act. On August 2, 2010, the Commissioner gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail (1) of his intention to
recommend to the Commission that the Defendant be barred, pursuant to § 6.1-425.1 of the Code of Virginia, from any position of employment,
management or control of any mortgage lender or mortgage broker licensed under the Mortgage Lender and Broker Act, and (2) that a written request for a
hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before September 2, 2010; and that no written request for a hearing was received or filed.
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NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein and the LM recommendation of the Commissioner, finds that the Defendant
has pled guilty to and been convicted of a felony, and the conviction involved an offense reasonably related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a
person engaged in business under the Mortgage Lender and Broker Act.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Defendant is barred from any position of employment, management or control of a licensee under the Mortgage Lender and Broker Act.

(2) This case is dismissed.

(3) The papers filed herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00176
OCTOBER 6, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

JONES FINANCE AND REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS, INC. d/b/a JFREI MORTGAGE,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Jones
Finance and Real Estate Investments, Inc. d/b/a JFREI Mortgage ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of
Title 6.2 (formerly, Chapter 16 of Title 6.1) of the Code of Virginia; that the Defendant failed to pay the annual fee due May 25, 2010, as required by
§ 6.1-420 of the Code of Virginia; that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on
August 18, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license unless the annual fee was paid by September 18, 2010, and (2) that a written
request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before August 26, 2010; and that no annual fee or written request for a hearing
was received or filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has failed to pay its annual fee as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00176
OCTOBER 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

JONES FINANCE AND REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS, INC. d/b/a JFREI MORTGAGE,
Defendant

VACATING ORDER

On October 6, 2010, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") entered an Order revoking the mortgage broker license issued to Jones
Finance and Real Estate Investments, Inc. d/b/a JFREI Mortgage ("Defendant"), under Chapter 16 of Title 6.2 (formerly, Chapter 16 of Title 6.1) of the Code
of Virginia for failure to pay its annual fee as required by law. Thereafter, the Staff reported to the Commission that the Defendant subsequently paid its
annual fee, and the Commissioner of Financial Institutions recommended that the Commission reinstate the Defendant's mortgage broker license.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The October 6, 2010 Order Revoking a License is vacated effective on that date.

(2) This case is dismissed.

(3) The papers filed herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NOS. BF1-2010-00179, BFI1-2010-00180, BFI-2010-00181, BFI-2010-00182, BFI-2010-00191
BFI1-2010-00204, BFI-2010-00207, BFI-2010-00213, BFI-2010-00214, BFI-2010-00218, BFI-2010-00223,
BFI1-2010-00225, BFI-2010-00229, BFI1-2010-00231, AND BFI-2010-00234
DECEMBER 28, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
FIRST EQUITABLE MORTGAGE CORP.
SECURITY FIRST FUNDING CORPORATION
PARAGON MORTGAGE & FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
BECKNER'S RUN & ASSOC., INC.
JM MORTGAGE LLC
ZAGROS FINANCIAL INC.
AMERINET FINANCIAL, L.L.C.
NALU, INC.
EWA MORTGAGE, INC.
1ST PERSONAL MORTGAGE SERVICE, INC.
1ST NATIONWIDE MORTGAGE CORPORATION
AASENT MORTGAGE CORPORATION
EAGLE MORTGAGE, L.L.C.
BRIDGE VIEW MORTGAGE, LLC
YOUR MORTGAGE LENDER, INC.,

Defendants

ORDER REVOKING LICENSES

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that the
Defendants are licensed to engage in business under Chapter 16 of Title 6.2 (formerly, Chapter 16 of Title 6.1) of the Code of Virginia; that the Defendants
failed to pay their annual fees due May 25, 2010, as required under § 6.1-420 of the Code of Virginia; that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated
authority, gave written notice to each Defendant by certified mail on September 8, 2010, (1) of his intentions to recommend revocation of their license unless
the annual fee was paid by October 8, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before
September 24, 2010; and that no annual fee or written request for a hearing was received or filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendants failed to pay their annual fees as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the licenses granted to the Defendants to engage in business as a mortgage broker, mortgage lender, or both, as the
case may be, are hereby revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00236
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
SAQIB IQBAL D/B/A AMERICAN CENTURY MORTGAGE,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Saqib
Igbal d/b/a American Century Mortgage ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.2 (formerly,
Chapter 16 of Title 6.1) of the Code of Virginia; that the Defendant failed to respond to requests of the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") in
violation of 10 VAC 5-160-50 of the Virginia Administrative Code; that the Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the
Defendant by certified mail on September 24, 2010, (1) of his intention to recommend revocation of its license for failing to respond to requests of the
Bureau, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed in the Office of the Clerk on or before October 25, 2010; and that no response to
the Bureau's requests or written request for a hearing was received or filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has failed to respond to requests of the Bureau as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage broker is hereby revoked.
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CASE NO. BFI-2010-00242
DECEMBER 29, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

v.
ACE CASH EXPRESS, INC.,

Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that ACE Cash Express, Inc.
("Defendant"), is a licensed payday lender under Chapter 18 of Title 6.2 (formerly, Chapter 18 of Title 6.1) of the Code of Virginia ("Code"); that on
January 12, 2010, the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") examined the Defendant and alleged that it had violated § 6.1-451 A of the Code in one
(1) instance, § 6.1-453 of the Code in one (1) instance, § 6.1-459 (1) of the Code in one (1)instance, § 6.1-459 (6) of the Code in thirty-four (34) instances,
§ 6.1-459 (7) of the Code in five (5) instances, § 6.1-459 (8) of the Code in six (6) instances, § 6.1-459 (10) of the Code in six (6) instances, § 6.1-459 (14)
of the Code in twenty (20) instances, § 6.1-459 (17) of the Code in forty-three (43) instances, § 6.1-459 (25) of the Code in six (6) instances, § 6.1-459 (26)
of the Code in four (4) instances, and 10 VAC 5-200-20 (C) in two (2) instances, 10 VAC 5-200-20 (G) in one (1) instance, 10 VAC 5-200-20 (K) in one
(1) instance, 10 VAC 5-200-30 (A) in one (1) instance, 10 VAC 5-200-30 (B) in three (3) instances, 10 VAC 5-200-33 (C) in three (3) instances,
10 VAC 5-200-35 (E) in one (1) instance, 10 VAC 5-200-70 (C) in two (2) instances, 10 VAC 5-200-110 (D) in eighty-five (85) instances,
10 VAC 5-200-110 (I) in three (3) instances, 10 VAC 5-200-110 (K) in one (1) instance, and 10 VAC 5-200-110 (N) in one (1) instance; that upon being
informed that the Commissioner of Financial Institutions intended to recommend the imposition of a fine, the Defendant has offered to settle this case by
paying a fine in the sum of One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000), tendered said sum to the Commonwealth of Virginia, and shall provide the
Bureau with monthly internal audit reports of Defendant's Virginia branches up to and until the Bureau's follow-up examination, and waived its right to a
hearing in the case. Additionally, no additional applications filed with the Commission by the Defendant or an affiliated entity will be approved until an
examination of the Defendant by the Bureau reveals substantial compliance with Virginia law. The Commissioner of Financial Institutions has
recommended that the Commission accept the Defendant's offer of settlement pursuant to the authority granted under § 12.1-15 of the Code.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the Defendant's offer of settlement, and the recommendation of the
Commissioner, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Defendant's offer in settlement of this case is accepted.
(2) This case is dismissed.

(3) The papers filed herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00247
NOVEMBER 23, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

EXPRESS CHECK ADVANCE OF VIRGINIA, LLC d/b/a EXPRESS CHECK ADVANCE,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that Express
Check Advance of Virginia, LLC d/b/a Express Check Advance ("Defendant"), is a licensed payday lender under Chapter 18 of Title 6.2 (formerly, Chapter
18 of Title 6.1) of the Code of Virginia ("Code"); that on April 13, 2010, the Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") examined the Defendant and
alleged that it had violated § 6.1-459 (6) of the Code in twelve (12) instances, § 6.1-459 (7) of the Code in twelve (12) instances, § 6.1-459 (8) of the Code
in five (5) instances, § 6.1-459 (10) of the Code in one (1) instance, § 6.1-459 (14) of the Code in three (3) instances, § 6.1-459 (17) of the Code in nine (9)
instances, 10 VAC 5-200-30 (B) in one (1) instance, 10 VAC 5-200-110 (I) in three (3) instances, 10 VAC 5-200-110 (D) in forty (40) instances, and
10 VAC 5-200-110 (K) in one (1) instance; that upon being informed that the Commissioner intended to recommend the imposition of a fine, the Defendant
has offered to settle this case by paying a fine in the sum of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000), tendered said sum to the Commonwealth of Virginia, and
waived its right to a hearing in the case; and the Commissioner recommended that the Commission accept the Defendant's offer of settlement pursuant to the
authority granted under § 12.1-15 of the Code.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the Defendant's offer of settlement, and the recommendation of the
Commissioner, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Defendant's offer in settlement of this case is accepted.
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(2) This case is dismissed.

(3) The papers filed herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00249
DECEMBER 21, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

D & R MORTGAGE CORP. D/B/A METRO FINANCE,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING A LICENSE

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions ("Commissioner") has reported to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that D & R
Mortgage Corp. d/b/a Metro Finance ("Defendant") is licensed to engage in business as a mortgage lender and mortgage broker under Chapter 16 of Title 6.2
of the Code of Virginia; that the bond filed by the Defendant pursuant to § 6.2-1604 of the Code of Virginia was cancelled on October 5, 2010; that the
Commissioner, pursuant to delegated authority, gave written notice to the Defendant by certified mail on October 28, 2010, (1) of his intention to
recommend revocation of its license unless a new bond was filed by November 28, 2010, and (2) that a written request for a hearing was required to be filed
in the Office of the Clerk on or before November 25, 2010; and that no new bond or written request for a hearing was received or filed.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the Defendant has failed to maintain its bond in force as required by law, and

IT IS ORDERED THAT the license granted to the Defendant to engage in business as a mortgage lender and mortgage broker is hereby
revoked.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00253
NOVEMBER 2, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In re: other business in payday lending offices

ORDER TO TAKE NOTICE

Section 6.2-1815 of the Code of Virginia provides that the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") shall adopt such regulations as it
deems appropriate to effect the purposes of Chapter 18 (§ 6.2-1800 et seq.) of Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia. The Commission's payday lending
regulations are set forth in Title 10 of the Virginia Administrative Code.

The Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") has submitted to the Commission proposed amendments to 10 VAC 5-200-100 ("Section 100")
of the Virginia Administrative Code, which governs the conduct of other business in payday lending offices. The impetus for the proposed amendments is
Chapter 477 of the 2010 Virginia Acts of Assembly ("Chapter 477"), which became effective on October 1, 2010, and primarily established a licensing and
regulatory framework for motor vehicle title lenders and motor vehicle title loans. More significant to Section 100 is that Chapter 477 also amended
Virginia's open-end lending statute, § 6.2-312 of the Code of Virginia (formerly § 6.1-330.78 of the Code of Virginia). As amended, § 6.2-312 C provides in
pertinent part as follows:

(1) A licensee, as defined in § 6.2-1800, shall not engage in the extension of credit under an open-end credit plan
described in this section and, (ii) a third party shall not engage in the extension of credit under an open-end
credit plan described in this section at any office, suite, room, or place of business where a licensee conducts the
business of making payday loans.

The proposed regulation reflects this amendment, but retains certain conditions for open-end auto title lending because other business operators are permitted
by Chapter 477 to continue collecting payments on any outstanding open-end loans. Also included in the proposal as a result of Chapter 477 is a set of
uniform conditions that would be applicable to the conduct of a motor vehicle title lending business from a licensee's payday lending offices. Notably, the
proposed conditions for motor vehicle title lending are largely a subset of the conditions in Section 100 that have been applicable to the conduct of an open-
end auto title lending business from a licensee's payday lending offices.

Another source of proposed changes to Section 100 is 10 VAC 5-210-70 of the Virginia Administrative Code, which was adopted by the
Commission effective October 1, 2010, and governs the conduct of other business in motor vehicle title lending offices. Although 10 VAC 5-210-70 was
initially proposed to mirror Section 100, the Commission ultimately clarified the standards for approving other business in motor vehicle title lending offices
(subsection B) and added a disclosure requirement at the end of subsections E, H, and I when it adopted 10 VAC 5-210-70. Accordingly, in order to
similarly clarify Section 100 and promote consistency between these two regulations, the proposal also includes modifications that track the Commission's
changes to 10 VAC 5-210-70.

Lastly, based on Chapter 794 of the 2010 Virginia Acts of Assembly, which recodified Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia as Title 6.2 of the Code
of Virginia effective October 1, 2010, the Bureau is also proposing to update the affected statutory references that are found throughout Section 100.
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NOW THE COMMISSION, based on the information supplied by the Bureau, is of the opinion and finds that the proposed regulation should be
considered for adoption with an effective date of January 1, 2011.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The proposed regulation, entitled "Other Business in Payday Lending Offices," is appended hereto and made a part of the record herein.

(2) Comments or requests for a hearing on the proposed regulation must be submitted in writing to Joel H. Peck, Clerk, State Corporation
Commission, ¢/o Document Control Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218, on or before December 10, 2010. Requests for a hearing shall state
why a hearing is necessary and why the issues cannot be adequately addressed in written comments. All correspondence shall contain a reference to Case
No. BFI-2010-00253. Interested persons desiring to submit comments or request a hearing electronically may do so by following the instructions available

at the Commission's website: http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.
(3) This Order and the attached proposed regulation shall be posted on the Commission's website at http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(4) The Commission's Division of Information Resources shall send a copy of this Order, including a copy of the attached proposed regulation,
to the Virginia Registrar of Regulations for publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Chapter 200 Payday Lending" is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation Commission,
Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00253
DECEMBER 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In re: other business in payday lending offices

ORDER ADOPTING A REGULATION

On November 2, 2010, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") entered an Order to Take Notice of a proposal by the Bureau of
Financial Institutions ("Bureau") to amend 10 VAC 5-200-100 of the Virginia Administrative Code, which governs the conduct of other business in payday
lending offices. The Order and proposed regulation were published in the Virginia Register of Regulations on November 22, 2010, posted on the
Commission's website, and mailed to all licensed payday lenders and other interested parties. Licensed payday lenders and other interested parties were
afforded the opportunity to file written comments or request a hearing on or before December 10, 2010. No comments or requests for a hearing were filed.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the proposed regulation, the record herein, and applicable law, concludes that the proposed
regulation should be adopted with an effective date of January 1, 2011.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The proposed regulation, 10 VAC 5-200-100 of the Virginia Administrative Code, as attached hereto, is adopted effective January 1, 2011.
(2) This Order and the attached regulation shall be posted on the Commission's website at http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(3) The Commission's Division of Information Resources shall send a copy of this Order, including a copy of the attached regulation, to the
Virginia Registrar of Regulations for publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations.

(4) This case is dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Other Business in Payday Lending Offices" is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation
Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. BFI-2010-00255
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In re: Mortgage Lenders and Brokers

ORDER TO TAKE NOTICE

Section 6.2-1613 of the Code of Virginia provides that the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") shall adopt such regulations as it
deems appropriate to effect the purposes of Chapter 16 (§ 6.2-1600 et seq.) of Title 6.2 of the Code of Virginia. The Commission's regulations governing
licensed mortgage lenders and brokers ("Licensees") are set forth in Title 10 of the Virginia Administrative Code.
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The Bureau of Financial Institutions ("Bureau") has submitted to the Commission proposed amendments to 10 VAC 5-160 ("Chapter 160") of the
Virginia Administrative Code, which governs the conduct of Licensees. The impetus for the proposed amendments is Chapter 831 of the 2010 Virginia Acts
of Assembly ("Chapter 831"), which became effective on July 1, 2010, and required all Licensees to register with the Nationwide Mortgage Licensing
System and Registry ("NMLS"). The proposed regulation sets forth the requirements for Licensees to transition to NMLS and maintain current and accurate
records in NMLS, as well as the requirements for new mortgage lenders and brokers to apply for licensure through NMLS. The proposed regulation also
clarifies certain operating rules for Licensees through their participation in NMLS and supervision of mortgage loan originators, also licensed through
NMLS.

NOW THE COMMISSION, based on information supplied by the Bureau, is of the opinion and finds that the proposed regulation should be
considered for adoption with a proposed effective date of January 1, 2011.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The proposed regulation, entitled "Mortgage Lenders and Brokers," is appended hereto and made a part of the record herein.

(2) Comments or requests for a hearing on the proposed regulation must be submitted in writing to Joel H. Peck, Clerk, State Corporation
Commission, ¢c/o Document Control Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218, on or before December 20, 2010. Requests for hearing shall state
why a hearing is necessary and why the issues cannot be adequately addressed in written comments. All correspondence shall contain a reference to Case
No. BFI-2010-00255. Interested persons desiring to submit comments or request a hearing electronically may do so by following the instructions available
at the Commission's website: http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(3) This Order and the attached proposed regulation shall be posted on the Commission's website at http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(4) The Commission's Division of Information Resources shall send a copy of this Order, including a copy of the attached proposed regulation,
to the Virginia Registrar of Regulations for publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Mortgage Lenders and Brokers" is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation Commission,
Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.
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CLERK'S OFFICE

CASE NO. CLK-2009-00012
JANUARY 22, 2010

DOUGLAS ROBERT JOHNSON,
Petitioner,
v.
FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS,
LOUISA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS,
and
JAMES RIVER WATER AUTHORITY,
Respondents.

EINAL ORDER

Douglas Robert Johnson ("Petitioner"), pro se, filed a Petition on April 24, 2009, and an Affidavit on April 30, 2009, in the Office of the Clerk
("Clerk") of the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") seeking an order (i) declaring that the certificate of incorporation of James River Water
Authority ("JRWA") issued by the Clerk is void ab initio; (ii) enjoining the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors ("Fluvanna Board") from forming a
water authority until a referendum is held; (iii) requiring the Respondents to reimburse the Petitioner for his costs associated with the Petition; and
(iv) awarding such other relief that the Commission deems appropriate.

On May 8, 2009, the Commission issued a Scheduling Order docketing the Petition; assigning the matter to a Hearing Examiner; directing the
Respondents to file an answer or other responsive pleading; and directing the Clerk to respond to the Petition and address, in particular, the specific requests
for relief therein.'

On June 1, 2009, responsive pleadings and Motions to Dismiss with supporting Memoranda were filed by Respondents. In their Motions to
Dismiss, Respondents argued that Petitioner lacks standing to challenge the action of the Commission and that the Commission does not have jurisdiction to
review the action of the Fluvanna Board.

On June 9, 2009, Petitioner filed an Objection to Motion to Dismiss with a supporting Memorandum in which he argued that the Commission did
not have jurisdiction to issue a certificate to JRWA and the Commission should revoke the certificate because it was issued without knowledge of two
pending circuit court cases challenging the creation of the water authority. Petitioner maintained the Motions to Dismiss should be denied and Petitioner
requested an opportunity to be heard. On June 15, 2009, Petitioner filed a supplement to his first Memorandum correcting a typographical error and
providing new information pertaining to petitions filed with the Fluvanna Board.

On June 29, 2009, Petitioner filed a Motion for Summary Judgment with a supporting Memorandum, to deem the certificate issued to JRWA void
ab initio and for injunctive relief. By ruling dated June 30, 2009, Respondents were directed to file any responses to Petitioner's Motion for Summary
Judgment on or before July 13, 2009.

Also on June 30, 2009, the Clerk, by counsel, filed the Clerk's Response to Petition ("Clerk's Response") denying Petitioner's allegation that the
Commission has jurisdiction in this matter. The Clerk further stated that the articles of incorporation for JRWA complied with applicable law and, pursuant
to § 13.1-820 of the Code of Virginia ("Code"), the Commission issued a certificate of incorporation to JRWA on April 21, 2009. The Clerk stated that once
a certificate is issued, the Commission's authority to afford relief to Petitioner is constrained and governed by § 13.1-813 of the Code. Section 13.1-813
confers standing to file a petition only upon a member or director of the corporation. The Clerk moved for dismissal of the Petition because Petitioner is not
a member or director of JRWA and, therefore, lacks standing to seek the relief requested in the Petition.

On July 6, 2009, Petitioner filed an Objection to Motion to Dismiss with a supporting Memorandum in which he stated that the Clerk's Motion to
Dismiss is incorrectly based on the assumption that the JRWA was chartered under the Virginia Nonstock Corporation Act. Petitioner stated the JRWA was
chartered under the Virginia Water and Waste Authorities Act. Petitioner argued the language of the Virginia Nonstock Corporation Act, relied upon by the
Clerk, is not applicable to the Virginia Water and Waste Authorities Act.

Respondent Fluvanna Board filed a Response to Petitioner's Motion for Summary Judgment ("Fluvanna Board Response") on July 13, 2009,
requesting that the Petition be dismissed on two grounds: Petitioner has appealed this case to the Virginia Supreme Court and, therefore, the Commission no
longer has jurisdiction;? and the determination of whether the Fluvanna Board improperly disregarded the citizen petition calling for a referendum is properly
before the Fluvanna Circuit Court and is a matter over which the Commission has no jurisdiction. Also on July 13, 2009, the Louisa County Board of
Supervisors filed a Response adopting in their entirety the arguments contained in the Fluvanna Board's Response and asked that this case be dismissed.

On July 15, 2009, the Petitioner filed a Response in which he argued that the actions of the Fluvanna Circuit Court (presumably in not granting
Petitioner's request for relief) are not relevant to this Petition in that this action is based on the facts that existed at the time of incorporation, April 21, 2009.
Petitioner stated he is requesting a determination of whether the actions of the Commission regarding the issuance of a certificate conform to the law as set

! The Scheduling Order dropped the Commission as a party Respondent to the proceeding because the Petitioner alleged no illegal action on the part of the
Commission.

2 On May 8, 2009, the Petitioner appealed the Clerk's issuance of the JRWA's certificate of incorporation to the Supreme Court of Virginia ("Virginia
Supreme Court"). By unpublished opinion dated November 16, 2009, the Virginia Supreme Court dismissed the Petitioner's appeal on procedural grounds.
See Johnson v. State Corporation Comm'n, et al., No. 091703.
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forth in the Virginia Water and Waste Authorities Act. On July 20, 2009, Petitioner submitted a Memorandum of Law Concerning Merits in which
Petitioner argued the facts in this case and renewed his plea to be heard on the merits of the case.

On August 13, 2009, the Hearing Examiner issued his Report in which he recommended that the Motions to Dismiss be granted on the grounds
that Petitioner does not have standing to challenge the Commission's actions and that the Commission does not have jurisdiction in the matter. At the
conclusion of his Report, the Hearing Examiner also advised the parties that comments associated with his Report must be filed within 21 days. The
Petitioner and Fluvanna Board filed timely comments.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record, the Report of the Hearing Examiner, the comments and applicable statutes, is of
the opinion that the findings and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted for the reasons stated therein.

Specifically, we agree with the Hearing Examiner's conclusion that the Petitioner lacks standing to challenge the validity of JRWA's certificate of
incorporation. Although the JRWA was formed as a water authority pursuant to the Virginia Water and Waste Authority Act, § 15.2-5100 et seq. of the
Code, it is also undisputed that the JRWA was organized as a domestic non-stock corporation. Virginia's domestic non-stock corporations are governed by
the Virginia Nonstock Corporation Act, § 13.1-801 et seq. of the Code (the "Nonstock Corporation Act"). Section 13.1-813 A of the Nonstock Corporation
Act precludes the Commission from granting a hearing relating to:

any certificate issued by the Commission except on a petition by a member or director, filed with the
Commission and the corporation within 30 days after the effective date of a certificate, in which the member or
director asserts that the certification of corporate action contained in the articles contains a misstatement of a
material fact as to compliance with statutory requirements....

In addition, § 13.1-813 C of the Nonstock Corporation Act authorizes the Commission to "act on a petition filed by a corporation at anytime" to correct
clerical errors or to eliminate the effects of filings made by persons "without the authority to act for the corporation."

The Petitioner has not alleged that he is a member or director of the JRWA with authority to challenge JRWA's certificate pursuant to
§ 13.1-813 A. Moreover, he did not file his Petition on behalf of JRWA in accordance with § 13.1-813 C. Therefore, he lacks standing to challenge the
legitimacy of JRWA's certificate of incorporation.

We note further that the Petitioner's request for relief in this proceeding is based upon his contention that the process followed by the Fluvanna
Board when deciding to form the JRWA was invalid or inappropriate. We agree with the Hearing Examiner's conclusion that the Commission lacks
jurisdiction to review the propriety of the Fluvanna Board's decision-making process.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
1. The Motions to Dismiss are hereby GRANTED;
2. The Petition is hereby DISMISSED with prejudice; and

3. The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. CLK-2009-00013
NOVEMBER 5, 2010

PETITION OF
GEORGE H. CHRISTIAN

For injunctive and declaratory relief
EINAL ORDER

On June 24, 2009, George H. Christian ("Petitioner") filed a Petition with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") wherein he
challenged the alleged denial of his request for records by the Commission's Office of the Clerk ("Clerk's Office") and the position of the Clerk's Office that
the Virginia Freedom of Information Act, § 2.2-3700 et seq. of the Code of Virginia (the "Act"), is inapplicable to the Commission and its various operating
divisions, including the Clerk's Office. The Petitioner seeks declaratory and injunctive relief as provided under the Act.

The Petitioner's written request for records that gave rise to this proceeding was received by the Clerk's Office on May 18, 2009. Therein, the
Petitioner requested that the Clerk's Office produce, for the period of 2008, any public records listing "all overpayments or unused payments that the
Commissioner's authority to order a refund has lapsed" as well as certain other public records related thereto. The Clerk's Office responded four days later,
on May 22, 2009, and informed the Petitioner, among other things, that it is the policy of the Clerk's Office to provide information and documents upon
request to the extent it is able. With respect to the Petitioner's specific request for documents, the Clerk's Office initially declined to comply because it
pertained "to data that is not readily available." However, on July 9, 2009, the Clerk's Office provided the Petitioner with the requested information after
determining that such information could be provided in the form of a monthly summary.

On July 10, 2009, the Commission issued a Scheduling Order, in which it, among other things, docketed the matter; made the Clerk's Office a
party to the case; and directed the Clerk's Office to file an answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition, on or before July 15, 2009.

On July 15, 2009, the Clerk's Office filed a Motion to Dismiss and Answer to Petition. In its Motion, the Clerk's Office raised several legal
arguments in support of its position that the Petition should be dismissed. On December 1, 2009, the Petitioner filed a Memorandum in Support of
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Petitioner's Response in Opposition to the Motion to Dismiss, in which he argued that the Commission is subject to the Act. On December 2, 2009, oral
argument was heard on the Motion to Dismiss. Philip R. de Haas, Esquire, appeared on behalf of the Clerk's Office, while the Petitioner appeared pro se.

On May 21, 2010, the Petitioner filed a Motion to Expedite Disposition, in which he requested, among other things, that the Commission grant an
expedited hearing for a temporary injunction within seven (7) days pursuant to § 2.2-3713 of the Code. The Clerk's Office filed a Response to Petitioner's
Motion to Expedite Disposition on May 25, 2010. The Petitioner filed a Reply on June 1, 2010.

On September 2, 2010, the Chief Hearing Examiner issued her Report in this matter. The Examiner, citing Rule 5-20-100 C of the Commission's
Rules of Practice and Procedure, noted that establishing the existence of an actual controversy is a threshold requirement for a petitioner seeking declaratory
relief from the Commission. In this case, the Petitioner was unable to demonstrate that an actual controversy exists because the Clerk's Office timely
provided the requested information to the Petitioner and he suffered no harm as a result. Consequently, the Examiner recommended that the Commission
enter an order adopting the findings in her Report, dismissing the Petition for Injunctive and Declaratory Judgment, and dismissing this case from the
Commission's docket of active cases.

On September 23, 2010, the Petitioner and Clerk's Office separately filed Comments to the Report.'

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the entire record in this proceeding, including the Report and the Comments thereto, adopts the
Chief Hearing Examiner's recommendation to dismiss the Petition on the grounds that no actual controversy exists in this matter given the Clerk's Office's
timely response to the Petitioner's request for records. Furthermore, because no actual controversy exists, we find that it is not necessary to address other
arguments raised by Petitioner.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Petition of George H. Christian for injunctive and declaratory relief is hereby DISMISSED; and

(2) The papers herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.

' On October 9, 2010, Petitioner also filed a Motion to Permit Untimely Comments to Chief Hearing Examiner's Findings. We have accepted Petitioner's
Comments to the Report.

CASE NO. CLK-2009-00013
NOVEMBER 23, 2010

PETITION OF
GEORGE H. CHRISTIAN

For injunctive and declaratory relief

ORDER DENYING RECONSIDERATION AND OTHER RELIEF

On November 5, 2010, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") entered a Final Order in this matter. On November 18, 2010,
George H. Christian ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Reconsideration and/or Rehearing pursuant to Rule 5 VAC 5-20-220 ("Petition for Reconsideration").
On November 22, 2010, the Petitioner filed a Motion for Leave to Amend Petition for Reconsideration and/or Rehearing pursuant to Rule 5 VAC 5-20-220
("Motion for Leave") and a Motion to Correct Final Order Nunc Pro Tunc ("Motion to Correct") (collectively, "Motions").

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the Petition for Reconsideration and the Motions, finds that the Motion for Leave should be
granted, and the Petition for Reconsideration and the Motion to Correct should be denied.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Motion for Leave is hereby GRANTED.

(2) The Petition for Reconsideration, as amended, is hereby DENIED.
(3) The Motion to Correct is hereby DENIED.

(4) The papers herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. CLK-2009-00015
MARCH 19, 2010

JEFFREY BAILEY, RICHARD RICE,
and
DEBORAH KNOTT, etal.,
Petitioners,
v.
SHORT PUMP COMMUNITY CENTER, INC.,
Respondent

EINAL ORDER

On October 8, 2009, Jeffrey Bailey, Richard Rice, and Deborah Knott, et al. (collectively, "Petitioners") filed with the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") a petition styled "Petition for Denial of Certificate of Dissolution" ("Petition"), pursuant to Rule 5 VAC 5-20-100 of the
Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure. The Petition alleged, among other things, that the Petitioners are members of Short Pump Community
Center, Inc. ("Corporation" or "Respondent"); that Jeffrey Bailey, Richard Rice, and Deborah Knott are members of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation; that the Corporation's Board of Directors met on September 10, 2009, and voted to dissolve the Corporation; that on September 14, 2009, the
Corporation filed Articles of Dissolution with the Commission; that the motion to dissolve the Corporation was never brought before the members of the
Corporation for a vote; and that the filing of the Articles of Dissolution was not authorized by the members of the Corporation. The Petitioners also alleged
that the action of the Board of Directors was contrary to the stated purpose of the Corporation and that the members of the Board of Directors representing
the Short Pump Civic Association, Inc., and the Short Pump Ruritan Club, Inc. voted in favor of the dissolution and stand to direct funds from the
Corporation to these two organizations. The Petitioners sought denial of the Articles of Dissolution and an order directing the Board of Directors of the
Corporation to take a new vote on the issue of dissolution, with the board members representing the Short Pump Civic Association, Inc., and the Short Pump
Ruritan Club, Inc., abstaining from the vote. The Petitioners further requested the order to provide that if the new vote recommends dissolution of the
Corporation, then all members of the Corporation be permitted to vote on the issue of dissolution.

On October 28, 2009, the Respondent filed a Response to Petition for Denial of Certificate of Dissolution. In its Response, the Respondent
stated, among other things, that the members of the Corporation had no right to vote on the dissolution; that the Corporation's stated purpose had failed; that
the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation determine who or which organization receives the assets of the Corporation in dissolution; and that the
dissolution of the Corporation was undertaken in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Code of Virginia and the Articles of Incorporation. The
Respondent requested that the Commission deny the Petitioners' requests for relief, dismiss the Petition, and award the Respondent its costs.

By order dated November 12, 2009, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Office of
the Clerk of the Commission ("Clerk") to file a response to the Petition no later than November 20, 2009, and scheduled a hearing on the matter for

December 10, 2009. The Clerk filed a response on November 19, 2009.

On December 10, 2009, Howard P. Anderson, Jr., presided over the hearing in this matter, in which he heard testimony from both the Petitioners
and the Respondent. On January 22, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued his Report and made the following findings and recommendations:

(1) The members of the Corporation do not have the right to vote on the issue of dissolution of the Corporation;

(2) The Commission does not have the authority to determine whether a conflict of interest exists involving the Board of Directors' vote to
dissolve the Corporation;

(3) Respondent should not be awarded its costs;

(4) The Petition should be denied; and

(5) The Certificate of Dissolution issued by the Commission on September 14, 2009, should be affirmed.

Following the issuance of the Hearing Examiner's Report, both the Petitioners and the Respondent filed comments to the Report as well as
motions. The Petitioners objected to the findings in the Report and filed a motion for a rehearing by the full Commission. The Respondent supported the
findings of the Hearing Examiner and subsequent to the submission of its comments, filed a Motion to Correct the Record regarding a case pending in the
Henrico County Circuit Court."

Upon consideration of the record herein, the Report of the Hearing Examiner, and the comments filed thereto, the Commission is of the opinion,
and so finds, that the findings and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted. The Commission also finds that a rehearing on this matter
is not necessary following the full and fair hearing before the Hearing Examiner, and the subject matter of the Respondent's Motion to Correct the Record is
not properly before the Commission.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Petitioners' Motion for Rehearing is DENIED;

(2) The Respondent's Motion to Correct the Record is DENIED;

' In addition to the comments filed by the parties, the Commission received numerous letters from interested persons that were passed to the file in this
proceeding. We acknowledge the views held by these persons; however, such correspondence does not change the conclusions of law and fact compelled by
the record herein.



72
ANNUAL REPORT OF THE STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
(3) The Respondent's request for an award of costs is DENIED;
(4) The Petition is DENIED;
(5) The Certificate of Dissolution issued by the Commission on September 14, 2009, is AFFIRMED; and

(6) This matter is DISMISSED with prejudice and the papers filed herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. CLK-2010-00005
APRIL 30, 2010

IN RE:
METIS/AMERICA MARKETING, INC., et al.

DISSOLUTION ORDER

On December 18, 2009, the Circuit Court for the City of Richmond ("Circuit Court") entered a Consent Decree For Dissolution ("Consent
Decree") in Case No. CL09-4278-6 directing that the Clerk of the Circuit Court certify to the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") that
Metis/America Marketing, Inc., a Virginia corporation, was dissolved pursuant to § 13.1-749 A of the Code of Virginia. Thereafter, the Clerk of the Circuit
Court delivered to the Commission a certified copy of the Consent Decree.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Metis/America Marketing, Inc. is hereby DISSOLVED pursuant to § 13.1-749 A of the Code of
Virginia.
The Clerk of the Circuit Court is requested to advise the Commission when all of the assets of the corporation have been distributed to its

creditors and shareholders, upon receipt of which advice the Commission will enter an order terminating the corporation's existence. This case is continued
generally on the Commission's docket.

CASE NO. CLK-2010-00006
JUNE 1, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In re: annual registration fees for limited liability companies

ORDER TO TAKE NOTICE

Chapter 703 of the 2010 Virginia Acts of Assembly ("Chapter 703 of the Acts"), among other things, requires each domestic limited liability
company and each foreign limited liability company registered to transact business in the Commonwealth to pay an annual registration fee of $50, assessed
in accordance with a schedule set by the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The schedule shall be in accordance with § 13.1-1062, as amended
by Chapter 703 of the Acts. The second enactment of Chapter 703 of the Acts directs the Commission to enter an order setting this schedule no later than
August 1, 2010.

NOW THE COMMISSION, based on information supplied by the Clerk of the Commission, proposes to adopt a regulation setting an
assessment schedule as required by Chapter 703 of the Acts.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The proposed regulation, entitled "Assessment Schedule for Limited Liability Companies," is appended hereto and made a part of the record
herein.

(2) Comments or requests for a hearing on the proposed regulation must be submitted in writing to Joel H. Peck, Clerk, State Corporation
Commission, ¢c/o Document Control Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218, on or before July 2, 2010. Requests for hearing shall state why a
hearing is necessary and why the issues cannot be adequately addressed in written comments. All correspondence shall contain a reference to Case No.
CLK-2010-00006. Interested persons desiring to submit comments or request a hearing electronically may do so by following the instructions available at
the Commission's website: http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(3) This Order and the attached proposed regulation shall be posted on the Commission's website at http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(4) The Commission's Division of Information Resources shall send a copy of this Order, including a copy of the attached proposed regulation,
to the Virginia Registrar of Regulations for publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Assessment Schedule for Limited Liability Companies" is on file and may be examined at the State
Corporation Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.
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CASE NO. CLK-2010-00006
JULY 13, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In re: annual registration fees for limited liability companies

ORDER ADOPTING A REGULATION

On June 1, 2010, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") entered an Order to Take Notice of a proposal by the Commission to adopt
a regulation pursuant to Chapter 703 of the 2010 Virginia Acts of Assembly ("Chapter 703 of the Acts"), now codified as § 13.1-1062 of the Code of
Virginia. The proposed regulation, 5 VAC 5-40-20, places in the Virginia Administrative Code the schedule by which the Commission shall assess limited
liability companies in accordance with § 13.1-1062 of the Code of Virginia. The second enactment of Chapter 703 of the Acts directs the Commission to
enter an order setting this schedule no later than August 1, 2010. The Order and proposed regulation were published in the Virginia Register of Regulations
on June 21, 2010, and published on the Commission's website. Interested parties were afforded the opportunity to provide written comments or request a
hearing on or before July 2, 2010.

No comments were filed, nor were any requests for hearing made in this matter.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the proposed regulation and applicable law, concludes that the proposed regulation should
be adopted with an effective date of August 1, 2010.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The proposed regulation, 5 VAC 5-40-20, as attached hereto, is adopted effective August 1, 2010.
(2) This Order and the attached regulation shall be posted on the Commission's website at http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(3) The Commission's Division of Information Resources shall send a copy of this Order, including a copy of the attached regulation, to the
Virginia Registrar of Regulations for publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations.

(4) This case is dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Chapter 40 Administration of the Office of the Clerk" is on file and may be examined at the State
Corporation Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. CLK-2010-00007
MAY 18, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In re: fees charged by the Office of the Clerk of the Commission

ORDER TO TAKE NOTICE

Chapter 669 of the 2010 Virginia Acts of Assembly ("Chapter 669 of the Acts") amends §§ 12.1-20, 12.1-21.1, and 12.1-21.2 of the Code of
Virginia to permit the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") to charge and collect reasonable fees for furnishing and certifying a copy of any
document or any information from its records. Chapter 669 of the Acts eliminates these fee amounts from statute, giving the Commission the discretion to
charge an amount that it deems reasonable.

NOW THE COMMISSION, based on information supplied by the Clerk of the Commission, proposes to adopt a regulation establishing certain
fees to be charged and collected by the Office of the Clerk of the Commission, with a proposed effective date of July 1, 2010.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The proposed regulation, entitled "Fees to be Charged by the Office of the Clerk," is appended hereto and made a part of the record herein.

(2) Comments or requests for a hearing on the proposed regulation must be submitted in writing to Joel H. Peck, Clerk, State Corporation
Commission, ¢/o Document Control Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218, on or before June 18, 2010. Requests for hearing shall state why a
hearing is necessary and why the issues cannot be adequately addressed in written comments. All correspondence shall contain a reference to Case No.
CLK-2010-00007. Interested persons desiring to submit comments or request a hearing electronically may do so by following the instructions available at
the Commission's website: http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(3) This Order and the attached proposed regulation shall be posted on the Commission's website at http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.
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(4) The Commission's Division of Information Resources shall send a copy of this Order, including a copy of the attached proposed regulation,
to the Virginia Registrar of Regulations for publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Chapter 40. Administration of the Office of the Clerk of the Commission" is on file and may be
examined at the State Corporation Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street,
Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. CLK-2010-00007
JUNE 29, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In re: fees charged by the Office of the Clerk of the Commission

ORDER ADOPTING A REGULATION

On May 18, 2010, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") entered an Order to Take Notice of a proposal by the Commission to adopt
a regulation pursuant to Chapter 669 of the 2010 Virginia Acts of Assembly ("Chapter 669 of the Acts"). The proposed regulation, 5 VAC 5-40-10, places
in the Virginia Administrative Code the fees charged by the Commission for copying and other services that are repealed from the Code of Virginia by
Chapter 669 of the Acts. The Order and proposed regulation were published in the Virginia Register of Regulations on June 7, 2010, and published on the
Commission's website. Interested parties were afforded the opportunity to provide written comments or request a hearing on or before June 18, 2010.

No comments were filed, nor were any requests for hearing made in this matter.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the proposed regulation, the recommendations of the Office of the Clerk of the Commission
("Clerk"), and applicable law, concludes that the proposed regulation should be modified to reflect certain technical changes recommended by the Clerk and
that the proposed regulation, as modified, should be adopted with an effective date of July 1, 2010.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The proposed regulation, 5 VAC 5-40-10, as modified herein and attached hereto, is adopted effective July 1, 2010.

(2) This Order and the attached regulation shall be posted on the Commission's website at http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(3) The Commission's Division of Information Resources shall send a copy of this Order, including a copy of the attached regulation, to the
Virginia Registrar of Regulations for publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations.

(4) This case is dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.
NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Chapter 40. Administration of the Office of the Clerk of the Commission" is on file and may be

examined at the State Corporation Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street,
Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. CLK-2010-00008
OCTOBER 15, 2010

IN RE:
PETITION OF SKYMARK, LLC.

ORDER VACATING CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT

On or after June 20, 2010, Jeff Schrock filed with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") Articles of Amendment ("Articles") on
behalf of Skymark, LLC ("Petitioner"), to change the name of the limited liability company to Eli Schrock Racing, LLC. The Commission issued a
Certificate of Amendment ("Certificate") changing the name of the Petitioner in accordance with the Articles on July 1, 2010. Thereafter, on September 13,
2010, the Petitioner, by counsel, filed a petition to void the Articles and revoke the Certificate alleging that the person who signed the Articles had no
authority to execute any filings on behalf of the Petitioner. The petition also alleged that Jeff Schrock is the registered agent of Skymark Holdings, LLC, and
that the filing on behalf of the Petitioner contained a clerical error, in that it omitted "Holdings" from the name of the LLC. The petition sought an order
revoking and declaring void ab initio the Certificate and other relief.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the petition and exhibits and affidavits attached thereto and the recommendation of the
Clerk of the Commission, finds that the Articles were signed and filed by a person having no authority to act on behalf of the Petitioner, and that the
Certificate issued by the Commission on July 1, 2010, should be vacated pursuant to § 13.1-1004 E of the Code of Virginia.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Certificate is vacated effective July 1, 2010;
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(2) The Clerk of the Commission shall make such entries in the records of his office as may be necessary to reflect the relief afforded in this
Order; and

(3) This case is dismissed from the Commission's docket and the papers herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.
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BUREAU OF INSURANCE

CASE NO. INS-1995-00107
SEPTEMBER 24, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

CAPITOL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

EINAL ORDER

Capitol Life Insurance Company ("Defendant"), a foreign corporation domiciled in the State of Texas, is licensed to transact the business of
insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

By Order Suspending License ("Order") entered herein July 17, 1995, the Defendant's license was suspended due to financial regulatory
concerns.

The Defendant was also ordered not to issue any new contracts or policies of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia until further order of
the Commission.

The Defendant's March 31, 2010 Quarterly Statement reported capital and surplus in compliance with the minimums set forth in § 38.2-1028 of
the Code of Virginia.

In light of the foregoing, the Commission's Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Order entered by the Commission be vacated and this
case be closed.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein and the recommendation of the Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the
Order Suspending License entered by the Commission should be vacated.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Order Suspending License entered by the Commission is hereby, VACATED.
(2) This case be, and is hereby, DISMISSED.

(3) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-1998-00202
SEPTEMBER 28, 2010

PETITION OF
JOSEPH AND GAETANA PITTA

For review of HOW Insurance Company, Home Warranty Corporation and Home Owners Warranty Corporation Deputy Receiver's
Determination of Appeal

ORDER

On October 14, 1994, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond, Virginia, entered an Order appointing the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") the Receiver of HOW Insurance Company, Home Warranty Corporation, and Home Owners Warranty Corporation (collectively, "HOW
Companies"). The receivership Order granted the Commission the authority to proceed with the rehabilitation or liquidation of the HOW Companies and
established a receivership appeal procedure to govern appeals and challenges to decisions rendered by the Receiver or the Receiver's duly authorized
representatives. On June 13, 2005, the Commission entered its Order Approving Plans of Liquidation for the HOW Companies. The receivership is now
being liquidated after more than fifteen years, and all outstanding claims are to be resolved and closed.

On April 21, 1998, Joseph and Gaetana Pitta ("Petitioners") first filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the Commission contesting the
Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in Claim No. 3485684-A. By Order dated October 8, 1998, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the
matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition. On October 30, 1998, the
Deputy Receiver filed a Motion to Dismiss and Answer to Petition for Review. In his Motion, among other things, the Deputy Receiver asserted that the
Petitioners' claims for coverage were time-barred by the express contractual provisions of the Insurance/Warranty Program and, further, that the defects
alleged did not constitute Major Structural Defects as the term was defined by the documents defining the scope of the Program and the process for
submitting covered claims. The Deputy Receiver argued that the Petitioners' failed to assert a claim upon which relief may be granted, and the Petition
should be dismissed.
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The Petitioners responded by asserting, among other things, that the builder advised them to contact him during the two-year warranty period; the
builder had deceptive tactics to avoid coverage; the garage was attached and housed various HVAC and electrical equipment; and the grounds for denial in
the Determination of Appeal was not applicable. No further action was taken at that time.

By Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated September 5, 2001, the Deputy Receiver was directed to revisit his argument that the alleged defects in the
Petitioners' attached garage floor did not constitute a Major Structural Defect. Additionally, the parties were directed to submit additional documents or
arguments relative to the case.

On or about September 28, 2001, the Deputy Receiver filed a Supplemental Memorandum in Support of Motion to Dismiss. No pleadings or
other activities occurred until September 27, 2007, when the Chief Hearing Examiner issued a ruling advising the parties that the matter would be dismissed
unless good cause was shown on or before October 19, 2007, why the matter should not be dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

On November 27, 2007, the Chief Hearing Examiner issued her report in which she recommended that the Commission enter an order dismissing
the Petition with prejudice due to the Petitioners' failure to file a response to the ruling. Subsequent to the November 27, 2007 Report, it was discovered that
the Petitioners did in fact timely file a response to the ruling; however, it was not entered into the Commission's case management system due to a clerical
error. By Order of the Commission entered on December 21, 2007, the case was remanded to the Chief Hearing Examiner for further proceedings.

On May 11, 2010, the Chief Hearing Examiner issued her Report and made the following findings and recommendations:

(1) The Petitioners' claim under the Builder's Limited Warranty is time-barred pursuant to the express terms of the Insurance[Warranty
Documents;

(2) The Petitioners have alleged no defect that can be defined as a Major Structural Defect under the terms of the Insurance/Warranty Documents
and have no compensable claim under that coverage;

(3) The Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in Claim No . 3485684-A should be affirmed; and
(4) The Petition for Review should be dismissed with prejudice.
No comments were filed on the Chief Hearing Examiner's Report.

Upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Chief Hearing Examiner, the Commission is of the opinion, and so finds, that the
findings and recommendations of the Chief Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss is hereby GRANTED;

(2) The Petition of Joseph and Gaetana Pitta for review of the Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DENIED;
(3) The Determination of Appeal in Claim No. 3485684-A issued by the Deputy Receiver is hereby AFFIRMED; and

(4) The case is DISMISSED and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2001-00108
OCTOBER 5, 2010

PETITION OF
MARILYN S. HENDRICKS

For review of HOW Insurance Company, Home Warranty Corporation and Home Owners Warranty Corporation Deputy Receiver's
Determination of Appeal

ORDER

On October 14, 1994, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond, Virginia, entered an Order appointing the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") the Receiver of HOW Insurance Company, Home Warranty Corporation, and Home Owners Warranty Corporation (collectively, "HOW
Companies" or "HOW"). The receivership Order granted the Commission the authority to proceed with the rehabilitation or liquidation of the HOW
Companies and established a receivership appeal procedure to govern appeals and challenges to decisions rendered by the Receiver or the Receiver's duly
authorized representatives. The receivership is now being liquidated after more than fifteen years, and all outstanding claims are to be resolved and closed.

On April 29, 1996, the Petitioner first filed a Petition with the Commission contesting the Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in Claim
No. 3371003. Six separate claims for repair of defects had been filed by the Petitioner with the HOW Companies and then with the Deputy Receiver. The
Petition to the Commission was docketed and heard. At the conclusion of that hearing, it was determined that two claims, Dispute Files C1722 and C2325,
would be withdrawn and the Petitioner would continue to pursue them with the builder and the Deputy Receiver.

The Deputy Receiver denied the Petitioner's claims in Dispute Files C1722 and C2325 in a Notice of Claim and Determination dated
December 20, 2000. The Petitioner sent the Deputy Receiver a Notice of Appeal dated January 17, 2001, which the Deputy Receiver contends he received
on January 22, 2001. Failing to reach a meeting of the minds, the Petitioner filed another Petition for Review with the Commission on May 18, 2001,
contesting the Deputy Receiver's decision to deny her remaining claims.
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By Order dated August 14, 2002, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before September 27, 2002.

On September 27, 2002, the Deputy Receiver filed a Motion to Dismiss and Answer to Petition ("Motion to Dismiss") and a Memorandum in
Support of the Motion to Dismiss. In his Motion to Dismiss, the Deputy Receiver contends that the Notice of Appeal was not filed timely, the Petitioner
never perfected her Notice of Appeal although she was advised of the deficiency, and the Petitioner was thus barred from bringing the appeal to the
Commission. The Deputy Receiver also denied liability or responsibility under the HOW Program with respect to the Petitioner's claims, and contends that
the claims were barred due to the Petitioner's failure to cooperate in the investigation of her claims and previous adjudication of the same claims.

The Petitioner failed to file a response to the Motion. However, correspondence from the Petitioner that was attached to the Deputy Receiver's
Motion made it clear that the Petitioner contended that her Notice of Appeal was timely filed. A hearing was scheduled to receive evidence on the timeliness
of the Petitioner's notice; if untimely, what opportunity to perfect her appeal would have been available; and if timely, the merits of the Petitioner's claim.

On February 24, 2004, a hearing was convened telephonically, and the Petitioner appeared pro se. Joseph West, Esquire, appeared as counsel for
the Deputy Receiver.

At the hearing, the Petitioner indicated that her specific complaints about the construction of her home were: (1) the slab foundation was poured
improperly, (2) the truss system was not installed correctly, and (3) the house was not properly framed over the foundation. In support of her claims, the
Petitioner submitted repair estimates as well as a report from an engineer hired by the builder to inspect the home.

The Petitioner stated that she provided access to her home on numerous occasions as unsuccessful attempts were made to repair her home. The
Petitioner further stated that she had submitted documentation of her claims which HOW submitted for arbitration. HOW then submitted the documentation
to an arbitrator but declined to pursue arbitration and relieved the builder of responsibility for the Petitioner's claims. The Petitioner asserted that since
HOW relieved the builder of responsibility for her claims, they became insurance claims for which the Deputy Receiver is responsible.

The Deputy Receiver presented the testimony of David Thompson, a claims examiner for HOW. Mr. Thompson asserted that the Petitioner's
appeal should be denied on several grounds. Mr. Thompson stated that the Petitioner's appeal of the Deputy Receiver's Notice of Claim Determination

("NCD") was not timely filed and that the Petitioner refused to provide an affidavit explaining why the NCD was late which would have likely cured this
defect.

Mr. Thompson also asserted that the Petitioner refused to cooperate in an investigation of the claim by failing to provide requested documentation
and by failing to provide access to the home. Mr. Thompson claimed that this investigation was necessitated by the extended period of time that elapsed
between the filing of the Petitioner's initial claim and the filing of the claim that is the subject of this proceeding. Mr. Thompson stated that pursuant to the
HOW warranty, the builder is responsible for all claims that arise during the first two years of coverage. Mr. Thompson further stated that HOW's liability
for the Petitioner's claims made during the first two years of coverage only arises when the builder defaults on the claim. Mr. Thompson stated that because
this claim was settled by the builder in 1995, the builder was not in default and therefore HOW had no liability on this claim.

The Deputy Receiver argued that although the 1995 settlement attempted to retain claims against HOW, the release of the builder from liability
on these claims also released HOW because the builder was not in default.

On May 7, 2010, the Chief Hearing Examiner issued her Report and made the following findings and recommendations:
(1) There is no liability or claim under the Limited Warranty on the part of the HOW Companies; and

(2) The Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in Claim Nos. C1722 and C2325 should be affirmed.

No comments were filed on the Chief Hearing Examiner's Report.

Upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Chief Hearing Examiner, the Commission is of the opinion, and so finds, that the
findings and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss is hereby GRANTED;

(2) The Petition of Marilyn S. Hendricks for review of the Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DENIED;
(3) The Determination of Appeal in Claim Nos. C1722 and C2325 issued by the Deputy Receiver is hereby AFFIRMED; and

(4) The case is DISMISSED and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2002-01286
JUNE 18, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

CASUALTY RECIPROCAL EXCHANGE,
Defendant

ORDER TO TAKE NOTICE

Section 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia ("Code") provides in subdivision 8 of subsection A that the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") may suspend or revoke the license of any insurance company to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia
whenever the company has been found insolvent by a court of any other state.

Casualty Reciprocal Exchange ("Defendant"), a Missouri domiciled insurer, was initially licensed to transact the business of insurance in the
Commonwealth of Virginia on July 2, 1920. On March 14, 2003, the Commission suspended the Defendant's license to transact the business of insurance in
Virginia due to its failure to eliminate the impairment in its surplus. On August 18, 2004, the Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri entered an Order of
Liquidation With Finding of Insolvency against the Defendant.

The Commission's Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Defendant's license to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth
of Virginia be revoked.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the Defendant TAKE NOTICE that the Commission shall enter an order subsequent to July 2, 2010,
revoking the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia unless on or before July 2, 2010, the Defendant
files with the Clerk of the Commission, Document Control Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218, a request for a hearing before the
Commission with respect to the proposed revocation of the Defendant's license.

CASE NO. INS-2002-01286
JULY 21, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

CASUALTY RECIPROCAL EXCHANGE,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

In an Order entered herein June 18, 2010, Casualty Reciprocal Exchange, a Missouri domiciled insurer ("Defendant") licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, was ordered to take notice that the
Commission would enter an order subsequent to July 2, 2010, revoking the license of the Defendant to transact new business unless on or before July 2,
2010, the Defendant filed with the Clerk of the Commission a request for a hearing before the Commission to contest the proposed suspension of the
Defendant's license.

The Order to Take Notice was entered upon the recommendation of the Commission's Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau") based on an Order of
Liquidation with a Finding of Insolvency against the Defendant entered on August 18, 2004, by the Circuit Court of Cole County in the State of Missouri.

As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not requested a hearing with regards to the proposed revocation of its license. The Commission's
Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Defendant's license to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia be revoked.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) Pursuant to § 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia, the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of
Virginia is hereby REVOKED;

(2) The Defendant shall transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia;

(3) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause notice of the revocation of the Defendant's license to be published in the manner set forth in § 38.2-1043
of the Code of Virginia; and

(4) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2003-00083
FEBRUARY 1, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

INSURANCE CORPORATION OF NEW YORK,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Section 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia ("Code") provides in subdivisions 7 and 8 of subsection A that the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") may suspend or revoke the license of any insurance company to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia
whenever the company has had its certificate of authority revoked in the Commonwealth of Virginia or has been found insolvent by a court of any other
state. Section 38.2-1041 of the Code provides that the Commission may immediately revoke or suspend the license of any insurer to do the business of
insurance in Virginia without prior notice on the grounds specified in subdivisions 7 and 8 of subsection A of § 38.2-1040 of the Code.

Insurance Corporation of New York ("Defendant"), a New York domiciled insurer, was initially licensed to transact the business of insurance in
the Commonwealth of Virginia on September 24, 1969. By order entered May 27, 2003, the Defendant's license was suspended due to financial regulatory
concerns. On June 30, 2009, the Supreme Court of the State of New York found the Defendant insolvent. On January 4, 2010, the Defendant's Virginia
certificate of authority was revoked for failure to remit its corporate registration fee and annual report to the Clerk of the Commission.

The Commission's Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Defendant's license to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth
of Virginia be revoked.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) Pursuant to § 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia, the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of
Virginia is hereby REVOKED.

(2) The Defendant shall transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

(3) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause notice of the revocation of the Defendant's license to be published in the manner set forth in § 38.2-1043
of the Code of Virginia.

(4) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2005-00154
MAY 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

DONALD R. O'ROARK,
Defendant

ORDER

On May 7, 2010, Donald R. O'Roark ("Petitioner") filed a Petition requesting that the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") modify a
Settlement Order entered on August 22, 2005, in which he was ordered not to sell, solicit, or negotiate any variable life insurance policies except to himself
or his immediate family.! The Petitioner acknowledges that he voluntarily agreed to the restriction; however, he argues that at the time of the agreement, he
did not fully appreciate the extent to which this restriction would limit his ability to affiliate with insurers and other broker dealers. He notes that it has been
nearly five years since the restriction was imposed, and that in the twenty eight years prior to when this case arose, the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau") had
received no complaints regarding his activities as a licensed agent.

The Bureau of Insurance has indicated that it does not oppose modifying the previously entered Settlement Order in order to allow the Petitioner
to sell, solicit, or negotiate variable life insurance policies to the general public. The Bureau notes that an agent whose license has been revoked ordinarily
may reapply to become licensed after a period of five years, pursuant to § 38.2-1832 of the Code of Virginia. Notwithstanding the prior agreement between
the Petitioner and the Bureau, the Bureau believes it would be reasonable to impose a time frame similar to that found in § 38.2-1832 with respect to the
current restriction on the Petitioner's sales activities. The Bureau notes that there have been no complaints filed against the Petitioner since the entry of the
Settlement Order.

' In addition to the restriction on selling variable life insurance policies, the Petitioner agreed to pay a monetary penalty of $20,000 in order to settle
allegations made by the Bureau of Insurance that he had violated §§ 38.2-502 and 38.2-503 of the Code of Virginia, as well as 14 VAC 5-40-40 of the
Virginia Administrative Code.
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The Commission, having considered the Petition and the Bureau's recommendation, is of the opinion that Ordering Paragraph (2) of the
Settlement Order entered in this case on August 22, 2005, should be vacated.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) Ordering Paragraph (2) of the Settlement Order entered herein on August 22, 2005, is hereby VACATED; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2008-00100
OCTOBER 25, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

THE GLEBE, INC.,
Registrant

ORDER

The Glebe, Inc. ("Glebe"), is a Continuing Care Retirement Community ("CCRC") registered with the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") to provide continuing care services in the Commonwealth of Virginia pursuant to § 38.2-4901 of the Code of Virginia ("Code"). On May 9,
2008, the Commission entered a Consent Order ("Consent Order") prohibiting the Glebe from collecting Entrance Fees as defined in § 38.2-4900 of the
Code until such time as the Commission determines that the Glebe is financially stable. The Glebe consented to the entry of the Order on May 7, 2008
because it was unable to meet its pro forma income and cash flow projections filed with the Commission's Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau").

On October 28, 2009, the Association of Glebe Residents ("Association") filed a Petition to Modify Consent Order ("Petition") in which it
requested that the Commission modify the Consent Order. The requested modification would allow the Glebe to place unearned portions of new residents'
Entrance Fees into an escrow account and collect the earned portion of the fees from the escrow account at six-month intervals over a forty-eight month
period. The proposed modification provides that the Glebe would request approval from the Bureau before collecting any portion of the entrance fees from
the escrow account. In support of its request, the Association stated that the Order eliminates a source of income for the Glebe and draws attention to the
Glebe's financial troubles, affecting marketing efforts to prospective residents.

On November 5, 2009, the Commission entered a Scheduling Order in this matter in which it assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, set this
matter for hearing, and directed the Bureau and the Glebe to file an answer or other responsive pleading on or before November 17, 2009.

On November 17, 2009, the Glebe filed a motion in which it requested an extension of time to file its answer until November 24, 2009. This
motion was granted by the Hearing Examiner on November 17, 2009.

Also on November 17, 2009, the Bureau filed its Answer and Affirmative Defenses ("Answer") in which it requested that the Petition be denied.
In its Answer, the Bureau stated that the proposed modification to the Consent Order would not make the Glebe financially stable and it would not
adequately protect new residents for the full term of their contract with the Glebe.

On November 24, 2009, the Glebe filed its Answer in which it expressed its support for the proposed modification to the Consent Order. The
Glebe argued that the interest of the residents of the Glebe and the purposes of the Continuing Care Retirement Community Act ("Act") found in Chapter 49
of Title 38.2 of the Code are best served by modifying the Consent Order.

On April 26, 2010, the Commission convened a hearing in the case. A. Carter McGee, Esquire, and Garren R. Laymon, Esquire, appeared on
behalf of the Association. J.R. Smith, Esquire, and Robert Dean Pope, Esquire, appeared on behalf of the Glebe. Donald C. Beatty, Esquire, and John O.
Cox, Esquire appeared on behalf of the Bureau.

At the hearing, the Association presented the testimony of Mr. Cecil G. Short, Rev. Hugh E. Nichols, and Mr. Donald C. Johnson, all residents of
the Glebe. The witnesses for the Association described the Glebe, their lives at the Glebe, and the effect of the Consent Order on their lives. Mr. Short and
Reverend Nichols both testified that they used the proceeds from the sale of a primary residence to fund the Entrance Fee for the Glebe.

The Glebe presented the testimony of Mr. Ned Stephenson, Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Glebe. Mr. Stephenson testified that low
occupancy created financial difficulty for the Glebe, which ultimately led to the entry of the Consent Order. Mr. Stephenson testified that there were
approximately $5 million in Entrance Fees deferred by the Glebe pursuant to the Consent Order. Mr. Stephenson also testified to the efforts the Glebe has
made to improve its financial condition including hiring new management, deferring refunds on entrance fees and negotiating with bondholders. Mr.
Stephenson testified that the Glebe is currently in default on its bonds and that if it was allowed to take Entrance Fees it would consider first paying former
residents to whom refunds of part of the Entrance Fee are owed.

The Bureau presented the testimony of Toni Janoski, Senior Financial Analyst for the Bureau. Ms. Janoski testified as to the events leading up to
the entry of the Consent Order. Ms. Janoski stated that in April of 2008 the Glebe notified the Bureau that it had defaulted on its principal payments on its
bond and that the bond was in default as of January 24, 2008. Ms. Janoski testified further as to the current financial condition of the Glebe. Ms. Janoski
testified that the Glebe's liabilities exceed its assets by more than $21 million and that the Glebe is experiencing recurring operating losses. Ms. Janoski
stated that the Glebe had not provided any information that would lead her to believe it would not continue to experience such losses.

On June 25, 2010, the Association, the Glebe, and the Bureau filed post-hearing briefs.
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On July 29, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued a Hearing Examiner's Report ("Report") finding that the Petition should be granted. The Hearing
Examiner stated that the financial condition of the Glebe warranted caution but was not dire. He found that the requested modification of the Consent Order
adequately protects both current and prospective residents and will better allow the Glebe to meet its financial obligations. The Hearing Examiner
recommended that the Commission enter an order adopting the findings in the Report and granting the Petition.

On August 9, 2010, the Bureau filed its Objections to Report of Hearing Examiner ("Objections"). In its Objections, the Bureau argued that the
Hearing Examiner did not apply the appropriate statutory standard in his assessment of the Glebe's financial condition. The Bureau asserted that the
appropriate standard for considering the financial stability of the Glebe is found in § 38.2-4907 of the Code, which authorizes the Commission to protect
residents and prospective residents when the Commission determines that a provider has been or will be unable to meet the pro forma income or cash flow
projections previously filed by the provider and such failure may endanger the ability of the provider to perform fully its obligation pursuant to its continuing
care contracts. The Bureau states that the Glebe currently meets this standard. Further, the Bureau notes that it is undisputed that: (1) in both 2008 and
2009, the Glebe's external auditors questioned the Glebe's ability to continue as a going concern; and (2) the Glebe is insolvent insofar as it is unable to make
payments on its obligations as they come due and its liabilities exceed its assets. Moreover, the Bureau noted that on June 28, 2010, the Glebe filed for relief
under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code ("Bankruptcy Filing"), providing further evidence of its financial instability. The Bureau also
argued that the Consent Order should not be lifted because it states that it will remain in effect until such time as the Glebe has demonstrated that it is
financially stable and that no such demonstration had been made.

On August 11, 2010, the Glebe filed its Response to the Report of Hearing Examiner ("Response"). In its Response, the Glebe objected to the
Report to the extent that it recommends making the Glebe's ability to collect entrance fees conditional on approval by the Bureau. The Glebe also argued
that its Bankruptcy Filing is not in and of itself determinative of the Glebe's financial stability, but rather a means to restructure its debt obligations to its
bondholders. The Glebe states that it is optimistic that a consensual plan of reorganization can occur in the near future. On August 28, 2010, the counsel for
the Association filed a Motion to Withdraw as Counsel. In support of the Motion to Withdraw, counsel for the Association stated that no further assistance
from counsel is required by the Association. There was no opposition to this motion.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein, is of the opinion and finds that the Petition of the Association of Glebe
Residents should be denied.

Section 38.2-4907 of the Code authorizes the Commission to protect residents or prospective residents of a CCRC when the Commission
determines that:

1. A provider has been or will be unable to meet the pro forma income or cash flow projections previously filed
by the provider and such failure may endanger the ability of the provider to perform fully its obligation pursuant
to its continuing care contracts; or

2. A provider is bankrupt, insolvent, under reorganization pursuant to federal bankruptcy laws or in imminent
danger of becoming bankrupt or insolvent.

It is undisputed that the Glebe's current financial condition meets both standards enumerated in the Act. The Glebe is currently unable to meet its
pro forma income projections filed with the Bureau and has filed for bankruptcy protection pursuant to Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code in
an effort to restructure its debt. The purpose of the Consent Order is to protect the investments of current and future residents of the Glebe, and it requires
that the Glebe cease collecting entrance fees from new residents until such time as the Commission has determined that it is financially stable. It is clear
based on the evidence in this case that the Glebe remains financially unstable. We are hopeful that the Glebe's efforts to restructure its debt will enable it to
become financially stable, which would allow the Commission to modify the Consent Order in the future. We find that the Consent Order should remain in
effect until such time as the Glebe can demonstrate that it is financially stable.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Petition of the Association of Glebe Residents is hereby DENIED;
(2) The Motion to Withdraw of the Association of Glebe Residents is hereby GRANTED; and

(3) The papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2008-00248
FEBRUARY 12, 2010

APPLICATION OF
INTERSTATE MUTUAL FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY

For approval to distribute the remaining assets of the corporation pursuant to Virginia Code § 38.2-216
EINAL ORDER

Interstate Mutual Fire Insurance Company ("Interstate Mutual") is a Virginia domiciled mutual assessment property and casualty insurer licensed
by the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") pursuant to Chapter 25 (§ 38.2-2500 et seq.) of Title 38.2 of the Code of Virginia ("Code").

By Order entered herein November 25, 2008, Interstate Mutual's license to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia
was suspended based on the voluntary consent of Interstate Mutual's President due to Interstate Mutual's failure to maintain a membership of at least
100 persons at all times as required by § 38.2-2515 of the Code.
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On September 8, 2008, Interstate Mutual filed its Articles of Dissolution and Dissolution Application with the Commission's Bureau of Insurance
("Bureau"), reflecting that the dissolution of Interstate Mutual was approved by the Board of Directors on August 17, 2007.

The Dissolution Application provided that after all liabilities and obligations of Interstate Mutual were paid, satisfied, and discharged, the
remaining assets of Interstate Mutual would be distributed pursuant to an established and agreed formula to those members of Interstate Mutual who owned
Interstate Mutual Policies during calendar years 2005, 2006 and 2007.

By Order entered May 5, 2009, the Dissolution Application was approved ("Order Approving Application"). The Order Approving Application
required Interstate Mutual to promptly distribute its remaining assets and file an affidavit of compliance with the Bureau. The Order Approving Application
further required Interstate Mutual to surrender its license to transact the business of insurance to the Bureau upon completion of the distribution of its assets.

By letter dated December 17, 2009, and received by the Bureau on December 22, 2009, Interstate Mutual submitted an affidavit of compliance
with the Order Approving Application and surrendered its license to transact the business of insurance.

The Bureau has recommended that this case be closed.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record, the recommendation of the Bureau of Insurance and the law applicable hereto, is of
the opinion that this case should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Order Suspending License entered by the Commission should be, and is hereby, VACATED;
(2) This case be, and is hereby, DISMISSED;

(3) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00104
MARCH 17, 2010

ALFRED W. GROSS AS DEPUTY RECEIVER OF
SHENANDOAH LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
IN RECEIVERSHIP FOR CONSERVATION
AND REHABILITATION,

Plaintiff,

v.
WILMA S. BAKER
GWENDOLYN S. JONES,

and
STEVEN A. SLEDGE,

Defendants

ORDER

On April 19, 2009, Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner of the Bureau of Insurance, State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), in his capacity
as Deputy Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah"), in receivership for conservation and rehabilitation, by counsel, filed a Petition
for Interpleader requesting that the Commission, among other things: (i) hear the competing claims by the Defendants as to insurance proceeds from
insurance policy no. 000999724 ("Policy") issued to William A. Sledge by Shenandoah; (ii) restrain and enjoin the Defendants from instituting or
prosecuting any proceeding before any other court in the Commonwealth related to their competing claims to the insurance proceeds under the Policy; and
(iii) dismiss the Deputy Receiver from this proceeding and forever discharge him and Shenandoah from any and all liability to the Defendants for any claim,
demand, action, or cause of action arising out of, or in any way connected with, the Policy.

Unbeknownst to the Deputy Receiver, on April 3, 2009, Defendant Wilma Baker filed a Complaint in the matter styled Wilma Baker v.
Gwendolyn Jones, in the Circuit Court ("Circuit Court") for the City of Portsmouth, Case Number CL09000933-00. The Complaint requested that the
Circuit Court take jurisdiction over this matter and find that Wilma Baker is entitled to the proceeds of the Policy.

On May 4, 2009, Defendant Gwendolyn S. Jones filed an Answer in the Circuit Court requesting that the Circuit Court find that Gwendolyn S.
Jones and Steven Sledge are the beneficiaries of the Policy.

On May 27, 2009, the Deputy Receiver, by counsel, filed a Motion for Continuance ("Motion"). In support of his Motion, the Deputy Receiver
stated that Defendant Wilma S. Baker filed a complaint for declaratory judgment to determine the rights under the Policy in this matter in the Circuit Court
and, in the interest of judicial economy, requested that the Commission continue this matter.

On July 21, 2009, the Commission entered an order continuing this matter.

On December 2, 2009, the Deputy Receiver filed a Notice of Nonsuit ("Notice") in this matter. In support of his Notice, the Deputy Receiver
stated that the Defendants had executed among themselves a Compromise and Settlement Agreement, wherein the Defendants agreed to a division of the
proceeds of policy no. 000999724 issued by Shenandoah to owner and insured, William A. Sledge. Additionally, the Defendants executed a Release and
Agreement in favor of Shenandoah and the Deputy Receiver which released all claims known or unknown that the Defendants have now or may have in the
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future against Shenandoah or the Deputy Receiver. Based on the foregoing and good cause having been shown, the Deputy Receiver requested that the
Commission dismiss this case.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein and the request of the Deputy Receiver, is of the opinion that this matter
should be dismissed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Deputy Receiver's Petition for Interpleader is here DISMISSED; and

(2) The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00122
JULY 20, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

AMERIN GUARANTY CORPORATION,
Defendant

EINAL ORDER

Amerin Guaranty Corporation ("Defendant"), a foreign corporation domiciled in the State of Pennsylvania, is licensed to transact the business of
insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

By Impairment Order entered herein June 3, 2009, the Defendant was ordered to eliminate the impairment in its surplus and restore the same to at
least $3,000,000 and advise the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") of the accomplishment thereof by affidavit of the Defendant's president or
other authorized officer on or before September 4, 2009.

The Defendant was also ordered not to issue any new contracts or policies of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia while the impairment
of the Defendant's surplus exists and until further order of the Commission.

The Defendant's March 31, 2010 Quarterly Statement reported surplus in compliance with the minimum requirement of $3,000,000 set forth in
§ 38.2-1028 of the Code of Virginia.

In light of the foregoing, the Commission's Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Impairment Order entered by the Commission be
vacated and this case be closed.

THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein and the recommendation of the Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the
Impairment Order entered by the Commission should be vacated.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Impairment Order entered by the Commission is hereby, VACATED;
(2) This case be, and is hereby, DISMISSED; and

(3) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00123
FEBRUARY 4, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

THE GUARDIAN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on a market conduct examination performed by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, in certain instances, has violated
§§ 38.2-316 A, 38.2-316 B, and 38.2-316 C 1 of the Code of Virginia by failing to comply with policy and form requirements; violated §§ 38.2-510 A 2,
38.2-510 A 5, and 38.2-510 A 15 of the Code of Virginia by failing to comply with unfair claim settlement practices; violated § 38.2-511 of the Code of
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Virginia by failing to maintain a complete complaint register; violated §§ 38.2-1812 A, 38.2-1822 A, and 38.2-1833 A 1 of the Code of Virginia by failing to
comply with agent licensing requirements; violated §§ 38.2-3405 B, 38.2-3407.1 B, 38.2-3407.4 A, 38.2-3407.15 B 1, 38.2-3407.15 B 2, 38.2-3407.15 B 3,
38.2-3407.15 B 4, 38.2-3407.15 B 4 a (ii) (c), 38.2-3407.15 B 4 a (ii) (d), 38.2-3407.15 B 5, 38.2-3407.15 B 6, 38.2-3407.15 B 7, 38.2-3407.15 B 8,
38.2-3407.15 B 9, 38.2-3407.15 B 10, 38.2-3407.15 B 11, and 38.2-3407.15 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to comply with the provisions relating to
accident and sickness insurance; violated §§ 38.2-5804 A, 38.2-5804 A 1, 38.2-5804 A 2, and 38.2-5804 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to comply with
the requirements of the complaint system for MCHIPs; and violated 14 VAC 5-400-50 A, 14 VAC 5-400-60 A, 14 VAC 5-400-60 B, 14 VAC 5-400-70 A,
and 14 VAC 5-400-70 B by failing to properly handle claims.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Sixty-two Thousand
Dollars ($62,000), waived its right to a hearing, agreed to the entry by the Commission of a cease and desist order, and agreed to comply with the Corrective
Action Plan contained in the Market Conduct Examination Report as of June 30, 2007.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted;

(2) The Defendant cease and desist from any future conduct which constitutes a violation of §§ 38.2-316 A, 38.2-316 B, 38.2-316C 1,
38.2-510 A 2, 38.2-510 A 5, 38.2-510 A 15, 38.2-511, 38.2-1812 A, 38.2-1822 A, 38.2-1833 A 1, 38.2-3405 B, 38.2-3407.1 B, 38.2-3407.4 A,
38.2-3407.15 B 1, 38.2-3407.15 B 2, 38.2-3407.15 B 3, 38.2-3407.15 B 4, 38.2-3407.15 B 4 a (ii) (c), 38.2-3407.15 B 4 a (ii) (d), 38.2-3407.15 B 5,
38.2-3407.15 B 6, 38.2-3407.15 B 7, 38.2-3407.15 B 8, 38.2-3407.15 B 9, 38.2-3407.15 B 10, 38.2-3407.15 B 11, 38.2-3407.15 C, 38.2-5804 A,
38.2-5804 A 1, 38.2-5804 A 2, or 38.2-5804 C of the Code of Virginia, or 14 VAC 5-400-50 A, 14 VAC 5-400-60 A, 14 VAC 5-400-60 B,
14 VAC 5-400-70 A, or 14 VAC 5-400-70 B; and

(3) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00152
FEBRUARY 19, 2010

PETITION OF
ROSALIE M. LOVELACE

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver"), appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner of the
Commission's Bureau of Insurance as Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of authority,
the Deputy Receiver in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure established appeal procedures for appeals or
challenges of any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims against Shenandoah.

On June 26, 2009, Rosalie M. Lovelace ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the State Corporation Commission contesting
the Deputy Receiver's denial of her "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 002045417.

By Order dated July 10, 2009, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before July 22, 2009.

On July 21, 2009, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer to the Petition and asked that the Petition be denied.
By Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated August 31, 2009, a telephonic hearing was scheduled for September 30, 2009.

On September 30, 2009, a telephonic hearing was conducted as scheduled. John O. Cox, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Commission.
Robert A. Dybing, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Deputy Receiver. Ms. Lovelace appeared pro se.

In the Notice of Appeal, the Petitioner acknowledged receiving a check for surrendering her life insurance policy. At the hearing, the Petitioner
testified that she and her husband have several medical issues which have caused them financial hardship.'

! Petitioner's Exhibit 1; Tr. at 8-11.
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Donald Beatty, Senior Counsel in the Commission's Office of General Counsel and receivership manager for Shenandoah, testified as to the terms
of the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver. Specifically, Mr. Beatty testified that paragraph 12(e) of the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver orders
Shenandoah to cease payment of policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and similar payments.> Mr. Beatty further testified that paragraph 13(b)
of the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver authorizes the Deputy Receiver to implement a hardship exemption from the moratorium on policy loans, cash or
surrender values, surrenders, and similar payments.> Mr. Beatty confirmed that prior to establishing the hardship exemption, the Deputy Receiver consulted
with outside legal counsel, accounting and investment consultants, as well as the Company's Chief Financial Officer and in-house actuary. Mr. Beatty
maintained that the 70% limit was established to preserve the Company's ability to pay claims and continuing business expenses.

On December 17, 2009, the Hearing Examiner reconvened the hearing in this matter. During this hearing the Petitioner testified that she
understood the difference between taking a loan on her whole life policy and opting to surrender her policy but did not realize Shenandoah was paying only
70% of her cash value. The Petitioner could not make payments on a policy loan and her only option was to surrender the policy.*

On January 7, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued his Report in which he found that the moratorium on the cash surrender of policies, balanced
with a 70% payout in hardship cases, is a prudent and reasonable approach to managing the Company's resources. The Hearing Examiner recommended that

the Petition be dismissed, and the Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal be affirmed.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Hearing Examiner, is of the opinion that the findings
and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
1. The Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 002045417 is hereby AFFIRMED;
2. The Petition of Rosalie M. Lovelace for review of the Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DISMISSED; and

3. The papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

2 Commonwealth of Virginia, At the Relation of the State Corporation Commission v. Shenandoah Life Insurance Company, Case No. INS-2009-00032,
Order Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation (February 12, 2009).

*1d.

* Tr. at 33-38.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00154
JANUARY 19, 2010

PETITION OF
JUANITA B. JONES

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver"), appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner of the
Commission's Bureau of Insurance, as Deputy Receiver in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15, of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of
authority, the Deputy Receiver, in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure, established appeal procedures for
appeals or challenges of any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims against Shenandoah.

On June 29, 2009, Juanita B. Jones ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the State Corporation Commission contesting the
Deputy Receiver's denial of her "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 000958911."

By Order dated July 24, 2009, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before August 31, 2009.

On August 24, 2009, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer to the Petition and asked that the Petition be denied.

By Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated September 1, 2009, a telephonic hearing was scheduled for October 8, 2009.

On October 5, 2009, Shenandoah filed a Motion for Continuance. In its Motion, Shenandoah asked that the hearing in this case be continued
until after the Commission decided identical issues in Case No. INS-2009-00152, Petition of Rosalie M. Lovelace, For Review of Shenandoah Life Insurance

Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal. Shenandoah maintained that it would promote judicial efficiency if the hearing in this matter was
continued pending the resolution of Case No. INS-2009-00152. In a Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated October 6, 2009, the motion was denied.

' Ms. Jones' filing was titled Notice of Appeal.
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On October 8, 2009, a telephonic hearing was conducted as scheduled. John O. Cox, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Commission. Robert A.
Dybing, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Deputy Receiver. Ms. Jones appeared pro se.

In the Notice of Appeal, the Petitioner acknowledged receiving a check for surrendering her life insurance policy representing 70% of the cash
surrender value of the policy but maintained she should have received 100% of the cash surrender value of the policy. At the hearing, the Petitioner testified
that she has several medical issues and she surrendered her policy in order to get all of her money. The Petitioner's husband also testified to the financial
difficulties they were having.

Donald Beatty, Esquire, senior counsel in the Commission's Office of General Counsel and receivership manager for Shenandoah, testified as to
the day-to-day operations of the company and its efforts to be rehabilitated. Additionally, Mr. Beatty testified as to the terms of the Order Appointing
Deputy Receiver. Specifically, Mr. Beatty testified that paragraph 12(e) of the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver orders Shenandoah to cease payment of
policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and similar payments.” Mr. Beatty further testified that paragraph 13(b) of the Order Appointing Deputy
Receiver authorizes the Deputy Receiver to implement a hardship exemption from the moratorium on policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and
similar payments.® Mr. Beatty confirmed that prior to establishing the hardship exemption, the Deputy Receiver consulted with outside legal counsel,
accounting and investment consultants, as well as the Company's Chief Financial Officer and in-house actuary. Mr. Beatty maintained that the 70% limit
was established to preserve the Company's ability to pay claims and continuing business expenses.

On December 2, 2009, the Hearing Examiner issued his Report in which he found that the moratorium on the cash surrender of policies, balanced
with a 70% payout in hardship cases, is a prudent and reasonable approach to managing the Company's resources. The Hearing Examiner recommended that
the Petition be dismissed, and the Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal be affirmed.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Hearing Examiner, is of the opinion that the findings
and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
1. The Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 000958911 is hereby AFFIRMED;
2. The Petition of Juanita B. Jones for review of the Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DISMISSED; and

3. The papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

2 Commonwealth of Virginia, At the Relation of the State Corporation Commission v. Shenandoah Life Insurance Company, Case No. INS-2009-00032,
Order Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation (Feb. 12, 2009).

3 1d.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00180
FEBRUARY 1, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

ORDER SUSPENDING LICENSE

In an Order to Take Notice entered herein December 28, 2009, Financial Guaranty Insurance Company, a New York corporation ("Defendant")
licensed by the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, was ordered to take
notice that the Commission would enter an order subsequent to January 18, 2010, suspending the license of the Defendant to transact new business unless on
or before January 18, 2010, the Defendant filed with the Clerk of the Commission a request for a hearing before the Commission to contest the proposed
suspension of the Defendant's license.

The Order to Take Notice was entered due to the Defendant's failure to eliminate the impairment in its surplus and restore the same to at least
$3,000,000 and advise the Commission of the accomplishment thereof by affidavit of the Defendant's president or other authorized officer on or before

November 16, 2009.

As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed a request to be heard before the Commission with respect to the proposed suspension of
the Defendant's license.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) Pursuant to § 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia, the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of
Virginia is hereby SUSPENDED;

(2) The Defendant shall issue no new contracts or policies of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia until further order of the Commission;
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(3) The appointments of the Defendant's agents to act on behalf of the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby SUSPENDED;

(4) The Defendant's agents shall transact no new insurance business on behalf of the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia until further
order of the Commission;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause an attested copy of this Order to be sent to each of the Defendant's agents appointed to act on behalf of
the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia as notice of the suspension of such agent's appointment; and

(6) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause notice of the suspension of the Defendant's license to be published in the manner set forth in § 38.2-1043
of the Code of Virginia.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00186
JANUARY 19, 2010

PETITION OF
GHULAM NASEER

For review of HOW Insurance Company, Home Warranty Corporation and Home Owners Warranty Corporation Deputy Receiver's
Determination of Appeal

ORDER

On October 14, 1994, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond, Virginia, entered an Order appointing the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") the Receiver of HOW Insurance Company ("HOWIC"), Home Warranty Corporation ("HWC"), and Home Owners Warranty Corporation
("HOW") (collectively, "HOW Companies" or "HOW"). The receivership order granted the Commission the authority to proceed with the rehabilitation or
liquidation of the HOW Companies and established a receivership appeal procedure ("RAP") to govern appeals and challenges to decisions rendered by the
Receiver or the Receiver's duly authorized representatives.

On August 14, 2009, Ghulam Naseer ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the Clerk of the Commission contesting the
Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in Claim No. 4209113.

By Order dated August 31, 2009, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before October 1, 2009.

On September 30, 2009, the Deputy Receiver filed a Motion to Dismiss and Answer to Petition for Review ("Motion to Dismiss"), and a
Memorandum in Support of Motion to Dismiss Petition for Review. In his Motion to Dismiss, the Deputy Receiver contends that the Petitioner failed to
assert a claim on which relief under the HOW Program may be granted and should be dismissed based on the following: (i) the Petitioner filed this instant
claim on August 19, 2008, more than four years after the expiration of all HOW Program coverage on March 31, 2004. Specifically, the HOW
Insurance/Warranty Document states that claims must be reported not more than 30 days after the expiration of the applicable coverage term." Thus, the
claim is time-barred and the applicable grace period has expired; and (ii) the Petitioner is barred from making a claim with respect to the alleged defects
inasmuch as the Petitioner executed a release and accepted a settlement payment.

By Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated September 30, 2009, the Petitioner was directed to file any response to the Motion to Dismiss on or before
October 16, 2009.

On October 12, 2009, the Petitioner filed a Motion for Extension of Time to Respond to the Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss, which was
granted by a Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated October 14, 2009. The Petitioner was directed to respond to the Motion to Dismiss on or before October 30,
2009.

On October 30, 2009, the Petitioner filed an Answer to Motion to Dismiss ("Answer") and a Memorandum in Support of Answer to Motion to
Dismiss ("Petitioner's Memorandum"). In the Petitioner's Memorandum, he asserts, among other things, that: (i) the Petitioner's claim for defects described
in his Petition for review is not time-barred since it originated in a claim that was filed in 2003; and (ii) the Petitioner's execution of the
2003 release/settlement did not extinguish his current claim for structural damage on the left side of his dwelling.

On December 10, 2009, Howard P. Anderson, Jr., issued his Report and made the following findings and recommendations:

(1) There is no material fact in question.

(2) The Petitioner's claim was reported more than four years after all HOW Program coverage, including the applicable grace period, had expired
and, therefore, is time-barred under the terms of the policy.

(3) The Petitioner signed a full and complete release of the HOW Companies from any further liability regarding the foundation of the
Petitioner's home.

(4) The Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss should be granted.

" HOW Insurance/Warranty Document, Part IC., p. 20.
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(5) The Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in Claim No. 4209113 should be affirmed.
(6) The Petition for Review should be dismissed with prejudice.

Upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Hearing Examiner, the Commission is of the opinion, and so finds, that the findings
and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss is hereby GRANTED;

(2) The Petition of Ghulam Naseer for review of the Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DENIED;
(3) The Determination of Appeal in Claim No. 4209113 issued by the Deputy Receiver is hereby AFFIRMED; and

(4) The case is DISMISSED with prejudice, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00195
FEBRUARY 26, 2010

PETITION OF
RUTH A. HOHENSTEIN

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver"), appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner of the
Commission's Bureau of Insurance as Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of authority,
the Deputy Receiver in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure established appeal procedures for appeals or
challenges of any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims against Shenandoah.

On August 25, 2009, Ruth A. Hohenstein ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the Commission contesting the Deputy
Receiver's denial of her "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 000720645. Additionally, on August 25, 2009, the
Petitioner's husband filed a Petition with the Commission contesting the Deputy Receiver's denial of his "Hardship Request" made in connection with
Shenandoah Life Policy No. 00717285.

By Order dated August 31, 2009, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before October 1, 2009.

On September 24, 2009, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer to the Petition and asked that the Petition be denied.

By Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated October 9, 2009, an evidentiary hearing was scheduled for December 2, 2009, via telephone conference call
for the purpose of receiving testimony and evidence on the Petition.

On December 2, 2009, a hearing was convened as scheduled. The Petitioner failed to appear, was contacted, and had difficulty calling the
telephone conference call number from outside of the country. The hearing was continued until December 14, 2009.

On December 14, 2009, a hearing was conducted as scheduled. John O. Cox, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Commission. The Petitioner
and her husband appeared via telephone. Robert A. Dybing, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Deputy Receiver.

At the hearing, the Petitioner and her husband established their financial hardship and their need for the remaining cash value of their life
insurance policies. Additionally, the Petitioner and her husband reiterated their need for the remaining cash value of their life insurance policies in order to
pay outstanding obligations to the Internal Revenue Service and to offset household expenses. The Petitioner stated that she and her husband had requested
the surrender of their life insurance policies prior to Shenandoah being placed in receivership.

Donald Beatty, Senior Counsel in the Commission's Office of General Counsel and Receivership Manager for Shenandoah, testified as to the
day-to-day operations of the Company and its efforts to be rehabilitated. Additionally, Mr. Beatty testified as to the terms of the Order Appointing Deputy
Receiver. Specifically, Mr. Beatty testified that paragraph 12(e) of the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver orders Shenandoah to cease payment of policy
loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and similar payments.! Mr. Beatty further testified that paragraph 13(b) of the Order Appointing Deputy
Receiver authorizes the Deputy Receiver to implement a hardship exemption from the moratorium on policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and
similar payments.> Mr. Beatty confirmed that prior to establishing the hardship exemption, the Deputy Receiver consulted with outside legal counsel,

! Commonwealth of Virginia, At the Relation of the State Corporation Commission v. Shenandoah Life Insurance Company, Case No. INS-2009-00032,
Order Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation (February 12, 2009).

2 1d.
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accounting and investment consultants, as well as the Company's Chief Financial Officer and in-house actuary. Mr. Beatty maintained that the 70% limit
was established to preserve the Company's ability to pay claims and continuing business expenses.

On January 5, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued his Report in which he found that the moratorium on the cash surrender of policies, balanced
with a 70% payout in hardship cases, is a prudent and reasonable approach to managing the Company's resources. The Hearing Examiner recommended that
the Petition be dismissed, and the Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal be affirmed.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Hearing Examiner, is of the opinion that the findings
and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
1. The Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 000720645 is hereby AFFIRMED;
2. The Petition for Review of Ruth A. Hohenstein is hereby DISMISSED; and

3. The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00196
FEBRUARY 26, 2010

PETITION OF
JOSEPH HOHENSTEIN

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver"), appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner of the
Commission's Bureau of Insurance as Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of authority,
the Deputy Receiver in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure established appeal procedures for appeals or
challenges of any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims against Shenandoah.

On August 25, 2009, Joseph Hohenstein ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the Commission contesting the Deputy
Receiver's denial of his "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 00717285. Additionally, on August 25, 2009, the
Petitioner's wife filed a Petition with the Commission contesting the Deputy Receiver's denial of her "Hardship Request" made in connection with
Shenandoah Life Policy No. 000720645.

By Order dated August 31, 2009, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before October 1, 2009.

On September 24, 2009, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer to the Petition and asked that the Petition be denied.

By Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated October 9, 2009, an evidentiary hearing was scheduled for December 2, 2009, via telephone conference call
for the purpose of receiving testimony and evidence on the Petition.

On December 2, 2009, a hearing was convened as scheduled. The Petitioner failed to appear, was contacted, and had difficulty calling the
telephone conference call number from outside of the country. The hearing was continued until December 14, 2009.

On December 14, 2009, a hearing was conducted as scheduled. John O. Cox, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Commission. The Petitioner
and his wife appeared via telephone. Robert A. Dybing, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Deputy Receiver.

At the hearing, the Petitioner and his wife established their financial hardship and their need for the remaining cash value of their life insurance
policies. Additionally, the Petitioner and his wife reiterated their need for the remaining cash value of their life insurance policies in order to pay
outstanding obligations to the Internal Revenue Service and to offset household expenses. The Petitioner stated that he and his wife had requested the
surrender of their life insurance policies prior to Shenandoah being placed in receivership.

Donald Beatty, Senior Counsel in the Commission's Office of General Counsel and receivership manager for Shenandoah, testified as to the
day-to-day operations of the Company and its efforts to be rehabilitated. Additionally, Mr. Beatty testified as to the terms of the Order Appointing Deputy
Receiver. Specifically, Mr. Beatty testified that paragraph 12(e) of the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver orders Shenandoah to cease payment of policy
loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and similar payments.! Mr. Beatty further testified that paragraph 13(b) of the Order Appointing Deputy
Receiver authorizes the Deputy Receiver to implement a hardship exemption from the moratorium on policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and
similar payments.”> Mr. Beatty confirmed that prior to establishing the hardship exemption, the Deputy Receiver consulted with outside legal counsel,

' Commonwealth of Virginia, At the Relation of the State Corporation Commission v. Shenandoah Life Insurance Company, Case No. INS-2009-00032,
Order Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation (February 12, 2009).

2 1d.
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accounting and investment consultants, as well as the Company's Chief Financial Officer and in-house actuary. Mr. Beatty maintained that the 70% limit
was established to preserve the Company's ability to pay claims and continuing business expenses.

On January 5, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued his Report in which he found that the moratorium on the cash surrender of policies, balanced
with a 70% payout in hardship cases, is a prudent and reasonable approach to managing the Company's resources. The Hearing Examiner recommended that
the Petition be dismissed, and the Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal be affirmed.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Hearing Examiner, is of the opinion that the findings
and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
1. The Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 00717285 is hereby AFFIRMED;
2. The Petition for Review of Joseph Hohenstein is hereby DISMISSED; and

3. The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00206
OCTOBER 1, 2010

PETITION OF
CHAMAN L. AND JYOTI KAUL

For review of HOW Insurance Company, Home Warranty Corporation and Home Owners Warranty Corporation Deputy Receiver's
Determination of Appeal

ORDER

On October 14, 1994, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond, Virginia, entered an Order appointing the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") the Receiver of HOW Insurance Company, Home Warranty Corporation, and Home Owners Warranty Corporation (collectively, "HOW").
The receivership Order granted the Commission the authority to proceed with the rehabilitation or liquidation of the HOW companies and established a
receivership appeal procedure to govern appeals and challenges to decisions rendered by the Receiver or the Receiver's duly authorized representatives. The
receivership is now being liquidated after more than fifteen years and all outstanding claims are to be resolved and closed.

On September 8, 2009, Chaman L. Kaul and Jyoti Kaul ("Petitioners") first filed a Petition with the Commission contesting the Deputy Receiver's
Determination of Appeal in Claim No. 0765243. In their Petition, among other things, the Petitioners sought payment from HOW for foundation damage
observed in 1994 that they alleged was a continuation of the original damage that they claimed in 1992. The damage in 1992 was repaired and the
Petitioners signed a release and settlement in December 1994. Additionally, the Petitioners claimed to have no record of having received five (5) checks
paid to them pursuant to the December 1994 settlement agreement.

By Order dated September 16, 2009, the Petition was docketed and the Deputy Receiver was directed to file an Answer or other responsive
pleading on or before October 19, 2009.

On October 19, 2009, the Deputy Receiver filed a Motion to Dismiss and Answer to Petition for Review ("Motion to Dismiss"), and a
Memorandum in Support of the Motion to Dismiss. In his Motion to Dismiss, the Deputy Receiver contends that the claim was not filed timely with HOW
and that the Petitioners are barred from making a claim with respect to the alleged defect in their home because they executed a release and accepted a
settlement payment for this claim.

On October 20, 2009, the Hearing Examiner issued a ruling directing the Petitioners to file any response to the Deputy Receiver's Motion on or
before November 13, 2009. On November 13, 2009, the Petitioners filed a response to the Deputy Receiver's Motion in which they requested that the
Motion be denied and this matter be set for hearing on the merits. On January 8, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued a ruling setting a procedural schedule
and setting this matter for hearing.

On May 26, 2010, a hearing was convened in this matter. Chaman L. Kaul appeared pro se in person. Joseph N. West, Esquire, and Robert
Glarza, Esquire, appeared telephonically as counsel to the Deputy Receiver. Donald C. Beatty, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Commission.

At the hearing, Mr. Kaul testified on his own behalf. Mr. Kaul described the damage to his house and the efforts made to repair the house. Mr.
Kaul stated that cracks in the foundation of his home led him to file a claim with HOW. Mr. Kaul testified that the engineers hired by HOW were instructed
by the company to submit a repair estimate not to exceed $3,500. The estimated cost of repair was One Thousand Four Hundred One Dollars ($1,401), and
HOW issued a settlement check to the Petitioners in that amount.

Mr. Kaul stated that the repairs performed by the contractor were insufficient to correct the problems with the foundation and that following the
repairs, he discovered more damage to the house. Mr. Kaul testified that he informed HOW of this damage verbally and that on October 5, 1992, he
informed HOW of the damage to the house in writing. The Petitioners' position is that this is a continuation of the original claim and was therefore filed
before the expiration of warranty coverage.

Mr. Kaul stated that an independent engineer had provided a repair estimate on the house that was the subject of his October 5, 1992, letter to
HOW. The engineer's report estimated that the cost to repair the foundation of the Petitioner's house was between $12,000 and $18,000. The engineer's
report further stated that the repairs performed previously on the house did not adequately address the problems with the home's foundation.
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The Deputy Receiver presented the testimony of Susan Roehm, assistant to the Deputy Receiver and custodian of records for HOW. Ms. Roehm
testified that the Petitioners' warranty coverage expired on August 31, 1992, and that the last date for filing claims under the warranty was September 29,
1992. Ms. Roehm testified that the Petitioners' initial warranty claim was timely received by HOW on April 6, 1992, and as part of the settlement of the
claim, the Petitioners executed a release of liability in favor of HOW.

Ms. Roehm confirmed that the Petitioners' second claim regarding damage to their home that was not repaired by the contractor used during the
first claim was received on October 17, 1992. Ms. Roehm testified that because this claim was received after the expiration of the coverage on
September 29, 1992, it was denied.

On July 22, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued his report. In his report, the Hearing Examiner made the following findings and
recommendations:

(1) The Petitioners' claim filed on October 17, 1992, was not a continuation of the original claim filed on April 6, 1992, because the Petitioners
had executed a release in favor of HOW regarding the initial claim;

(2) The claim filed on October 17, 1992, was filed with HOW after the expiration of coverage;
(3) The Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in Claim No. 0765243 should be affirmed.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Hearing Examiner, is of the opinion and finds that
the findings and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss is hereby GRANTED.

(2) The Petition of Chaman L. and Jyoti Kaul for review of the Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DENIED.
(3) The Determination of Appeal in Claim No. 0765243 issued by the Deputy Receiver is hereby AFFIRMED.

(4) The case is DISMISSED, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00212
JANUARY 7, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
Applicant,
\2
RECIPROCAL OF AMERICA
and
THE RECIPROCAL GROUP,
Respondents.

Re: Confidential Settlement Agreements

FINAL ORDER APPROVING DEPUTY RECEIVER'S SETTLEMENTS
WITH GENERAL REINSURANCE CORPORATION, MILLIMAN, INC.,
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP, WACHOVIA BANK, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION, MISSOURI HOSPITAL PLAN, HOSPITAL SERVICES GROUP,
HEALTHCARE SERVICES GROUP, PROVIDERS INSURANCE CONSULTANTS,
AND MEDICAL LIABILITY ALLIANCE

On September 17, 2009, Alfred W. Gross, as Deputy Receiver ("Deputy Receiver") of Reciprocal of America ("ROA") and The Reciprocal
Group ("TRG") (collectively, the "Companies"), filed with the Clerk of the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") his Application for Orders
Setting Contingent Hearing, Approving Notice Procedures, Establishing Response Date, and Approving Deputy Receiver's Settlements with General
Reinsurance Corporation, Milliman, Inc., PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Wachovia Bank, National Association, Missouri Hospital Plan, Hospital Services
Group, Healthcare Services Group, Providers Insurance Consultants, and Medical Liability Alliance ("Application") seeking, inter alia, that the Commission
enter a final order approving: (a)a confidential mediated settlement among the Deputy Receiver, General Reinsurance Corporation ("General Re"),
Milliman, Inc. ("Milliman"), and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("PwC") ("General Re-Milliman-PwC Settlement"); (b) a confidential settlement between the
Deputy Receiver and Wachovia Bank, National Association ("Wachovia") ("Wachovia Settlement"); and (c) a confidential settlement between the Deputy
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Receiver and the Missouri Hospital Plan, the Hospital Services Group, Healthcare Services Group, Providers Insurance Consultants, and Medical Liability
Alliance (collectively, "MHP") ("MHP Settlement"), and making certain requested findings, all as described in the Application.'

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

1. On January 29, 2003, in Case No. CH03-135 styled Commonwealth of Virginia ex rel. State Corporation Commission v. Reciprocal of
America, The Reciprocal Group, and Jody M. Wagner, Treasurer of Virginia, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond, Virginia, entered its Final Order
Appointing Receiver for Rehabilitation or Liquidation ("Receivership Order"), appointing the Commission permanent Receiver of the Companies. The
Receivership Order also appointed the Deputy Receiver.

2. Pursuant to the terms of the Receivership Order, the Deputy Receiver was authorized, inter alia, to institute and prosecute in his name or in
the name of the Companies any and all suits and other legal proceedings including, but not limited to, the prosecution of any action which may exist on
behalf of the Companies and their subscribers, members, insureds, policyholders, or creditors. In addition, the Receivership Order granted the Deputy
Receiver the power to compromise such suits, legal proceedings, or claims on such terms and conditions as may be deemed appropriate.

3. On June 20, 2003, the Commission ordered that, inter alia, ROA and TRG be found and declared to be insolvent and that the Deputy
Receiver proceed with the liquidation of ROA and TRG in accordance with the provisions of Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Virginia Code, other applicable
Virginia law, and the Commission's order, subject to further orders of the Commission.

4. On November 12, 2003, as authorized by the Receivership Order, the Deputy Receiver instituted legal proceedings styled Alfred W. Gross v.
General Reinsurance Corporation, et al., Case No. 3:03¢v955, in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia, which the United
States Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation subsequently transferred to the United States District Court for the Western District of Tennessee for pre-trial
proceedings as part of Multidistrict Litigation Docket No. 1551 ("MDL-1551"), where the case is now pending as Case No. 04-CV-2313 ("ROA Lawsuit").

5. Among the defendants in the ROA Lawsuit are General Re, Milliman, PwC, and Wachovia (collectively, "Settling Defendants"), as well as
General Re employees Tommy N. Kellogg ("Kellogg"), Thomas M. Reindel ("Reindel"), and Victoria J. Seeger ("'Seeger"), Milliman employee Robert L.
Sanders ("Sanders"), and PwC partner Gary Stephani ("Stephani").

6. In the ROA Lawsuit, the Deputy Receiver asserts claims belonging to the Companies for the benefit of the Companies' policyholders,
insureds, and other creditors and asserts claims on behalf of subscribers, members, insureds, policyholders, or creditors of the Companies that are common to
them and result from the insolvency of the Companies, or are derivative claims, in that they involve injury to policyholders and creditors only insofar as the
underlying conduct violated some legal duty to ROA, thereby decreasing the assets of the estate to which policyholders and creditors must look for
satisfaction of their debts (collectively, "ROA Lawsuit Claims").

7. Subsequent to the ROA Lawsuit, Milliman asserted an action for interpleader against ROA in Milliman USA, Inc. v. Alfred W. Gross. et al.,
Case No. 2:07-CV-02662 (W.D. Tenn.), and General Re filed a petition to compel arbitration against ROA in General Reinsurance Corporation v. Alfred W.
Gross. et al., Case No. 2:07-CV-02615 (W.D. Tenn.). Although both of those cases are pending in the same court as MDL-1551, neither of those cases has
been made part of MDL-1551.

8. MHP also brought claims against, inter alia, Gen Re, Milliman, and Wachovia, now pending in MDL-1551 as Missouri Hospital Plan. et al.
v. Doctors Insurance Reciprocal, et al., Case No. 04-CV-2294 (W.D. Tenn.) ("MHP Lawsuit"). In addition, MHP asserted claims against ROA in the ROA
receivership proceeding.

9. By his Application filed on September 17, 2009, the Deputy Receiver informed the Commission that he had entered into the Settlements and
requested the Commission's approval of the Settlements and the Settlement Agreements, which would resolve all claims between the Deputy Receiver and
General Re, Milliman, PwC, Wachovia, Kellogg, Reindel, Seeger, Sanders, Stephani, and MHP.

' The General Re-Milliman-PwC Settlement is effectuated by a confidential mediated settlement agreement among the Deputy Receiver, General Re,
Milliman, and PwC ("General Re-Milliman-PwC Settlement Agreement"), and a separate confidential mediated trust agreement between the Deputy
Receiver and General Re ("General Re Settlement Trust Agreement").

The Wachovia Settlement is effectuated by a confidential settlement agreement between the Deputy Receiver and Wachovia ("Wachovia
Settlement Agreement").

The MHP Settlement is effectuated by a confidential settlement agreement between the Deputy Receiver and MHP ("MHP Settlement
Agreement").

Concurrently with the filing of the Application and pursuant to Commission Rule of Practice and Procedure 5 VAC 5-20-170 (Confidential
information), the Deputy Receiver filed a motion for protective order relating to the General Re-Milliman-PwC Settlement Agreement, the General Re
Settlement Trust Agreement, the Wachovia Settlement Agreement and the MHP Settlement Agreement (collectively, "Settlement Agreements" which
effectuate the three "Settlements").

All four of the Settlement Agreements include certain conditions precedent, common among which is the requirement of a final order of the
Commission approving the Deputy Receiver entering into the settlement agreement according to its terms.

2 Commonwealth of Virginia, ex rel. State Corporation Commission, Applicant, v. Reciprocal of America and The Reciprocal Group, Respondents, Case No.
INS-2003-00024, 2003 SCC Ann. Rpt. 116, Order of Liquidation with a Finding of Insolvency and Directing the Cancellation of Direct Insurance Policies
(June 20, 2003).
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10. On October 1, 2009, the District of Columbia Insurance Guaranty Association, Georgia Insurers Insolvency Pool, Indiana Insurance
Guaranty Association, Kansas Insurance Guaranty Association, Maryland Property & Casualty Insurance Guaranty Association, Mississippi Insurance
Guaranty Association, Missouri Property & Casualty Guaranty Association, North Carolina Insurance Guaranty Association, Pennsylvania Property &
Casualty Insurance Guaranty Association, South Carolina Property & Casualty Insurance Guaranty Association, Tennessee Insurance Guaranty Association
and Virginia Property and Casualty Insurance Guaranty Association ("Guaranty Associations") filed Limited Opposition of Guaranty Associations to
Application to Approve Proposed Settlements and Motion for Entry of Protective Order Regarding Proposed Settlements. The Deputy Receiver filed a
Reply to the Guaranty Associations Limited Opposition on October 16, 2009. On October 20, 2009, the Guaranty Associations filed a Notice of Withdrawal
of Limited Opposition to Approve Proposed Settlements and Entry of Protective Order Regarding Proposed Settlements.

11. On November 16, 2009, Appalachian Regional Healthcare, Hardin Memorial Hospital, Highlands Regional Medical Center, Murray-
Calloway County Hospital, Owensboro Mercy Health System, Regional Medical Center/Trover Clinic Foundation, T.J. Samson Community Hospital
("Kentucky Hospitals"), filed a Contingent Objection to the Application to Approve Proposed Settlements. The Deputy Receiver filed a Reply on
December 2, 2009. On December 7, 2009, a Scheduling Order was entered ordering the Kentucky Hospitals to file any response it may have to the Deputy
Receiver's Reply. On December 11, 2009, the Kentucky Hospitals filed a Response to the Deputy Receiver's Reply. In that Response the Kentucky
Hospitals withdrew their Contingent Objection.

12. Pursuant to the Commission's October 6, 2009, Order Setting Contingent Hearing on Application for Approval of Deputy Receiver's
Settlements with General Reinsurance Corporation, Milliman, Inc., PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Wachovia Bank, National Association, Missouri Hospital
Plan, Hospital Services Group, Healthcare Services Group, Providers Insurance Consultants, and Medical Liability Alliance, Approving Notice Procedures
and Establishing Response Date ("October 6™ Order"), no hearing was held because those persons who filed objections to the Application ("Notice of
Objection") withdrew their objections and no other persons filed a Notice of Objection.?

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the Application, hereby makes the following findings:

1. The Deputy Receiver has exclusive standing to prosecute and compromise the settled claims, including the ROA Lawsuit Claims.

2. The Settlements and the Settlement Agreements are fair and reasonable to, and in the best interests of, ROA's policyholders and ROA's and
TRG's creditors.

3. The Wachovia Settlement Agreement settles and compromises all claims which have been, were, or could have been asserted or alleged by
ROA, TRG, their receivership estate, the Commission, the Deputy Receiver, and any additional or further deputy receivers or special deputy receivers for
ROA or TRG and any party on whose behalf the Deputy Receiver asserted claims in the ROA Lawsuit including, but not limited to, the ROA Lawsuit
Claims.

4. MHP's release of Proofs of Claim Numbers 1219, 1235, 1236, 1237, and 1238, pursuant to the MHP Settlement, is given to the Deputy
Receiver in good faith.

5. The Deputy Receiver's payment of consideration to MHP, pursuant to the MHP Settlement, is an expense of administration for purposes of
§ 38.2-1509 of the Code of Virginia.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

1. Each of the Settlements is APPROVED.

2. The Deputy Receiver's entering into each of the Settlement Agreements, according to its terms, is APPROVED.
3. This matter is dismissed and the papers herein be passed to the file for ended cases.

Commissioner Jagdmann did not participate in this matter.

3 On November 18, 2009, the Deputy Receiver filed timely proof of notice in compliance with the October 6™ Order.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00225
MARCH 17, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In the matter of Adopting Amendments to the Rules Governing Surplus Lines Insurance

ORDER ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO RULES

By Order to Take Notice entered December 17, 2009, all interested persons were ordered to take notice that subsequent to February 1, 2010, the
State Corporation Commission ("Commission") would consider the entry of an order adopting proposed amendments to the regulations entitled Rules
Governing Surplus Lines Insurance ("Regulations"), proposed by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau") which amend the Regulations at 14 VAC 5-350-30,
14 VAC 5-350-90, 14 VAC 5-350-100, 14 VAC 5-350-160, and 14 VAC 5-350-165, unless on or before February 1, 2010, any person objecting to the
adoption of the proposed amendments to the Regulations filed a request for a hearing with the Clerk of the Commission ("Clerk"). The Bureau also
recommended that Forms SLB 1, SLB 4, SLB 6, and SLB 10 be deleted and Forms 3001 and 4052 be added.
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The Order to Take Notice also required all interested persons to file their comments in support of or in opposition to the proposed amendments to
the Regulations on or before February 1, 2010.

There were no comments on the proposed amendments to the Regulations filed with the Clerk. There was no request for a hearing filed with the
Clerk.

The Bureau does not recommend further changes to the proposed amendments to the Regulations, and further recommends that the amendments
to the Regulations be adopted as proposed.

THE COMMISSION, having considered the Bureau's recommendation, is of the opinion that the attached proposed amendments to the
Regulations should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The proposed amendments to the Regulations entitled Rules Governing Surplus Lines Insurance at 14 VAC 5-350-30, 14 VAC 5-350-90,
14 VAC 5-350-100, 14 VAC 5-350-160, and 14 VAC 5-350-165 which are attached hereto and made a part hereof, should be, and they are hereby,
ADOPTED to be effective April 1, 2010.

(2) AN ATTESTED COPY hereof shall be sent by the Clerk of the Commission to the Bureau of Insurance in care of Deputy Commissioner
Brian P. Gaudiose, who forthwith shall give further notice of the adoption of the amendments to the Regulations by mailing a copy of this Order, including a
clean copy of the attached final amended Regulations, to all licensed group self-insurance associations, local government group self-insurance pools and
certain interested parties designated by the Bureau.

(3) The Commission's Division of Information Resources forthwith shall cause a copy of this Order, together with a copy of the amended
Regulations, to be forwarded to the Virginia Registrar of Regulations for appropriate publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations, and shall make
available this Order and the amended Regulations on the Commission's website, http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(4) The Bureau shall file with the Clerk of the Commission an affidavit of compliance with the notice requirements of Ordering Paragraph (2)
above.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Rules Governing Surplus Lines Insurance" is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation
Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00225
MARCH 19, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In the matter of Adopting Amendments to the Rules Governing Surplus Lines Insurance

CORRECTING ORDER

In an Order Adopting Amendments to Rules ("Order") entered herein March 17, 2010, ordering paragraph 2 requires that a copy of the Order,
including a clean copy of the attached final amended Regulations, be sent to all licensed group self-insurance associations, local government group self-
insurance pools and certain interested parties designated by the Bureau. The correct language, however, should require that a copy of the Order, including a
clean copy of the attached final amended Regulations, be sent to all licensed surplus lines brokers.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) Ordering paragraph 2 shall be corrected to read: "AN ATTESTED COPY hereof shall be sent by the Clerk of the Commission to the
Bureau of Insurance in care of Deputy Commissioner Brian P. Gaudiose, who forthwith shall give further notice of the adoption of the amendments to the

Regulations by mailing a copy of this Order, including a clean copy of the attached final amended Regulations, to all licensed surplus lines brokers."

(2) All other provisions of the Order to Take Notice entered March 17, 2010, shall remain in full force and effect.
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CASE NO. INS-2009-00227
JULY 30, 2010

PETITION OF
SHIRLEY RUTH W. GIBSON

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation, appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner for the Commission's Bureau of Insurance, as
Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia." Pursuant to his grant of authority, the Deputy Receiver, in his Second
Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure, established appeal procedures for appeals or challenges of any decision made by the
Deputy Receiver with respect to claims made against Shenandoah.

In the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver, the Commission imposed a moratorium which required Shenandoah to "cease the payment of policy
loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, fund transfers, lapses, cash-outs and similar payments,” etc.” The Commission's Order Appointing Deputy
Receiver also authorized the Deputy receiver to "implement a procedure for the exemption from any such . . . moratorium . . . those hardship claims, as he
may define them, that he, in his sole discretion, deems proper under the circumstances."

The Deputy Receiver adopted a Hardship Policy for exemptions to the current and any future moratorium, and determined that the Hardship
Policy would be limited to persons showing an immediate need for funds. In addition, the Deputy Receiver determined that hardship exemptions would be
limited to a maximum of 70% of the cash surrender value or policy loan value in order to conserve Shenandoah's cash reserves and maintain liquidity during
the Receivership.’

On October 9, 2009, Shirley Ruth W. Gibson ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the Commission contesting the Deputy
Receiver's partial denial of her Hardship Request made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 001050124.

By Order dated October 14, 2009, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before November 16, 2009.

On November 6, 2009, the Petitioner filed additional documentation to support her hardship claim, including letters from a physician, a family
friend, her employer, and a pastor.

On November 12, 2009, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer and asked that the Petition be denied. In his Answer, the Deputy Receiver stated
that the Petitioner's request for a hardship exemption was not fully granted due to her failure to present evidence of a current financial hardship.

By Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated February 3, 2010, an evidentiary hearing was scheduled for February 26, 2010, via telephone conference for
the purpose of receiving testimony and evidence on the Petition.

On February 11, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed a list of witnesses and exhibits to be introduced during the telephonic hearing.

On February 26, 2010, a hearing was held in this matter. The Petitioner appeared pro se. Robert A. Dybing, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the
Deputy Receiver. John O. Cox, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Commission.

At the hearing, the Petitioner testified as to the circumstances that led her to apply for a Hardship Exemption. The Petitioner further testified that
she did not provide the Deputy Receiver with any past due bills, bank statements, or documentation of her household income.

Donald Beatty, Esquire, senior counsel in the Commission's Office of General Counsel and receivership manager for Shenandoah, testified as to
the day-to-day operations of the Company and its efforts to be rehabilitated. Additionally, Mr. Beatty testified as to the terms of the Order Appointing
Deputy Receiver. Specifically, Mr. Beatty testified that paragraph 12(e) of the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver orders Shenandoah to cease payment of
policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and similar payments.® Mr. Beatty further testified that paragraph 13(b) of the Order Appointing Deputy
Receiver authorizes the Deputy Receiver to implement a hardship exemption from the moratorium on policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and
similar payments.” Mr. Beatty confirmed that prior to establishing the hardship exemption, the Deputy Receiver consulted with outside legal counsel,

! Commonwealth of Virginia, at the Relation of the State Corporation Commission v. Shenandoah Life Insurance Company, Case No. INS-2009-00032,
Order Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation (February 12, 2009) ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver").

2 Id. at paragraph 12(e).

3 Id. at paragraph 13(b).

* Deputy Receiver's Answer at 1.
*1d. at 7-8.

® Transcript at 41-42.

71d. at 42.
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accounting and investment consultants, as well as the Company's Chief Financial Officer and in-house actuary.® Mr. Beatty maintained that the 70% limit
was established to preserve the Company's ability to pay claims and continuing business expenses.’

Mr. Beatty further testified that in order for a policy owner to qualify for hardship relief and exemption from the moratorium, the Deputy
Receiver requires evidence of imminent financial need to pay past-due bills, medical bills, past-due taxes, and bills of that nature.'® Mr. Beatty testified that
he did not receive the requested financial information necessary to grant the Petitioner's hardship request."’

On March 26, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued a Hearing Examiner's Report finding that the Petitioner has a hardship. The Hearing
Examiner's Report recommended that the Commission enter an Order adopting the finding that the Petitioner has a hardship, reversing the Deputy Receiver's

Determination of Appeal, and directing the Deputy Receiver to pay the Petitioner 70% of the cash value of her annuity.'?

On April 7, 2010, the Petitioner filed comments to the report requesting that the funds from her annuity be sent directly to her financial
institution.

On April 15, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed his Objections to Report of Hearing Examiner ("Objections"). In his Objections, the Deputy
Receiver contended that the Petitioner, while deserving of sympathy, did not sufficiently demonstrate a financial hardship."

The Deputy Receiver further asserted that the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver vested him with the "sole discretion" to adopt exemptions from
the moratorium, and that the standard of review applicable to this matter should be whether the Deputy Receiver abused his discretion in the Determination

of Appeal.™*

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein, is of the opinion and finds that the Petitioner's Petition for Review is
denied and the Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is affirmed.

The Petitioner is definitely deserving of our sympathy. She tried to provide for the expenses of her retirement through her own savings, in this
case, by purchasing an annuity from Shenandoah.

Through absolutely no fault of her own, her retirement plans were disrupted and damaged when Shenandoah's financial condition deteriorated
and it was forced to ask this Commission to place it into receivership.

We agree with the Deputy Receiver that the appropriate standard of review in this proceeding is whether the Deputy Receiver abused his
discretion in his Determination of Appeal. As sympathetic as we are to the Petitioner's plight, we cannot find on the facts of this case that the Deputy
Receiver abused his discretion. That is the legal burden that the Petitioner must reach, and we do not find that she has met the legal standard necessary to
show that the Deputy Receiver abused his discretion.

If the Petitioner's financial situation changes, the Petitioner is free to re-apply for a Hardship Exemption. The dismissal of this claim does not
preclude the Petitioner from filing another Hardship Exemption request if her financial circumstances change for the worse.

The optimal outcome for this Petitioner, as well as all of the thousands of others similarly situated, is for the Deputy Receiver to be successful in
his efforts to find a buyer for Shenandoah that will maximize the recovery of all policy owners. That is the goal.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Petitioner's Petition for Review is hereby DENIED;

(2) The Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby AFFIRMED;

(3) The Petition of Shirley Ruth W. Gibson for review of Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DISMISSED; and

(4) The papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

¥1d. at 43.

? 1d. at 44-45.

"%1d. at 42.

''1d. at 45-46.

"2 Hearing Examiner's Report at 5-6.
1 Objections at 1.

4. at 5.
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CASE NO. INS-2009-00244
JANUARY 11, 2010

PETITION OF
BARBARA H. JANISAITIS

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah"). In addition, the order appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner of the Commission's
Bureau of Insurance as Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of authority, the Deputy
Receiver in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure established appeal procedures for appeals or challenges of
any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims against Shenandoah.

On October 20, 2009, Barbara H. Janisaitis ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the State Corporation Commission
contesting the Deputy Receiver's denial of her "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 001044791.

On December 7, 2009, the Petitioner and Shenandoah, by counsel, filed a joint motion to dismiss this matter without prejudice. In support of
their motion the parties stated that they have resolved the issues raised by the Petitioner. The parties have requested that this matter be dismissed without
prejudice.

On December 9, 2009, the Hearing Examiner issued his report in this matter. In his report the Hearing Examiner granted the joint motion to
dismiss and recommended that the Commission enter and Order adopting the findings of his report and passing the papers herein to the file for ended causes.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein, is of the opinion that this matter should be dismissed.
Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Joint Motion to Dismiss is hereby GRANTED;

(2) The Petition for Review of Barbara H. Janisaitis is hereby DISMISSED without prejudice; and

(3) The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00248
FEBRUARY 2, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

NORTH CAROLINA MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

CONSENT ORDER

North Carolina Mutual Life Insurance Company ("Defendant") is a foreign corporation domiciled in the State of North Carolina and licensed by
the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia. By Order To Take Notice
entered herein on November 4, 2009, the Defendant was ordered to take notice that the Commission would enter an order subsequent to November 12, 2009,
suspending the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in Virginia unless on or before November 12, 2009, the Defendant requested a
hearing before the Commission regarding the proposed suspension of its license.

By letter of Richard C. Barnes, the Defendant's Corporate Secretary, dated November 9, 2009, and received by the Clerk of the Commission on
November 12, 2009, the Defendant requested a hearing in this matter.

By affidavit of James H. Speed, Jr., the Defendant's President and Chief Executive Officer, dated January 13, 2010, and received by the
Commission's Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau") on January 22, 2010, the Defendant consented to the entry of an order prohibiting it from soliciting or issuing
any new insurance policies or contracts in the Commonwealth of Virginia until further Order of the Commission.

In light of the foregoing, the Bureau has recommended that this Consent Order be entered in this matter.

THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein and the recommendation of the Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that a Consent
Order should be entered.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the Defendant shall issue no new contracts or policies of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia
until further Order of the Commission.
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CASE NO. INS-2009-00249
JANUARY 7, 2010
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In the matter of Adopting Amendments to the Rules Governing Settlement Agents

ORDER ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO RULES

By Order to Take Notice ("Order") entered herein November 12, 2009, all interested persons were ordered to take notice that subsequent to
December 21, 2009, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") would consider the entry of an order adopting amendments proposed by the Bureau
of Insurance ("Bureau") to the Commission's "Rules Governing Settlement Agents" set forth in Chapter 395 of Title 14 of the Virginia Administrative Code
unless on or before December 21, 2009, any person objecting to the adoption of the proposed amendments filed a request for hearing with the Clerk of the
Commission ("Clerk™).

The Order also required all interested persons to file their comments in support of or in opposition to the proposed amendments on or before
December 21, 2009.

No comments or requests for a hearing were filed with the Clerk.

THE COMMISSION, having considered the proposed amendments, is of the opinion that the attached amendments to the Rules should be
adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The proposed amendments to Chapter 395 of Title 14 of the Virginia Administrative Code entitled "Rules Governing Settlement Agents,"
which are to be published in Chapter 395 of Title 14 of the Virginia Administrative Code, amended at 14 VAC 5-395-30 and 14 VAC 5-395-40, which are
attached hereto and made a part hereof, should be, and they are hereby, ADOPTED to be effective January 25, 2010.

(2) AN ATTESTED COPY hereof, shall be sent by the Clerk of the Commission to the Bureau in care of Deputy Commissioner Brian P.
Gaudiose, who forthwith shall give further notice of the adoption of the amendments to the Rules by mailing a copy of this Order, including a clean copy of
the attached final amended Rules, to all licensed title insurance companies and other interested parties designated by the Bureau.

(3) The Commission's Division of Information Resources forthwith shall cause a copy of this Order, including a copy of the amended Rules, to
be forwarded to the Virginia Register of Regulations for appropriate publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations and shall make this Order and the
attached amended Rules available on the Commission's website, http:/www.scc.virginia.gov/caseinfo.htm.

(4) The Bureau of Insurance shall file with the Clerk of the Commission an affidavit of compliance with the notice requirements of paragraph (2)
of this Order.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Rules Governing Settlement Agents" is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation
Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00250
SEPTEMBER 10, 2010

PETITION OF
FRANK P. HUSSEY

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver"), appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner of the
Commission's Bureau of Insurance as Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of authority,
the Deputy Receiver in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure established appeal procedures for appeals or
challenges of any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims against Shenandoah.

On November 2, 2009, Frank P. Hussey ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the Commission contesting the Deputy
Receiver's denial of his "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 001059082.

By Order dated November 16, 2009, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before December 17, 2009.

On December 14, 2009, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer to the Petition and asked that the Petition be denied. In his Answer, the Deputy
Receiver stated that the Petitioner's initial request for a hardship exemption was granted, but limited to an annual systematic surrender charge-free
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withdrawal of ten percent (10%) of the accumulated value of his annuity as long as total payments did not exceed seventy percent (70%) of the cash
surrender or non-forfeiture of his policy. The Petitioner has challenged the determination, and instead seeks the full cash surrender of his policy.

By Chief Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated March 9, 2010, an evidentiary hearing was scheduled for May 12, 2010, via telephone conference call
for the purpose of receiving testimony and evidence on the Petition.

On March 24, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed a list of witnesses and exhibits to be introduced during the telephonic hearing.

On May 12, 2010, a hearing was conducted as scheduled. John O. Cox, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Commission. The Petitioner
appeared pro se, via telephone. Robert A. Dybing, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Deputy Receiver.

At the hearing, the Petitioner explained his financial hardship and his need for the remaining cash value of his life insurance policy. The
Petitioner explained that while he paid all of his bills in a timely manner, he had to depend on loans from family and friends to do so. Additionally, the
Petitioner stated that he would gladly pay a surrender charge in order to receive his money.

Donald Beatty, Esquire, senior counsel in the Commission's Office of General Counsel and receivership manager for Shenandoah, testified as to
the day-to-day operations of the company and its efforts to be rehabilitated. Additionally, Mr. Beatty testified as to the terms of the Order Appointing
Deputy Receiver. Specifically, Mr. Beatty testified that paragraph 12(e) of the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver orders Shenandoah to cease payment of
policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and similar payments.' Mr. Beatty further testified that paragraph 13(b) of the Order Appointing Deputy
Receiver authorizes the Deputy Receiver to implement a hardship exemption from the moratorium on policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and
similar payments.”> Mr. Beatty confirmed that prior to establishing the hardship exemption, the Deputy Receiver consulted with outside legal counsel,
accounting and investment consultants, as well as the Company's Chief Financial Officer and in-house actuary. Mr. Beatty maintained that the seventy
percent (70%) limit was established to preserve the Company's ability to pay claims and continuing business expenses. Mr. Beatty also explained that the
Petitioner could reapply for the hardship exemption if his circumstances changed and he was not able to pay his bills as they came due.

On July 28, 2010, the Chief Hearing Examiner issued her Report in which she found that: (i) the Petitioner failed to show that he had imminent
financial need necessary to qualify for a hardship exemption to allow full cash surrender of his policy; (ii) the Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
should be affirmed; and (iii) the Petition should be dismissed without prejudice in order to allow the Petitioner the opportunity to reapply for a hardship
request if he has information at a later date that would compel the full cash surrender of his policy.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Chief Hearing Examiner, is of the opinion that the
findings and recommendations of the Chief Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 001059082 is hereby AFFIRMED;
(2) The Petition of Frank P. Hussey for review of Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DISMISSED without prejudice; and

(3) The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

! Commonwealth of Virginia, At the Relation of the State Corporation Commission v. Shenandoah Life Insurance Company, Case No. INS-2009-00032,
Order Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation (February 12, 2009).

2 1d.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00251
MARCH 9, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

WOODOLPH ROMEO,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated subsections 1 and 9 of § 38.2-1831 of the
Code of Virginia by providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in his license application filed with the Commission, and
by having been convicted of a felony.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letters dated September 29, 2009, and
November 4, 2009, and mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.



101
ANNUAL REPORT OF THE STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated subsections 1 and 9 of § 38.2-1831 of the Code of
Virginia by providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in his license application filed with the Commission, and by having
been convicted of a felony.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00253
JANUARY 8, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
HOLE-IN-WON.COM, LLC d/b/a HOLE-IN-WON.COM,
GOLF MARKETING WORLDWIDE, LLC d/b/a GOLF MARKETING, LLC,
KEVIN KOLENDA,
and
TIM KIRCHOFF,
Defendants

JUDGMENT ORDER

By Order entered herein on November 24, 2009, the Defendants were ordered to take notice that the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") would enter a Judgment Order subsequent to December 15, 2009, permanently enjoining the Defendants from transacting the business of
insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, unless on or before December 15, 2009, the Defendants filed with the Clerk of the Commission a responsive
pleading and a request for a hearing. The Order was based on allegations by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau") that the Defendants violated § 38.2-1024 of
the Code of Virginia by offering and selling hole-in-one insurance coverage to Virginia residents without being properly licensed to transact the business of
insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

As of the date of this Order, the Defendants have failed to file a responsive pleading to object to the entry of a Judgment Order, nor have they
requested a hearing.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) Defendants Hole-in-Won.com LLC d/b/a Hole-in-Won.com, Golf Marketing Worldwide, LLC d/b/a Golf Marketing, LLC, Kevin Kolenda,
and Tim Kirchoff be, and they are hereby, permanently enjoined from transacting the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2009-00259
JANUARY 4, 2010

PETITION OF
ANTHEM HEALTH PLANS OF VIRGINIA, INC.,
HEALTHKEEPERS, INC.,
PENINSULA HEALTH CARE, INC.,
and
PRIORITY HEALTH CARE, INC.,

Petition of Anthem Health Plans of Virginia, Inc., Healthkeepers, Inc., Peninsula Health Care, Inc., and Priority Health Care, Inc., for approval to
provide utilization management and case management for members receiving benefits under a Medicare Supplement plan from locations outside
of Virginia

EINAL ORDER

On November 16, 2009, Anthem Health Plans of Virginia, Inc., HealthKeepers, Inc., Peninsula Health Care Inc., and Priority Health Care, Inc.
(collectively, "Anthem") filed a Petition under Rule 5 VAC 5-20-80 of the State Corporation Commission's ("Commission") Rules of Practice and Procedure
and the Final Order entered in Case No. INS-2007-00141." In the Final Order, the Commission continued the requirement that Anthem cause the following
services to be provided from offices located in Virginia: claims processing and case management, customer service, quality management, provider services,
medical management, and network development. The Commission permitted Anthem to provide the following services from offices located outside of the
Commonwealth of Virginia: actuarial, underwriting, marketing, community relations, distribution management, and sales. In the Final Order, the
Commission also provided that if Anthem seeks to provide any of the aforementioned services currently required to be provided from offices located inside
of Virginia, it should seek permission from the Commission by filing a petition ". . . setting forth a specific and detailed proposal for providing such services
out of state, inclugling specific and detailed information on how and where Anthem will provide such services, as well as safeguards for ensuring adequate
levels of service."

In the Petition, Anthem requests approval of the Commission to provide utilization management and case management for members receiving
benefits under a Medicare Supplement plan from locations outside of Virginia.

According to Anthem:

(1) Currently, medical management utilization review and case management for Anthem's Medicare Supplement membership is performed by
one full-time nurse in Virginia. Anthem does not seek to reduce or eliminate the work of this Virginia-based reviewer. Anthem is seeking approval to allow
similarly trained personnel outside of Virginia to perform reviews. Alternative locations currently include nursing staff in Georgia and Wisconsin. The
current Virginia workload does not justify the need to hire additional staff in Virginia to support it, but there is at times more work than one reviewer can
handle alone. Moreover, support for periods of time when the Virginia reviewer is absent is needed.

(2) The engagement of reviewers located outside of Virginia will not change how providers and members interact with Anthem for utilization
review of claims and case management. The assignment of reviewers occurs within Anthem's internal work flow, and the methodology by which time
frames and standards of review are managed by Anthem would not change whether a case is retained by the Virginia-based reviewer or assigned to someone
in another state. The level and speed of connectivity is no different between Anthem's in-state and out-of-state reviewers since both types are on the same
internal communication network and have access to the same databases of information.

(3) Anthem believes utilization review of claims and case management services will not be degraded by having professional-level review
services performed outside of Virginia. A larger stable of reviewers is expected to enhance the timeliness of review and reduce delay associated with the
absence of local reviewers. The services will be conducted in accordance with both Virginia insurance and Department of Health regulations regardless of
location.

As an ancillary matter, this Petition also seeks approval for the nursing staff that provides utilization review and case management services
outside of Virginia to members to also be able to provide incidental customer and provider service functions in order that the member and the provider can
be served to the extent possible by one telephone call, rather than having to be transferred around the Company for such incidental services. Examples of
such incidental services include a member's request for an ID card, or information about other Anthem services, or a member's or provider's request for the
status of a submitted claim.

(4) The relief sought by this Petition does not include relief to allow utilization review and case management services for Virginia customers
from locations outside of the United States.

Finally, Anthem represents that it has provided an advance draft of the Petition to the Division of Consumer Counsel, Office of the Attorney
General, the Medical Society of Virginia ("MSV"), and the Virginia Dental Association. Anthem stated that MSV has authorized Anthem to include in the
Petition a representation that MSV does not object to the Petition.

On November 30, 2009, the Commission entered a Scheduling Order, in which it stated that "[i]f there is no opposition to the Petition, the
Commission may grant the Petition without further proceedings."

! Petition of Anthem Health Plans of Virginia, Inc., HealthKeepers, Inc., Priority Health Care, Inc., Peninsula Health Care, Inc., WellPoint, Inc., Anthem
Southeast, Inc., For Amendment of Final Order in Case. No. INS-2002-00131, Case No. INS-2007-00141, 2007 SCC Ann. Rpt. 114, Final Order (Aug. 9,
2007) ("Final Order").

? Final Order at 8, 4.

* Scheduling Order at 2.
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On December 10, 2009 the Bureau filed its Response to the Petition. The Bureau states that it does not oppose the relief requested by Petitioners.
NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the Petition and the Bureau's Response thereto, finds the Petition should be granted.

Anthem's request is limited and we also note the absence of public comments on the Petition as well as the fact that MSV does not oppose the
Petition.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) Anthem's Petition is GRANTED.

(2) That when seeking utilization management and case management for members receiving benefits under a Medicare Supplement plan,
Anthem is permitted to supplement its current Virginia-based reviewers with review organizations located outside of Virginia but within the United States.

(3) Anthem nursing staff that provides utilization review and case management services outside of Virginia to members may also provide
incidental customer and provider service functions in order that members and providers can be served to the extent possible by one telephone call. Examples
of incidental services include a member's request for an ID card, or information about other Anthem services, or a member's provider's request for the status
of a submitted claim.

(4) The other provisions of the Final Order in Case No. INS-2007-00141 are not affected hereby, and Anthem shall continue to comply herewith.

(5) This matter is dismissed and the papers herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00260
JANUARY 11, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on a market conduct examination performed by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, in certain instances, has violated
§§ 38.2-503 and 38.2-514 B of the Code of Virginia by engaging in unfair trade practices; and violated §§ 38.2-3115 B, 38.2-3407.1 B, and 38.2-3407.4 A
of the Code of Virginia, as well as 14 VAC 5-400-40 A, 14 VAC 5-400-50 A, 14 VAC 5-400-60 A, 14 VAC 5-400-60 B, 14 VAC 5-400-70 B, and
14 VAC 5-400-70 D by engaging in unfair settlement claims practices.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Eight Thousand
Dollars ($8,000), waived its right to a hearing, agreed to the entry by the Commission of a cease and desist order, and agreed to comply with the Corrective
Action Plan contained in the Market Conduct Examination Report as of June 30, 2007.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted;

(2) The Defendant cease and desist from any future conduct which constitutes a violation of §§ 38.2-503, 38.2-514 B, 38.2-3115B,
38.2-3407.1 B or 38.2-3407.4 A of the Code of Virginia or 14 VAC 5-400-40 A, 14 VAC 5-400-50 A, 14 VAC 5-400-60 A, 14 VAC 5-400-60 B,
14 VAC 5-400-70 B, and 14 VAC 5-400-70 D; and

(3) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2009-00261
JANUARY 13, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

GROUP DENTAL SERVICE OF MARYLAND, INC.,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on a market conduct examination performed by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of a dental plan organization ("DPO") in the Commonwealth of Virginia, in certain
instances, has violated §§ 38.2-5803 A 1, 38.2-5803 A 2, 38.2-5805 C 9, and 38.2-6108 A 1 of the Code of Virginia by failing to comply with Managed Care
Health Insurance Plan and DPO requirements; violated §§ 38.2-3407.15 B 1, 38.2-3407.15 B 1 b, 38.2-3407.15 B 2, 38.2-3407.15 B 3, 38.2-3407.15 B 4,
38.2-3407.15 B 4 a (ii) (d), 38.2-3407.15 B 5, 38.2-3407.15 B 6, 38.2-3407.15B 7, 38.2-3407.15 B 8, 38.2-3407.15 B 9, 38.2-3407.15 B 10,
38.2-3407.15 B 11, 38.2-3407.15 C, 38.2-6108 A 5, and 38.2-510 A 15 of the Code of Virginia by failing to comply with the requirements for provider
contracts and claims; violated subsection 1 of § 38.2-502 and § 38.2-503 of the Code of Virginia, as well as 14 VAC 5-90-60 B 1, 14 VAC 5-90-130 A,
14 VAC 5-90-160, and 14 VAC 5-90-170 A by failing to comply with advertising requirements; violated §§ 38.2-316 A, 38.2-316 B, 38.2-316 C 1,
38.2-3407.4 A, 38.2-6109.1, 38.2-6109.2, 38.2-6110 A, and 38.2-6110 B of the Code of Virginia by failing to comply with policy and form requirements;
violated §§ 38.2-1812 A, 38.2-1822 A, 38.2-1833 A 1, and 38.2-6112 of the Code of Virginia by failing to comply with agent licensing requirements;
violated subsection 8 of § 38.2-606 of the Code of Virginia by failing to comply with the requirements of disclosure authorization forms; violated
§§ 38.2-510 A 2 and 38.2-3407.1 B of the Code of Virginia, as well as 14 VAC 5-400-50 A, 14 VAC 5-400-60 A, and 14 VAC 5-400-70 B by failing to
properly handle claims; and violated § 38.2-3542 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to comply with cancellation and non renewal requirements.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Thirty-nine Thousand
Dollars ($39,000), waived its right to a hearing, agreed to the entry by the Commission of a cease and desist order, and agreed to comply with the Corrective
Action Plan contained in the Market Conduct Examination Report as of June 30, 2008.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted;

(2) The Defendant cease and desist from any future conduct which constitutes a violation of §§ 38.2-5803 A 1, 38.2-5803 A 2, 38.2-5805 C 9,
38.2-6108 A 1, 38.2-3407.15 B 1, 38.2-3407.15 B 1 b, 38.2-3407.15 B 2, 38.2-3407.15 B 3, 38.2-3407.15 B 4, 38.2-3407.15 B 4 a (ii) (d), 38.2-3407.15 B 5,
38.2-3407.15 B 6, 38.2-3407.15 B 7, 38.2-3407.15 B 8, 38.2-3407.15 B 9, 38.2-3407.15 B 10, 38.2-3407.15 B 11, 38.2-3407.15 C, 38.2-6108 A 5,
38.2-510 A 15, subsection 1 of § 38.2-502, 38.2-503, 38.2-316 A, 38.2-316 B, 38.2-316 C 1, 38.2-3407.4 A, 38.2-6109.1, 38.2-6109.2, 38.2-6110 A,
38.2-6110 B, 38.2-1812 A, 38.2-1822 A, 38.2-1833 A 1, 38.2-6112, subsection 8 of § 38.2-606, 38.2-510 A 2, 38.2-3407.1 B or 38.2-3542 C of the Code of
Virginia, or 14 VAC 5-90-60 B 1, 14 VAC 5-90-130 A, 14 VAC 5-90-160, 14 VAC 5-90-170 A, 14 VAC 5-400-50 A, 14 VAC 5-400-60 A, or
14 VAC 5-400-70 B; and

(3) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00264
JULY 20, 2010

PETITION OF
CAROLYN L. MCCRIMMON

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER
On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order

Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver"), appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner for the
Commission's Bureau of Insurance, as Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of
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authority, the Deputy Receiver, in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure, established appeal procedures for
appeals or challenges of any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims made against Shenandoah.

On November 17, 2009, Carolyn L. McCrimmon ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the State Corporation Commission
contesting the Deputy Receiver's denial of her "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 000748158.

By Order dated November 25, 2009, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before December 30, 2009.

On December 29, 2009, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer to the Petition and asked that the Petition be denied. In his Answer, the Deputy
Receiver stated that the Petitioner's request for a hardship exemption was denied due to her failure to demonstrate an immediate need for funds that could not
be satisfied from other sources.

By Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated March 9, 2010, an evidentiary hearing was scheduled for April 13, 2010, via telephone conference call for
the purpose of receiving testimony and evidence on the Petition.

On March 18, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed a list of witnesses and exhibits to be introduced during the telephonic hearing.

On April 13, 2010, a telephonic hearing was convened as scheduled. The Petitioner appeared pro se. Robert A. Dybing, Esquire, appeared as
counsel to the Deputy Receiver. John O. Cox, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Commission.

At the hearing, the Petitioner established her financial hardship by testifying that her expenses exceed her income and that she had filed for
bankruptcy. The Petitioner also documented additional expenses and reduction in income related to an injury.

Donald Beatty, Esquire, senior counsel in the Commission's Office of General Counsel and receivership manager for Shenandoah, testified as to
the day-to-day operations of the company and its efforts to be rehabilitated. Additionally, Mr. Beatty testified as to the terms of the Order Appointing
Deputy Receiver. Specifically, Mr. Beatty testified that paragraph 12(e) of the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver orders Shenandoah to cease payment of
policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and similar payments.' Mr. Beatty further testified that paragraph 13(b) of the Order Appointing Deputy
Receiver authorizes the Deputy Receiver to implement a hardship exemption from the moratorium on policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and
similar payments.> Mr. Beatty confirmed that prior to establishing the hardship exemption, the Deputy Receiver consulted with outside legal counsel,
accounting and investment consultants, as well as the Company's Chief Financial Officer and in-house actuary. Mr. Beatty maintained that the 70% limit
was established to preserve the Company's ability to pay claims and continuing business expenses.

On May 19, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued his Report in which he found that the Petitioner has a hardship and recommended that the
Commission enter an order adopting his finding, reversing the Deputy Receiver's Decision, and directing the Deputy Receiver to pay the Petitioner 70% of
the cash value of her account.

On June 9, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed Notice to the Hearing Examiner stating that he did not intend to contest the matter further. On
June 29, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed Notice to the Hearing Examiner stating that the Petitioner had been paid 70% of her account value and requesting
that this matter be dismissed with prejudice.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Hearing Examiner, is of the opinion that the findings
and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 000748158 is hereby REVERSED;
(2) The Petition for Review of Carolyn L. McCrimmon is hereby GRANTED; and

(3) The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

! Commonwealth of Virginia, At the Relation of the State Corporation Commission v. Shenandoah Life Insurance Company, Case No. INS-2009-00032,
Order Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation (February 12, 2009).

21d.
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CASE NO. INS-2009-00265
JULY 23, 2010

PETITION OF
DOROTHY L. BASAR

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver"), appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner for the
Commission's Bureau of Insurance, as Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of
authority, the Deputy Receiver, in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure, established appeal procedures for
appeals or challenges of any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims made against Shenandoah.

On November 17, 2009, Dorothy L. Basar ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the State Corporation Commission
contesting the Deputy Receiver's partial denial of her "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 001045211.

By Order dated November 25, 2009, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before December 30, 2009.

On December 29, 2009, the Deputy Receiver filed his answer and asked that the Petition be denied. In his Answer, the Deputy Receiver stated
that the Petitioner's request for a hardship exemption was not fully granted due to her failure to present evidence of financial hardship sufficient to justify a
full cash surrender.

By Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated March 9, 2010, an evidentiary hearing was scheduled for April 14, 2010, via telephone conference call for
the purpose of receiving testimony and evidence on the Petition.

On March 17, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed a list of witnesses and exhibits to be introduced during the telephonic hearing.

On April 14, 2010, a hearing was held in this matter. The Petitioner was unable to appear. Joseph L. Basar, her son, testified on her behalf as her
power of attorney. Mr. Basar established the Petitioner's hardship by testifying that the Petitioner resides in a skilled nursing facility and that her monthly
expenses exceed her income.

Donald Beatty, Esquire, senior counsel in the Commission's Office of General Counsel and receivership manager for Shenandoah, testified as to
the day-to-day operations of the company and its efforts to be rehabilitated. Additionally, Mr. Beatty testified as to the terms of the Order Appointing
Deputy Receiver. Specifically, Mr. Beatty testified that paragraph 12(e) of the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver orders Shenandoah to cease payment of
policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and similar payments.' Mr. Beatty further testified that paragraph 13(b) of the Order Appointing Deputy
Receiver authorizes the Deputy Receiver to implement a hardship exemption from the moratorium on policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and
similar payments.> Mr. Beatty confirmed that prior to establishing the hardship exemption, the Deputy Receiver consulted with outside legal counsel,
accounting and investment consultants, as well as the Company's Chief Financial Officer and in-house actuary. Mr. Beatty maintained that the 70% limit
was established to preserve the Company's ability to pay claims and continuing business expenses.

Mr. Beatty testified that he did not have documentation of income or assets or certain information regarding expenses at the time the Petitioner's
hardship request was evaluated.

On June 2, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued a Hearing Examiner's Ruling directing the Deputy Receiver to reconsider the Petitioner's hardship
request in light of the information presented at the hearing.

On June 10, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed Notice to the Hearing Examiner stating that the Petitioner's request had been reviewed and approved
by the Deputy Receiver. The Deputy Receiver also requested that the Hearing Examiner issue a ruling that this matter is now moot because the Petitioner

had received the requested relief.

On June 21, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued a report in which he recommended that the Commission enter an order adopting the finding that
the Deputy Receiver's determination that hardship relief is justified and dismissing this case from the docket of active matters.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Hearing Examiner, is of the opinion that the findings
and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Deputy Receiver's revised determination of appeal is hereby AFFIRMED;

! Commonwealth of Virginia, At the Relation of the State Corporation Commission v. Shenandoah Life Insurance Company, Case No. INS-2009-00032,
Order Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation (February 12, 2009).

21d.
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(2) The Petition of Dorothy L. Basar for review of Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DISMISSED; and

(3) The papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00266
OCTOBER 6, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

DORIS OWENS,
Defendant

EINAL ORDER

Based on allegations of the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"), on January 28, 2010, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") issued a
Rule to Show Cause against the Defendant Doris Owens ("Owens"). Subsequently, on May 17, 2010, the Commission issued an Amended Rule to Show
Cause ("Rule"). Therein, the Bureau alleged that Owens violated § 38.2-1809, 38.2-1813, 38.2-1826 and subsections 1, 3, 6, and 10 of § 38.2-1831 of the
Code of Virginia by: (i) failing to retain all records relating to the sale of bail bonds; (ii) misappropriating premium funds and/or failing to remit such funds
to the agency in the ordinary course of business; (iii) failing to properly notify the Bureau of an administrative action taken against her by the Department of
Criminal Justice Services ("DCJS"); and (iv) providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in her health and life annuities
applications filed with the Bureau on or about February 11, 2009.

An evidentiary hearing was conducted on June 16, 2010. The Defendant appeared, and being represented by counsel, fully participated in the
hearing. The Bureau appeared by counsel. On August 17, 2010, the Hearing Examiner filed his report ("Report"), which thoroughly summarized the factual
and procedural history of this case, as well as the evidence and arguments presented at the hearing. Additionally, the Hearing Examiner made a number of
findings and recommendations in his Report. Specifically, the Hearing Examiner made the following findings:

(i) The Bureau proved by clear and convincing evidence that the Defendant misappropriated premium funds and/or failed to remit such funds to
the agency in the ordinary course of business in violation of § 38.2-1813 A of the Code;

(i) The Bureau proved by clear and convincing evidence that the Defendant failed to retain all records relating to her sale of bail bonds in
violation of § 38.2-1809 B of the Code;

(iii) The Bureau failed to prove by clear and convincing evidence that the Defendant failed to notify the Bureau of the administrative action that
was taken against her by DCJS as required by § 38.2-1826 of the Code;

(iv) The Bureau proved by clear and convincing evidence that the Defendant provided materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete, or untrue
information in her insurance applications filed with the Bureau on or about February 11, 2009, in violation of subsection 1 of § 38.2-1831 of the Code; and

(v) The Bureau failed to prove by clear and convincing evidence that the Defendant obtained her licenses through misrepresentation or fraud in
violation of subsection 3 of § 38.2-1831 of the Code.

Based on his findings, the Hearing Examiner agreed with the Bureau's recommended sanction of revocation of the Defendant's insurance licenses
for a period of one (1) year. The Hearing Examiner concluded by recommending that the Commission enter an order adopting his findings and dismissing
this case from the Commission's docket of active cases.

On September 7, 2010, the Bureau and the Defendant separately filed their Comments to the Report. The Bureau agreed with the findings and
recommendations of the Hearing Examiner. The Defendant's counsel asked that the Commission place her on probation for a period of eighteen (18) to
twenty-four (24) months as an alternative to revoking her licenses. Among other things, counsel noted that subsequent to the hearing, the Defendant
completed payment to the agent to whom she owed the premiums.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the entire record in this proceeding, including the Report and the Comments thereto, adopts the
Hearing Examiner's findings of fact as to the violations of law, but modifies the recommendation concerning the sanction to be imposed. We believe that the
Defendant's licenses should be revoked for a period of four (4) months rather than one (1) year; however, should the Defendant elect to reapply for these or
any other insurance licenses following the end of the four (4) month revocation period, she shall be placed on probation for a period of thirty-six (36)
months. We believe the shorter revocation period is appropriate in light of the Defendant's successful efforts to repay the full amount of premium funds
owed. As reflected in the record, we are also cognizant of the significant degree to which the Defendant contributes to her family's household income.
However, we also believe our decision to revoke her licenses for some length of time, combined with an extended period of probation, properly takes into
account the seriousness of the violations that she was found to have committed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in Virginia as an insurance agent be, and the same are hereby,
REVOKED, for a period of four (4) months from the date of this Order.
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(2) The Defendant shall be placed on probation for a period of thirty-six (36) months beginning on the date, if any, that she obtains an insurance
license from the Bureau following the end of the revocation period.

(3) This case is dismissed from the Commission's docket and the papers herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00267
JULY 30, 2010

PETITION OF
MARIA LEAHY

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation, appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner for the Commission's Bureau of Insurance, as
Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia."! Pursuant to his grant of authority, the Deputy Receiver, in his Second
Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure, established appeal procedures for appeals or challenges of any decision made by the
Deputy Receiver with respect to claims made against Shenandoah.

In the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver, the Commission imposed a moratorium which required Shenandoah to "cease the payment of policy
loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, fund transfers, lapses, cash-outs and similar payments," etc.> The Commission's Order Appointing Deputy
Receiver also authorized the Deputy Receiver to "implement a procedure for the exemption from any such . . . moratorium . . . those hardship claims, as he
may define them, that he, in his sole discretion, deems proper under the circumstances."

The Deputy Receiver adopted a Hardship Policy for exemptions to the current and any future moratorium, and determined that the Hardship
Policy would be limited to persons showing an immediate need for funds. In addition, the Deputy Receiver determined that hardship exemptions would be
limited to a maximum of 70% of the cash surrender value or policy loan value in order to conserve Shenandoah's cash reserves and maintain liquidity during
the Receivership.’

On November 13, 2009, Maria Leahy ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the Commission contesting the Deputy
Receiver's partial denial of her Hardship Request made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 001045433.

By Order dated December 9, 2009, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before January 11, 2010.

On January 8, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer and asked that the Petition be denied. In his Answer, the Deputy Receiver stated that
the Petitioner's request for a hardship exemption was denied due to her failure to demonstrate an immediate and severe financial need that could not be

relieved from other sources.

By Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated January 25, 2010, an evidentiary hearing was scheduled for March 5, 2010, via telephone conference for the
purpose of receiving testimony and evidence on the Petition.

On January 25, 2010, the Petitioner filed a response to the Deputy Receiver's Answer in which she stated that she had an imminent and severe
financial need that forced her to borrow additional funds to meet her obligations.

On February 9, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed a list of witnesses and exhibits to be introduced during the telephonic hearing.

On March 5, 2010, a hearing was held in this matter. The Petitioner appeared pro se. Robert A. Dybing, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the
Deputy Receiver. John O. Cox, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Commission.

At the hearing, the Petitioner testified that her household income exceeds her fixed expenses. The Petitioner further testified that she had liquid
assets in excess of the amount requested in her Hardship Request.

Donald Beatty, Esquire, senior counsel in the Commission's Office of General Counsel and receivership manager for Shenandoah, testified as to
the day-to-day operations of the Company and its efforts to be rehabilitated. Additionally, Mr. Beatty testified as to the terms of the Order Appointing

! Commonwealth of Virginia, at the Relation of the State Corporation Commission v. Shenandoah Life Insurance Company, Case No. INS-2009-00032,
Order Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation (February 12, 2009) ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver").

2 Id. at paragraph 12(e).
3 Id. at paragraph 13(b).
* Deputy Receiver's Answer at 1.

S1d. at 4.
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Deputy Receiver. Specifically, Mr. Beatty testified that paragraph 12(e) of the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver orders Shenandoah to cease payment of
policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and similar payments.® Mr. Beatty further testified that paragraph 13(b) of the Order Appointing Deputy
Receiver authorizes the Deputy Receiver to implement a hardship exemption from the moratorium on policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and
similar payments.” Mr. Beatty confirmed that prior to establishing the hardship exemption, the Deputy Receiver consulted with outside legal counsel,
accounting and investment consultants, as well as the Company's Chief Financial Officer.® Mr. Beatty maintained that the 70% limit was established to
preserve the Company's ability to pay claims and continuing business expenses.’

Mr. Beatty further testified that a policy owner would not qualify for a Hardship Exemption if they could meet their financial obligations from
other sources. '

Mr. Beatty testified that the Petitioner's request for a Hardship Exemption was denied because she was making all loan and bill payments and had
other resources to meet her financial obligations."!

On March 25, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued a Hearing Examiner's Report finding that the Petitioner has a hardship. The Hearing Examiner
recommended that the Commission enter an Order adopting the finding that the Petitioner has a hardship, reversing the Deputy Receiver's Determination of
Appeal, and directing the Deputy Receiver to pay the Petitioner $9,500 from the cash value of her annuity.'?

On April 15, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed his Objections to Report of Hearing Examiner ("Objections"). In his Objections, the Deputy
Receiver contended that the Petitioner did not demonstrate a present financial hardship.'

The Deputy Receiver further asserted that the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver vested him with the "sole discretion" to adopt exemptions from
the moratorium, and that the standard of review applicable to this matter should be whether the Deputy Receiver abused his discretion in the Determination
of Appeal.'*

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein, is of the opinion and finds that the Petitioner's Petition for Review is
denied and the Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is affirmed.

The Petitioner is definitely deserving of our sympathy. She tried to provide for the expenses of her retirement through her own savings, in this
case, by purchasing an annuity from Shenandoah.

Through absolutely no fault of her own, her retirement plans were disrupted and damaged when Shenandoah's financial condition deteriorated
and it was forced to ask this Commission to place it into receivership.

We agree with the Deputy Receiver that the appropriate standard of review in this proceeding is whether the Deputy Receiver abused his
discretion in his Determination of Appeal. As sympathetic as we are to the Petitioner's plight, we cannot find on the facts of this case that the Deputy
Receiver abused his discretion. That is the legal burden that the Petitioner must reach, and we do not find that she has met the legal standard necessary to
show that the Deputy Receiver abused his discretion.

If the Petitioner's financial situation changes, the Petitioner is free to re-apply for a Hardship Exemption. The dismissal of this claim does not
preclude the Petitioner from filing another Hardship Exemption request if her financial circumstances change for the worse.

The optimal outcome for this Petitioner, as well as all of the thousands of others similarly situated, is for the Deputy Receiver to be successful in
his efforts to find a buyer for Shenandoah that will maximize the recovery of all policy owners. That is the goal.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Petitioner's Petition for Review is hereby DENIED;

(2) The Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby AFFIRMED;

® Transcript at 22.

71d. at 23.

¥ 1d. at 24.

% 1d. at 25-26.

'1d. at 23.

'Id. at 27.

"2 Hearing Examiner's Report at 6.
'3 Objections at 1.

'*1d. at 4-5
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(3) The Petition of Maria Leahy for review of Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DISMISSED; and

(4) The papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00273
FEBRUARY 19, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In the matter of Adopting Amendments to the Rules Governing Local Government Group Self-Insurance Pools and the Rules
Governing Group Self-Insurers of Liability Under the Virginia Workers' Compensation Act

ORDER ADOPTING RULES

By Order To Take Notice entered December 17, 2009, all interested persons were ordered to take notice that subsequent to February 1, 2010, the
State Corporation Commission ("Commission") would consider the entry of an order adopting amendments to the regulations entitled "Rules Governing
Local Government Group Self-Insurance Pools" and "Rules Governing Group Self-Insurers of Liability Under the Virginia Workers' Compensation Act"
("Regulations"), proposed by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau") which amend the regulations at 14 VAC 5-360-10 through 14 VAC 5-360-160,
14 VAC 5-360-180 and 14 VAC 5-360-190, and 14 VAC 5-370-10 through 14 VAC 5-370-150, and 14 VAC 5-370-170 and 14 VAC 5-370-180, unless on
or before February 1, 2010, any person objecting to the adoption of the proposed amendments to the Regulations filed a request for a hearing with the Clerk
of the Commission ("Clerk").

The Order to Take Notice also required all interested persons to file their comments in support of or in opposition to the proposed amendments to
the Regulations on or before February 1, 2010.

No request for a hearing was filed with the Clerk. By letter dated January 15, 2010, the Virginia Municipal Liability Pool and VML Insurance
Programs (collectively, "VML") filed comments with the Clerk. The comments filed by VML suggested changes to 14 VAC 5-360-120 which currently
requires that the contract between a liability pool and service agent must state that the service agent will handle all claims incurred during the contract period
to their conclusion without additional compensation. The amendment suggested by VML requires that the contract between a liability pool and service agent
must state that the service agent will handle all claims incurred during the contract period to their conclusion without additional compensation while
allowing the Commission to approve alternative compensation methodology.

The Bureau has recommended that the changes suggested by VML be accepted.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the Bureau's recommendation, is of the opinion that the attached amendments to the
Regulations should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The amendments to the regulations entitled Rules Governing Local Government Group Self-Insurance Pools and Rules Governing Group
Self-Insurers of Liability Under the Virginia Workers' Compensation Act at 14 VAC 5-360-10 through 14 VAC 5-360-160, 14 VAC 5-360-180 and
14 VAC 5-360-190, and 14 VAC 5-370-10 through 14 VAC 5-370-150, and 14 VAC 5-370-170 and 14 VAC 5-370-180 which are attached hereto and made
a part hereof, should be, and they are hereby, ADOPTED to be effective March 1, 2010.

(2) The Commission's Division of Information Resources forthwith shall cause a copy of this Order, together with the attached rules, to be
forwarded to the Virginia Registrar of Regulations for appropriate publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations.

(3) The Commission's Division of Information Resources shall make available this Order and the adopted rules on the Commission's website,
http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(4) AN ATTESTED COPY hereof, together with a copy of the amended regulations, shall be sent by the Clerk of the Commission to the Bureau
in care of Deputy Commissioner Douglas C. Stolte, who forthwith shall give further notice of the amendments to the regulations by mailing a copy of this
Order, together with the amended regulations, to all licensed group self-insurance associations, local government group self-insurance pools and certain
interested parties designated by the Bureau.

(5) The Bureau shall file with the Clerk of the Commission an affidavit of compliance with the notice requirements of Ordering Paragraph (4)
above.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Rules Governing Local Governing Group Self-Insurance Pools " is on file and may be examined at the
State Corporation Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond,
Virginia.
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CASE NO. INS-2009-00275
FEBRUARY 8, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

PARK AVENUE PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Section 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia ("Code") provides in subdivision 8 of subsection A that the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") may suspend or revoke the license of any insurance company to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia
whenever the company has been found insolvent by a court of any other state. Section 38.2-1041 of the Code provides that the Commission may
immediately revoke or suspend the license of any insurer to do the business of insurance in Virginia without prior notice on the grounds specified in
subdivision 8 of subsection A of § 38.2-1040 of the Code.

Park Avenue Property and Casualty Insurance Company ("Defendant"), an Oklahoma domiciled insurer, was initially licensed to transact the
business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia on September 20, 2005. On November 18, 2009, the District Court of Oklahoma County, State of
Oklahoma issued a Consent Order of Liquidation with a Finding of Insolvency and Permanent Injunction against the Defendant. On November 20, 2009, the
District Court of Oklahoma County, State of Oklahoma issued a Final Order of Liquidation and Cancellation of Policies.

The Commission's Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Defendant's license to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth
of Virginia be revoked.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) Pursuant to § 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia, the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of
Virginia is hereby REVOKED;

(2) The Defendant shall transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia;

(3) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause notice of the revocation of the Defendant's license to be published in the manner set forth in § 38.2-1043
of the Code of Virginia; and

(4) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00278
FEBRUARY 4, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

OPTIMA HEALTH PLAN,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on a market conduct examination performed by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of a health maintenance organization in the Commonwealth of Virginia, in certain
instances, has violated §§ 38.2-503 and 38.2-510 A 15 of the Code of Virginia by failing to comply with unfair claim settlement practices; violated
§ 38.2-511 of the Code of Virginia by failing to maintain a complete complaint register; violated §§ 38.2-3407.14 A, 38.2-3407.14 B, 38.2-3407.15B 4,
38.2-3407.15 B 7, 38.2-3407.15 B 8, 38.2-3407.15 B 9, 38.2-3407.15 B 10, 38.2-3407.15 B 11, and 38.2-3542 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to
comply with the provisions relating to Accident and Sickness Insurance; violated §§ 38.2-5804 A and 38.2-5804 A 1 of the Code of Virginia by failing to
comply with the requirements of the complaint system for MCHIPs; and violated 14 VAC 5-90-170 A, 14 VAC 5-211-150 A, 14 VAC 5-211-230 B 4 by
failing to comply with advertising requirements.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-4316 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Twenty-four Thousand
Dollars ($24,000), waived its right to a hearing, agreed to the entry by the Commission of a cease and desist order, and agreed to comply with the Corrective
Action Plan contained in the Market Conduct Examination Report as of December 31, 2006.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.
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NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted;

(2) The Defendant cease and desist from any conduct which constitutes a violation of §§ 38.2-503, 38.2-510 A 15, 38.2-511, 38.2-3407.14 A,
38.2-3407.14 B, 38.2-3407.15 B 4, 38.2-3407.15 B 7, 38.2-3407.15 B 8, 38.2-3407.15 B 9, 38.2-3407.15 B 10, 38.2-3407.15 B 11, 38.2-3542 C,
38.2-5804 A or 38.2-5804 A 1 of the Code of Virginia, or 14 VAC 5-90-170 A, 14 VAC 5-211-150 A, or 14 VAC 5-211-230 B 4; and

(3) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00280
JANUARY 5, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

CHRISTINE M. KEPPERS,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against her by the State of California.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of her right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated November 10, 2009, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of her right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against her by the State of California.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2009-00284
OCTOBER 4, 2010

PETITION OF
EVELYN R. SNUTCH

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an Order appointing the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation, appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner of the Commission's Bureau of Insurance as
Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of authority, the Deputy Receiver in his Second
Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure established appeal procedures for appeals or challenges of any decision made by the
Deputy Receiver with respect to claims against Shenandoah.

On December 28, 2009, Evelyn R. Snutch ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the Commission contesting the Deputy
Receiver's denial of her "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 000991603.

By Order dated January 27, 2010, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before March 1, 2010.

On February 9, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer to the Petition, Motion to Dismiss, and Memorandum in Support of Motion to
Dismiss, requesting the Commission deny the Petition and affirm the Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal. In support of his Motion to Dismiss,
among other things, the Deputy Receiver stated that the Petitioner has already received the maximum amount permissible under the hardship procedure, and
granting the relief requested would risk creating a preference in favor of the Petitioner and to the detriment of other policyholders, in violation of
§ 38.2-1509 of the Code of Virginia.

By Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated March 3, 2010, the Petitioner was directed to file a response to the Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss on
or before March 19, 2010.

The Petitioner filed her Response to the Motion to Dismiss on March 18, 2010. In her Response, the Petitioner stated she feared the foreclosure
of her home, and she provided an itemized account of her outstanding bills with supporting documentation.

By Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated April 27, 2010, an evidentiary hearing was scheduled for June 11, 2010, via telephone conference call for
the purpose of receiving testimony and evidence on the Petition.

On June 11, 2010, a hearing was conducted as scheduled. John O. Cox, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Bureau of Insurance. Robert A.
Dybing, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Deputy Receiver. There was no appearance by or on behalf of the Petitioner. The Commission made numerous
attempts to contact the Petitioner via telephone at the number she provided, and she could not be reached; therefore, the hearing was continued pending
further ruling of the Hearing Examiner.

The Petitioner was subsequently contacted by the Office of the Hearing Examiner, and she advised that she did not wish to appear at a
rescheduled hearing.

On July 20, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued his Report in which he found that the Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss be granted, the
Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal be affirmed, and the Petition be dismissed.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Hearing Examiner, is of the opinion that the findings
and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

1. The Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss is hereby GRANTED;

2. The Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 000991603 is hereby AFFIRMED;
3. The Petition of Evelyn R. Snutch for review of Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DISMISSED; and

4. The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2009-00285
JULY 8, 2010

PETITION OF
MARY M. CARPENTER

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver"), appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner of the
Commission's Bureau of Insurance as Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of authority,
the Deputy Receiver in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure established appeal procedures for appeals or
challenges of any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims against Shenandoah.

On December 28, 2009, Mary M. Carpenter ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the Commission contesting the Deputy
Receiver's denial of her "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 000829156.

By Order dated January 22, 2010, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before February 23, 2010.

On February 2, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer to the Petition and asked that the Petition be denied. In his Answer, the Deputy
Receiver stated that the Petitioner's request for a hardship exemption was denied due to her failure to demonstrate an immediate need for funds that could not
be satisfied from other sources. Additionally, the Deputy Receiver contended that the Petitioner intended to cash in her Shenandoah policy in order to
purchase a replacement policy from another company.

By Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated February 26, 2010, an evidentiary hearing was scheduled for April 7, 2010, via telephone conference call for
the purpose of receiving testimony and evidence on the Petition.

On March 18, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed a list of witnesses and exhibits to be introduced during the telephonic hearing. On April 7, 2010,
the Petitioner filed her list of witnesses and exhibits to be introduced during the telephonic hearing.

On April 7, 2010, a telephonic hearing was convened as scheduled. C. Gary Triggs, Esquire, appeared on behalf of the Petitioner. Robert A.
Dybing, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Deputy Receiver. John O. Cox, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Commission.

At the hearing, the Petitioner established her financial hardship and her need for the remaining cash value of her life insurance policy. The
Petitioner also stated that the information relied upon by the Deputy Receiver concerning her intention of purchasing a new life insurance policy with the
funds received from her Shenandoah policy was from an unscrupulous insurance agent that originally sold the Petitioner her Shenandoah policy.
Additionally, five witnesses appeared on behalf of the Petitioner and corroborated her testimony.

Donald Beatty, Esquire, Senior Counsel in the Commission's Office of General Counsel and Receivership Manager for Shenandoah, testified as
to the day-to-day operations of the company and its efforts to be rehabilitated. Additionally, Mr. Beatty testified as to the terms of the Order Appointing
Deputy Receiver. Specifically, Mr. Beatty testified that paragraph 12(e) of the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver orders Shenandoah to cease payment of
policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and similar payments." Mr. Beatty further testified that paragraph 13(b) of the Order Appointing Deputy
Receiver authorizes the Deputy Receiver to implement a hardship exemption from the moratorium on policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and
similar payments.> Mr. Beatty confirmed that prior to establishing the hardship exemption, the Deputy Receiver consulted with outside legal counsel,
accounting and investment consultants, as well as the Company's Chief Financial Officer and in-house actuary. Mr. Beatty maintained that the 70% limit
was established to preserve the Company's ability to pay claims and continuing business expenses.

On May 14, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued his Report in which he found that based upon the evidence presented, the Petitioner faces
imminent and severe financial hardship and required funds from her Shenandoah policy to pay her bills. Failure to make a hardship exception for the
Petitioner would create a preference in favor of those receiving hardship exemptions when faced with similar or less dire financial situations. Additionally,
even if review was limited to the information before the Deputy Receiver when he made his Determination of Appeal, it showed that the Petitioner faced
imminent and severe financial hardship. The Hearing Examiner recommended that the Commission enter an order adopting his findings and the Deputy
Receiver's Determination of Appeal should be reversed.

On May 21, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed with the Commission a Notice to Hearing Examiner ("Notice"). In his Notice, the Deputy Receiver
stated that: (i) Shenandoah does not intend to contest the matter further; and (ii) Shenandoah proposes to issue a check to the Petitioner in the amount of
70% of the amount available under her policy, calculated as of February 12, 2009, the date Shenandoah entered Receivership.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein, the Report of the Hearing Examiner, and the Notice to Hearing Examiner
filed by the Deputy Receiver, is of the opinion that the findings and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

' Commonwealth of Virginia, At the Relation of the State Corporation Commission v. Shenandoah Life Insurance Company, Case No. INS-2009-00032,
Order Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation (Feb. 12, 2009).

2 1d.
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Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
1. The Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 000829156 is hereby REVERSED;
2. The Petition for Review of Mary M. Carpenter is hereby GRANTED; and

3. The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2009-00286
MAY 6, 2010

PETITION OF
DEDICATED RESOURCES

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah"). In addition, the Order appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner of the Commission's
Bureau of Insurance as Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of authority, the Deputy
Receiver in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure established appeal procedures for appeals or challenges of
any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims against Shenandoah.

On December 28, 2009, Michael Moecker & Associates, Inc., bankruptcy trustees for Dedicated Resources, Inc. and Dedicated Trustees, Inc.
(collectively, "Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the State Corporation Commission contesting the Deputy Receiver's denial of its
"Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 000734546.

By Order dated January 27, 2010, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before March 1, 2010.

On March 1, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer to the Petition and asked that the Petition be denied.

In a Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated March 4, 2010, the matter was set for a telephonic hearing for April 15, 2010.

On April 2, 2010, the Petitioner filed a letter with the Clerk of the Commission in which it advised that it could no longer pursue its Petition
because the fees associated with litigating this matter would cost more than the net cash value of the policy at issue. Among other things, the Petitioner

asked that the April 15, 2010, telephonic hearing be cancelled, but maintained that it continued to face financial hardships.

On April 8, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued his Report in which he recommended that the hearing on the matter be cancelled and the Petition
should be dismissed.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Hearing Examiner, is of the opinion that the findings
and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
1. The Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 000734546 is hereby AFFIRMED;
2. The Petition for Review of Dedicated Resources is hereby DISMISSED; and

3. The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00016
APRIL 16, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

CAROL Y. KELLUM,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C and subsection 1 of
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§ 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against her by the State
of California, and by providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in her license application filed with the Commission.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been notified of her right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letters dated February 16, 2010, and
March 17, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of her right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C and subsection 1 of § 38.2-1831 of the Code of
Virginia by failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against her by the State of California and by
providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in her license application filed with the Commission.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to one (1) year
from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00017
JULY 21, 2010

PETITION OF
VERA B. FOOTE

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver"), appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner of the
Commission's Bureau of Insurance, as Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of
authority, the Deputy Receiver, in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure, established appeal procedures for
appeals or challenges of any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims against Shenandoah.

On January 12, 2010, Vera B. Foote ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the Commission contesting the Deputy Receiver's
denial of her "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 001045557.

By Order dated January 27, 2010, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before March 2, 2010.

On February 9, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer to the Petition and asked that the Petition be denied. In his Answer, the Deputy
Receiver stated that the Petitioner applied for a hardship exemption and she was approved for and received a partial surrender of her policy. The Petitioner

has challenged the determination to grant only a partial surrender, and instead seeks to fully surrender her policy.

By Chief Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated March 9, 2010, an evidentiary hearing was scheduled for May 13, 2010, via telephone conference call
for the purpose of receiving testimony and evidence on the Petition.

On March 24, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed a list of witnesses and exhibits to be introduced during the telephonic hearing.
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On May 13, 2010, a hearing was conducted as scheduled. John O. Cox, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Commission. The Petitioner
appeared via telephone. Robert A. Dybing, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Deputy Receiver.

At the hearing, the Petitioner established her financial hardship by providing documentation of additional expenses and a budget which revealed
expenses that exceeded her income. The Petitioner also documented additional and significant expected expenses related to home repairs and medical needs.

Donald Beatty, Esquire, senior counsel in the Commission's Office of General Counsel and receivership manager for Shenandoah, testified as to
the day-to-day operations of the company and its efforts to be rehabilitated. Additionally, Mr. Beatty testified as to the terms of the Order Appointing
Deputy Receiver. Specifically, Mr. Beatty testified that paragraph 12(e) of the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver orders Shenandoah to cease payment of
policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and similar payments.' Mr. Beatty further testified that paragraph 13(b) of the Order Appointing Deputy
Receiver authorizes the Deputy Receiver to implement a hardship exemption from the moratorium on policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and
similar payments.> Mr. Beatty confirmed that prior to establishing the hardship exemption, the Deputy Receiver consulted with outside legal counsel,
accounting and investment consultants, as well as the Company's Chief Financial Officer and in-house actuary. Mr. Beatty maintained that the 70% limit
was established to preserve the Company's ability to pay claims and continuing business expenses.

By Chief Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated May 19, 2010, the Deputy Receiver was directed to review the additional documentation and
testimony presented at the hearing and advise the Commission in writing, within two weeks, what, if any, further action he intended to take on the
Petitioner's hardship request.

On May 21, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed with the Commission a Notice to Hearing Examiner ("Notice"). In his Notice, the Deputy Receiver
stated that (i) Shenandoah does not intend to contest the matter further, and (ii) Shenandoah proposes to issue a check to the Petitioner in the amount of 70%

of the amount available under her policy, calculated as of February 12, 2009, the date Shenandoah entered Receivership.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein, the Report of the Hearing Examiner, and the Notice to Hearing Examiner
filed by the Deputy Receiver, is of the opinion that the findings and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
1. The Petition of Vera B. Foote for review of Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DISMISSED with prejudice; and

2. The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

' Commonwealth of Virginia, At the Relation of the State Corporation Commission v. Shenandoah Life Insurance Company, Case No. INS-2009-00032,
Order Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation (February 12, 2009).

2 1d.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00018
JUNE 7, 2010

PETITION OF
LEE JOYNER, JR.

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver"), appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner for the
Commission's Bureau of Insurance, as Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of
authority, the Deputy Receiver in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure established appeal procedures for
appeals or challenges of any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims made against Shenandoah.

On January 25, 2010, Lee Joyner, Jr. ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the State Corporation Commission contesting the
Deputy Receiver's denial of his "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 000876050.

By Order dated January 27, 2010, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before March 2, 2010.

On February 26, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed his answer and asked that the Petition be denied.
On March 22, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed a Motion to Dismiss and Memorandum in Support of Motion to Dismiss. In support of his
motion, the Deputy Receiver stated that the dispute between Shenandoah and the Petitioner has been resolved. The Deputy Receiver requested that the

Commission dismiss the Petitioner's Petition, with prejudice.

On March 23, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued his Report in which he found that the Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss should be granted
and the Petition be dismissed with prejudice.
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NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Hearing Examiner, is of the opinion that the findings
and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss is hereby GRANTED;
(2) The Petition of Lee Joyner, Jr. for review of Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DISMISSED; and

(3) The papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00019
JULY 8§, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

ROBERTA L. GARCIA-GUAJARDO,

GARY J. HUNTER,
and

SANIBEL & LANCASTER INSURANCE, LLC
Defendants

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"), it is alleged that Gary J. Hunter and Sanibel & Lancaster Insurance,
LLC (collectively, "Defendants"), duly licensed by the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the
Commonwealth of Virginia, (i) violated § 38.2-310 of the Code of Virginia by charging fees to their customers that are not authorized by law; (ii) violated
§§ 38.2-502, 38.2-512, and subsections 7 and 10 of § 38.2-1831 by combining the amount of administrative service fees with the premium down payments,
thereby misrepresenting the actual cost of the insurance; (iii) violated § 38.2-1809 by refusing to make agency records available promptly upon request for
examination by the Bureau's investigators; (iv) violated § 38.2-1812 by sharing commissions or other compensation with unlicensed individuals for referrals
of business; (v) violated § 38.2-1812.2 and subsection 10 of § 38.2-1831 by charging administrative service fees that exceeded the fees listed on the agency's
disclosure form; (vi) violated § 38.2-1813 by failing to handle all premiums, return premiums, or other funds received by the Defendants in a fiduciary
capacity and by failing to maintain an accurate record and itemization of the funds deposited into the account; and (vii) violated § 38.2-1822 and
subsection 14 of § 38.2-1831 by knowingly permitting an unlicensed individual to act as an agent of an insurer licensed in Virginia and by knowingly
accepting business from such unlicensed agent.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendants' licenses upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendants have committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendants have been advised of their right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendants, without admitting any violation of
Virginia law, have made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendants have: (1) agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan they
have submitted to the Bureau. The Defendants understand that if they fail to comply with the terms of the Corrective Action Plan, the Bureau will, after
opportunity and notice to be heard, seek to revoke their licenses; (2) agreed to be placed on probation for a period of 5 years from the date of entry of this
Order; and (3) agreed to a monetary penalty in the amount of Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000) of which Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500)
will be tendered to the Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Virginia within 30 days of the date of entry of this Order. If the Defendants abide by the
Corrective Action Plan submitted to the Bureau, the remaining Twelve Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($12,500) of the penalty will be waived at the end of
the probation period.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendants pursuant to the authority
granted the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendants, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendants' offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendants in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted;

(2) The Defendants pay to the Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500) within
30 days of the date of the entry of this Order;

(3) The Defendants abide by the Corrective Action Plan that was submitted to the Bureau of Insurance; and

(4) The Commission shall retain jurisdiction in this matter for all purposes, including the institution of a show cause proceeding, or taking such
other action it deems appropriate, on account of the Defendants' failure to comply with the terms and undertakings of the settlement.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00019
DECEMBER 13, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

ROBERTA L. GARCIA-GUAJARDO,

GARY J. HUNTER,
and

SANIBEL & LANCASTER INSURANCE, LLC,
Defendants

JUDGMENT ORDER

On March 18, 2010, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") issued a Rule to Show Cause ("Rule") against Roberta L. Garcia-
Guajardo ("Garcia-Guajardo"), Gary J. Hunter ("Hunter"), and Sanibel & Lancaster Insurance, LLC ("Sanibel") (collectively, "Defendants"), in which the
Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau") alleged the following: (i) the Defendants violated § 38.2-310 of the Code of Virginia by charging customers a fee that is not
authorized by law; (ii) the Defendants violated §§ 38.2-502, 38.2-512, and subsections 7 and 10 of § 38.2-1831 by combining the amount of an
administrative service fee with the premium down payment, thereby misrepresenting the actual cost of the insurance; (iii) Sanibel and Hunter violated
§ 38.2-1809 by refusing to make agency records available promptly upon request for examination by Bureau investigators; (iv) Sanibel and Hunter violated
§ 38.2-1812 by sharing commissions or other compensation with unlicensed individuals for referrals of business; (v) the Defendants violated § 38.2-1812.2
and subsection 10 of § 38.2-1831 by charging an administrative service fee that exceeded the fee listed on the agency's disclosure form; (vi) Sanibel and
Hunter violated § 38.2-1813 by failing to handle all premiums, return premiums, or other funds received by the agency in a fiduciary capacity and by failing
to maintain an accurate record and itemization of the funds deposited into the account; (vii) Sanibel and Hunter violated § 38.2-1822 and subsection 14 of
§ 38.2-1831 by knowingly permitting an unlicensed individual to act as an agent of an insurer licensed in Virginia and by knowingly accepting business
from such agent; and (viii) Garcia-Guajardo violated § 38.2-1822 by acting as an agent of an insurer licensed in Virginia without being properly licensed and
after having voluntarily surrendered her insurance agent license to the Bureau. The Bureau sought the revocation of Sanibel's and Hunter's insurance agent
licenses, the entry of a permanent injunction against Garcia-Guajardo, and the assessment of monetary penalties against each of the Defendants.

The Rule ordered the Defendants to file a responsive pleading on or before April 6, 2010, scheduled a hearing before the Commission on June 24
and 25, 2010, and assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner to conduct further proceedings.

On April 7, 2010, Hunter and Sanibel filed an answer to the Rule in which they denied the allegations of wrongdoing. On April 8, 2010, Garcia-
Guajardo filed a Request for Extension ("Request") asking that the time to respond to the Rule be extended to April 16, 2010, and indicated that such request
was not opposed by the Bureau. The Request was granted by Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated April 9, 2010. Garcia-Guajardo filed an answer to the Rule
on April 16, 2010, in which she denied the allegations of wrongdoing brought by the Bureau.

On April 27, 2010, the Bureau filed a Motion for Default Judgment concerning Sanibel and Hunter on the grounds that they failed to file a timely
response to the Rule and that the responsive pleading was not signed as required by 5 VAC 5-20-20. Additionally, the Bureau requested that an expedited
hearing be scheduled to address its motion. On June 8, 2010, a hearing on the Bureau's Motion for Default Judgment was convened at which time counsel
for the Bureau advised that Hunter and the Bureau were in settlement discussions. Based on the progress of the discussions, the Bureau withdrew its
motion.

On June 22, 2010, the Bureau filed a Motion to Dismiss the Rule against Hunter and Sanibel after having reached settlement in this matter. The
Bureau asked the Commission to enter a proposed Settlement Order that included a copy of an agreed-upon Corrective Action Plan and advised that the
allegations and scheduled hearing in this matter with regard to Garcia-Guajardo should remain intact. The Commission entered the Settlement Order on
July 8,2010."

On June 24, 2010, an evidentiary hearing in this matter was convened in Virginia Beach as scheduled. Garcia-Guajardo appeared, and being
represented by counsel, fully participated in the hearing. The Bureau appeared by counsel. As a preliminary matter at the hearing, the Bureau's Motion to
Dismiss the Rule against Hunter and Sanibel was granted. Additionally, in his opening statement, counsel for the Bureau advised the Hearing Examiner that
the Bureau had elected not to proceed against Garcia-Guajardo regarding the allegations that she violated §§ 38.2-310, 38.2-502, 38.2-512, and 38.2-1812.2.
The remainder of the hearing was devoted to the allegation that Garcia-Guajardo violated § 38.2-1822 by acting as an agent without being properly licensed
and after having voluntarily surrendered her insurance agent license to the Bureau.

During the hearing, the Bureau called five witnesses: three former employees of Sanibel, a customer who purchased insurance from Sanibel, and
Bureau investigator Linwood G. Bennett, Jr. The testimony and evidence presented by the Bureau included ten specific transactions occurring between
July 2006 and December 2009 that it alleged were violations of § 38.2-1822. Garcia-Guajardo called as witnesses two current employees of Sanibel, and she
also testified on her own behalf.

On October 1, 2010, the Hearing Examiner filed his report ("Report"), which thoroughly summarized the factual and procedural history of this
case, as well as the evidence and arguments presented at the hearing. The Hearing Examiner began his analysis by discussing what activities require an
insurance agent license. Focusing on the language of § 38.2-1822 and related statutes, the Hearing Examiner determined that an unlicensed individual may
not provide a customer with a quote for the specific cost of insurance coverage from a specific insurance company or otherwise guide the customer to a
decision to purchase insurance. He further concluded that the statute does not require that the unlicensed individual be the sole actor in the transaction for a

' On September 22, 2010, a Rule to Show Cause was issued against Sanibel and Hunter based on allegations by the Bureau that Sanibel and Hunter had
violated the terms of the Settlement Order by failing to comply with certain provisions of the Corrective Action Plan. A hearing was held on October 14,
2010. This matter is under review by the Hearing Examiner and remains pending as of the date of this Order.
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violation to occur, nor can a violation of the statute be avoided by having a licensed agent contact the customer after an unlicensed individual has sold,
solicited, or negotiated the contract.

The Hearing Examiner turned next to whether the Bureau presented clear and convincing evidence to support the allegations that Garcia-
Guajardo acted as an insurance agent in the ten instances introduced at the hearing. He summarized the testimony of the Bureau's witnesses, including that
of Sanibel's former employees, who testified that they observed Garcia-Guajardo regularly discuss insurance coverages with customers and were aware that
customers' phone calls were transferred to her home phone line. He noted that the applications and related documents the Bureau introduced in support of
the allegations contained notes written in Garcia-Guajardo's handwriting concerning coverages and costs, fees, where the customer needed to sign, and
whether and when the policy was sold. In addition, the certification signatures on the applications were signed using a stamp that was in her sole possession.
The Hearing Examiner ultimately found that the testimony of the Bureau's witnesses, some of which was corroborated by Garcia-Guajardo, combined with
the consistency of the documents, met the clear and convincing evidentiary standard. The Hearing Examiner therefore made the following findings and
recommendations:

(1) The Bureau provided clear and convincing evidence of ten (10) specific instances in which Garcia-Guajardo violated § 38.2-1822 of the Code
of Virginia.

(2) Based upon Garcia-Guajardo's own testimony that she was aware she could not discuss coverages with a customer, she acted knowingly or
willfully.

(3) Pursuant to § 38.2-218 of the Code, Garcia-Guajardo should be penalized the maximum amount of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) for each
violation, for a total of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000).

(4) Pursuant to § 38.2-220, Garcia-Guajardo should be permanently enjoined from transacting the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of
Virginia.

On October 22, 2010, the Bureau and Garcia-Guajardo separately filed their Comments to the Report.

THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the Rule, the record, the Hearing Examiner's Report, the Comments filed, and the applicable
statutes, is of the opinion and finds that the Hearing Examiner's findings and recommendations as detailed in his Report should be adopted. We agree with
the Hearing Examiner's interpretation of the law, and we find that the Bureau proved by clear and convincing evidence that Garcia-Guajardo acted as an
agent without being properly licensed in ten specific instances. Furthermore, we consider the recommended penalties to be appropriate in this case given
that the unlicensed activity by Garcia-Guajardo occurred over an extended period of time and after she had voluntarily surrendered her insurance agent
license to the Bureau.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The findings and recommendations of the October 1, 2010 Hearing Examiner's Report are hereby adopted;

(2) Pursuant to § 38.2-218 of the Code, Garcia-Guajardo is penalized the maximum amount of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) for each
violation, for a total of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000);

(3) Pursuant to § 38.2-220 of the Code, Garcia-Guajardo should be permanently enjoined from transacting the business of insurance in the
Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(4) The Commission shall retain jurisdiction of this case pending the resolution of the Bureau of Insurance's case against the other two
Defendants.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00022
MARCH 30, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

LUCIUS WAYNE HENSLEY,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated §§ 38.2-1809 and 38.2-1813 of the Code of
Virginia by failing to make records available promptly upon request for examination by the Commission or its employees, by failing to hold all premiums,
return premiums, or other funds received by the Defendant in a fiduciary capacity, by failing to pay funds in the ordinary course of business to the insured or
his assignee, insurer, insurance premium finance company or agent entitled to the payment, and by commingling business or personal funds with funds
required to be maintained in a separate fiduciary account.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.
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The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated February 24, 2010, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated §§ 38.2-1809 and 38.2-1813 of the Code of Virginia by failing
to make records available promptly upon request for examination by the Commission or its employees, by failing to hold all premiums, return premiums, or
other funds received by the Defendant in a fiduciary capacity, by failing to pay funds in the ordinary course of business to the insured or his assignee,
insurer, insurance premium finance company or agent entitled to the payment, and by commingling business or personal funds with funds required to be
maintained in a separate fiduciary account.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00024
FEBRUARY 12, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

JOHN A. ROCCO,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Pennsylvania.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the

Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated January 12, 2010, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Pennsylvania.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
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(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00025
FEBRUARY 11, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

STEVEN JOHN TLACHAC,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Georgia.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated January 5, 2010, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Georgia.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NOS. INS-2010-00027 AND INS-2010-00028
OCTOBER 1, 2010

PETITION OF
SIGMUND GUBENSKI
and

PETITION OF
LUCY GUBENSKI

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an Order appointing the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission,
by Order Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver"), appointed Alfred W. Gross,
Commissioner of the Commission's Bureau of Insurance as Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to
his grant of authority, the Deputy Receiver in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure established appeal
procedures for appeals or challenges of any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims against Shenandoah.

On February 4, 2010, Sigmund and Lucy Gubenski ("Petitioners") filed Petitions for Review ("Petitions") with the Commission contesting the
Deputy Receiver's denial of their "Hardship Requests" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy Nos. 1047537 and 1047538.

By Order dated February 18, 2010, the Commission docketed the Petitions, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petitions on or before March 24, 2010.

On March 24, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer to the Petitions and asked that the Petitions be denied. In his Answer, the Deputy
Receiver, among other things, stated that the Petitioners' request for hardship exemptions were denied due to their failure to provide any information that
they faced a severe and imminent financial hardship that could not be relieved from other sources.

By Chief Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated March 25, 2010, an evidentiary hearing was scheduled for May 25, 2010, via telephone conference
call for the purpose of receiving testimony and evidence on the Petitions.

On May 4, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed a list of witnesses and exhibits to be introduced during the telephonic hearing. On May 6, 2010, the
Petitioners filed a list of witnesses and exhibits to be introduced during the telephonic hearing.

On May 25, 2010, a telephonic hearing was convened as scheduled. Roger F. Perry, Esquire, appeared on behalf of the Petitioners. Robert A.
Dybing, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Deputy Receiver. John O. Cox, Esquire, appeared as counsel to the Bureau of Insurance.

At the hearing, Mrs. Gubenski explained the Petitioners' financial hardships and their need for the remaining cash value of their life insurance
policies. Among other things, Mrs. Gubenski stated that she and her husband needed their hardship exemption for extraordinary costs such as assisted living
or home health care.

Donald Beatty, Esquire, Senior Counsel in the Commission's Office of General Counsel and Receivership Manager for Shenandoah, testified as
to the day-to-day operations of the Company and its efforts to be rehabilitated. Additionally, Mr. Beatty testified as to the terms of the Order Appointing
Deputy Receiver. Specifically, Mr. Beatty testified that paragraph 12(e) of the Order Appointing Deputy Receiver orders Shenandoah to cease payment of
policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and similar payments.' Mr. Beatty further testified that paragraph 13(b) of the Order Appointing Deputy
Receiver authorizes the Deputy Receiver to implement a hardship exemption from the moratorium on policy loans, cash or surrender values, surrenders, and
similar payments.”> Mr. Beatty confirmed that prior to establishing the hardship exemption, the Deputy Receiver consulted with outside legal counsel,
accounting and investment consultants, as well as the Company's chief financial officer and in-house actuary. Mr. Beatty maintained that the 70% limit was
established to preserve the Company's ability to pay claims and continuing business expenses.

On August 12, 2010, the Chief Hearing Examiner issued her Report in which she recommended that the Petitioners' Hardship Requests be
remanded to the Deputy Receiver with direction to the Petitioners to submit additional documentation on the costs of assisted living or home health care.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Chief Hearing Examiner, is of the opinion that the
findings and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

1. The Petitions of Sigmund and Lucy Gubenski for review of Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal are hereby REMANDED to the
Deputy Receiver for further consideration, upon documentation of the Petitioners of assisted living and home health care; and

2. The cases are dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

! Commonwealth of Virginia, At the Relation of the State Corporation Commission v. Shenandoah Life Insurance Company, Case No. INS-2009-00032,
Order Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation (February 12, 2009).

2 1d.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00029
MARCH 12, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

JOHN MICHAEL SANTOS,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Indiana.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letters dated January 19, 2010 and
February 16, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Indiana.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00030
FEBRUARY 24, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

DIANA M. WISDOM,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against her by the State of Indiana.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.
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The Defendant has been notified of her right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated January 5, 2010, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of her right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against her by the State of Indiana.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty days
from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00033
FEBRUARY 25, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

MICHAEL ROBERT LAVELLE,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of California.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated January 28, 2010, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of California.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;

(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;
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(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty days
from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00033
MARCH 18, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

MICHAEL ROBERT LAVELLE,
Defendant

VACATING ORDER

On February 25, 2010, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") entered an Order in this case revoking the Defendant's insurance agent
license for failing to report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of California.
Subsequent to the entry of the Order, the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau") received information indicating that the Defendant properly reported the
administrative action to the National Insurance Producer Registry ("NIPR"); however, it appears that NIPR failed to forward such information to the Bureau.
Consequently, the Bureau recommends that the Order be vacated and the Defendant's license reinstated.

The Commission, having considered the facts of the case and the Bureau's recommendation, is of the opinion that the Order Revoking License
should be vacated and the Defendant's license reinstated.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Order Revoking License in this case is hereby VACATED;
(2) The Defendant's insurance agent license is hereby reinstated; and

(3) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00034
JUNE 10, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

MICHAEL E. CAHILL,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated §§ 38.2-512, 38.2-3103, and subsections 10
and 12 of § 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia by making false or fraudulent statements or representations on or relative to an application or any document or
communication relating to the business of insurance for the purpose of obtaining a fee, commission, money, or other benefit from any insurer, agent, broker,
premium finance company, or individual; by knowingly securing, attempting to secure or causing to be secured a life insurance policy on any person who is
not in an insurable condition by means of misrepresentations or false or fraudulent statements; by using fraudulent, coercive, or dishonest practices in the
conduct of business in the Commonwealth; and by forging another's name to an application for insurance or to any document related to an insurance
transaction.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of his right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia
law, has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Seven Thousand
Five Hundred Dollars ($7,500), waived his right to a hearing, agreed to complete four (4) hours of continuing education courses on the subject of ethics
within twelve (12) months of the date of entry of this Order and provide written proof of completion to the Bureau, and agreed to be placed on probation for
a period of five (5) years from the date of entry of this Order.
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The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted;
(2) The Defendant be placed on probation for a period of five (5) years from the date of entry of this Order; and

(3) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00040
JULY 20, 2010

PETITION OF
LOUIS E. LANCASTER

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER
On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver"), appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner of the
Commission's Bureau of Insurance, as Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of
authority, the Deputy Receiver, in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure, established appeal procedures for

appeals or challenges of any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims against Shenandoah.

On March 9, 2010, Louis E. Lancaster ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the Commission contesting the Deputy
Receiver's denial of his "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy Nos. 000418843, 000499708, and 000430610.

By Order dated March 18, 2010, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before April 16, 2010.

On April 9, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer to the Petition and asked that the Petition be denied. In his Answer, the Deputy Receiver
stated that the Petitioner's request for a hardship exemption was denied due to his failure to provide any information that he faced a severe and imminent

financial hardship that could not be relieved from other sources.

By Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated May 6, 2010, an evidentiary hearing was scheduled for June 14, 2010, via telephone conference call for the
purpose of receiving testimony and evidence on the Petition.

On May 24, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed a list of witnesses and exhibits to be introduced during the telephonic hearing.
On June 9, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed with the Commission a Notice to Hearing Examiner ("Notice"). In his Notice, the Deputy Receiver
stated that (i) Shenandoah does not intend to contest the matter further, and (ii) Shenandoah proposes to issue a check to the Petitioner in the amount of 70%

of the amount available under her policy, calculated as of February 12, 2009, the date Shenandoah entered Receivership.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein, the Report of the Hearing Examiner, and the Notice to Hearing Examiner
filed by the Deputy Receiver, is of the opinion that the findings and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss is hereby GRANTED;
(2) The Petition of Louis E. Lancaster for review of Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DISMISSED with prejudice; and

(3) The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00041
MARCH 30, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

DARRELL JACKSON,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C and subsection 1 of
§ 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the
State of Colorado, and by providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in his license application filed with the Commission.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated February 17, 2010, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C and subsection 1 of § 38.2-1831 of the
Code of Virginia by failing to report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Colorado,
and by providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in his license application filed with the Commission.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00046
MARCH 24, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

NATIONAL STATES INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

IMPAIRMENT ORDER

National States Insurance Company ("Defendant"), a foreign corporation domiciled in the State of Missouri and licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, is required to maintain minimum capital of $1,000,000
and minimum surplus of $3,000,000.

Section 38.2-1036 of the Code of Virginia provides that if the Commission finds an impairment of the required minimum surplus of any foreign
insurer, the Commission may order the insurer to eliminate the impairment and restore the minimum surplus to the amount required by law and may prohibit
the insurer from issuing any new policies in the Commonwealth of Virginia while the impairment of its surplus exists.
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The Annual Statement of the Defendant, dated December 31, 2009, and filed with the Commission's Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"), indicates
capital of $3,500,000 and surplus of $2,284,839, an impairment in surplus of $715,161.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) On or before June 21, 2010, the Defendant eliminate the impairment in its surplus and restore the same to at least $3,000,000, and advise the
Commission of the accomplishment thereof by affidavit of the Defendant's president or other authorized officer.

(2) The Defendant shall issue no new contracts or policies of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia while the impairment of the
Defendant's surplus exists and until further order of the Commission.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00046
JULY 1, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

NATIONAL STATES INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

ORDER TO TAKE NOTICE

Pursuant to § 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia ("Code"), the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") may suspend or revoke the license
of any insurance company to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia whenever the Commission finds that the company has
violated any law of this Commonwealth.

National States Insurance Company, a foreign corporation domiciled in the State of Missouri ("Defendant"), is licensed by the Commission to
transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

By order entered herein March 24, 2010, the Defendant was ordered to eliminate the impairment in its surplus and restore the same to at least
$3,000,000 and advise the Commission of the accomplishment thereof by affidavit of the Defendant's president or other authorized officer on or before
June 21, 2010.

As of the date of this order, the Defendant has failed to eliminate the impairment in its surplus.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that the Defendant TAKE NOTICE that the Commission shall enter an order subsequent to July 12, 2010,
suspending the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia unless on or before July 12, 2010, the
Defendant files with Joel H. Peck, Clerk, State Corporation Commission, Document Control Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218, a request
for a hearing before the Commission with respect to the proposed suspension of the Defendant's license.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00046
JULY 20, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

NATIONAL STATES INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

ORDER SUSPENDING LICENSE

In an order entered herein July 1, 2010, National States Insurance Company, a Missouri corporation ("Defendant") licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, was ordered to take notice that the
Commission would enter an order subsequent to July 12, 2010, suspending the license of the Defendant to transact new business unless on or before July 12,
2010, the Defendant filed with the Clerk of the Commission a request for a hearing before the Commission to contest the proposed suspension of the
Defendant's license.

The Order to take Notice was entered due to the Defendant's failure to eliminate the impairment in its surplus and restore the same to at least
$3,000,000 and advise the Commission of the accomplishment thereof by affidavit of the Defendant's president or other authorized officer on or before
June 21, 2010.

As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed a request to be heard before the Commission with respect to the proposed suspension of
the Defendant's license.
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IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:

(1) Pursuant to § 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia, the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of
Virginia is hereby SUSPENDED;

(2) The Defendant shall issue no new contracts or policies of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia until further order of the Commission;
(3) The appointments of the Defendant's agents to act on behalf of the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby SUSPENDED;

(4) The Defendant's agents shall transact no new insurance business on behalf of the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia until further
order of the Commission;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause an attested copy of this Order to be sent to each of the Defendant's agents appointed to act on behalf of
the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia as notice of the suspension of such agent's appointment; and

(6) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause notice of the suspension of the Defendant's license to be published in the manner set forth in § 38.2-1043
of the Code of Virginia.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00047
MARCH 30, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

DERRICK DEWAYNE ROY,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Arizona.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated February 24, 2010, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Arizona.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty
(60) days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00052
APRIL 15, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

SEAN EDWARD TAYLOR,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Missouri.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the

Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated March 3, 2010, and mailed
to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to
report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Missouri.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00053
APRIL 15, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

CASEY L. HOFFERT,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of North Dakota.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.
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The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated February 17, 2010, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to
report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of North Dakota.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00054
APRIL 15, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

LORI ANN KOSLOSKE,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against her by the State of Colorado.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the

Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of her right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated March 3, 2010, and mailed
to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of her right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to
report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against her by the State of Colorado.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;

(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;
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(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00055
APRIL 15, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

MICHAEL TIMOTHY MCMAHON,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Louisiana.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated February 16, 2010, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to
report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Louisiana.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00058
MAY 17, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

MORTGAGE INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated §§ 6.1-2.26 and 38.2-1822 of the Code of
Virginia by acting as a settlement agent without being properly registered with the Virginia State Bar, and by acting as an agent of an insurer without first
obtaining a license in the manner and form prescribed by the Commission.

The Commission is authorized by § 6.1-2.27 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties and to suspend or revoke the
Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged
violations of Chapter 1.3 (§ 6.1-2.19 et seq.) of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia.

The Commission is also authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue
cease and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Forty Thousand
Dollars ($40,000) and waived its right to a hearing.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00062
AUGUST 16, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

PAUL M. GRAVITT,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated §§ 38.2-503, 38.2-504, and 38.2-512 of the
Code of Virginia by making, publishing, disseminating, circulating, or placing before the public an advertisement, announcement or statement containing an
assertion, representation or statement relating to the business of insurance which was untrue, deceptive or misleading, by making, publishing disseminating,
circulating, directly or indirectly, or aiding, abetting or encouraging the making, publishing, dissemination or circulation of any oral or written statement or
any pamphlet, circular, article or literature that is false, and maliciously critical of, or derogatory to, any person with respect to the business of insurance or
with respect to any person in the conduct of his or her insurance business and that is calculated to injure that person, and by making false or fraudulent
statements or representations on or relative to an application for the purpose of obtaining a fee, commission, money, or other benefit from any insurer, agent,
broker, premium finance company, or individual.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of his right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia
law, has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Five Thousand
Dollars ($5,000), waived his right to a hearing, agreed not to sell Medicare Advantage plans for a period of one (1) year from the date of entry of this Order,
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agreed to attend six (6) hours of ethics classes to be completed one (1) year from the date of entry of this Order and provide proof of completion to the
Bureau of Insurance, and agreed to be placed on probation for a period of one (1) year from the date of entry of this Order. The Defendant has been advised
that if the Bureau finds that he has not complied with the terms and conditions of his probation, it will initiate formal action to revoke his license.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted;
(2) The Defendant shall not sell Medicare Advantage plans for a period of one (1) year from the date of entry of this Order;

(3) The Defendant shall attend six (6) hours of ethics classes to be completed one (1) year from the date of entry of this Order and provide proof
of completion to the Bureau of Insurance;

(4) The Defendant shall be placed on probation for a period of one (1) year from the date of entry of this Order; and

(5) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00065
APRIL 21, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

VICTORIA FIRE & CASUALTY COMPANY,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on a market conduct examination performed by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-310 of the Code of
Virginia by charging or collecting fees for the procurement of insurance that were not included in the premium or stated in the policy; violated § 38.2-502 by
misrepresenting the benefits, advantages, conditions or terms of an insurance policy; violated § 38.2-1318 by failing to provide convenient access to files,
documents, and records relating to the examination; violated § 38.2-1905 A by failing to notify insureds in writing that a policy had been surcharged for an
at fault accident; violated § 38.2-1906 D by making or issuing insurance contracts or policies not in accordance with the rate and supplementary rate
information filings in effect for the Defendant; violated § 38.2-2234 A by failing to include all information required by the statute in its insurance credit
disclosure notice; violated § 38.2-2234 B by failing to rate policies with accurate credit information; violated §§ 38.2-2208 A, 38.2-2208 B, 38.2-2212 D,
38.2-2212 E, and 38.2-2212 F by failing to properly terminate policies of insurance; violated § 38.2-510 A 10, as well as 14 VAC 5-400-30, and
14 VAC 5-400-80 D, by failing to properly handle claims; violated §§ 38.2-2214 and 38.2-2220 by failing to use standard forms in the precise language filed
and approved by the Bureau; violated §§ 38.2-305 A, 38.2-305 B, 38.2-2202 A, and 38.2-2202 B by failing to include accurate information in policies; and
violated §§ 38.2-604 B, 38.2-604.1, and 38.2-610 A by failing to include accurate information in notices.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Twenty-two Thousand
Dollars ($22,000), waived its right to a hearing, confirmed that restitution was made to seven (7) consumers in the amount of One Thousand Five Hundred
Fifty-eight Dollars and Forty-one Cents ($1,558.41), and agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan set forth in its letters to the Bureau of Insurance
dated December 8, 2009, February 9, 2010, and March 11, 2010.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00066
MAY 6, 2010

APPLICATION OF
AMERICAN CAPITOL INSURANCE COMPANY

For approval of an assumption reinsurance agreement pursuant to § 38.2-136 C of the Code of Virginia

ORDER APPROVING APPLICATION

By petition filed with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") on April 15, 2009, American Capitol Insurance Company
("Petitioner"), a Texas-domiciled insurer licensed by the Commission to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, requested
approval of an assumption reinsurance agreement pursuant to § 38.2-136 of the Code of Virginia ("Code").

Effective January 1, 1998, the Petitioner entered into a 100% coinsurance agreement which provided for assuming all of Universal Life Insurance
Company's ("ULIC") individual life insurance policies in force with issue dates on or before December 31, 1997. The coinsurance agreement further
provided for the coinsured policies to be assumed via an assumption reinsurance agreement in the case of ULIC being placed into receivership.

On April 24, 2009, the Circuit Court of Jefferson County, Alabama entered an order placing ULIC into receivership, triggering the assumption
reinsurance agreement provision of the coinsurance agreement. Because the coinsurance agreement does not provide for policyholder's consent to the
assumption reinsurance agreement provision, the Petitioner has applied for approval pursuant to § 38.2-136 of the Code.

ULIC has waived its right to a hearing pursuant to § 38.2-136 C of the Code, as evidenced by letter of Denise B. Azar, Receiver for Universal
Life Insurance Company, dated March 31, 2010.

The Bureau of Insurance, having reviewed the application to ensure that Virginia policyholders will not lose any rights or claims afforded under
their original contracts pursuant to Chapter 17 of Title 38.2 of the Code, has recommended that the application be approved.

The Commission, having considered the application, the recommendation of the Bureau of Insurance that the application be approved, and the
law applicable hereto, is of the opinion that the application should be granted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the application of American Capitol Insurance Company for the approval of the reinsurance agreement
pursuant to § 38.2-136 C of the Code of Virginia be, and it is hereby, APPROVED.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00068
MAY 3, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

JUAN CARLOS MARTINEZ,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Indiana.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated March 17, 2010, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Indiana.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;
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(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00069
MAY 3, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

JOSHUA BERNARD COFFIN,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty (30) days administrative actions that were taken against him by the State of Indiana and the State of
Kentucky.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated March 17, 2010, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty (30) days administrative actions that were taken against him by the State of Indiana and the State of Kentucky.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00071
MAY 17, 2010

APPLICATION OF
MADISON NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

For approval of an assumption reinsurance agreement pursuant to § 38.2-136 C of the Code of Virginia

ORDER APPROVING APPLICATION

By petition filed with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") on April 15, 2009, Madison National Life Insurance Company
("Petitioner"), a Wisconsin-domiciled insurer licensed by the Commission to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, requested
approval of an assumption reinsurance agreement pursuant to § 38.2-136 of the Code of Virginia ("Code").

Effective September 1, 2006, the Petitioner entered into an assumption reinsurance agreement which provided for assuming all of Standard Life
Insurance Company of Indiana's ("Standard Life") individual life insurance policies and annuity contracts.

On December 18, 2008, the Circuit Court of Marion County, Indiana, entered an order placing Standard Life into rehabilitation. On January 28,
2009, the Commission entered an order suspending the license of Standard Life to transact the business of insurance in Virginia.

Pursuant to § 38.2-136 C of the Code, the Petitioner has requested that the Commission waive the policy holder consent to this transaction
required by § 38.2-136 B by finding that the transfer of the policies to the Petitioner is in the best interest of policyholders.

Standard Life has waived its right to a hearing pursuant to § 38.2-136 C of the Code, as evidenced by letter of Stephen M. Coons, Secretary and
General Counsel for Standard Life Insurance Company, dated April 22, 2010.

The Bureau of Insurance, having reviewed the application to ensure that Virginia policyholders will not lose any rights or claims afforded under
their original contracts pursuant to Chapter 17 of Title 38.2 of the Code, has recommended that the application be approved.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the application, the recommendation of the Bureau of Insurance that the application be
approved, and the law applicable hereto, is of the opinion that the application should be approved.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the application of Madison National Life Insurance Company for the approval of the reinsurance
agreement pursuant to § 38.2-136 C of the Code of Virginia be, and it is hereby, APPROVED.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00072
MAY 12, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

AMERICAN COMMUNITY MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

ORDER TO TAKE NOTICE

Pursuant to § 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia ("Code"), the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") may suspend or revoke the license
of any insurance company to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia whenever the Commission finds that the company is
insolvent, or is in a condition that any further transaction of business in this Commonwealth is hazardous to its policyholders, creditors, and public in this
Commonwealth.

American Community Mutual Insurance Company, a foreign corporation domiciled in the State of Michigan ("Defendant"), is licensed by the
Commission to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

By order entered April 8, 2010, the Defendant's license was suspended by the Circuit Court of Ingham County, Michigan due to financial
regulatory concerns. The Michigan Commissioner of Insurance was appointed the rehabilitator and the Director of Receiverships at the Michigan Office of
Financial and Insurance Regulation was appointed special deputy rehabilitator.

The Commission's Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Defendant's license to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth
of Virginia be suspended.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED THAT the Defendant TAKE NOTICE that the Commission shall enter an order subsequent to May 21,
2010, suspending the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia unless on or before May 21, 2010, the
Defendant files with the Clerk of the Commission, Document Control Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218, a request for a hearing before the
Commission with respect to the proposed suspension of the Defendant's license.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00072
JUNE 7, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

AMERICAN COMMUNITY MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

ORDER SUSPENDING LICENSE

In an Order entered herein May 12, 2010, American Community Mutual Insurance Company, a Michigan corporation ("Defendant") licensed by
the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, was ordered to take notice that
the Commission would enter an order subsequent to May 21, 2010, suspending the license of the Defendant to transact new business unless on or before
May 21, 2010, the Defendant filed with the Clerk of the Commission a request for a hearing before the Commission to contest the proposed suspension of
the Defendant's license.

The Order to Take Notice was entered due to the suspension of the Defendant's license by the Defendant's domestic regulator, the appointment of
the Michigan Commissioner of Insurance as rehabilitator for the Defendant, and the appointment of the Director of Receiverships at the Michigan Office of
Financial and Insurance Regulation as special deputy rehabilitator.

As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not filed a request to be heard before the Commission with respect to the proposed suspension of
the Defendant's license.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:

(1) Pursuant to § 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia, the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of
Virginia is hereby SUSPENDED;

(2) The Defendant shall issue no new contracts or policies of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia until further order of the Commission;
(3) The appointments of the Defendant's agents to act on behalf of the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby SUSPENDED;

(4) The Defendant's agents shall transact no new insurance business on behalf of the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia until further
order of the Commission;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause an attested copy of this Order to be sent to each of the Defendant's agents appointed to act on behalf of
the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia as notice of the suspension of such agent's appointment; and

(6) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause notice of the suspension of the Defendant's license to be published in the manner set forth in § 38.2-1043
of the Code of Virginia.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00073
MAY 4, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
METROPOLITAN CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY,
METROPOLITAN DIRECT PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY,
METROPOLITAN GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY,
and
METROPOLITAN PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendants

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendants, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-305 A of the Code of Virginia by
failing to provide accurate information required by statute in its insurance policies; violated § 38.2-502 by misrepresenting the benefits, advantages,
conditions or terms of an insurance policy; violated § 38.2-511 by failing to maintain a complete complaint register; violated § 38.2-610 A by failing to
include accurate information in its policies; violated § 38.2-1318 by failing to provide convenient access to files, documents and records relating to the
examination; violated § 38.2-1906 D by making or issuing insurance contracts or policies not in accordance with the rate and supplementary rate information
filings in effect for the Defendants; violated § 38.2-2118 by failing to provide replacement cost notices; violated § 38.2-2126 A by failing to send credit
adverse action notices; violated § 38.2-2126 B by failing to update credit information once every three years; violated § 38.2-2206 for failing to obtain
signed rejection of higher UM limits; violated § 38.2-2234 by failing to rate policies with accurate credit information; violated §§ 38.2-510 A 1 and
38.2-510 A 10, as well as 14 VAC 5-400-40 A, 14 VAC 5-400-70 A, 14 VAC 5-400-70 D, and 14 VAC 5-400-80 D for failing to properly handle claims;
violated §§ 38.2-2113 C, 38.2-2114 A, 38.2-2114 B, and 38.2-2114 E, 38.2-2208, 38.2-2212 E, and 38.2-2212 F by failing to properly terminate policies of
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insurance; and violated §§ 38.2-2214 and 38.2-2220 by using forms that did not contain the precise language of the standard forms filed and adopted by the
Commission.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendants' licenses upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendants have committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendants have been advised of their right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendants, without admitting any violation of
Virginia law, have made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendants have tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of
Sixty-two Thousand Dollars ($62,000), waived their right to a hearing, and confirmed that restitution was made to nineteen (19) consumers in the amount of
Two Thousand Six Hundred Twenty-three Dollars and Fifty-two Cents ($2,623.52).

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendants pursuant to the authority
granted the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendants, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendants' offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendants in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00074
MAY 4, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

HOMESITE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on a market conduct examination performed by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-317 A of the Code of
Virginia by failing to use standard forms in the precise language filed and approved by the Commission; violated § 38.2-610 A by failing to give to
applicants for insurance written notice of an adverse underwriting decision in the form approved by the Commission; violated § 38.2-1906 D by making or
issuing insurance contracts or policies not in accordance with the rate and supplementary rate information filings in effect for the Defendant; violated
§ 38.2-2126 A by failing to provide credit adverse action notices; violated §§ 38.2-2113 C, 38.2-2114 A, 38.2-2114 C, and 38.2-2114 E by failing to
properly terminate policies of insurance; violated §§ 38.2-510 A 1, 38.2-510 A 3, 38.2-510 A 6, as well as 14 VAC 5-400-30, 14 VAC 5-400-40 A,
14 VAC 5-400-50 C, 14 VAC 5-400-60 B, 14 VAC 5-400-70 A, 14 VAC 5-400-70 B, and 14 VAC 5-400-70 D, by failing to properly handle claims;
violated §§ 38.2-305 A, 38.2-502, 38.2-2120, and 38.2-2124 by failing to include accurate information in policies; and violated §§ 38.2-305 B, 38.2-604.1,
and 38.2-2118 by failing to include accurate information in its notices.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Twenty-seven
Thousand Dollars ($27,000), waived its right to a hearing, confirmed that restitution was made to five hundred eighty-three (583) consumers in the amount
of Ninety-nine Thousand Two Hundred Fifty-two Dollars and Eight Cents ($99,252.08), and agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan set forth in
its letter to the Bureau of Insurance dated January 7, 2010.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00076
JULY 21, 2010

PETITION OF
ELWANDA N. KNIGHT

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver"), appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner for the
Commission's Bureau of Insurance as Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of authority,
the Deputy Receiver in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure established appeal procedures for appeals or
challenges of any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims made against Shenandoah.

On April 21, 2010, Elwanda N. Knight ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the Commission contesting the Deputy
Receiver's denial of her "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 002014316.

By Order dated June 7, 2010, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before June 28, 2010.

On June 16, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer to the Petition, Motion to Dismiss, and Memorandum in Support of Motion to Dismiss.
In support of his motion, the Deputy Receiver stated that the dispute between Shenandoah and the Petitioner has been resolved.

On June 21, 2010, the Chief Hearing Examiner issued her Report in which she recommended that the Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss be
granted and the Petition be dismissed with prejudice.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Chief Hearing Examiner, is of the opinion that the
findings and recommendations of the Chief Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
1. The Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss is hereby GRANTED;
2. The Petition of Elwanda N. Knight for review of Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DISMISSED with prejudice; and

3. The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00078
MAY 3, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

JAMES LEE YUREK,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of North Dakota.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated April 6, 2010, and mailed
to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.
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THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of North Dakota.
Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00079
JULY 21, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

ARTURO NAVA,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C and subsection 1 of
§ 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State
of Indiana, and by providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in his license application filed with the Commission.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the

Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated June 2, 2010, and mailed
to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C and subsection 1 of § 38.2-1831 of the Code of
Virginia by failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Indiana, and by
providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in his license application filed with the Commission.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;
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(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00080
MAY 10, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

TINA MARIE RAGLAND,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against her by the State of North Dakota.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of her right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated April 7, 2010, and mailed
to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of her right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against her by the State of North Dakota.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00081
MAY 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

TRUMBULL INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1906 D of the Code of Virginia by
making or issuing insurance contracts or policies not in accordance with the rate and supplementary rate information filings in effect for the Defendant.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has waived its right to a hearing, confirmed that restitution was made to
1,590 consumers in the amount of Sixty-six Thousand Six Hundred Eighty-four Dollars and Twenty-two Cents ($66,684.22), and agreed to comply with the
Corrective Action Plan set forth in its letters to the Bureau of Insurance dated March 31, 2010 and April 28, 2010.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00082
JUNE 15, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

FREEDOM SETTLEMENT GROUP, LLC,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 6.1-2.26 of the Code of Virginia by acting as
a settlement agent without being properly registered with the Virginia State Bar.

The Commission is authorized by § 6.1-2.27 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties and to suspend or revoke the
Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged
violations of Chapter 1.3 (§ 6.1-2.19 et seq.) of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia.

The Commission is also authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue
cease and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Five Thousand Dollars
($5,000) and waived its right to a hearing.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.
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Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00083
AUGUST 2, 2010

PETITION OF
JESSE H. HARRELSON

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an order appointing the State Corporation Commission ("Commission")
as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah" or "Company"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation ("Order Appointing Deputy Receiver"), appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner for the
Commission's Bureau of Insurance, as Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of
authority, the Deputy Receiver, in his Second Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure, established appeal procedures for
appeals or challenges of any decision made by the Deputy Receiver with respect to claims made against Shenandoah.

On May 3, 2010, Jesse H. Harrelson ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the Commission contesting the Deputy Receiver's
denial of his "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 001056000.

By Order dated May 12, 2010, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before June 17, 2010.

On June 15, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed his Answer to the Petition, Motion to Dismiss, and Memorandum in Support of Motion to Dismiss.
In support of his motion, the Deputy Receiver stated that the dispute between Shenandoah and the Petitioner has been resolved.

On June 21, 2010, the Chief Hearing Examiner issued her Report in which she recommended that the Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss be
granted and the Petition be dismissed with prejudice.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Chief Hearing Examiner, is of the opinion that the
findings and recommendations of the Chief Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
1. The Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss is hereby GRANTED;
2. The Petition of Jesse H. Harrelson for review of Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DISMISSED with prejudice; and

3. The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00087
MAY 26, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

DONEGAL MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY
and

SOUTHERN INSURANCE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA,
Defendants

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on a market conduct examination performed by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendants, duly licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-305 A of the Code of
Virginia by failing to provide accurate information required by statute in their insurance policies; violated § 38.2-502 by misrepresenting the benefits,
advantages, conditions or terms of insurance policies; violated § 38.2-510 A 1 by failing to properly handle claims; violated § 38.2-1906 D by making or
issuing insurance contracts or policies not in accordance with the rate and supplementary rate information filings in effect for the Defendants; violated
§ 38.2-2126 by failing to send Credit Adverse Action Notices; violated § 38.2-2220 by failing to use standard forms in the precise language filed and
approved by the Bureau; violated § 38.2-2223 by using broadenings of the standard forms without approval prior to use; violated § 38.2-2234 by failing to
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rate insurance policies with accurate credit information; violated §§ 38.2-604 A, 38.2-610 A, 38.2-2113 A, 38.2-2113 C, 38.2-2114 A, 38.2-2114C,
38.2-2208 A, 38.2-2208 B, 38.2-2212 D, and 38.2-2212 E by failing to properly terminate policies of insurance; violated §§ 38.2-305 B, 38.2-2118,
38.2-2120, and 38.2-2124 by failing to include accurate information in their insurance policies; and violated §§ 38.2-604 B, 38.2-604 C, 38.2-1905 A, and
38.2-2210 by failing to include accurate information in its notices; and violated 14 VAC 5-400-40 A, 14 VAC 5-400-70 A, 14 VAC 5-400-70 D, and
14 VAC 5-400-80 D by failing to properly handle claims.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendants' licenses upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendants have committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendants have been advised of their right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendants, without admitting any violation of
Virginia law, have made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendants have tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Forty
Thousand Dollars ($40,000), waived their right to a hearing, agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan set forth in their letters to the Bureau of
Insurance dated January 14, 2010, March 15, 2010, and April 14, 2010, and the Defendants have confirmed that restitution was made to eighteen (18)
consumers in the amount of Twenty-two Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty-six Dollars and Seventy-three Cents ($22,956.73).

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00088
JULY 7, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
CONTINENTAL INSURANCE COMPANY,
AMERICAN CASUALTY COMPANY OF READING PA,
NATIONAL FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY OF HARTFORD,
TRANSPORTATION INSURANCE COMPANY,
VALLEY FORGE INSURANCE COMPANY,
and
CONTINENTAL CASUALTY COMPANY,
Defendants

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendants, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1906 D of the Code of Virginia by
making or issuing insurance contracts or policies not in accordance with the rate and supplementary rate information filings in effect for the Defendants.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendants' licenses upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendants have committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendants have been advised of their right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendants, without admitting any violation of
Virginia law, have made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendants have tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Two
Thousand Dollars ($2,000) per company for an amount totaling Twelve Thousand Dollars ($12,000), waived their right to a hearing, confirmed that
restitution was made to 46 consumers in the amount of Two Hundred Fifty-two Thousand Three Hundred Ninety-nine Dollars and Ninety Cents
($252,399.90), and agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan set forth in their letter to the Bureau of Insurance dated February 16, 2010.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendants pursuant to the authority
granted the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendants, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendants' offer should be accepted.
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Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The offer of the Defendants in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00089
JUNE 8, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

IMPERIAL CASUALTY AND INDEMNITY INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

ORDER TO TAKE NOTICE

Pursuant to § 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia ("Code"), the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") may suspend or revoke the license
of any insurance company to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia whenever the Commission finds that the company is
insolvent, or is in a condition that any further transaction of business in this Commonwealth is hazardous to its policyholders, creditors, and public in this
Commonwealth.

Imperial Casualty and Indemnity Insurance Company ("Defendant"), an Oklahoma domiciled insurer, was initially licensed to transact the
business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia on October 6, 1961.

On May 12, 2010, the District Court of Oklahoma County in the State of Oklahoma issued a Consent Order of Liquidation with a Finding of
Insolvency and Permanent Injunction against the Defendant.

The Commission's Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Defendant's license to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth
of Virginia be revoked.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED THAT the Defendant TAKE NOTICE that the Commission shall enter an order subsequent to June 17,
2010, revoking the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia unless on or before June 17, 2010, the
Defendant files with the Clerk of the Commission, Document Control Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218, a request for a hearing before the
Commission with respect to the proposed revocation of the Defendant's license.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00089
JULY 1, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

IMPERIAL CASUALTY AND INDEMNITY INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

In an Order to Take Notice ("Order") entered herein June 8, 2010, Imperial Casualty and Indemnity Company, an Oklahoma domiciled insurer
("Defendant") licensed by the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, was
ordered to take notice that the Commission would enter an order subsequent to June 17, 2010, revoking the license of the Defendant to transact new business
unless on or before June 17, 2010, the Defendant filed with the Clerk of the Commission a request for a hearing before the Commission to contest the
proposed suspension of the Defendant's license.

The Order was entered upon the recommendation of the Commission's Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau") based on a Consent Order of Liquidation
with a Finding of Insolvency and Permanent Injunction against the Defendant entered on May 12, 2010, by the District Court of Oklahoma County in the
State of Oklahoma.

As of the date of this Order, the Defendant has not requested a hearing with regards to the proposed revocation of its license. The Commission's
Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Defendant's license to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia be revoked.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) Pursuant to § 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia, the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of
Virginia is hereby REVOKED;

(2) The Defendant shall transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia;
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(3) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause notice of the revocation of the Defendant's license to be published in the manner set forth in § 38.2-1043
of the Code of Virginia; and

(4) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00093
JULY 30, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

CHARLES W. NEWMAN
and

SAVE RITE INSURANCE AGENCY,
Defendants

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendants, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated §§ 38.2-1812, 38.2-1813 and 38.2-1822 of the
Code of Virginia by receiving commissions from an insurer for services as an agent prior to becoming licensed and appointed, by failing to hold all
premiums, return premiums, or other funds received by the Defendants in a fiduciary capacity, and by failing to pay funds in the ordinary course of business
to the insured or his assignee, insurer, insurance premium finance company or agent entitled to the payment.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendants' licenses upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendants have committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendants have been advised of their right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendants, without admitting any violation of
Virginia law, have made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendants have tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of
Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($7,500), waived their right to a hearing, and agreed to the entry by the Commission of a cease and desist order.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendants pursuant to the authority
granted the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendants, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendants' offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendants in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted;

(2) The Defendants cease and desist from any conduct which constitutes a violation of §§ 38.2-1812, 38.2-1813, or 38.2-1822 of the Code of
Virginia; and

(3) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00096
JUNE 14, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

ZACHURIAH D. COLLAR,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of North Carolina.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.
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The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated April 29, 2010, and mailed
to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to
report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of North Carolina.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00097
JUNE 4, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

NHEALTH, INC.,
Defendant

ORDER SUSPENDING LICENSE

nHealth, Inc. ("Defendant"), is a domestic corporation licensed by the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of
insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Due to financial regulatory concerns, the Commission's Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau") requested that the
Defendant consent to the entry of an order prohibiting it from soliciting or issuing any new insurance policies or contracts in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

By letter of Paul L. Kitchen, the Defendant's president and chief executive officer, dated June 2, 2010, and received by the Bureau on June 2,
2010, the Defendant consented to the entry of an order prohibiting it from soliciting or issuing any new insurance policies or contracts in the Commonwealth
of Virginia.

In light of the foregoing, the Bureau has recommended that the Defendant's license to transact the business of insurance in Virginia be suspended.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein and the recommendation of the Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the
Defendant's license to transact the business of insurance in Virginia should be suspended.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) Pursuant to § 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia, the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of
Virginia is hereby SUSPENDED;

(2) The Defendant shall issue no new contracts or policies of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia until further order of the Commission;
(3) The appointments of the Defendant's agents to act on behalf of the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby SUSPENDED;

(4) The Defendant's agents shall transact no new insurance business on behalf of the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia until further
order of the Commission;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause an attested copy of this Order to be sent to each of the Defendant's agents appointed to act on behalf of
the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia as notice of the suspension of such agent's appointment; and
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(6) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause notice of the suspension of the Defendant's license to be published in the manner set forth in § 38.2-1043
of the Code of Virginia.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00098
JULY 7, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
HARTFORD CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY,
HARTFORD UNDERWRITERS INSURANCE COMPANY,
and
HARTFORD FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendants

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendants, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-317 of the Code of Virginia by
delivering or issuing for delivery insurance policies or endorsements without having filed such policy forms or endorsements with the Commission at least
thirty days prior to their effective date.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendants' licenses upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendants have committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendants have been advised of their right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendants, without admitting any violation of
Virginia law, have made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendants have tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Five
Thousand Dollars ($5,000) per company for an amount totaling Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000) and waived their right to a hearing.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendants pursuant to the authority
granted the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendants, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendants' offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendants in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00101
JULY 7, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

MERCURY CASUALTY COMPANY,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on a market conduct examination performed by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-305 A of the Code of
Virginia by failing to provide accurate information required by statute in its insurance policies; violated § 38.2-502 by misrepresenting the benefits,
advantages, conditions or terms of insurance policies; violated § 38.2-511 by failing to maintain a complete complaint register; violated § 38.2-1906 D by
making or issuing insurance contracts or policies not in accordance with the rate and supplementary rate information filings in effect for the Defendant;
violated § 38.2-2204 by failing to allow permissive use of automobiles; violated §§ 38.2-610 A, 38.2-2208 A, 38.2-2208 B, 38.2-2212 D, and 38.2-2212 E
by failing to properly terminate policies of insurance; violated §§ 38.2-604 A 2 and 38.2-604.1 A for failing to provide applicable notice to insureds; violated
§§ 38.2-604 B, 38.2-604 C, 38.2-604.1 B, 38.2-2206 A, and 38.2-2210 A by failing to include accurate information in its notices; violated §§ 38.2-1812 and
38.2-1833 by failing to properly appoint agents and agencies; and violated 14 VAC 5-400-40 A for failing to properly handle claims.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.
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The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Twenty Six Thousand
Two Hundred Dollars ($26,200), waived its right to a hearing, agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan set forth in its letters to the Bureau of
Insurance dated March 24, 2010 and April 27, 2010, and the Defendant has confirmed that restitution was made to seven (7) consumers in the amount of
Seven Hundred Forty-two Dollars and Twenty-seven Cents ($742.27).

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00113
JUNE 24, 2010

CONSECO LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
CONSECO INSURANCE COMPANY

CONSECO HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY
BANKERS LIFE AND CASUALTY COMPANY
WASHINGTON NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY

Ex Parte: In the matter of Approval of a Multi-State Regulatory Settlement Agreement between Conseco Life Insurance Company, et al, and the
Insurance Commissioners of the States of California, Florida, lowa, Indiana and Texas, for the Virginia State Corporation Commission Bureau of

Insurance

ORDER APPROVING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

ON THIS DAY came the Bureau of Insurance ("the Bureau"), by counsel, and requested Commission approval and acceptance of a multi-state
Regulatory Settlement Agreement ("the Agreement") dated May 28, 2010, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, by and between the
Commissioners of Insurance for the States of California, Florida, Iowa, Indiana and Texas, and Conseco Life Insurance Company, Conseco Insurance
Company, Conseco Health Insurance Company, Bankers Life and Casualty Company, and Washington National Insurance Company (collectively, the
"Conseco Companies"), which are licensed to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

AND THE COMMISSION, having considered the terms of the Agreement together with the recommendation of the Bureau that the
Commission approve and accept the Agreement, is of the opinion, finds, and ORDERS that the Agreement be, and it is hereby, APPROVED AND
ACCEPTED.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Participating Regulator Adoption" is on file and may be examined at the State Corporation
Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00117
JULY 30, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

NATIONAL GUARDIAN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, in certain instances, has violated §§ 38.2-301,
38.2-305, and 38.2-316 of the Code of Virginia by issuing policies on the life of an individual that was neither aware of the purchase nor consented to it, by
failing to specify the contents of insurance policies, and by failing to properly file forms or policies with the Commission.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.
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The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Ten Thousand Dollars
($10,000), waived its right to a hearing, and agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan set forth in its letter to the Bureau of Insurance dated July 13,
2010.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00118
JUNE 29, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In the matter of Adopting Amendments to the Rules Governing Health Maintenance Organizations

ORDER TO TAKE NOTICE

Section 12.1-13 of the Code of Virginia provides that the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") shall have the power to promulgate
rules and regulations in the enforcement and administration of all laws within its jurisdiction, and § 38.2-223 of the Code of Virginia provides that the
Commission may issue any rules and regulations necessary or appropriate for the administration and enforcement of Title 38.2 of the Code of Virginia.

The rules and regulations issued by the Commission pursuant to § 38.2-223 of the Code of Virginia are set forth in Title 14 of the Virginia
Administrative Code.

The Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau") has submitted to the Commission proposed amendments to Chapter 211 of Title 14 of the Virginia
Administrative Code entitled "Rules Governing Health Maintenance Organizations" ("Rules"), which amend the Rules at 14 VAC 5-211-70 and
14 VAC 5-211-160.

The proposed amendments to the Rules are necessary in Section 70 at the request of the Virginia Association of Health Plans to conform
amendments to § 38.2-3541 of the Code of Virginia passed by the 2010 General Assembly with regard to group health insurance continuation and
conversion requirements. Amendments to Section 160 of the Rules are necessary to conform its amendments to § 38.2-3412.1 of the Code of Virginia
regarding mental health parity.

The Commission is of the opinion that the proposed amendments to 14 VAC 5-211-70 and 14 VAC 5-211-160 should be considered for adoption.
THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The proposed amendments to the "Rules Governing Health Maintenance Organizations," which amend the Rules at 14 VAC 5-211-70 and
14 VAC 5-211-160, be attached hereto and made a part hereof.

(2) All interested persons who desire to comment in support of or in opposition to, or request a hearing to oppose the adoption of the proposed
amendments, shall file such comments or hearing request on or before August 16, 2010, with the Clerk of the Commission, Document Control Center, P.O.
Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218 and shall refer to Case No. INS-2010-00118. Interested persons desiring to submit comments electronically may do so
by following the instructions available at the Commission's website: http://www.scc.virginia.gov/caseinfo.htm.

(3) If no written request for a hearing on the proposed amendments is filed on or before August 16, 2010, the Commission, upon consideration of
any comments submitted in support of or in opposition to the proposed amendments, may adopt the amendments proposed by the Bureau of Insurance.

(4) AN ATTESTED COPY hereof, together with a copy of the proposed amendments, shall be sent by the Clerk of the Commission to the
Bureau of Insurance in care of Deputy Commissioner Jacqueline K. Cunningham, who forthwith shall give further notice of the proposed adoption of the
amendments by mailing a copy of this Order, together with the proposed amendments, to all insurers licensed by the Commission as health maintenance
organizations in the Commonwealth of Virginia, as well as all interested parties.

(5) The Commission's Division of Information Resources forthwith shall cause a copy of this Order, together with the proposed amendments, to
be forwarded to the Virginia Registrar of Regulations for appropriate publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations.

(6) The Commission's Division of Information Resources shall make available this Order and the attached proposed amendments on the
Commission's website: http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.
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(7) The Bureau of Insurance shall file with the Clerk of the Commission an affidavit of compliance with the notice requirements of paragraph (4)
above.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Rules Governing Health Maintenance Organizations" is on file and may be examined at the State
Corporation Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00118
AUGUST 31, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In the matter of Adopting Amendments to the Rules Governing Health Maintenance Organizations

ORDER ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO RULES

By Order entered herein June 29, 2010, all interested persons were ordered to take notice that subsequent to August 16, 2010, the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") would consider the entry of an order adopting amendments proposed by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau") to the
Commission's Rules Governing Health Maintenance Organizations ("Rules"), set forth in Chapter 211 of Title 14 of the Virginia Administrative Code,
unless on or before August 16, 2010, any person objecting to the adoption of the proposed amendments filed a request for hearing with the Clerk of the
Commission (the "Clerk").

The Order to Take Notice also required all interested persons to file their comments in support of or in opposition to the proposed amendments on
or before August 16, 2010.

Comments were filed by the Virginia Association of Health Plans ("VAHP") on August 13, 2010. No request for a hearing was filed with the
Clerk.

The Bureau considered the comments filed by the VAHP, and responded to these comments by letter dated August 23, 2010, a copy of which is
filed in the case file. The Bureau recommends that the proposed rules be amended at 14 VAC 5-211-70 in response to these comments as follows:

- change references from "group policy" to "group contract";

- add language indicating that the continuation of coverage provisions are not applicable if continuation of coverage is required under COBRA;
and

1M

- change the reference from "insurer's" to "health care plan's" current rate.

The amendments to the Rules are necessary to conform the Rules to (i) amendments made to § 38.2-3541 of the Code of Virginia regarding group
health insurance continuation and conversion requirements and (ii) § 38.2-3412.1 of the Code of Virginia regarding mental health parity.

THE COMMISSION, having considered the proposed amendments, the filed comments, the Bureau's letter response, and the Bureau's
recommendation for additional amendments, is of the opinion that the attached amendments to the Rules should be adopted.

THEREFORE IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The amendments to Chapter 211 of Title 14 of the Virginia Administrative Code entitled "Rules Governing Health Maintenance
Organizations," amended at 14 VAC 5-211-70 and 14 VAC 5-211-160, which are attached hereto and made a part hereof, should be, and they are hereby,
ADOPTED to be effective January 1, 2011.

(2) AN ATTESTED COPY hereof, together with a copy of the adopted amendments, shall be sent by the Clerk of the Commission to
Jacqueline K. Cunningham, Deputy Commissioner, Bureau of Insurance, State Corporation Commission, who forthwith shall give further notice of the
adoption of the amendments to the Rules by mailing a copy of this Order, including a clean copy of the final amended Rules, to all insurers licensed by the
Commission as health maintenance organizations in the Commonwealth of Virginia, as well as all interested parties.

(3) The Commission's Division of Information Resources shall cause a copy of this Order, together with the amended Rules, to be forwarded to
the Virginia Registrar of the Regulations for appropriate publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations and shall make this Order and the attached
amended Rules available on the Commission's website, http:/www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(4) The Bureau shall file with the Clerk of the Commission an affidavit of compliance with the notice requirements of paragraph (2) above.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Rules Governing Health Maintenance Organizations" is on file and may be examined at the State
Corporation Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00121
JULY 21, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

EQUIFAX SETTLEMENT SERVICES, LLC,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 6.1-2.26 of the Code of Virginia by acting as
a settlement agent without being properly registered with the Virginia State Bar.

The Commission is authorized by § 6.1-2.27 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties and to suspend or revoke the
Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged
violations of Chapter 1.3 (§ 6.1-2.19 et seq.) of Title 6.1 of the Code of Virginia.

The Commission is also authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue
cease and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Ten Thousand Dollars
($10,000) and waived its right to a hearing.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00126
NOVEMBER 8, 2010

APPLICATION OF
NATIONAL COUNCIL ON COMPENSATION INSURANCE, INC.

For revisions of advisory loss costs and assigned risk workers' compensation insurance rates
EINAL ORDER

On July 16, 2010, the National Council on Compensation Insurance, Inc. ("NCCI"), filed an application with the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") for approval of certain changes applicable to voluntary market advisory loss costs and assigned risk rates and rating values for new and
renewal workers' compensation insurance policies becoming effective on or after April 1, 2011 ("Application"). The Application consists of two separate
filings: a voluntary market loss cost filing and an assigned risk market rate filing. The voluntary loss cost filing addresses two categories of workers'
compensation classifications: (i) industrial classification, including coal mine classifications, and (ii) federal ("F") classifications. The assigned risk rate
filing addresses the same two categories.

With respect to voluntary loss costs, NCCI proposed an overall decrease of 12.4% for industrial classifications; a decrease of 3.8% for
F classifications; a decrease of 23.5% for the surface coal mine classification; and an increase of 0.6% for the underground coal mine classification.

With respect to the assigned risk rates, NCCI proposed an overall decrease of 14.1% for industrial classifications; a decrease of 5.2% for
F classifications; a decrease of 25.2% for the surface coal mine classification; and a decrease of 0.7% for the underground coal mine classification.

Jay A. Rosen ("Rosen") and Dr. Harry L. Shuford ("Shuford") filed direct testimony and exhibits on behalf of NCCI. Shuford recommended
changes to the current methodology upon which the assigned risk rates are calculated. The recommended changes related to revisions to the internal rate of
return model used to calculate the indicated assigned risk profit and contingencies provision in order to address what he viewed as inconsistent treatment of
expenses by the model.

On July 29, 2010, the Commission entered an Order Scheduling Hearing, wherein the Commission docketed the case; required publication of the
notice of proceeding; outlined a procedural schedule that provided respondents with the opportunity to participate and file testimony and exhibits; and
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scheduled an evidentiary hearing to investigate whether the rates and advisory loss costs set forth in the Application are excessive, inadequate, or unfairly
discriminatory, and if there were any other issues subject to investigation.

On August 5, 2010, the Iron Workers Employers Association and the Washington Construction Employers Association (collectively,
"Respondents") filed their Notice of Participation. On August 20, 2010, the Office of the Attorney General's Division of Consumer Counsel ("Consumer
Counsel") filed its Notice of Participation.

On September 10, 2010, Glenn A. Watkins ("Watkins"), David C. Parcell ("Parcell"), and Scott J. Lefkowitz ("Lefkowitz") filed direct testimony
and exhibits on behalf of the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"). The Bureau supported NCCI's proposed decreases to the voluntary loss costs. With respect to
the assigned risk rates, the Bureau recommended the following: (i) an overall decrease of 16.0% for industrial classifications compared to a 14.1% decrease
proposed by NCCI; (ii) a decrease of 7.3% for F classifications compared to a 5.2% decrease proposed by NCCI; (iii) a decrease of 26.5% for the surface
coal mine classification compared to 25.2% decrease proposed by NCCI; and (iv) a decrease of 2.5% for the underground mine classification compared to
0.7% proposed by NCCI.

The differences between NCCI's proposed changes to assigned risk rates and the Bureau's recommended changes to assigned risk rates are due to
Watkins' disagreement with NCCI's proposed changes to the current methodology used to calculate the indicated assigned risk profit and contingencies
provision in assigned risk rates.

On October 1, 2010, Rosen and Shuford filed rebuttal testimony in which they accepted the proposed voluntary loss cost changes but disagreed
with the proposed assigned risk rate changes recommended by Lefkowitz in his direct testimony. NCCI's disagreement with Lefkowitz's recommended
changes stemmed from Lefkowitz's reliance on Watkins' indicated assigned risk profit and contingencies provision. Shuford continued to maintain that
expenses within the currently approved internal rate of return model are treated in an inconsistent manner.

On October 19, 2010, the Bureau and NCCI filed a Joint Pre-Trial Motion for Approval of Stipulation to Admit Testimony ("Joint Pre-Trial
Motion") requesting that the testimony and exhibits of Rosen, Shuford, Parcell, Lefkowitz, and Watkins be admitted into the record without personal
appearances or verifications by those witnesses at the hearing. With respect to the unresolved matter involving the calculation of the indicated assigned risk
profit and contingencies provision, NCCI and the Bureau agreed to address this area of disagreement in the upcoming working group, and for purposes of
compromise, to average the final assigned rate indications proposed in the rebuttal testimony of Rosen and the direct testimony of Lefkowitz as follows:
(i) a decrease of 15.1% in the overall average rate level for industrial classifications in the assigned risk plan; (ii) a decrease of 6.2% in the overall average
rate level for "F" classifications in the assigned risk plan; and (iii) a decrease of 25.8% and 1.5% in the overall average rate level for the surface and
underground coal mine classifications, respectively, in the assigned risk plan.

On October 26, 2010, the hearing was held in the Commission's courtroom in Richmond, Virginia, to consider the Application. Charles H.
Tenser, Esquire, appeared on behalf of NCCI; Scott A. White, Esquire, appeared on behalf of the Bureau; and Kiva Bland Pierce, Esquire, appeared on
behalf of Consumer Counsel.

At the hearing, counsel for NCCI indicated his support for the Joint Pre-Trial Motion in his opening statement. He then called Rosen as a witness
to summarize the working group's review of the changes to the class ratemaking methodology that were approved by the Commission last year in Case No.
INS-2009-00142. In his opening statement, counsel for the Bureau also supported the Joint Pre-Trial Motion and noted that other than the issue involving
the assigned risk profit and contingencies provision, there were no issues of disagreement between NCCI and the Bureau. Counsel for Consumer Counsel
indicated no objection to the entry of an order approving the Joint Pre-Trial Motion. Hearing no objection to the Joint Pre-Trial Motion, the Commission
granted the motion.

The Commission has considered the record in its entirety, including the Application, the pre-filed testimony and rebuttal testimony, the Joint Pre-
Trial Motion to stipulate certain witnesses' testimony, and the evidence and exhibits presented at the hearing.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The following changes applicable to voluntary market advisory loss costs and assigned risk rates shall be, and they are hereby, APPROVED,
for use with respect to new and renewal workers' compensation insurance policies effective on or after April 1, 2011: (i) an overall decrease of 12.4% to the
voluntary loss costs for industrial classifications; (ii) a decrease in the voluntary loss costs of 3.8% for F classifications; (iii) a decrease in the voluntary loss
costs of 23.5% for the surface coal mine classification; (iv) an increase in the voluntary loss costs of 0.6% for the underground coal mine classification;
(v) an overall decrease of 15.1% to the assigned risk rates for industrial classifications; (vi) a decrease to the assigned risk rates of 6.2% for F classifications;
(vii) a decrease to the assigned risk rates of 25.8% for the surface coal mine classification; and (viii) a decrease to the assigned risk rates of 1.5% for the
underground coal mine classification.

(2) Except as otherwise ordered herein, all other proposed revisions that have been filed by NCCI in this proceeding on behalf of its members
and subscribers, including those relating to minimum premiums, rating values, rules, regulations and procedures for writing workers' compensation voluntary
loss costs and assigned risk rates shall be, and they are hereby, APPROVED, for use with respect to new and renewal policies effective on or after April 1,
2011.

(3) The working group should, in addition to ongoing activities, continue to monitor the appropriateness and impact of the change to the
methodology used to calculate loss costs and assigned risk rates for individual classifications and the impact of the change to the methodology used to
calculate certain parameters that are required to determine the experience modifications of individual employers. The working group shall also study the
proper methodology to be used in calculating the assigned risk profit and contingencies factor.

(4) The working group should investigate the reasons for the changes to the underlying data compiled from the United States Department of
Labor database used to calculate the occupational disease components of voluntary loss costs and assigned risk rates for coal mine classifications. The
working group shall report on the reasons for the changes and determine an appropriate method to compile the data.

(5) On or before June 1, 2011, NCCI, the Bureau, Consumer Counsel, and the Respondents in this proceeding, shall endeavor to recommend
jointly to the Commission a proposed schedule for any year 2011 voluntary loss costs/assigned risk rate revision proceeding before the Commission. The
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proposed schedule shall address: (i) "pre-filing" of any discovery requests by the Bureau, Consumer Counsel, and any other parties; (ii) the date on which
NCCI proposes to file with the Commission any voluntary loss costs/assigned risk rate revision application and its direct testimony; (iii) the date on which
NCCI proposes to file its responses to pre-filed discovery requests; (iv) the dates for the pre-filing of the direct testimony of the Bureau, Consumer Counsel,
and any respondents; (v) the date for filing by NCCI of its rebuttal testimony; and (vi) the date of any proposed hearing before the Commission.

(6) NCCI and any other persons participating in future voluntary loss costs and assigned risk rate application proceedings before the
Commission, when proposing methodologies or data sources that are different from the methodologies or data sources upon which then current voluntary
loss costs and/or assigned risk rate or rating values are based, shall be required to disclose the impact on voluntary loss costs and/or assigned risk rate or
rating values of the change employing both the methodology it proposes to replace as well as the newly proposed methodology.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00127
JULY 30, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.
SELECTIVE INSURANCE CO. OF SOUTH CAROLINA,
SELECTIVE INSURANCE CO. OF AMERICA,
SELECTIVE INSURANCE CO. OF THE SOUTHEAST,
and
SELECTIVE WAY INSURANCE,
Defendants

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendants, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated §§ 38.2-317 and 38.2-1906 A of the Code of
Virginia ("Code"), as well as 14 VAC 5-335-10 et seq., by delivering or issuing for delivery insurance policies or endorsements without having filed such
policy forms or endorsements with the Commission at least thirty (30) days prior to their effective date, by failing to file with the Commission certain rate
and supplementary rate information, and by issuing policies or endorsements that did not comply with the Rules Governing Claims-Made Liability Policies.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease and desist
orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendants' licenses upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the Defendants have
committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendants have been advised of their right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendants, without admitting any violation of
Virginia law, have made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendants have tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of
Sixty-six Thousand Dollars ($66,000), waived their right to a hearing, and agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan provided to the Bureau on
June 29, 2010, which is attached and made a part of this Order.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendants pursuant to the authority
granted the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendants, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendants' offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendants in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted;

(2) The Defendant shall comply with the attached Corrective Action Plan and shall document such compliance to the Bureau. Such compliance
may be verified by the Bureau; and

(3) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00128
JULY 21, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

THOMAS GEORGE FROST, III,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Kentucky.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the

Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated June 2, 2010, and mailed
to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Kentucky.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00129
JULY 20, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

ALFA ALLIANCE INSURANCE CORPORATION,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on a market conduct examination performed by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.502 (1) of the Code of
Virginia by misrepresenting the benefits, advantages, conditions or terms of an insurance policy; violated § 38.2-510 A 3, as well as 14 VAC 5-400-30,
14 VAC 5-400-40 A, 14 VAC 5-400-50 C, and 14 VAC 5-400-70 A, by failing to properly handle claims; and violated § 38.2-2214 by failing to use
standard forms in the precise language filed and approved by the Commission.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.
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The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Ten Thousand Dollars
($10,000), waived its right to a hearing, agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan set forth in its letters to the Bureau of Insurance dated May 7,
2010, and June 16, 2010, and confirmed that restitution was made to four (4) consumers in the amount of One Thousand Five Hundred Twenty-nine Dollars
and Fifty-nine Cents ($1,529.59).

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00130
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

PETITION OF
CATHERINE V. THOMPSON

For review of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal
EINAL ORDER

On February 12, 2009, the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond entered an Order appointing the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") as Receiver of Shenandoah Life Insurance Company ("Shenandoah"). In addition, on February 12, 2009, the Commission, by Order
Appointing Deputy Receiver for Conservation and Rehabilitation, appointed Alfred W. Gross, Commissioner for the Commission's Bureau of Insurance as
Deputy Receiver, in accordance with Title 38.2, Chapter 15 of the Code of Virginia. Pursuant to his grant of authority, the Deputy Receiver, in his Second
Directive of Deputy Receiver Adopting Receivership Appeal Procedure, established appeal procedures for appeals or challenges of any decision made by the
Deputy Receiver with respect to claims made against Shenandoah.

On July 6, 2010, Catherine V. Thompson ("Petitioner") filed a Petition for Review ("Petition") with the Commission contesting the Deputy
Receiver's denial of her "Hardship Request" made in connection with Shenandoah Life Policy No. 000815757.

By Order dated July 21, 2010, the Commission docketed the Petition, assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner, and directed the Deputy
Receiver to file an Answer or other responsive pleading to the Petition on or before August 10, 2010.

On August 10, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed his answer and stated that the Petitioner's Hardship Request for a policy loan of $2,000 had been
approved.

On August 10, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed his Motion to Dismiss and Memorandum in Support of Motion to Dismiss. In support of his
Motion to Dismiss, the Deputy Receiver stated that the Petitioner's Hardship Request had been approved. The Deputy Receiver requested that the
Commission dismiss the Petitioner's Petition with prejudice.

On August 11, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued her Report in which she recommended that the Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss should
be granted and the Petition should be dismissed with prejudice.

Also on August 11, 2010, the Deputy Receiver filed a Supplemental Answer and Supplemental Memorandum in Support of Motion to Dismiss in
which he corrected his representations in his earlier pleading, stating that the maximum amount available as a policy loan to the Petitioner under the
Hardship Procedure was less than the $2,000 requested. The Deputy Receiver stated that he would shortly issue a check to the Petitioner in the amount of
70% of the full surrender value of her policy as of February 12, 2009, the day that Shenandoah was placed into receivership, less loan interest. The Deputy
Receiver represents that such amount is the maximum available to the Petitioner under the Hardship Exemption Procedure.

On August 13, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued her Amended Report in which she confirmed her recommendation that the Deputy Receiver's
Motion to Dismiss be granted and the Petition be dismissed with prejudice.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the record herein and the Report of the Hearing Examiner, is of the opinion that the findings
and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Deputy Receiver's Motion to Dismiss is hereby GRANTED.
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(2) The Petition of Catherine V. Thompson for review of Deputy Receiver's Determination of Appeal is hereby DISMISSED.

(3) The papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00131
JULY 20, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

FOREMOST INSURANCE COMPANY GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on a market conduct examination performed by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-2118 of the Code of
Virginia by failing to have available for use a notice summarizing how the replacement cost provisions would apply; violated §§ 38.2-305 B, 38.2-610 A,
and 38.2-2125 by failing to include accurate information in notices; and violated §§ 38.2-1812, 38.2-1822, and 38.2-1833 by improperly sharing
commissions with unlicensed persons, and by failing to properly appoint agents and agencies.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Six Thousand Dollars
($6,000), waived its right to a hearing, and agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan set forth in its letters to the Bureau of Insurance dated
March 29, 2010, and April 29, 2010.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00143
OCTOBER 21, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

ADAM D. APPELL,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C and subsection 1 of
§ 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the Commission within thirty days administrative actions that were taken against him by the State
of Georgia and the State of Missouri, and by providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in his license application filed
with the Commission.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated August 24, 2010, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.
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The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C and subsection 1 of § 38.2-1831 of the Code of
Virginia by failing to report to the Commission within thirty days administrative actions that were taken against him by the State of Georgia and the State of
Missouri, and by providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in his license application filed with the Commission.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00144
JULY 30, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

GARY L. KARNS, JR.,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Utah.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated June 30, 2010, and mailed
to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Utah.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty days
from the date of this Order;
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(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00145
JULY 30, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

BYRON LATRENT BRADLEY,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Michigan.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated June 30, 2010, and mailed
to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Michigan.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00146
JULY 30, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

GAY CATHERINE CHUNG,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against her by the States of Utah, South Dakota, and Hawaii.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of her right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated June 30, 2010, and mailed
to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of her right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against her by the States of Utah, South Dakota, and Hawaii.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00147
JULY 30, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

RICHARD STRIANO,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Maryland.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.
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The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated June 30, 2010, and mailed
to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of Maryland.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00150
AUGUST 12, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

HARTFORD CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY
and

HARTFORD FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendants

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendants, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-317 of the Code of Virginia by
delivering or issuing for delivery insurance policies or endorsements without having filed such policy forms or endorsements with the Commission at least
thirty (30) days prior to their effective date.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendants' licenses upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendants have committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendants have been advised of their right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendants, without admitting any violation of
Virginia law, have made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendants have agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan set forth
in their letter to the Bureau of Insurance dated July 26, 2010, and waived their right to a hearing.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendants pursuant to the authority
granted the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendants, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendants' offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendants in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00153
DECEMBER 7, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

CINERGY HEALTH, INC.,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated §§ 38.2-502, 38.2-1822, subsections 7 and 10
of § 38.2-1831, and 38.2-1833 of the Code of Virginia by misrepresenting the benefits, advantages, conditions or terms of insurance policies, by acting as an
agent of an insurer without first obtaining a license in the manner and form prescribed by the Commission, by intentionally misrepresenting the terms of
actual or proposed insurance contracts or applications for insurance, by using fraudulent, coercive, or dishonest practices in the conduct of business in the
Commonwealth, and by failing to file with the Commission written notice of the appointments of certain insurance agents within thirty (30) days of the
execution of the first insurance applications submitted by the agents.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Seventy-five Thousand
Dollars ($75,000), waived its right to a hearing, and agreed to the entry by the Commission of a cease and desist order. The Defendant has also specifically
agreed to cease and desist from using any advertisements in Virginia that are misleading or otherwise violate Virginia's advertising regulations as set forth in
the Rules Governing Advertisement of Accident and Sickness Insurance, 14 VAC 5-90-10 et seq.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted,

(2) The Defendant cease and desist from any conduct which constitutes a violation of §§ 38.2-502, 38.2-1822, subsections 7 and 10 of
§ 38.2-1831 or 38.2-1833 of the Code of Virginia;

(3) The Defendant cease and desist from using any advertisements in Virginia that are misleading or otherwise violate Virginia's advertising
regulations as set forth in the Rules Governing Advertisement of Accident and Sickness Insurance, 14 VAC 5-90-10 et seq.; and

(4) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00154
AUGUST 19, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA,
Defendant

ORDER TO TAKE NOTICE

Pursuant to § 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia ("Code"), the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") may suspend or revoke the license
of any insurance company to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia whenever the Commission finds that the company has
violated any law of this Commonwealth.

Professional Liability Insurance Company of America, a foreign corporation domiciled in the State of New York ("Defendant"), initially was
licensed by the Commission to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia on May 7, 1958.

Pursuant to § 38.2-1301 of the Code and 14 VAC 5-270-50, all licensed foreign insurance companies are required to file an annual Audited
Financial Report with the Commission on or before June 1 of each year. The Defendant was required to file its 2009 Audited Financial Report with the
Commission on or before June 1, 2010; however, as of the date of this Order, the Defendant has failed to file such report.
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The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that, based on the foregoing, the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in the
Commonwealth of Virginia be suspended.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that the Defendant TAKE NOTICE that the Commission shall enter an order subsequent to August 31,
2010, suspending the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia unless on or before August 23, 2010,
the Defendant files with the Clerk of the Commission, Document Control Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218, a request for a hearing before
the Commission with respect to the proposed suspension of the Defendant's license.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00154
NOVEMBER 5, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA,
Defendant

ORDER SUSPENDING LICENSE

In an order entered herein August 19, 2010, Professional Liability Insurance Company of America ("Defendant"), a New York corporation
licensed by the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, was ordered to take
notice that the Commission would enter an order subsequent to August 31, 2010, suspending the license of the Defendant to transact new business unless on
or before August 23, 2010, the Defendant filed with the Clerk of the Commission a request for a hearing before the Commission to contest the proposed
suspension of the Defendant's license.

The Order to take Notice was entered due to the Defendant's failure to file its 2009 Audited Financial Report with the Commission on or before
June 1, 2010.

Due to financial regulatory concerns, on April 30, 2010, the Supreme Court of New York, New York County, placed the Defendant into
rehabilitation and the Superintendant of Insurance of the State of New York was appointed Rehabilitator.

On October 25, 2010, the Defendant consented to the entry of an order suspending its license to transact the business of insurance in Virginia
until such time as it has the financial strength to resume the transaction of the business of insurance.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:

(1) Pursuant to § 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia, the Defendant's license to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of
Virginia is hereby SUSPENDED;

(2) The Defendant shall issue no new contracts or policies of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia until further order of the Commission;
(3) The appointments of the Defendant's agents to act on behalf of the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby SUSPENDED;

(4) The Defendant's agents shall transact no new insurance business on behalf of the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia until further
order of the Commission;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause an attested copy of this Order to be sent to each of the Defendant's agents appointed to act on behalf of
the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia as notice of the suspension of such agent's appointment;

(6) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause notice of the suspension of the Defendant's license to be published in the manner set forth in § 38.2-1043
of the Code of Virginia; and

(7) The Defendant may apply at any time to the Commission to reinstate its license to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of
Virginia.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00157
AUGUST 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

AARON DICAPRIO,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"), it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of Virginia,
violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code of Virginia ("Code") by failing to file the Annual Gross Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, 38.2-1831, and 38.2-1857.7 of the Code to impose certain monetary penalties, issue
cease and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's licenses upon finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the

Defendant has committed the aforesaid violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing in this matter by certified letter dated July 14, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's
address shown in the records of the Bureau.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, failed to request a hearing.

The Bureau, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of the
Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker.

THE COMMISSION, is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code by failing to file the Annual Gross
Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of
Virginia are hereby REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said insurance licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant shall transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent or a surplus lines broker;

(4) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause a copy of this Order to be sent to every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an
appointment to act as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(5) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00158
AUGUST 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

GEORGE RAVELO,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"), it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of Virginia,
violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code of Virginia ("Code") by failing to file the Annual Gross Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, 38.2-1831, and 38.2-1857.7 of the Code to impose certain monetary penalties, issue
cease and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's licenses upon finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the

Defendant has committed the aforesaid violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing in this matter by certified letter dated July 14, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's
address shown in the records of the Bureau.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, failed to request a hearing.
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The Bureau, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of the
Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker.

THE COMMISSION, is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code by failing to file the Annual Gross
Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of
Virginia are hereby REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said insurance licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant shall transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent or a surplus lines broker;

(4) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause a copy of this Order to be sent to every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an
appointment to act as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(5) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00159
AUGUST 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

DAVID STRICKER,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"), it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of Virginia,
violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code of Virginia ("Code") by failing to file the Annual Gross Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, 38.2-1831, and 38.2-1857.7 of the Code to impose certain monetary penalties, issue
cease and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's licenses upon finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing in this matter by certified letter dated July 14, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's
address shown in the records of the Bureau.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, failed to request a hearing.

The Bureau, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of the
Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker.

THE COMMISSION, is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code by failing to file the Annual Gross
Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of
Virginia are hereby REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said insurance licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant shall transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent or a surplus lines broker;

(4) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause a copy of this Order to be sent to every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an
appointment to act as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(5) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00160
AUGUST 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

ALAN THOMAS,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"), it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of Virginia,
violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code of Virginia ("Code") by failing to file the Annual Gross Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, 38.2-1831, and 38.2-1857.7 of the Code to impose certain monetary penalties, issue
cease and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's licenses upon finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the

Defendant has committed the aforesaid violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing in this matter by certified letter dated July 14, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's
address shown in the records of the Bureau.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, failed to request a hearing.

The Bureau, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of the
Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker.

THE COMMISSION, is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code by failing to file the Annual Gross
Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of
Virginia are hereby REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said insurance licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant shall transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent or a surplus lines broker;

(4) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause a copy of this Order to be sent to every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an
appointment to act as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(5) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00161
AUGUST 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

MERILEE GREEN-DANIEL,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"), it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of Virginia,
violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code of Virginia ("Code") by failing to file the Annual Gross Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, 38.2-1831, and 38.2-1857.7 of the Code to impose certain monetary penalties, issue
cease and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's licenses upon finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the

Defendant has committed the aforesaid violation.

The Defendant has been notified of her right to a hearing in this matter by certified letter dated July 16, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's
address shown in the records of the Bureau.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of her right to a hearing in this matter, failed to request a hearing.
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The Bureau, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of the
Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker.

THE COMMISSION, is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code by failing to file the Annual Gross
Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of
Virginia are hereby REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said insurance licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant shall transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent or a surplus lines broker;

(4) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause a copy of this Order to be sent to every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an
appointment to act as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(5) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00163
AUGUST 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

MELISSA LARGE,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"), it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of Virginia,
violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code of Virginia ("Code") by failing to file the Annual Gross Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, 38.2-1831, and 38.2-1857.7 of the Code to impose certain monetary penalties, issue
cease and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's licenses upon finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid violation.

The Defendant has been notified of her right to a hearing in this matter by certified letter dated July 14, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's
address shown in the records of the Bureau.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of her right to a hearing in this matter, failed to request a hearing.

The Bureau, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of the
Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker.

THE COMMISSION, is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code by failing to file the Annual Gross
Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of
Virginia are hereby REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said insurance licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant shall transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent or a surplus lines broker;

(4) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause a copy of this Order to be sent to every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an
appointment to act as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(5) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00164
SEPTEMBER 13, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

ZAYAN TAKAFUL LLC,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"), it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of
Virginia, violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code of Virginia ("Code") by failing to file the Annual Gross Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1,
2010.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, 38.2-1831, and 38.2-1857.7 of the Code to impose certain monetary penalties, issue
cease and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's licenses upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the

Defendant has committed the aforesaid violation.

The Defendant has been notified of its right to a hearing in this matter by certified letter dated July 14, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's
address shown in the records of the Bureau.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of its right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing.

The Bureau, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of the
Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker.

THE COMMISSION, is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code by failing to file the Annual Gross
Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of
Virginia are hereby REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said insurance licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant shall transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent or a surplus lines broker;

(4) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause a copy of this Order to be sent to every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an
appointment to act as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(5) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00165
AUGUST 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

QUADRANT INSURANCE SERVICES, LLC,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"), it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of Virginia,
violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code of Virginia ("Code") by failing to file the Annual Gross Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, 38.2-1831, and 38.2-1857.7 of the Code to impose certain monetary penalties, issue
cease and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's licenses upon finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the

Defendant has committed the aforesaid violation.

The Defendant has been notified of its right to a hearing in this matter by certified letter dated July 14, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's
address shown in the records of the Bureau.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of its right to a hearing in this matter, failed to request a hearing.
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The Bureau, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of the
Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker.

THE COMMISSION, is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code by failing to file the Annual Gross
Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of
Virginia are hereby REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said insurance licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant shall transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent or a surplus lines broker;

(4) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause a copy of this Order to be sent to every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an
appointment to act as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(5) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00166
AUGUST 13, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY,

GREAT AMERICAN ASSURANCE COMPANY,

GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY OF NEW YORK,
and

GREAT AMERICAN ALLIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendants

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendants, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-317 of the Code of Virginia by
delivering or issuing for delivery insurance policies or endorsements without having filed such policy forms or endorsements with the Commission at least
thirty (30) days prior to their effective date.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendants' licenses upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendants have committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendants have been advised of their right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendants, without admitting any violation of
Virginia law, have made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendants have tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Two
Thousand Dollars ($2,000) per company for an amount totaling Eight Thousand Dollars ($8,000), waived their right to a hearing, and agreed to comply with
the Corrective Action Plan set forth in their letter to the Bureau of Insurance dated July 15, 2010.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendants pursuant to the authority
granted the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendants, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendants' offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendants in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00168
SEPTEMBER 10, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

JESUP & LAMONT SECURITIES,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against it by the State of New York.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of its right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated July 19, 2010, and mailed
to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of its right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against it by the State of New York.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00169
SEPTEMBER 10, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

BRIAN DOUGLAS FLANDERS,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of South Dakota.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.
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The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated July 20, 2010, and mailed
to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the State of South Dakota.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00170
SEPTEMBER 10, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

ROCKWOOD PROGRAMS, INC.,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C and subsection 1 of
§ 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against it by the State
of Massachusetts, and by providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in its license application filed with the Commission.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease

and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been notified of its right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated July 19, 2010, and mailed
to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of its right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C and subsection 1 of § 38.2-1831 of the Code of
Virginia by failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against it by the State of Massachusetts, and by
providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in its license application filed with the Commission.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
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(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00170
SEPTEMBER 29, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

ROCKWOOD PROPERTIES, INC.,
Defendant

ORDER GRANTING RECONSIDERATION

On September 10, 2010, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") issued an Order Revoking License in this docket. On September 27,
2010, the Defendant filed a Petition for Reconsideration ("Petition") requesting that the Commission reconsider the revocation of its Virginia insurance agent
license.

THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of this matter, grants reconsideration for the purposes of continuing jurisdiction over this matter and
considering the above-referenced request.

According, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) Reconsideration is granted for the purpose of continuing jurisdiction over this matter and considering the above-referenced request.

(2) This matter is continued pending further order of the Commission.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00172
AUGUST 25, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

AGENCY INSURANCE COMPANY OF MARYLAND,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on a market conduct examination performed by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-305 A of the Code of
Virginia by failing to provide accurate information required to be provided in insurance policies; violated § 38.2-502 by misrepresenting the benefits,
advantages, conditions or terms of insurance policies; violated §§ 38.2-510 A 3 and 38.2-510 A 6, as well as 14 VAC 5-400-50 C and 14 VAC 5-400-80 D,
by failing to properly handle claims; violated § 38.2-1812 by failing to properly appoint an agency; violated § 38.2-1906 D by making or issuing insurance
contracts or policies not in accordance with the rate and supplementary rate information filings in effect for the Defendant; violated §§ 38.2-2208 A,
38.2-2212 D, and 38.2-2212 E by failing to properly terminate policies of insurance; and violated § 38.2-2234 A by failing to include all information
required by the statute in its insurance credit disclosure notice.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Seventeen Thousand
Dollars ($17,000), waived its right to a hearing, confirmed that restitution was made to twenty-one (21) consumers in the amount of Four Thousand Six
Hundred Sixty-nine Dollars and Thirty Cents ($4,669.30), and agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan set forth in its letters to the Bureau of
Insurance dated April 28, 2010 and June 30, 2010.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.
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NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00177
SEPTEMBER 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

DAVID PAGE,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"), it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of Virginia,
violated § 38.2-4809 A of the Code of Virginia ("Code") by failing to pay the Bureau of Insurance Maintenance Assessment, Premium License Tax, and
other related fines and penalties for calendar year 2009.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, 38.2-1831, and 38.2-1857.7 of the Code to impose certain monetary penalties, issue
cease and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's licenses upon finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing in this matter by certified letter dated July 21, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's
address shown in the records of the Bureau.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, failed to request a hearing.

The Bureau, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of the
Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker.

NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-4809 A of the Code by failing to pay the Bureau
of Insurance Maintenance Assessment, Premium License Tax, and other related fines and penalties for calendar year 2009.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of
Virginia are hereby REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said insurance licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant shall transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent or a surplus lines broker;

(4) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause a copy of this Order to be sent to every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an
appointment to act as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(5) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00178
SEPTEMBER 27, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

JAMES LUBECK,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"), it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of Virginia,
violated § 38.2-4809 A of the Code of Virginia ("Code") by failing to pay the Bureau of Insurance Maintenance Assessment, Premium License Tax, and
other related fines and penalties for calendar year 2009.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, 38.2-1831, and 38.2-1857.7 of the Code to impose certain monetary penalties, issue
cease and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's licenses upon finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the

Defendant has committed the aforesaid violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing in this matter by certified letter dated July 21, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's
address shown in the records of the Bureau.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, failed to request a hearing.

The Bureau, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of the
Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-4809 A of the Code by failing to pay the Bureau of
Insurance Maintenance Assessment, Premium License Tax, and other related fines and penalties for calendar year 2009.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of
Virginia are hereby REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said insurance licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant shall transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent or a surplus lines broker;

(4) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause a copy of this Order to be sent to every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an
appointment to act as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(5) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00179
SEPTEMBER 13, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

FARRUKH SIDDIQUI,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"), it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of
Virginia, violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code of Virginia ("Code") by failing to file the Annual Gross Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1,
2010.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, 38.2-1831, and 38.2-1857.7 of the Code to impose certain monetary penalties, issue
cease and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's licenses upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing in this matter by certified letter dated July 21, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's
address shown in the records of the Bureau.
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The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing.

The Bureau, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of the
Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-4807 A of the Code by failing to file the Annual Gross
Premium Tax Report for 2009 on or before March 1, 2010.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent and a surplus lines broker in the Commonwealth of
Virginia are hereby REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said insurance licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant shall transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent or a surplus lines broker;

(4) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause a copy of this Order to be sent to every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an
appointment to act as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(5) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00181
SEPTEMBER 10, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

CHRISTOPHER M. MINOR,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letters dated June 30, 2010 and
July 12, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against him by the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00183
OCTOBER 4, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

THE CHARTER OAK FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY,

THE PHOENIX INSURANCE COMPANY,

THE TRAVELERS INDEMNITY COMPANY

THE TRAVELERS INDEMNITY COMPANY OF AMERICA,

THE TRAVELERS INDEMNITY COMPANY OF CONNECTICUT,

TRAVELERS PROPERTY CASUALTY COMPANY OF AMERICA,
and

TRAVELERS CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA,
Defendants

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendants, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated §§ 38.2-317 and 38.2-1906 D of the Code of
Virginia by delivering or issuing for delivery insurance policies or endorsements without having filed such policy forms or endorsements with the
Commission at least thirty (30) days prior to their effective date, and by making or issuing insurance contracts or policies not in accordance with the rate and
supplementary rate information filings in effect for the Defendants.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendants' licenses upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendants have committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendants have been advised of their right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendants, without admitting any violation of
Virginia law, have made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendants have tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Two
Thousand Dollars ($2,000) per company for an amount totaling Fourteen Thousand Dollars ($14,000), waived their right to a hearing, and agreed to comply
with the Corrective Action Plan set forth in their letter to the Bureau of Insurance dated June 4, 2010.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendants pursuant to the authority
granted the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendants, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendants' offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendants in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00186
SEPTEMBER 13, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

VESPERS, LLC,
Defendant

ORDER TO TAKE NOTICE

Pursuant to § 38.2-6002 of the Code of Virginia ("Code"), the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") may suspend or revoke the license
of any viatical settlement provider to act as a viatical settlement provider in the Commonwealth of Virginia whenever the Commission finds that the viatical
settlement provider no longer meets the requirements for licensure as a viatical settlement provider in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Section 38-2-6002 of
the Code requires that prior to the issuance of a license to act as a viatical settlement provider, the Commission must find that the applicant, if it is a
nonresident limited liability company, has furnished proof of its authority to transact business in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

Vespers, LLC, a nonresident limited liability corporation domiciled in Washington, D.C. ("Defendant"), is licensed by the Commission to act as a
viatical settlement provider. On December 31, 2009, the Defendant's certificate of authority to transact business in Virginia was cancelled.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that, based on the foregoing, the license of the Defendant to act as a viatical settlement provider in the
Commonwealth of Virginia be suspended.
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THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that the Defendant TAKE NOTICE that the Commission shall enter an order subsequent to September 20,
2010, suspending the license of the Defendant to act as a viatical settlement provider in the Commonwealth of Virginia unless on or before September 20,
2010, the Defendant files with the Clerk of the Commission, Document Control Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218, a request for a hearing
before the Commission with respect to the proposed suspension of the Defendant's license.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00189
OCTOBER 1, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

JEREMY ALAN STERN,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated §§ 38.2-502, 38.2-503, and 38.2-512 of the
Code of Virginia by misrepresenting the benefits, advantages, conditions or terms of an insurance policy, by making, publishing, disseminating, circulating,
or placing before the public an advertisement, announcement or statement containing an assertion, representation or statement relating to the business of
insurance which was untrue, deceptive or misleading, and by making or causing or allowing to be made false statements or representations on or relative to
an application for an insurance policy for the purpose of obtaining a fee, commission, or other benefit.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of his right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia
law, has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Seven Thousand
Dollars ($7,000), waived his right to a hearing, agreed to complete six (6) hours of Continuing Education ethics classes within one (1) year of the date of
entry of this Order, and agreed to provide proof to the Bureau of Insurance that the ethics classes have been completed.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00190
SEPTEMBER 15, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

FIDELITY NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on a market conduct examination performed by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-305 A of the Code of
Virginia by failing to provide accurate information required by statute in its insurance policies; violated § 38.2-502 by misrepresenting the benefits,
advantages, conditions or terms of an insurance policy; violated § 38.2-1906 D by making or issuing insurance contracts or policies not in accordance with
the rate and supplementary rate information filings in effect for the Defendant; violated § 38.2-2126 A by failing to send credit adverse action notices to
applicants or insureds; violated § 38.2-2234 A by failing to include all information required by statute in its insurance credit disclosure notice; and violated
§§ 38.2-305 B, 38.2-604 B, 38.2-610 A, 38.2-1905 A, 38.2-2118, 38.2-2120, 38.2-2124, 38.2-2125, 38.2-2202 A, 38.2-2202 B, and 38.2-2206 A by failing
to include accurate information in its notices.
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The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Fifteen Thousand
Dollars ($15,000), waived its right to a hearing, confirmed that restitution was made to three (3) consumers in the amount of Two Hundred Twenty-two
Dollars and Sixty Cents ($222.60), and agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan set forth in its letters to the Bureau of Insurance dated June 29,
2010 and August 17, 2010.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00191
NOVEMBER 10, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

CIGNA HEALTHCARE MID-ATLANTIC, INC.,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on a market conduct examination performed by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of a health maintenance organization in the Commonwealth of Virginia, in certain
instances, has violated § 38.2-4306.1 B of the Code of Virginia by failing to comply with the requirements of processing interest on claim proceeds; violated
§§ 38.2-316 A, 38.2-316 B, 38.2-316 C 1, 38.2-1318 C, 38.2-3407.4 A, and 38.2-4306 A 2 of the Code, as well as 14 VAC 5-211-60 A and
14 VAC 5-211-90 B, by failing to comply with policy and form requirements; violated §§ 38.2-1812 A, 38.2-1833 A 1, and 38.2-1834 D of the Code by
failing to comply with agent licensing requirements; violated §§ 38.2-5802 C and 38.2-5805 B of the Code by failing to comply with the requirements
governing health maintenance organizations; and violated §§ 38.2-510 A 15, 38.2-3407.15 B 1, 38.2-3407.15 B 2, 38.2-3407.15 B 3, 38.2-3407.15 B 4,
38.2-3407.15 B 5, 38.2-3407.15 B 6, 38.2-3407.15 B 7, 38.2-3407.15 B 8, 38.2-3407.15 B 9, and 38.2-3407.15 B 10 by failing to comply with the minimum
fair business standards in processing and payment of claims for health care services.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-4316 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Forty Thousand
Dollars ($40,000), waived its right to a hearing, and agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan contained in the Market Conduct Examination Report
as of March 31, 2008.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00199
OCTOBER 29, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

VIRGINIA SENIOR CARE GROUP, LLC,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, a limited liability company organized under the
laws of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1024 of the Code of Virginia by providing liability insurance in Virginia without first obtaining a license.

The State Corporation Commission ("Commission") is authorized by §§ 38.2-218 and 38.2-219 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain
monetary penalties and issue cease and desist orders upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the Defendant has
committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Five Thousand Dollars

($5,000), waived its right to a hearing, and agreed to entry of a cease and desist order.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted;
(2) The Defendant cease and desist from any conduct that constitutes a violation of § 38.2-1024 of the Code of Virginia; and

(3) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00202
OCTOBER 21, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

ALLSTATE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-317 of the Code of Virginia by
delivering or issuing for delivery insurance policies or endorsements without having filed such policy forms or endorsements with the Commission at least
thirty (30) days prior to their effective date.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of its right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia law,
has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Fifteen Thousand
Dollars ($15,000), waived its right to a hearing, and agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan set forth in its letter to the Bureau of Insurance dated
September 15, 2010.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.
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Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00204
NOVEMBER 3, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

ROBERT W. SHAFER,
Defendant

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated §§ 38.2-502, 38.2-512, 38.2-1812, and
38.2-1822 of the Code of Virginia by misrepresenting the benefits, advantages, conditions or terms of an insurance policy, by making false or fraudulent
statements or representations on or relative to an application or any document or communication relating to the business of insurance for the purpose of
obtaining a fee, commission, money, or other benefit from any insurer, agent, broker, premium finance company, or individual, by directly or indirectly
sharing commissions or other valuable consideration with a person who was not properly licensed and appointed, and by knowingly permitting a person to
act as an insurance agent without such person first obtaining a license in the manner and form prescribed by the Commission.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been advised of his right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendant, without admitting any violation of Virginia
law, has made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendant has tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Ten Thousand
Dollars ($10,000), waived his right to a hearing, and agreed to be placed on probation for a period of two (2) years from the date of entry of this Order. Asa
condition of probation, the Defendant has agreed to comply with all provisions of Title 38.2 of the Code of Virginia. If, during the period of probation the
Bureau has good cause to believe that the Defendant has violated the terms and conditions of the probation, the Bureau will initiate formal administrative
action to permanently revoke the Defendant's insurance agent licenses.

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendant pursuant to the authority granted
the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendant, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendant's offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendant in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted;
(2) The Defendant will be placed on probation for a period of two (2) years from the date of entry of this Order; and

(3) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00205
DECEMBER 2, 2010

PETITION OF

ANTHEM HEALTH PLANS OF VIRGINIA, INC,,
and

HEALTHKEEPERS, INC.

For approval to have vendors located outside the United States contact providers in order to maintain, update, make changes to, or otherwise key
information within provider databases

EINAL ORDER

On September 30, 2010, Anthem Health Plans of Virginia, Inc., and HealthKeepers, Inc. (collectively, "Anthem" or "Petitioners"), filed a Petition
under Rule 5 VAC 5-20-80 of the State Corporation Commission's ("Commission") Rules of Practice and Procedure and the Final Order ("Final Order")
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entered in Case No. INS-2007-00141."! In the Final Order, the Commission continued the requirement that Anthem cause the following services to be
provided from offices located within the Commonwealth of Virginia: claims processing and case management, customer service, quality management,
provider services, medical management, and network development. The Commission permitted Anthem to provide the following services from offices
located outside of the Commonwealth of Virginia: actuarial, underwriting, marketing, community relations, distribution management, and sales. In the
Final Order, the Commission also provided that if Anthem seeks to provide any of the aforementioned services from offices located outside of the
Commonwealth of Virginia, it should seek permission from the Commission by filing a petition " . . . setting forth a specific and detailed proposal for
providing such services out of state, including specific and detailed information on how and where Anthem will provide such services, as well as safeguards
for ensuring adequate levels of service."

In the Petition, Anthem requests that the Commission issue an Order that "approves Anthem's request to contract with vendors outside of the
United States in order to directly contact providers in order to maintain, update, make changes to, or otherwise key information into Anthem's provider
databases."®

Anthem represented in the Petition that "the ultimate goal of this Petition is to effectively manage and enhance the timeliness by which Anthem's
provider information is obtained, keyed and made readily available to associates in order to manage internal workflows and reduce the potential for claims
adjustment due to out-dated provider information."*

On October 7, 2010, the Commission entered a Scheduling Order in which it found that interested persons should be given an opportunity to
comment and participate in the case. The Commission provided a deadline of October 18, 2010, for persons to comment and directed the Bureau of
Insurance ("Bureau") to file a response to the Petition on or before October 25, 2010.

On October 18, 2010, the Medical Society of Virginia ("MSV"), filed a Notice of Participation and Objection to the Petition. The MSV objects to
approval of the Petition, stating that it would "likely delay the timely delivery of health care, unfairly increase the work load of physician office personnel in
having to deal with Anthem vendors located outside of the United States and consume valuable health care dollars which can best be directed at the delivery
of patiesnt care as opposed to consumed by being placed on hold, punted from one operator to another or repeating the same information over and over
again."

Also on October 18, 2010, the Virginia Medical Group Managers Association ("VMGMA") filed Comments objecting to the Petition, stating that
the proposal would add cost and create less efficiency for thousands of physicians in Virginia.® The Division of Consumer Counsel of the Office of the
Attorney General ("Consumer Counsel") also filed a Notice of Participation and Comments on October 18, 2010, asserting that Anthem's Petition does not
indicate how the granting of its request will be in the best interest of the providers.”

The Bureau filed its response on October 22, 2010 stating that it does not oppose the relief requested by Anthem.

On November 2, 2010, Anthem filed a Motion ("Anthem Motion") for Permission to Respond to Comments and a Response to Comments
("Anthem Response"). In Anthem's Response to the MSV's objection, Anthem claims that, in the 13 states where WellPoint (its parent) outsources to
vendors outside the United States, the proposed system works with great success.® In addition, Anthem states that it already off-shores the types of calls
described in its Petition today for certain Virginia-based self-funded groups whose claims are processed on non-local systems without complaint from
Virginia providers.’

In its Response to Comments by Consumer Counsel, Anthem asserts that training and monitoring of oversees personnel assure that services will
not be degraded by allowing offshore vendors to make calls of the types encompassed by the Petition.'” Anthem further states that off-shoring is the best
option in this case because it is already a successful established process that can easily absorb the additional work from Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the Petition, the responses thereto, and Anthem's Motion and Response, finds that the Motion
should be granted and the Petition should be denied. After considering Anthem's Motion and Petition and the objections lodged by the MSV and VMGMA,
we find that Anthem has not met its burden of proof of persuading the Commission that its request to contract with vendors outside of the United States will
not degrade the quality of communications and service to Virginians.

! Petition of Anthem Health Plans of Virginia, Inc., Healthkeepers, Inc., Priority Health Care, Inc., Peninsula Health Care, Inc., Wellpoint, Inc., Anthem
Southeast, Inc, For Amendment of Final Order in Case No. INS-2002-00131, Case No. INS-2007-00141, Final Order (Aug. 9, 2007).

? Final Order at 8, q 4.

3 Petition at 5.

* Petition at 4.

> MSV Notice of Participation at 2.

$ VMGMA Comments at 1.

7 Consumer Counsel Comments at 1.
8 Anthem Response at 3.

’1d.

914, at 5.
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Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) Anthem's Petition is DENIED.

(2) The other provisions of the Final Order in Case No. INS-2007-00141 are not affected hereby, and Anthem shall continue to comply
therewith.

(3) The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00206
DECEMBER 2, 2010

PETITION OF

ANTHEM HEALTH PLANS OF VIRGINIA, INC,,
and

HEALTHKEEPERS, INC.

For approval to provide utilization management and case management for members receiving benefits under a Medicaid or CHIP managed care
plan from locations outside of Virginia

EINAL ORDER

On September 30, 2010, Anthem Health Plans of Virginia, Inc., and HealthKeepers, Inc. (collectively, "Anthem" or "Petitioners"), filed a Petition
under Rule 5 VAC 5-20-80 of the State Corporation Commission's ("Commission") Rules of Practice and Procedure and the Final Order ("Final Order")
entered in Case No. INS-2007-00141."! In the Final Order, the Commission continued the requirement that Anthem cause the following services to be
provided from offices located within the Commonwealth of Virginia: claims processing and case management, customer service, quality management,
provider services, medical management, and network development. The Commission permitted Anthem to provide the following services from offices
located outside of the Commonwealth of Virginia: actuarial, underwriting, marketing, community relations, distribution management, and sales. In the
Final Order, the Commission also provided that if Anthem seeks to provide any of the aforementioned services from offices located outside of the
Commonwealth of Virginia, it should seek permission from the Commission by filing a petition " . . . setting forth a specific and detailed proposal for
providing such services out of state, including specific and detailed information on how and where Anthem will provide such services, as well as safeguards
for ensuring adequate levels of service."

In the Petition, Anthem requests that the Commission issue an Order that "approves Anthem's provision of utilization management and case
management for members receiving benefits under a Medicaid/CHIP Managed Care plan from locations outside of Virginia, but within the United States."®

On October 7, 2010, the Commission entered a Scheduling Order, in which it found that interested persons should be given an opportunity to
comment and participate in the case. The Commission provided a deadline of October 18, 2010, for persons to comment and directed the Bureau of
Insurance ("Bureau") to file a response to the Petition on or before October 25, 2010.

No comments were filed on the Petition. The Bureau filed a response on October 22, 2010, stating that it does not oppose the relief requested by
Anthem.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the Petition and the Bureau's response thereto, finds that the Petition should be granted.
Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) Anthem's Petition is GRANTED.

(2) Anthem is permitted to provide utilization management and case management for members receiving benefits under a Medicaid/CHIP
Managed Care plan from locations outside of Virginia, but within the United States.

(3) The other provisions of the Final Order in Case No. INS-2007-00141 are not affected hereby, and Anthem shall continue to comply
therewith.

(4) The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

! Petition of Anthem Health Plans of Virginia, Inc., Healthkeepers, Inc., Priority Health Care, Inc., Peninsula Health Care, Inc., Wellpoint, Inc., Anthem
Southeast, Inc, For Amendment of Final Order in Case No. INS-2002-00131, Case No. INS-2007-0014 1, Final Order (Aug. 9, 2007).

? Final Order at 8, 4.

3 Petition at 4.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00210
OCTOBER 8, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

AMERICAN STATES PREFERRED INSURANCE COMPANY,

GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA,

INSURANCE COMPANY OF ILLINOIS,

SAFECO INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA,

SAFECO INSURANCE COMPANY OF ILLINOIS,
and

SAFECO INSURANCE COMPANY OF INDIANA,
Defendants

SETTLEMENT ORDER

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendants, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-305 A of the Code of Virginia by
failing to provide accurate information required by statute in their insurance policies; violated § 38.2-305 B by failing to include accurate information in their
notices; violated § 38.2-317 A by failing to use forms on file with the Bureau; violated § 38.2-502 by misrepresenting the benefits, advantages, conditions or
terms of an insurance policy; violated §§ 38.2-510 A 3 and 38.2-510 A 10 by failing to properly handle claims; violated § 38.2-511 by failing to maintain a
complete complaint register; violated § 38.2-610 A by failing to provide insureds with written notice of an adverse underwriting decision; violated
§ 38.2-1318 by failing to provide convenient access to files, documents, and records relating to an examination; violated § 38.2-1812 E by paying
commissions to a trade name that was not registered with the Bureau; violated § 38.2-1822 A by knowingly permitting unlicensed entities to act as agents on
behalf of the companies; violated § 38.2-1833 by failing to properly appoint agents and agencies; violated § 38.2-1905 A by failing to notify insureds in
writing when their policies were surcharged for at-fault accidents; violated § 38.2-1906 D by making or issuing insurance contracts or policies not in
accordance with the rate and supplementary rate information filings in effect for the Defendants; violated §§ 38.2-604 B, 38.2-604 C, 38-2-604.1 B,
38.2-2124, 38.2-2202 A, and 38.2-2210 A for failing to include accurate information in their notices as required by these statutes; violated §§ 38.2-2113 C,
38.2-2114 A, 38.2-2208, and 38.2-2212 F by failing to properly terminate policies of insurance; violated §§ 38.2-2214 and 38.2-2220 for failing to use
standard forms; violated § 38.2-2234 A by failing to include all information required by statute in their insurance credit disclosure notices; and violated
14 VAC 5-400-30, 14 VAC 5-400-40 A, 14 VAC 5-400-50 C, and 14 VAC 5-400-80 D by failing to properly handle claims.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendants' licenses upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendants have committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendants have been advised of their right to a hearing in this matter, whereupon the Defendants, without admitting any violation of
Virginia law, have made an offer of settlement to the Commission wherein the Defendants have tendered to the Commonwealth of Virginia the sum of Two
Hundred One Thousand Dollars ($201,000), waived their right to a hearing, agreed to comply with the Corrective Action Plan set forth in their letters to the

Bureau of Insurance dated April 5, 2010, May 27, 2010, and August 6, 2010, and have confirmed that restitution was made to 26 consumers in the amount of
Four Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-three Dollars and Seventy-six Cents ($4,463.76).

The Bureau of Insurance has recommended that the Commission accept the offer of settlement of the Defendants pursuant to the authority
granted the Commission in § 12.1-15 of the Code of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein, the offer of settlement of the Defendants, and the recommendation of the
Bureau of Insurance, is of the opinion that the Defendants' offer should be accepted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The offer of the Defendants in settlement of the matter set forth herein be, and it is hereby, accepted; and

(2) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00212
OCTOBER 7, 2010

ALLSTATE INDEMNITY COMPANY, ALLSTATE INSURANCE COMPANY,

ALLSTATE FIRE AND CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY,

ALLSTATE PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY,

DEERBROOK INSURANCE COMPANY, ENCOMPASS INDEMNITY COMPANY,

ENCOMPASS INSURANCE COMPANY, ENCOMPASS INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA,
ENCOMPASS PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY,

ENCOMPASS INDEPENDENT INSURANCE COMPANY, NORTHBROOK INDEMNITY COMPANY

Ex Parte: In the matter of Approval of a Multi-State Regulatory Settlement Agreement Between Allstate Insurance Company, et al. and the
Insurance Commissioners of the States of Illinois, Florida, Towa, and New York, for the Virginia State Corporation Commission Bureau of

Insurance

ORDER APPROVING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

ON THIS DAY came the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau"), by counsel, and requested Commission approval and acceptance of a multi-state
Regulatory Settlement Agreement ("Agreement") dated August 27, 2010, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, by and between the
Commissioners of Insurance for the States of Illinois, Florida, lowa, and New York, and Allstate Indemnity Company, Allstate Insurance Company, Allstate
Fire and Casualty Insurance Company, Allstate Property and Casualty Insurance Company, Deerbrook Insurance Company, Encompass Indemnity
Company, Encompass Insurance Company, Encompass Insurance Company of America, Encompass Property and Casualty Insurance Company, Encompass
Independent Insurance Company, and Northbrook Indemnity Company (collectively, "Allstate Companies"), which are licensed to transact the business of
insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

AND THE COMMISSION, having considered the terms of the Agreement together with the recommendation of the Bureau that the
Commission approve and accept the Agreement, is of the opinion, and finds, and ORDERS that the Agreement be, and it is hereby, APPROVED AND
ACCEPTED.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Multi-State Market Conduct Regulatory Agreement" is on file and may be examined at the State
Corporation Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00214
OCTOBER 20, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In the matter of Repealing and Adopting New Rules Governing Advertisement of Life Insurance and Annuities

ORDER TO TAKE NOTICE

Section 12.1-13 of the Code of Virginia provides that the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") shall have the power to promulgate
rules and regulations in the enforcement and administration of all laws within its jurisdiction, and § 38.2-223 of the Code of Virginia provides that the
Commission may issue any rules and regulations necessary or appropriate for the administration and enforcement of Title 38.2 of the Code of Virginia.

The rules and regulations issued by the Commission pursuant to § 38.2-223 of the Code of Virginia are set forth in Title 14 of the Virginia
Administrative Code.

The Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau") has submitted to the Commission a proposal to repeal Chapter 40 of Title 14 of the Virginia Administrative
Code entitled Rules Governing Life Insurance and Annuity Marketing Practices ("Rules"), which are set out at 14 VAC 5-40-10 through 14 VAC 5-40-80,
and proposes a new chapter, Chapter 41 of Title 14 of the Virginia Administrative Code entitled Rules Governing Advertisement of Life Insurance and
Annuities ("Proposed Rules") set forth at 14 VAC 5-41-10 through 14 VAC 5-41-160.

The repeal of Chapter 40 is necessary because the Rules are old and outdated, and many provisions are no longer applicable to current
advertisement practices.

The Proposed Rules in Chapter 41 address and clarify many of the advertisement requirements found in the Code of Virginia, retain some of the
provisions from Chapter 40, and more closely follow the National Association of Insurance Commissioners' (NAIC) Model Regulation on this subject. The
Proposed Rules establish the form and content of advertisements and general disclosure requirements, set standards for advertisements that include
information on premiums, nonguaranteed policy elements and benefits, address policy costs and cost comparison requirements, insurer identity,
advertisements using testimonials or offering introductory or special offers, requirements for policies sold to students and licensing, as well as approval and
records maintenance requirements.

The Commission is of the opinion that the Rules contained in Chapter 40 of Title 14 of the Virginia Administrative Code should be repealed, and
the Proposed Rules at Chapter 41 of Title 14 of the Virginia Administrative Code should be considered for adoption.
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THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The proposal that Chapter 40 of Title 14 of the Virginia Administrative Code set out at 14 VAC 5-40-10 through 14 VAC 5-40-80 be
repealed and a new chapter proposed at Chapter 41 of Title 14 of the Virginia Administrative Code set forth at 14 VAC 5-41-10 through 14 VAC 5-41-160,
be attached hereto and made a part hereof.

(2) All interested persons who desire to comment in support of or in opposition to, or request a hearing to oppose the repeal of Chapter 40 and
the adoption of the proposed new Chapter 41 shall file such comments or hearing request on or before December 17, 2010, with the Clerk of the
Commission, Document Control Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218 and shall refer to Case No. INS-2010-00214. Interested persons
desiring to submit comments electronically may do so by following the instructions at the Commission's website:
http://www.scc.virginia.gov/caseinfo.htm.

(3) If no written request for a hearing on the proposed repeal and adoption of new rules is filed on or before December 17, 2010, the
Commission, upon consideration of any comments submitted in support of or in opposition to the proposal, may repeal Chapter 40 and adopt proposed
Chapter 41 of Title 14 of the Virginia Administrative Code as proposed by the Bureau of Insurance.

(4) AN ATTESTED COPY hereof, together with a copy of the proposal to repeal and adopt new rules, shall be sent by the Clerk of the
Commission to the Bureau of Insurance in care of Deputy Commissioner Jacqueline K. Cunningham, who forthwith shall give further notice of the proposal
to repeal and adopt new rules by mailing a copy of this Order, together with the proposal, to all insurers licensed by the Commission to write life insurance
and annuity contracts in the Commonwealth of Virginia, as well as all interested parties.

(5) The Commission's Division of Information Resources forthwith shall cause a copy of this Order, together with the proposal to repeal and
adopt new rules, to be forwarded to the Virginia Registrar of Regulations for appropriate publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations.

(6) The Commission's Division of Information Resources shall make available this Order and the attached proposed revisions to the Rules on the
Commission's website: http://www.scc.virginia.gov/case.

(7) The Bureau of Insurance shall file with the Clerk of the Commission an affidavit of compliance with the notice requirements of paragraph (4)
above.

NOTE: A copy of Attachment A entitled "Rules Governing Advertisement of Life Insurance and Annuities" is on file and may be examined at
the State Corporation Commission, Clerk's Office, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, First Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond,
Virginia.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00215
OCTOBER 21, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

NYDIA WHYTE,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by
failing to report to the Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against her by the State of West Virginia.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the

Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of her right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated September 15, 2010, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of her right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the
Commission within thirty days an administrative action that was taken against her by the State of West Virginia.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;
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(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00216
DECEMBER 2, 2010

PETITION OF

ANTHEM HEALTH PLANS OF VIRGINIA, INC.
and

HEALTHKEEPERS, INC.

For approval to provide quality management services from locations outside of Virginia for member grievances on provider quality of care
EINAL ORDER

On October 15, 2010, Anthem Health Plans of Virginia, Inc., and HealthKeepers, Inc. (collectively, "Anthem" or "Petitioners"), filed a Petition
under Rule 5 VAC 5-20-80 of the State Corporation Commission's ("Commission") Rules of Practice and Procedure and the Final Order ("Final Order")
entered in Case No. INS-2007-00141." In the Final Order, the Commission continued the requirement that Anthem cause the following services to be
provided from offices located within the Commonwealth of Virginia: claims processing and case management, customer service, quality management,
provider services, medical management, and network development. The Commission permitted Anthem to provide the following services from offices
located outside of the Commonwealth of Virginia: actuarial, underwriting, marketing, community relations, distribution management, and sales. In the
Final Order, the Commission also provided that if Anthem seeks to provide any of the aforementioned services from offices located outside of the
Commonwealth of Virginia, it should seek permission from the Commission by filing a petition " . . . setting forth a specific and detailed proposal for
providing such services out of state, including specific and detailed information on how and where Anthem will provide such services, as well as safeguards
for ensuring adequate levels of service."?

In the Petition, Anthem requests "relief, in part, from the requirements in the Final Order for quality management services for member grievances
concerning provider quality of care to be provided only in Virginia."> Anthem further represents that such quality management services will, if the Petition
is granted, be performed by registered nurses located in Kentucky, Ohio, and Missouri.

On November 1, 2010, the Medical Society of Virginia, filed a Notice of Participation in which it stated that the "Medical Society does not
oppose the Anthem Petition and will continue to monitor closely the feedback from its physician members as to how Anthem performs should this petition
be granted." The Medical Society of Virginia also stated that it "reserves the right to seek relief and reversal of any relief granted to Anthem if the
performance by Anthem or its agents as outlined in the Petition causes disruption, delay, work loan increases or creates difficulties in the delivery of health
care by its physician members."

On November 5, 2010, the Division of Consumer Counsel of the Office of the Attorney General ("Consumer Counsel") filed comments in which
it neither supported nor opposed the requested relief.

On November 15, 2010, the Bureau filed a response stating that it does not oppose the relief requested by Anthem.
NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the Petition and the responses thereto, finds that the Petition should be granted.
Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) Anthem's Petition is GRANTED.

! Petition of Anthem Health Plans of Virginia, Inc., Healthkeepers, Inc., Priority Health Care, Inc., Peninsula Health Care, Inc., Wellpoint, Inc., Anthem
Southeast, Inc, For Amendment of Final Order in Case No. INS-2002-00131, Case No. INS-2007-00141, Final Order (Aug. 9, 2007).

? Final Order at 8, q 4.
? Petition at 2.
* Notice at 2.

*1d.
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(2) Anthem is permitted to provide quality management services for member grievances concerning provider quality of care from locations
outside of Virginia, but within the United States.

(3) The other provisions of the Final Order in Case No. INS-2007-00141 are not affected hereby, and Anthem shall continue to comply
therewith.

(4) The case is dismissed, and the papers herein are passed to the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00217
NOVEMBER 1, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

GABRIELLE R. HALL,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated §§ 38.2-1826 A and C of the Code of Virginia
by failing to report within thirty days to the Commission and to every insurer for which she is appointed a change in her residence address, and by failing to
report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against her by the State of California.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the

Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been notified of her right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated September 24, 2010, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of her right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated §§ 38.2-1826 A and C of the Code of Virginia by failing
to report within thirty (30) days to the Commission and to every insurer for which she is appointed a change in her residence address, and by failing to report
to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against her by the State of California.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.
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CASE NO. INS-2010-00223
NOVEMBER 17, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

AMBER L. MASSEY,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1819 of the Code of Virginia by failing
to make a written application to the Commission in the form and containing the information the Commission prescribes.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violation.

The Defendant has been notified of her right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letter dated September 29, 2010, and
mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of her right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1819 of the Code of Virginia by failing to make a written
application to the Commission in the form and containing the information the Commission prescribes.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00224
NOVEMBER 12, 2010

APPLICATION OF
OXFORD LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

For approval of an assumption reinsurance agreement pursuant to § 38.2-136 C of the Code of Virginia

ORDER APPROVING APPLICATION

By petition filed with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") on October 27, 2010, Oxford Life Insurance Company ("Petitioner"),
an Arizona-domiciled insurer licensed by the Commission to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, requested approval of an
assumption reinsurance agreement pursuant to § 38.2-136 of the Code of Virginia ("Code").

Effective September 1, 2010, the Petitioner entered into an assumption reinsurance agreement that provided for assuming National States
Insurance Company in Rehabilitation's ("National States") Medicare supplement policies.

On October 8, 2010, the Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri, approved the reinsurance agreement upon the motion of the Director of the
Missouri Department of Insurance in his capacity as Rehabilitator of National States.
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Pursuant to § 38.2-136 C of the Code, the Petitioner has requested that the Commission waive the policyholder consent to this transaction
required by § 38.2-136 B of the Code by finding that the transfer of the policies to the Petitioner is in the best interest of policyholders.

The Bureau of Insurance, having reviewed the application to ensure that Virginia policyholders will not lose any rights or claims afforded under
their original contracts pursuant to Chapter 17 of Title 38.2 of the Code, has recommended that the application be approved.

NOW THE COMMISSION , having considered the application, the recommendation of the Bureau of Insurance that the application be
approved, and the law applicable hereto, is of the opinion that the application should be approved;

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the application of Oxford Life Insurance Company for the approval of the reinsurance agreement
pursuant to § 38.2-136 C of the Code of Virginia be, and it is hereby, APPROVED.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00246
DECEMBER 22, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

MONITOR LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NEW YORK,
Defendant

CONSENT ORDER

Monitor Life Insurance Company of New York ("Defendant"), a New York domiciled insurer, was initially licensed by the State Corporation
Commission to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia on October 21, 1986.

The Defendant timely filed its June 30, 2010, Quarterly Statement, which reflects that the Defendant's surplus is below the $3,000,000 minimum
required by § 38.2-1028 of the Code of Virginia.

On November 1, 2010, the Defendant, through its President Paul H. Trevvett, filed with the Bureau of Insurance ("Bureau") an affidavit stating
that it has ceased writing new business and consenting to the suspension of its license.

The Bureau has recommended that the license of the Defendant be suspended.
Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) Pursuant to § 38.2-1040 of the Code of Virginia, the license of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of
Virginia is hereby SUSPENDED;

(2) The Defendant shall issue no new contracts or policies of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia until further order of the Commission;
(3) The appointments of the Defendant's agents to act on behalf of the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby SUSPENDED;

(4) The Defendant's agents shall transact no new insurance business on behalf of the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia until further
order of the Commission;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause an attested copy of this Order to be sent to each of the Defendant's agents appointed to act on behalf of
the Defendant in the Commonwealth of Virginia as notice of the suspension of such agent's appointment; and

(6) The Bureau of Insurance shall cause notice of the suspension of the Defendant's license to be published in the manner set forth in § 38.2-1043
of the Code of Virginia.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00249
DECEMBER 7, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

GARY JOHN LORD,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 38.2-1826 C and subsection 1 of
§ 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia by failing to report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the
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States of Colorado and Oklahoma, and by providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in his license application filed with
the Commission.

The Commission is authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue cease
and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been notified of his right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letters dated October 12, 2010 and
November 8, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of his right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.

NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated § 38.2-1826 C and subsection 1 of § 38.2-1831 of the

Code of Virginia by failing to report to the Commission within thirty (30) days an administrative action that was taken against him by the States of Colorado
and Oklahoma, and by providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in his license application filed with the Commission.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00252
DECEMBER 22, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

KELLY JEAN CARRATURA,
Defendant

ORDER REVOKING LICENSE

Based on an investigation conducted by the Bureau of Insurance, it is alleged that the Defendant, duly licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, violated § 55-525.24 (formerly § 6.1-2.23) and
38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia by failing to disburse funds pursuant to a written instruction or agreement specifying how and to whom such funds may be
disbursed, and by demonstrating financial irresponsibility in the handling of applicant, policyholder, agency, or insurance company funds.

The Commission is authorized by § 55-525.31 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties and to suspend or revoke the
Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged
violations of Chapters 27.2 and 27.3 of Title 55 of the Code of Virginia.

The Commission is also authorized by §§ 38.2-218, 38.2-219, and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia to impose certain monetary penalties, issue
cease and desist orders, and suspend or revoke the Defendant's license upon a finding by the Commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, that the
Defendant has committed the aforesaid alleged violations.

The Defendant has been notified of her right to a hearing before the Commission in this matter by certified letters dated May 11, 2010, and
October 7, 2010, and mailed to the Defendant's address shown in the records of the Bureau of Insurance.

The Defendant, having been advised in the above manner of her right to a hearing in this matter, has failed to request a hearing and has not
otherwise communicated with the Bureau of Insurance.

The Bureau of Insurance, upon the Defendant's failure to request a hearing, has recommended that the Commission enter an order revoking all of
the Defendant's licenses to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent.
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NOW THE COMMISSION is of the opinion and finds that the Defendant has violated §§ 55-525.24 and 38.2-1831 of the Code of Virginia by
failing to disburse funds pursuant to a written instruction or agreement specifying how and to whom such funds may be disbursed, and by demonstrating
financial irresponsibility in the handling of applicant, policyholder, agency, or insurance company funds.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The licenses of the Defendant to transact the business of insurance as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia are hereby
REVOKED;

(2) All appointments issued under said licenses are hereby VOID;
(3) The Defendant transact no further business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as an insurance agent;

(4) The Defendant shall not apply to the Commission to be licensed as an insurance agent in the Commonwealth of Virginia prior to sixty (60)
days from the date of this Order;

(5) The Bureau of Insurance shall notify every insurance company for which the Defendant holds an appointment to act as an insurance agent in
the Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(6) The papers herein be placed in the file for ended causes.

CASE NO. INS-2010-00255
DECEMBER 29, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
v.

AMERICAS INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant

IMPAIRMENT ORDER

Americas Insurance Company, a foreign corporation domiciled in the State of Louisiana ("Defendant") and licensed by the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission") to transact the business of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia, is required to maintain minimum capital of $1,000,000
and minimum surplus of $3,000,000.

Section 38.2-1036 of the Code of Virginia provides that if the Commission finds an impairment of the required minimum surplus of any foreign
insurer, the Commission may order the insurer to eliminate the impairment and restore the minimum surplus to the amount required by law and may prohibit

the insurer from issuing any new policies in the Commonwealth of Virginia while the impairment of its surplus exists.

The Quarterly Statement of the Defendant, dated September 30, 2010, and filed with the Commission's Bureau of Insurance, indicates capital of
$3,000,000 and surplus of $2,416,380, and impairment in surplus of $583,620.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) On or before April 1, 2011, the Defendant eliminate the impairment in its surplus and restore the same to at least $3,000,000 and advise the
Commission of the accomplishment thereof by affidavit of the Defendant's president or other authorized officer.

(2) The Defendant shall issue no new contracts or policies of insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia while the impairment of the
Defendant's surplus exists and until further order of the Commission.
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DIVISION OF PUBLIC SERVICE TAXATION

CASE NOS. PST-2004-00030, PST-2006-00024, PST-2007-00019, and PST-2008-00026
JUNE 30, 2010

APPLICATION OF
LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC

For Review and Correction of Certification of Gross Receipts - Tax Year 2003

APPLICATION OF
LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC

For Review and Correction of Certification of Gross Receipts for the year ended December 31, 2004

APPLICATION OF
LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC

For Review and Correction of Certification of Gross Receipts

APPLICATION OF
LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC

For Review and Correction of Certification of Gross Receipts
EINAL ORDER

Before the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") are these applications for review and correction of our certifications of gross receipts,
which might be subject to the minimum tax imposed by § 58.1-400.1 of the Code of Virginia (hereinafter "Code"). As required by that provision of the
Code, the Commission must collect from telecommunications companies information on gross receipts and certify the amount of such gross receipts to the
Virginia Department of Taxation ("Department"). As provided by § 58.1-2674.1 of the Code, Level 3 Communications, LLC ("Level 3" or "Company"),
filed for review and correction of our certifications to the Department for the years ending December 31, 2002 (Case No. PST-2004-00030, the
"2004 Application"); December 31, 2004 (Case No. PST-2006-00024, the "2006 Application"); December 31, 2005 (Case No. PST-2007-00019, the
"2007 Application"); and December 31, 2006 (Case No. PST-2008-00026, the "2008 Application").

These applications are addressed in the Report of Michael D. Thomas, Hearing Examiner, dated April 12, 2010 ("Report"). Hearing Examiner
Thomas recommended that the Commission adopt a settlement offered by Level 3, respondent Department, which was represented by the Office of the
Attorney General, and the Commission Staff ("Staft"). The settlement proposes correction of the certifications for each year to reflect recalculation of the
deductions from gross receipts provided by § 58.1-400.1 D 2 i, ii, and iii of the Code. The recalculated deductions would reduce the amounts of gross
receipts certified to the Department for all four (4) years. The proposed settlement did not extend to gross receipts related to Internet services provided by
Level 3.

As discussed in the Report, the Commission has considered and rejected Level 3's arguments that the Internet-related gross receipts should also
be excluded from the amounts certified to the Department.' In his recommendations, Hearing Examiner Thomas noted that the Company and the
Department object to the Commission's disposition of the Internet issues in the Order Dismissing, In Part, Application and Opinion entered in the
2004 Application.”

For the reasons addressed in this Order, the Commission will adopt the Hearing Examiner's recommendation to accept the proposed
recalculations and consequent reductions of the amounts certified to the Department as set out in the proposed settlement.

In the 2004 Application, the Commission considered and rejected Level 3's contentions that federal law requires that Internet-related gross
receipts must be excluded from the certified gross receipts. The parties and the Staff have not identified any change in federal or Virginia law in the
intervening period that would require us to reconsider the issue of whether federal law requires the Commission to exclude additional gross receipts from the
amount certified to the Department. We adopt the reasoning and conclusions we reached in our Order Dismissing, In Part, Application and Opinion in the
2004 Application with regard to the 2006, 2007, and 2008 Applications.

The Commission will not repeat in full our earlier discussion. In brief, Level 3 contends that federal statutes® require the exclusion of Internet-
related gross receipts from the amount certified to the Department. In so arguing, the Company ignores the wording of the federal statute. The provision that
Level 3 would have us consider does not reach our duty under Virginia law.

! Application of Level 3 Communications, LLC, For Review and Correction of Certification of Gross Receipts-Tax Year 2003, Case No. PST-2004-00030,
2008 S.C.C. Ann. Rept. 240, Order Dismissing, In Part, Application (Nov. 13, 2008); Opinion (March 5, 2009).

2 Report at 8.
3 Internet Tax Freedom Act, Pub. L. No. 105-277, 112 Stat. 2681, 2719 (1998), as amended by the Internet Tax Nondiscrimination Act, Pub. L. No. 107-75,

115 Stat. 703 (2001), as further amended by the Internet Tax. Nondiscrimination Act, Pub. L. No. 108-435, 118 Stat. 2615 (2004), and as further amended
by the Internet Tax. Freedom Act Amendments Act of 2007, Pub. L. No. 110-108, 121 Stat. 1024 (2007) (codified at 47 U.S.C. § 151 note).
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SEC. 1101. MORATORIUM.
(a) Moratorium.—No State or political subdivision thereof may impose any of the following taxes during the
period beginning November 1, 2003, and ending November 1, 2014:

(1) Taxes on Internet access.
(2) Multiple or discriminatory taxes on electronic commerce.*

The identified federal statute limits state and local taxation. The federal statute does not address the Commission's duty under Virginia law to collect
information on gross receipts; to determine that the deductions provided by Virginia law have been properly taken; and to provide that information to the
Department of Taxation. The Commission does not determine whether a company is liable for the minimum tax levied by § 58.1-400.1 of the Code, nor does it
collect the tax. Any liability for the minimum tax cannot be determined without first calculating Virginia income tax liability. The calculation of income tax
liability is clearly beyond the Commission's jurisdiction.

Further, the Commission is charged with applying Virginia tax law as enacted. The definition of gross receipts and the statutory deductions from the
amount to be certified set out in § 58.1-400.1 D of the Code control our action here. There is no language in § 58.1-400.1 of the Code that empowers the
Commission to modify the definition of gross receipts or to establish additional deductions from gross receipts.

For these reasons and for the reasons further stated in our Order Dismissing, In Part, Application and Opinion in the 2004 Application, we will deny
the 2006, 2007, and 2008 Applications to the extent the Company seeks exclusion of Internet-related gross receipts from the certifications to the Department.

The Commission finds that the reductions in the certified amounts of gross receipts proposed in the settlement should be adopted. According to
the Joint Stipulation of Facts of March 15, 2010, Level 3 provided the best information available, and the Staff recalculated the deductions from gross
receipts for each year to arrive at a reasonable and economical settlement.’ We accept the Hearing Examiner's recommendation that the settlement be
adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Company's Application in Case No. PST-2004-00030 not previously dismissed by the Commission's Order Dismissing, In Part,
Application of November 13, 2008, be granted to the extent discussed above and otherwise be denied.

(2) The Company's Application in Case No. PST-2006-00024 be granted to the extent discussed above and otherwise be denied.
(3) The Company's Application in Case No. PST-2007-00019 be granted to the extent discussed above and otherwise be denied.
(4) The Company's Application in Case No. PST-2008-00026 be granted to the extent discussed above and otherwise be denied.

(5) The Commission's certification of May 14, 2003, to the Department, "Gross Receipts of Telecommunications Companies: A Statement
showing the Gross Receipts subject to the minimum tax for the year ending December 31, 2002, of Telecommunications Companies in the Commonwealth
of Virginia pursuant to Title .1, Chapter 3, Article 10, of the Code of Virginia," page 9, for Level 3 Communications, LLC, be corrected by striking the
figure $52,244,791 and inserting the figure $31,275,731.

(6) The Commission's certification of May 12, 2005, to the Department, "Gross Receipts of Telecommunications Companies: A Statement
showing the Gross Receipts subject to the minimum tax for the year ending December 31, 2004, of Telecommunications Companies in the Commonwealth
of Virginia pursuant to Title 58.1, Chapter 3, Article 10, of the Code of Virginia," page 10, for Level 3 Communications, LLC, be corrected by striking the
figure $58,684,003 and inserting the figure $53,536,270.

(7) The Commission's certification of May 12, 2006, to the Department, "Gross Receipts of Telecommunications Companies: A Statement
showing the Gross Receipts subject to the minimum tax for the year ending December 31, 2005, of Telecommunications Companies in the Commonwealth
of Virginia pursuant to Title 58.1, Chapter 3, Article 10, of the Code of Virginia," page 9, for Level 3 Communications, LLC, be corrected by striking the
figure $55,040,251 and inserting the figure $43,217,717.

(8) The Commission's certification of May 11, 2007, to the Department, "Gross Receipts of Telecommunications Companies: A Statement
showing the Gross Receipts subject to the minimum tax for the year ending December 31, 2006, of Telecommunications Companies in the Commonwealth
of Virginia pursuant to Title 58.1, Chapter 3, Article 10, of the Code of Virginia," page 9, for Level 3 Communications, LLC, be corrected by striking the
figure $54,044,231 and inserting the figure $49,940,519.

(9) The Commission's Public Service Taxation Division shall promptly provide to the Department a copy of this Order and such other
information as the Department may require.

(10) Case No. PST-2004-00030, Case No. PST-2006-00024, Case No. PST-2007-00019, and Case No. PST-2008-00026 be dismissed from the
Commission's docket and placed in closed status in the records maintained by the Clerk of the Commission.

4 Internet Tax Nondiscrimination Act, Pub. L. No. 108-435, 118 Stat. 2615 (2004), as amended by Internet Tax Freedom Act Amendments Act of 2007, Pub.
L. No. 110-108, 121 Stat. 1024, codified at 47 U.S.C. § 151 nt.

* Report at 7.
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DIVISION OF COMMUNICATIONS

CASE NO. PUC-1997-00007
JUNE 29, 2010

IN THE MATTER OF
VERIZON SOUTH INC.
and
MCI WORLDCOM COMMUNICATIONS OF VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of an interconnection agreement under § 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Orders entered July 9, 1997, and May 7, 2004, in this matter, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") approved an interconnection
agreement and amendment, respectively, between Verizon South Inc. f/k/a GTE ("Verizon South") and MCI WorldCom Communications of Virginia, Inc.
("MCI WorldCom"). Further, on June 20, 2006, the Commission approved additional amendments to the interconnection agreement between Verizon South
and MCI WorldCom. By Order entered October 19, 2004, in Case No. PUC-2003-00183, the Commission canceled MCI WorldCom's previously issued
certificate of public convenience and necessity as a local exchange carrier. As a result, MCI WorldCom is no longer authorized to provide local exchange
service within the Commonwealth of Virginia.

On June 16, 2010, Verizon South filed with the Commission a "Notification of Termination of Interconnection Agreement," along with notice
from MCI WorldCom's successors that the interconnection agreement could be terminated.

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case, wherein the

Commission approved an interconnection agreement and amendments between the parties named in the caption (or their legal predecessors), and the case
should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-1997-00007 is hereby closed.

CASE NO. PUC-1997-00028
AUGUST 17, 2010

IN THE MATTER OF
VERIZON VIRGINIA INC.
and
INTERMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

For approval of an interconnection agreement under § 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Orders entered July 30, 1997, July 7, 1998, and June 18, 2004, in this matter, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") approved an
interconnection agreement and amendments, respectively, between Verizon Virginia, Inc. f/k/a Bell Atlantic — Virginia, Inc. ("Verizon Virginia") and
Intermedia Communications, Inc. ("Intermedia"). Further, on February 7, 2006, the Commission approved additional amendments to the interconnection
agreement between Verizon Virginia and Intermedia. By Order entered October 19, 2004, in Case No. PUC-2003-00183, the Commission canceled
Intermedia's previously issued certificates of public convenience and necessity. As a result, Intermedia is no longer authorized to provide local exchange
service within the Commonwealth of Virginia.

On June 16, 2010, Verizon Virginia filed with the Commission a "Notification of Termination of Interconnection Agreement," along with notice
from Intermedia's successors that the interconnection agreement could be terminated.

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case, wherein the
Commission approved an interconnection agreement and amendments between the parties named in the caption (or their legal predecessors), and the case

should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-1997-00028 is hereby closed.
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CASE NO. PUC-1997-00035
NOVEMBER 12, 2010

APPLICATION OF
VERIZON VIRGINIA INC.
and
ALLTEL COMMUNICATIONS OF VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On March 22, 2006, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Verizon Virginia Inc.
("Verizon") and Alltel Communications of Virginia, Inc. ("Alltel"), filed a negotiated Wireless Interconnection Agreement and Amendment No. 1 ("WIA
Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The WIA Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2006-00045. Verizon and Alltel
indicated that the WIA Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in this docket on June 19, 1997." The WIA Agreement
became effective on September 16, 2006.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the WIA Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the
opinion, therefore, that Case No. PUC-1997-00035 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

! The original agreement was under their former names of Bell Atlantic-Virginia, Inc., and 360° Communications Company, respectively.

CASE NO. PUC-1998-00124
NOVEMBER 9, 2010

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

VIRGINIA PCS ALLIANCE, L.C.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On December 22, 2005, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone
Company of Virginia ("Sprint") and Virginia PCS Alliance, L.C. ("NTELOS"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("ICA Agreement") with the
State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The ICA Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2005-00174. Sprint and NTELOS indicated that the
ICA Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in this docket on November 6, 1998. The ICA Agreement became effective
on November 9, 2005.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the ICA Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the
opinion, therefore, that Case No. PUC-1998-00124 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-1998-00149
JANUARY 22, 2010

IN THE MATTER OF
VERIZON VIRGINIA INC.
and
NORTHPOINT COMMUNICATIONS OF VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of an interconnection agreement under § 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered December 3, 1998, in this matter, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") approved an interconnection agreement
between the parties named in the caption.! Northpoint Communications of Virginia, Inc.'s ("Northpoint"), certificates of public convenience and necessity
were cancelled by Order entered in Case No. PUC-2001-00097 and, therefore, Northpoint is no longer authorized to provide service in Virginia.

! Verizon Virginia Inc.'s predecessor, Bell Atlantic-Virginia, Inc., was the actual executing party to the interconnection agreement.
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NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case and that the case
should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-1998-00149 is hereby closed.

CASE NO. PUC-1998-00169
NOVEMBER 9, 2010

APPLICATION OF
AX TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INCORPORATED

For a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide local exchange telecommunications services

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered December 14, 2005, in Case No. PUC-2005-00149, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") cancelled the certificate
of public convenience and necessity previously issued to Ax Telecommunications, Incorporated ("Ax" or "Company"), at Ax's request. As a result, the
Company is no longer authorized to provide telecommunications services in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case, wherein the
Commission approved a certificate of public convenience and necessity, and that the case should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-1998-00169 is hereby closed.

CASE NO. PUC-1998-00190
JANUARY 21, 2010

APPLICATION OF
EZ TALK COMMUNICATIONS, L.L.C.

For a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide local exchange telecommunications services

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered July 28, 1999, in this matter, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") granted to EZ Talk Communications, L.L.C.
("EZ Talk"), a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide local exchange telecommunications services throughout the Commonwealth of
Virginia. The certificate of public convenience and necessity issued to EZ Talk was cancelled by Order entered in Case No. PUC-2006-00036 and,
therefore, EZ Talk is no longer authorized to provide service in Virginia.'

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case and that the case
should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-1998-00190 is hereby closed.

' While EZ Talk's certificate of public convenience and necessity was cancelled in Case No. PUC-2006-00036, the Order cancelling that certificate
inadvertently failed to close the instant case, PUC-1998-00190, in which the certificate was granted.

CASE NO. PUC-1999-00030
JANUARY 22, 2010

IN THE MATTER OF

VERIZON VIRGINIA INC.
and

xDSL NETWORKS, INC.

For approval of an interconnection agreement under § 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered May 14, 1999, in this matter, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") approved an interconnection agreement
between the parties named in the caption.'! xDSL Networks, Inc.'s ("xDSL"), certificates of public convenience and necessity were cancelled by Order
entered in Case No. PUC-1998-00128 and, therefore, xDSL is no longer authorized to provide service in Virginia.

! Verizon Virginia Inc.'s predecessor, Bell Atlantic-Virginia, Inc., was the actual executing party to the interconnection agreement.
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NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case and that the case
should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-1999-00030 is hereby closed.

CASE NO. PUC-1999-00058
JANUARY 22, 2010

IN THE MATTER OF
VERIZON VIRGINIA INC.
and
LIGHTYEAR COMMUNICATIONS OF VIRGINIA, INC. f/k/a UNIDIAL COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

For approval of an interconnection agreement under § 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered June 25, 1999, in this matter, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") approved an interconnection agreement
between the parties named in the caption.' The certificate of public convenience and necessity issued to Lightyear Communications of Virginia, Inc. f/k/a
UniDial Communications, Inc. ("Lightyear") was cancelled by Order entered in Case No. PUC-2004-00104 and, therefore, Lightyear is no longer authorized
to provide service in Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case and that the case
should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-1999-00058 is hereby closed.

! Verizon Virginia Inc.'s predecessor, Bell Atlantic-Virginia, Inc., was the actual executing party to the interconnection agreement.

CASE NO. PUC-1999-00060
NOVEMBER 9, 2010

APPLICATION OF
NOW COMMUNICATIONS OF VIRGINIA, INC.

For a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide local exchange telecommunications services

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered August 18, 2005, in Case No. PUC-2005-00077, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") cancelled the certificate of
public convenience and necessity previously issued to NOW Communications of Virginia, Inc. ("NOW" or "Company") at NOW’s request. As a result, the
Company is no longer authorized to provide telecommunications services in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case, wherein the
Commission approved a certificate of public convenience and necessity, and that the case should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-1999-00060 is hereby closed.



200
ANNUAL REPORT OF THE STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

CASE NO. PUC-1999-00111
JANUARY 22, 2010

IN THE MATTER OF
VERIZON VIRGINIA INC.
and
ALLEGIANCE TELECOM OF VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of an interconnection agreement under § 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered November 29, 1999, in this matter, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") approved an interconnection agreement
between the parties named in the caption.! The certificate of public convenience and necessity issued to Allegiance Telecom of Virginia, Inc. ("Allegiance"),
was cancelled by Order entered in Case No. PUC-2005-00043 and, therefore, Allegiance is no longer authorized to provide service in Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case and that the case
should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-1999-00111 is hereby closed.

! Verizon Virginia Inc.'s predecessor, Bell Atlantic-Virginia, Inc., was the actual executing party to the interconnection agreement.

CASE NO. PUC-1999-00131
NOVEMBER 12, 2010

APPLICATION OF
VERIZON VIRGINIA INC.
and
QWEST COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered October 26, 1999, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") approved an Internet connection agreement between
Verizon Virginia Inc. ("Verizon")' and Qwest Communications Corporation ("Qwest"). On September 17, 2009, Verizon filed its Notification of
Termination of Interconnection Agreement.

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case and that the case
should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-1999-00131 is hereby closed.

'Verizon's former name was Bell Atlantic-Virginia, Inc.

CASE NO. PUC-1999-00154
JANUARY 22, 2010

IN THE MATTER OF
VERIZON VIRGINIA INC.
and
ALLTEL COMMUNICATIONS OF VIRGINIA, INC. f/k/a 360° COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE d/b/a ALLTEL

For approval of an interconnection agreement under § 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered December 7, 1999, in this matter, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") approved an interconnection agreement
between the parties named in the caption.' Alltel Communications of Virginia, Inc. f/k/a 360° Communications Company of Charlottesville d/b/a Alltel's

! Verizon Virginia Inc.'s predecessor, Bell Atlantic-Virginia, Inc., was the actual executing party to the interconnection agreement.
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("Alltel"),? certificates of public convenience and necessity were cancelled by Order entered in Case No. PUC-2008-00090 and, therefore, Alltel is no longer
authorized to provide service in Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case and that the case
should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-1999-00154 is hereby closed.

2 360° Communications Company of Charlottesville d/b/a Alltel changed its corporate name to Alltel Communications of Virginia, Inc. The certificates of
public convenience and necessity were reissued under the new corporate name in Case No. PUC-2002-00028.

CASE NO. PUC-1999-00173
JANUARY 22, 2010

IN THE MATTER OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

PV TEL OF VIRGINIA

For approval of an interconnection agreement under § 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered December 30, 1999, in this matter, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") approved an interconnection agreement
between the parties named in the caption. The certificate of public convenience and necessity issued to PV Tel of Virginia ("PV Tel") was cancelled by
Order entered in Case No. PUC-2001-00078 and, therefore, PV Tel is no longer authorized to provide service in Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case and that the case
should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-1999-00173 is hereby closed.

CASE NO. PUC-1999-00174
JANUARY 22, 2010

IN THE MATTER OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

PV TEL OF VIRGINIA

For approval of an interconnection agreement under § 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered December 30, 1999, in this matter, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") approved an interconnection agreement
between the parties named in the caption. The certificate of public convenience and necessity issued to PV Tel of Virginia ("PV Tel") was cancelled by
Order entered in Case No. PUC-2001-00078 and, therefore, PV Tel is no longer authorized to provide service in Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case and that the case
should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-1999-00174 is hereby closed.

CASE NO. PUC-1999-00179
JANUARY 22, 2010

APPLICATION OF
METRO TELECONNECT, INC.

For a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide local exchange telecommunications services

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered February 16, 2000, in this matter, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") granted to Metro Teleconnect, Inc.
("MTI"), a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide local exchange telecommunications services throughout the Commonwealth of
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Virginia. The certificate of public convenience and necessity issued to MTI was canceled by Order entered in Case No. PUC-2005-00166 and, therefore,
MTI is no longer authorized to provide service in Virginia.'

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case and that the case
should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-1999-00179 is hereby closed.

! While MTT's certificate of public convenience and necessity was canceled in Case No. PUC-2005-00166, the Order canceling that certificate inadvertently
failed to close the instant case, PUC-1999-00179, in which the certificate was granted.

CASE NO. PUC-1999-00241
JANUARY 22, 2010

IN THE MATTER OF
VERIZON VIRGINIA INC.
and
ARBROS COMMUNICATIONS LICENSING COMPANY, VA

For approval of an interconnection agreement under § 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered March 1, 2000, in this matter, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") approved an interconnection agreement
between the parties named in the caption. The certificate of public convenience and necessity issued to Arbros Communications Licensing Company, VA
("Arbros"), was cancelled by Order entered in Case No. PUC-2002-00047 and, therefore, Arbros is no longer authorized to provide service in Virginia.

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case and that the case
should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-1999-00241 is hereby closed.

CASE NO. PUC-2000-00141
NOVEMBER 19, 2010

APPLICATION OF
VERIZON SOUTH INC.
and
360° COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE D/B/A ALLTEL

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On March 22, 2006, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Verizon South Inc.
("Verizon") and 360° Communications Company of Charlottesville d/b/a Alltel ("Alltel"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with
the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2006-00121. Verizon and Alltel indicated that the
Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in this docket on July 26, 2000.' The Agreement became effective on May 6,
2005.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2000-00141 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

! The original agreement was under their former names of GTE South Incorporated and 360° Communications Company of Charlottesville, respectively.
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CASE NOS. PUC-2000-00155 AND PUC-2000-00156
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and
SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY OF VIRGINIA, INC.

APPLICATION OF
CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and
SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY OF VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASES

On December 17, 2004, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United Telephone—
Southeast, Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia (collectively, "Sprint") and Sprint Communications Company of Virginia, Inc. ("Sprint
Communications"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement
was assigned Case No. PUC-2004-00161. Sprint and Sprint Communications indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreements approved by the
Commission in these dockets on August 21, 2000. The Agreement became effective on December 1, 2004.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreements approved in these matters. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case Nos. PUC-2000-00155 and PUC-2000-00156 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matters are hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2000-00292
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
AMELIA TELEPHONE CORPORATION
NEW CASTLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
VIRGINIA TELEPHONE COMPANY
and
UNITED STATES CELLULAR CORPORATION

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On September 16, 2005, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Amelia Telephone
Corporation, New Castle Telephone Company, and Virginia Telephone Company, acting through their agent, TDS Telecommunications Corporation
(collectively "TDS"), and United States Cellular Corporation ("US Cellular") filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2005-00130. TDS and US Cellular indicated that the Agreement
replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in this docket on January 19, 2001. The Agreement became effective on July 1, 2005.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2000-00292 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.
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CASE NOS. PUC-2000-00312 AND PUC-2000-00313
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

METRO TELECONNECT, INC.

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

METRO TELECONNECT, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASES

On September 22, 2003, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United Telephone—
Southeast, Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia (collectively, "Sprint") and Metro Teleconnect, Inc. ("Metro"), filed a negotiated Interconnection
Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), which became effective on August 15, 2003. The Agreement was
assigned Case No. PUC-2003-00147. The Commission approved the Agreement on December 2, 2003.

On March 15, 2004, Sprint and Metro filed Amendment 1 to the Agreement, to become effective on March 1, 2004. Amendment 1 was approved
by the Commission on June 11, 2004.

Sprint and Metro indicated that the Agreement and Amendment 1 replaced the original agreements approved by the Commission in these dockets
on February 6, 2001.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement and Amendment 1 supersede the agreements approved in these matters. The Commission
is of the opinion, therefore, that Case Nos. PUC-2000-00312 and PUC-2000-00313 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matters are hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NOS. PUC-2001-00009 AND PUC-2001-00010
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

KMC TELECOM OF VIRGINIA, INC.

KMC TELECOM IV OF VIRGINIA, INC.

KMC TELECOM V OF VIRGINIA, INC.

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

KMC TELECOM OF VIRGINIA, INC.

KMC TELECOM IV OF VIRGINIA, INC.

KMC TELECOM V OF VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASES

On July 11, 2005, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United Telephone—Southeast,
Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia (collectively, "Sprint") and KMC Telecom of Virginia, Inc., KMC Telecom IV of Virginia, Inc., KMC
Telecom V of Virginia, Inc. (collectively, "KMC"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission
("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2005-00080. Sprint and KMC indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreements
approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2001-00009 on May 7, 2001, and in Case No. PUC-2001-00010 on March 30, 2001. The Agreement
became effective on June 15, 2005.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreements approved in these matters. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case Nos. PUC-2001-00009 and PUC-2001-00010 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matters are hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.
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CASE NO. PUC-2001-00021
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
AMELIA TELEPHONE CORPORATION
NEW CASTLE TELEPHONE COMPANY
VIRGINIA TELEPHONE COMPANY
and
VIRGINIA PCS ALLIANCE, L.C. D/B/A NTELOS

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On November 7, 2008, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Amelia Telephone
Corporation, New Castle Telephone Company, and Virginia Telephone Company, acting through their agent, TDS Telecommunications Corporation
(collectively "TDS"), and Virginia PCS Alliance, L.C. d/b/a NTELOS ("NTELOS") filed a negotiated Wireless Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement")
with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2008-00097. TDS and NTELOS indicated that the
Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in this docket on March 19, 2001. The Agreement became effective on October 1,
2008.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2001-00021 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2001-00118
NOVEMBER 19, 2010

APPLICATION OF

AMELIA TELEPHONE CORPORATION

NEW CASTLE TELEPHONE COMPANY

VIRGINIA TELEPHONE COMPANY
and

CINGULAR WIRELESS LLC

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On September 16, 2005, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Amelia Telephone
Corporation, New Castle Telephone Company, and Virginia Telephone Company, acting through their agent, TDS Telecommunications Corporation
(collectively, "TDS"), and Cingular Wireless LLC ("Cingular") filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2005-00131. TDS and Cingular indicated that the Agreement replaced the
original agreement approved by the Commission in this docket on June 22, 2001." The Agreement became effective on June 1, 2005.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2001-00118 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

! Under Cingular's former name of Triton PCS Operating Company, L.L.C.

CASE NO. PUC-2001-00193
DECEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
VERIZON SOUTH INC.
and
ADELPHIA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS OF VIRGINIA, L.L.C.

For approval of an interconnection agreement under § 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered August 6, 2009, in Case No. PUC-2009-00034, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") cancelled the certificates of
public convenience and necessity previously issued to Adelphia Business Solutions of Virginia, L.L.C. ("Adelphia" or "Company"), as all assets and
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customers of Adelphia were transferred to Level 3 Communications, LLC." The Company accordingly requested the cancellation of its certificates of public
convenience and necessity.
On July 9, 2010, Verizon South Inc., by counsel, filed with the Commission a Notification of Termination of Interconnection Agreement.

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case, wherein the
Commission approved an interconnection agreement between the parties named in the caption (or their legal predecessors), and the case should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-2001-00093 is hereby closed.

' The corporate identity of Adelphia has been addressed numerous times since the instant docket was opened in 2001. Application of Adelphia Business
Solutions of Virginia, L.L.C., For update of certificates of public convenience and necessity to provide local exchange and interexchange
telecommunications services to reflect the new company name, Case No. PUC-2004-00071, 2004 S.C.C. Ann. Rept. 257, Order (June 11, 2004) (TelCove of
Virginia, LLC); Joint Petition of TelCove of Virginia, LLC, and TelCove Operations, LLC, For approval of an internal reorganization and direct transfer of
control of TelCove of Virginia, LLC, to TelCove Operations, LLC, Case No. PUC-2007-00043, 2007 S.C.C. Ann. Rept. 263, Order Granting Approval
(June 28, 2007); and Joint Petition of TelCove Operations, LLC, Level 3 Communications, LLC, and Eldorado Acquisition Three, LLC, For approval of an
internal reorganization and pro forma transfer of control of TelCove Operations, LLC, from Eldorado Acquisition Three, LLC, to Level 3 Communications,
LLC, Case No. PUC-2008-00063, 2008 S.C.C. Ann. Rept. 307, Order Granting Approval (Oct. 1, 2008) (Eldorado Acquisition Three, LLC, is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Level 3 Communications, LLC).

CASE NO. PUC-2002-00031
NOVEMBER 19, 2010

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

NOW COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On February 14, 2003, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United Telephone—
Southeast, Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia (collectively, "Sprint") and NOW Communications, Inc. ("NOW"), filed a negotiated
Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), which became effective on February 12, 2003. The
Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2003-00021. The Commission approved the Agreement on March 26, 2003.

Sprint and NOW indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in this docket on May 1, 2002.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2002-00031 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2002-00035
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
VERIZON VIRGINIA INC.
and
VIC-RMTS-DC, L.L.C. d/b/a VERIZON AVENUE

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On April 29, 2003, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Verizon Virginia Inc.
("Verizon") and VIC-RMTS-DC, L.L.C. d/b/a Verizon Avenue ("VZA"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2003-00081.

The Agreement became effective October 2, 2003. On October 12, 2004, Verizon and VZA filed Amendments 1 and 2 ("Amendments") to the
Agreement. The Agreement, as amended, became effective on January 6, 2004. The Amendments were approved by the Commission on January 10, 2005.

Verizon and VZA indicated that the Agreement and Amendments replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in this docket on
May 22, 2002.
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NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2002-00035 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2002-00045
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
VERIZON SOUTH INC.
and
ALLTEL COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On March 22, 2006, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Verizon South Inc.
("Verizon") and Alltel Communications of Virginia, Inc. ("Alltel"), filed a negotiated Wireless Interconnection Agreement and Amendment No. 1
("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2006-00046. Verizon and Alltel
indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in this docket on May 16, 2002. The Agreement became
effective on September 16, 2005.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2002-00045 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2002-00099
NOVEMBER 19, 2010

JOINT APPLICATION OF
CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
AND
UNITED-TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and
METROCALL, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On June 6, 2005, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone Company
of Virginia, United Telephone—Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Sprint"), and Metrocall, Inc. ("Metrocall"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement
("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), which became effective on May 15, 2005. The Agreement was assigned Case No.
PUC-2005-00068. The Commission approved the Agreement on September 6, 2005.

Sprint and Metrocall indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in this docket on June 19, 2002.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2002-00099 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.
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CASE NO. PUC-2002-00113
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

JOINT APPLICATION OF
NTELOS TELEPHONE INC.

and
VIRGINIA PCS ALLIANCE, L.C.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On January 21, 2004, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, NTELOS Telephone Inc.
and Virginia PCS Alliance, L.C. ("VPA"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission
("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2004-00008 and approved by the Commission on March 31, 2004. NTELOS and VPA
indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in this docket on July 26, 2002. The Agreement became
effective on December 21, 2003.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2002-00113 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NOS. PUC-2002-00120 AND PUC-2004-00032
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASES

On October 3, 2006, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United Telephone—
Southeast, Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia (collectively, "Embarq") and Level 3 Communications, LLC ("Level 3"), filed a negotiated
Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No.
PUC-2006-00134. The Commission approved the Agreement on January 2, 2007. Embarq and Level 3 indicated that the Agreement replaced the agreement
approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2004-00032 on April 26, 2004, and that such agreement approved in Case No. PUC-2004-00032 replaced the
original agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2002-00120 on August 14, 2002.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that both agreements approved in these matters have been superseded. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case Nos. PUC-2002-00120 and PUC-2004-00032 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matters are hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.
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CASE NO. PUC-2002-00136
NOVEMBER 17, 2010

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

DSLNET COMMUNICATIONS VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On September 16, 2008, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone
Company of Virginia, United Telephone—Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Embarq"), and DSLnet Communications Virginia, Inc. ("DSLnet"), filed a
negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), which became effective on July 21, 2008.
The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2008-00078. The Commission approved the Agreement on December 15, 2008. Embarq and DSLnet
indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreements approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2002-00136 on August 6, 2002.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2002-00136 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NOS. PUC-2002-00150, PUC-2002-00232
AND PUC-2005-00064
NOVEMBER 23, 2010

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

NTELOS NETWORK, INC.

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

NA COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

NTELOS NETWORK, INC.
and

NA COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASES

On March 25, 2008, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United Telephone—
Southeast, Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia, NTELOS Network, Inc., and NA Communications, Inc. (collectively, the "Parties"), filed a
negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No.
PUC-2008-00028. The Commission approved the Agreement on June 23, 2008. The Parties indicated that the Agreement replaced the agreement approved
by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2005-00064 on August 17, 2005, and that such agreement approved in Case No. PUC-2005-00064 replaced the
agreements approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2002-00232 on February 14, 2003, and in Case No. PUC-2002-00150 on September 13, 2002.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the previous agreements in these matters have all been superseded. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case Nos. PUC-2002-00150, PUC-2002-00232, and PUC-2005-00064 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matters are hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.
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CASE NOS. PUC-2002-00218 AND PUC-2005-00066
NOVEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

CAVALIER BROADBAND, LLC

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

CAVALIER BROADBAND, LLC

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASES

On October 17, 2007, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United Telephone—
Southeast, Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia (collectively, "Embarq") and Cavalier Broadband, LLC ("Cavalier"), filed a negotiated
Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No.
PUC-2007-00093. The Commission approved the Agreement on January 15, 2008. Embarq and Cavalier indicated that the Agreement replaced the
agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2005-00066 on August 30, 2005, and that such agreement approved in Case No.
PUC-2005-00066 replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2002-00218 on December 18, 2002.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that both agreements approved in these matters have been superseded. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case Nos. PUC-2002-00218 and PUC-2005-00066 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matters are hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2002-00227 AND PUC-2005-00164
NOVEMBER 23, 2010

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

MOUNTAINET TELEPHONE COMPANY

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

MOUNTAINET TELEPHONE COMPANY

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASES

On November 14, 2008, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone
Company of Virginia, United Telephone—Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Embarq"), and MountaiNet ("MountaiNet") filed a negotiated Interconnection
Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2008-00099. The
Commission approved the Agreement on February 12, 2009. Embarq and MountaiNet indicated that the Agreement replaced the agreement approved by the
Commission in Case No. PUC-2005-00164 on February 27, 2006, and that such agreement approved in Case No. PUC-2005-00164 replaced the original
agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2002-00227 on February 6, 2003.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that both agreements approved in these matters have been superseded. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case Nos. PUC-2002-00227 and PUC-2005-00164 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matters are hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.
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CASE NOS. PUC-2003-00022 AND PUC-2003-00032
NOVEMBER 23, 2010

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASES

On September 21, 2006, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone
Company of Virginia, United Telephone—Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Embarq"), and Citizens Communications Corporation ("Citizens") filed a negotiated
Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No.
PUC-2006-00129. The Commission approved the Agreement on December 20, 2006. Embarq and Citizens indicated that the Agreement replaced the
agreements approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2003-00032 on March 31, 2003, and in Case No. PUC-2003-00022 on March 26, 2003.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that both agreements approved in these matters have been superseded. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case Nos. PUC-2003-00022 and PUC-2003-00032 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matters are hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2003-00047
NOVEMBER 23, 2010

APPLICATION OF
UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and
CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and
THE CITY OF BRISTOL D/B/A BRISTOL VIRGINIA UTILITIES BOARD

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On July 7, 2006, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United Telephone—Southeast,
Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia (collectively, "Embarq"), and The City of Bristol d/b/a Bristol Virginia Utilities Board ("Bristol") filed a
negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), which became effective on June 28, 2006.
The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2006-00093. The Commission approved the Agreement on October 5, 2006. Embarq and Bristol indicated that
the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2003-00047 on May 29, 2003.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2003-00047 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.
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CASE NO. PUC-2003-00050
NOVEMBER 23, 2010

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

US LEC OF VIRGINIA, L.L.C.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On March 20, 2006, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United Telephone—
Southeast, Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia (collectively, "Sprint"), and US LEC of Virginia, L.L.C. ("US LEC"), filed a negotiated
Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"), which became effective on November 15, 2005. The
Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2006-00042. The Commission approved the Agreement on June 19, 2006. Sprint and US LEC indicated that the
Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2003-00050 on May 8, 2003.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2003-00050 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2003-00101
DECEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

METTEL OF VA, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On September 24, 2009, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United Telephone—
Southeast, Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia (collectively, "Embarq"), and MetTel of VA, Inc. ("MetTel"), filed a negotiated Interconnection
Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2009-00052. The
Commission approved the Agreement on December 23, 2009.

Embarq and MetTel indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in this docket on July 11, 2003.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2003-00101 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2003-00121
DECEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

TCG VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On June 1, 2006, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United Telephone—Southeast,
Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia (collectively, "Embarq"), and TCG Virginia, Inc. ("TCG"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement
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("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2006-00076. The Commission
approved the Agreement on August 30, 2006.

Embarq and TCG indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in this docket on September 9,
2003.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2003-00121 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2003-00122
DECEMBER 20, 2010

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
AND

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

AT&T COMMUNICATIONS OF VIRGINIA, LLC

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On June 1, 2006, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United Telephone—Southeast,
Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia (collectively, "Embarq"), and AT&T Communications of Virginia, LLC ("AT&T"), filed a negotiated
Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No.
PUC-2006-00077. The Commission approved the Agreement on August 30, 2006. Embarq and AT&T indicated that the Agreement replaced the original
agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2003-00122 on October 22, 2003.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2003-00122 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2003-00172
DECEMBER 21, 2010

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
AND

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

ERNEST COMMUNICATIONS OF VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On December 7, 2007, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone
Company of Virginia, United Telephone—Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Embarq"), and Ernest Communications of Virginia, Inc. ("Ernest"), filed a negotiated
Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No.
PUC-2007-00117. The Commission approved the Agreement on March 3, 2008. Embarq and Emnest indicated that the Agreement replaced the original
agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2003-00172 on December 15, 2003.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2003-00172 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.
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CASE NO. PUC-2003-000185
DECEMBER 20, 2010

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
AND

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

dPi TELECONNECT, L.L.C.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On October 31, 2007, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United Telephone—
Southeast, Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia (collectively, "Embarq"), and dPi Teleconnect, L.L.C. ("dPi Teleconnect"), filed a negotiated
Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No.
PUC-2007-00103. The Commission approved the Agreement on January 29, 2008. Embarq and dPi Teleconnect indicated that the Agreement replaced the
original agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2003-00185 on March 3, 2004.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2003-00185 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2004-00020
DECEMBER 20, 2010

APPLICATION OF
NTELOS TELEPHONE INC.
and
VIRGINIA CELLULAR LLC d/b/a CELLULAR ONE

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On September 9, 2005, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, NTELOS Telephone Inc.
("NTELOS") and Virginia Cellular LLC d/b/a Cellular One ("Cellular One"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2005-00123 and approved by the Commission on December 8,
2005. NTELOS and Cellular One indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in this docket on April 29,
2004.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2004-00020 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2004-00039
AUGUST 17, 2010

IN THE MATTER OF
VERIZON VIRGINIA, INC.
and
MCI WORLDCOM COMMUNICATIONS OF VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of an interconnection agreement under § 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered June 18, 2004, in this matter, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") approved an amendment to an interconnection
agreement previously approved by the Wireline Competition Bureau of the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC"), between Verizon Virginia, Inc.
("Verizon Virginia") and MCI WorldCom Communications of Virginia, Inc. ("MCI WorldCom"). Further, on July 24, 2006, the Commission approved
additional amendments to the interconnection agreement between Verizon Virginia and MCI WorldCom. By Order entered October 19, 2004, in Case No.
PUC-2003-00183, the Commission canceled MCI WorldCom's previously issued certificate of public convenience and necessity as a local exchange carrier.
As a result, MCI WorldCom is no longer authorized to provide local exchange service within the Commonwealth of Virginia.
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On June 18, 2010, Verizon Virginia filed with the Commission a "Notification of Termination of Interconnection Agreement," along with notice
from MCI WorldCom's successors that the interconnection agreement could be terminated.

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case, wherein the
Commission approved an interconnection agreement and amendments between the parties named in the caption (or their legal predecessors), and the case
should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-2004-00039 is hereby closed.

CASE NO. PUC-2004-00076
DECEMBER 20, 2010

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
AND

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

1-800-RECONEX, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On February 28, 2007, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United
Telephone-Southeast, Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia (collectively, "Embarq"), and1-800-Reconex, Inc. ("Reconex"), filed a negotiated
Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No.
PUC-2007-00013. The Commission approved the Agreement on May 30, 2007. Embarq and Reconex indicated that the Agreement replaced the original
agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2004-00076 on July 15, 2004.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2004-00076 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2004-00085
DECEMBER 20, 2010

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
AND

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

KINEX TELECOM, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On September 15, 2005, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United
Telephone-Southeast, Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia (collectively, "Sprint"), and Kinex Telecom, Inc. ("Kinex") filed a negotiated
Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No.
PUC-2005-00128. The Commission approved the Agreement on December 14, 2005. Sprint and Kinex indicated that the Agreement replaced the original
agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2004-00085 on July 26, 2004.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2004-00085 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.
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CASE NO. PUC-2004-00088
DECEMBER 20, 2010

APPLICATION OF
VERIZON VIRGINIA INC.
and
PNG TELECOMMUNICATIONS OF VIRGINIA, LLC

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On June 20, 2008, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Verizon Virginia Inc.
("Verizon") and PNG Telecommunications of Virginia, LLC ("PNG"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2008-00052. The Commission approved the Agreement on
September 18, 2008. Verizon and PNG indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in Case No.
PUC-2004-00088 on August 2, 2004.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2004-00088 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2004-00089
DECEMBER 20, 2010

APPLICATION OF
VERIZON SOUTH INC.
and
PNG TELECOMMUNICATIONS OF VIRGINIA, LLC

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On June 20, 2008, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Verizon South Inc.
("Verizon") and PNG Telecommunications of Virginia, LLC ("PNG"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2008-00051. The Commission approved the Agreement on
September 18, 2008. Verizon and PNG indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in Case No.
PUC-2004-00089 on August 2, 2004.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2004-00089 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2004-00099
DECEMBER 22, 2010

APPLICATION OF
CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
AND
UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and
VIRGINIA GLOBAL COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On December 13, 2006, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone
Company of Virginia, United Telephone-Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Embarq"), and Virginia Global Communications Systems, Inc. ("Virginia Global"),
filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case
No. PUC-2006-00159. The Commission approved the Agreement on March 13, 2007. Embarq and Virginia Global indicated that the Agreement replaced
the original agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2004-00099 on October 26, 2004.
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NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2004-00099 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2004-00109
DECEMBER 22, 2010

APPLICATION OF
CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
AND
UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and
MCIMETRO ACCESS TRANSMISSION SERVICES OF VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On September 18, 2008, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone
Company of Virginia, United Telephone—Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Embarq"), and MCImetro Access Transmission Services of Virginia, Inc.
("MClmetro"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was
assigned Case No. PUC-2008-00081. The Commission approved the Agreement on December 17, 2008. Embarq and MClImetro indicated that the
Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2004-00109 on November 15, 2004.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2004-00109 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2005-00061
DECEMBER 22, 2010

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
AND

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

GRANITE TELECOMMUNICATIONS, LLC

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On October 8, 2008, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone
Company of Virginia, United Telephone-Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Embarq"), and Granite Telecommunications, LLC ("Granite"), filed a negotiated
Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No.
PUC-2008-00087. The Commission approved the Agreement on January 6, 2009. Embarq and Granite indicated that the Agreement replaced the original
agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2005-00061 on August 8, 2005.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2005-00061 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.
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CASE NO. PUC-2005-00065
DECEMBER 22, 2010

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
AND

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

COMCAST PHONE OF VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On September 29, 2008, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone
Company of Virginia, United Telephone-Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Embarq"), and Comcast Phone of Virginia, Inc. ("Comcast"), filed a negotiated
Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No.
PUC-2008-00084. The Commission approved the Agreement on December 29, 2008. Embarq and Comcast indicated that the Agreement replaced the
original agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2005-00065 on August 24, 2005.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2005-00065 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2005-00076
DECEMBER 22, 2010

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
AND

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

GLOBAL CONNECTION INC. OF VIRGINIA

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On July 2, 2008, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone Company of
Virginia, United Telephone—Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Embarq"), and Global Connection Inc. of Virginia ("Global"), filed a negotiated Interconnection
Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2008-00056. The
Commission approved the Agreement on September 30, 2008. Embarq and Global indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved
by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2005-00076 on September 26, 2005.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2005-00076 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2005-00113
DECEMBER 22, 2010

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
AND

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

CHARTER FIBERLINK VA-CCO, LLC

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On January 10, 2008, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone
Company of Virginia, United Telephone—Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Embarq"), and Charter Fiberlink VA-CCO, LLC ("Charter"), filed a negotiated
Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No.
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PUC-2008-00010. The Commission approved the Agreement on April 9, 2008. Embarq and Charter indicated that the Agreement replaced the original
agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2005-00113 on November 17, 2005.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2005-00113 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2005-00132
DECEMBER 22, 2010

APPLICATION OF

ROANOKE AND BOTETOURT TELEPHONE COMPANY
AND

R&B NETWORK INC.
and

COX VIRGINIA TELCOM, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On October 9, 2007, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Roanoke and Botetourt
Telephone Company and R&B Network Inc. (collectively, "R&B") and Cox Virginia Telcom, Inc. ("Cox"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement
("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2007-00087. The Commission
approved the Agreement on January 7, 2008. R&B and Cox indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in
Case No. PUC-2005-00132 on December 19, 2005.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2005-00132 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2005-00151
DECEMBER 22, 2010

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
AND

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

KDL OF VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On September 29, 2008, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone
Company of Virginia, United Telephone — Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Embarq"), and KDL of Virginia, Inc. ("KDL"), filed a negotiated Interconnection
Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2008-00083. The
Commission approved the Agreement on January 5, 2010. Embarq and KDL indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the
Commission in Case No. PUC-2005-00151 on January 31, 2006.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2005-00151 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.
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CASE NO. PUC-2006-00076
DECEMBER 22, 2010

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
AND

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

TCG VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On July 30, 2009, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone Company
of Virginia, United Telephone-Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Embarq"), and TCG Virginia, Inc. ("TCG"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement
("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2009-00040. The Commission
approved the Agreement on October 28, 2009. Embarq and TCG indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission
in Case No. PUC-2006-00076 on August 30, 2006.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2006-00076 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2006-00077
DECEMBER 22, 2010

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
AND

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

AT&T COMMUNICATIONS OF VIRGINIA, LLC

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On July 30, 2009, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone Company
of Virginia, United Telephone—Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Embarq"), and AT&T Communications of Virginia, LLC ("AT&T"), filed a negotiated
Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No.
PUC-2009-00041. The Commission approved the Agreement on October 28, 2009. Embarq and AT&T indicated that the Agreement replaced the original
agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2006-00077 on August 30, 2006.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2006-00077 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2006-00078
DECEMBER 21, 2010

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
AND

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

BUDGET PHONE OF VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On June 17, 2009, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone Company
of Virginia, United Telephone-Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Embarq"), and Budget Phone of Virginia, Inc. ("Budget"), filed a negotiated Interconnection
Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2009-00028. The
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Commission approved the Agreement on September 15, 2009. Embarq and Budget indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved
by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2006-00078 on September 6, 2006.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2006-00078 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2006-00114
DECEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
VERIZON VIRGINIA INC.
AND
CBB CARRIER SERVICES, INC.

For approval of an interconnection agreement under § 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered April 8, 2009, in Case No. PUC-2009-00013, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") cancelled the certificate of
public convenience and necessity previously issued to CBB Carrier Services, Inc. ("CBB" or "Company") because CBB's business plan no longer included
offering services in Virginia. The Company accordingly requested the cancellation of its certificate of public convenience and necessity.

On August 26, 2010, Verizon Virginia Inc., by counsel, filed with the Commission a Notification of Termination of Interconnection Agreement.

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case, wherein the
Commission approved an interconnection agreement between the parties named in the caption (or their legal predecessors), and the case should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-2006-00114 is hereby closed.

CASE NO. PUC-2006-00115
DECEMBER 16, 2010

APPLICATION OF
VERIZON SOUTH INC.
AND
CBB CARRIER SERVICES, INC.

For approval of an interconnection agreement under § 252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996

ORDER CLOSING CASE

By Order entered April 8, 2009, in Case No. PUC-2009-00013, the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") cancelled the certificate of
public convenience and necessity previously issued to CBB Carrier Services, Inc. ("CBB" or "Company") because CBB's business plan no longer included
offering services in Virginia. The Company accordingly requested the cancellation of its certificate of public convenience and necessity.

On August 26, 2010, Verizon South Inc., by counsel, filed with the Commission a Notification of Termination of Interconnection Agreement.

NOW THE COMMISSION, being sufficiently advised, finds that there is nothing further to be acted upon in the instant case, wherein the
Commission approved an interconnection agreement between the parties named in the caption (or their legal predecessors), and the case should be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT Case No. PUC-2006-00115 is hereby closed.
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CASE NO. PUC-2006-00124
DECEMBER 20, 2010

APPLICATION OF

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
AND

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
and

ACCESS POINT OF VIRGINIA, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On April 17, 2008, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, United Telephone-Southeast,
Inc., Central Telephone Company of Virginia (collectively, "Embarq"), and Access Point of Virginia, Inc. ("Access Point"), filed a negotiated
Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No.
PUC-2008-00036. The Commission approved the Agreement on July 16, 2008. Embarq and Access Point indicated that the Agreement replaced the
original agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2006-00124 on December 14, 2006.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2006-00124 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2007-00108
AUGUST 4, 2010

PETITION OF
SPRINT NEXTEL

For reductions in the intrastate carrier access rates of Central Telephone Company of Virginia and United Telephone-Southeast, Inc.

ORDER APPROVING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

On April 26, 2010, Sprint Communications Company of Virginia, Inc., Sprint Spectrum, L.P., Sprintcom, Inc., Nextel Communications of the
Mid-Atlantic, Inc., and NPCR, Inc. d/b/a Nextel Partners ("Sprint Nextel"); AT&T Communications of Virginia, LLC, (AT&T"); and Central Telephone
Company of Virginia d/b/a CenturyLink ("Central") and United Telephone Southeast LLC d/b/a CenturyLink ("United") (Central and United collectively,
"CenturyLink") (all collectively, "Joint Petitioners") filed with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") a Joint Petition for Approval of
Settlement Agreement ("Joint Petition"). The Joint Petition requests the Commission's approval of the attached Settlement Agreement Governing Phased
Elimination of CenturyLink Carrier Common Line Charges in the Commonwealth of Virginia ("Settlement Agreement").

On May 19, 2010, the Commission entered its Order Inviting Comments which allowed interested parties including the Commission's Staff
("Staff") to file comments regarding the Joint Petition and Settlement Agreement on or before June 11, 2010, and allowed the Joint Petitioners to respond to
any such comments on or before June 25, 2010.

Comments were filed by the Staff and by the Office of the Attorney General, Division of Consumer Counsel ("Consumer Counsel"). Those
comments were generally supportive of the Settlement Agreement and noted that it was consistent with the requirements of newly enacted Va. Code
§ 56-235.5:1.B. In addition, the Staff agreed that approval of the settlement will obviate the need for additional proceedings envisioned by the Commission's
Clarifying Order of August 26, 2009.

No replies were filed on behalf of the Joint Petitioners.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the Joint Petition, the comments, and the applicable law, is of the opinion and finds that the
Settlement Agreement should be approved. The Settlement Agreement will eliminate the carrier common line charge ("CCLC") for each of the two
CenturyLink companies no later than July 1, 2013, as now required by statute.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Settlement Agreement filed by the Joint Petitioners is hereby approved.

(2) No later than July 1, 2012, Central and United shall each reduce its CCLC to 25% of its January 1, 2010 per minute CCLC.

(3) No later than July 1, 2013, Central and United shall each eliminate its respective CCLC entirely.

(4) There being nothing further to be determined, this matter is dismissed and the record developed herein shall be placed in the file for ended
causes.
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CASE NO. PUC-2008-00076
DECEMBER 21, 2010

APPLICATION OF
VERIZON SOUTH INC.
and
CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On July 21, 2009, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Verizon South Inc.
("Verizon") and Cricket Communications, Inc. ("Cricket"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2009-00037. The Commission approved the Agreement on October 19, 2009.
Verizon and Cricket indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2008-00076 on
December 15, 2008.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2008-00076 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2008-00077
DECEMBER 21, 2010

APPLICATION OF
VERIZON VIRGINIA INC.
and
CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On July 21, 2009, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Verizon Virginia Inc.
("Verizon") and Cricket Communications, Inc. ("Cricket"), filed a negotiated Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation
Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2009-00038. The Commission approved the Agreement on October 19, 2009.
Verizon and Cricket indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by the Commission in Case No. PUC-2008-00077 on
December 14, 2008.

NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2008-00077 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2008-00088
DECEMBER 21, 2010

APPLICATION OF

CENTRAL TELEPHONE COMPANY OF VIRGINIA
AND

UNITED TELEPHONE-SOUTHEAST, INC.
and

IDT AMERICA OF VIRGINIA, LLC

For approval of interconnection agreement

ORDER CLOSING CASE

On June 19, 2009, pursuant to 20 VAC 5-419-20 of the Rules Governing the Filing of Interconnection Agreements, Central Telephone Company
of Virginia, United Telephone — Southeast, Inc. (collectively, "Embarq"), and IDT America of Virginia, LLC ("IDT"), filed a negotiated Interconnection
Agreement ("Agreement") with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission"). The Agreement was assigned Case No. PUC-2009-00029. The
Commission approved the Agreement on September 17, 2009. Embarq and IDT indicated that the Agreement replaced the original agreement approved by
the Commission in Case No. PUC-2008-00088 on January 6, 2009.
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NOW THE COMMISSION finds that the Agreement supersedes the agreement approved in this matter. The Commission is of the opinion,
therefore, that Case No. PUC-2008-00088 may be closed.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT the captioned matter is hereby dismissed from the Commission's docket of active cases.

CASE NO. PUC-2009-00036
OCTOBER 19, 2010

APPLICATION OF
QWEST COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY, LLC

For relief from charges

ORDER DISMISSING PETITION

On July 17, 2009, Quest Communications Company, LLC ("Qwest"), filed with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") its Petition
against NTELOS Telephone Inc. for Relief from Unlawful Charges ("Petition") pursuant to Rule 5 VAC 5-20-100 (B) of the Commission's Rules of
Practice and Procedure.

On August 11, 2009, NTELOS Telephone Inc. ("NTELOS") responded to the Qwest Petition.! By Procedural Order Prescribing Response and
Reply Times entered August 24, 2009, the Commission allowed for responsive pleadings and assigned this matter to a Hearing Examiner to conduct all
further proceedings.

The Hearing Examiner prescribed a procedural schedule that allowed extensive discovery and the pre-filing of testimony by the parties and the
Staff leading up to a hearing to receive such evidence. Prior to the commencement of the hearing on June 3, 2010, the primary parties, Qwest and NTELOS,

filed a Joint Motion to Continue Hearing, which stated that the scheduled hearing would not be necessary if those two parties were allowed additional time to
negotiate an oral agreement in principle and to reduce the anticipated settlement to writing.

On September 10, 2010, Qwest filed a Motion to Dismiss, which indicated that Qwest and NTELOS had reached a settlement of the matter in
controversy. As a result, Qwest requested that its Petition be withdrawn and the case be dismissed with prejudice.

On September 13, 2010, the Hearing Examiner issued his Report finding that the Motion to Dismiss should be granted and recommending that
the Commission enter an order adopting the findings of his Report and dismissing the Petition with prejudice. On September 16, the remaining party,

Verizon-Virginia Inc., filed a letter indicating that it had no objections to the recommendations of the Hearing Examiner's Report.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the Motion to Dismiss, the Hearing Examiner's Report, and the lack of objections, is of the
opinion and finds that the Hearing Examiner's recommendations should be adopted and that the Petition should be dismissed with prejudice.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Commission adopts the recommendations of the September 13, 2010 Report of Michael D. Thomas, Hearing Examiner.

(2) The Qwest Petition is dismissed with prejudice, and the record developed herein shall be placed in the file for ended causes.

! Specifically, NTELOS filed a Response to Petition of Qwest Communications, LLC and Petition to Add Verizon-Virginia as a Party.

CASE NO. PUC-2009-00055
JANUARY 28, 2010

APPLICATION OF
TIME WARNER CABLE INFORMATION SERVICES (VIRGINIA), LLC

For certificates of public convenience and necessity to provide local exchange and interexchange telecommunications services
EINAL ORDER

On October 22, 2009, Time Warner Cable Information Services (Virginia), LLC ("Time Warner" or "Applicant"), completed an application with
the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") for certificates of public convenience and necessity ("certificates") to provide local exchange and
interexchange telecommunications services throughout the Commonwealth of Virginia. The Applicant also requested authority to price its interexchange
telecommunications services on a competitive basis pursuant to § 56-481.1 of the Code of Virginia.

By Order for Notice and Comment dated November 2, 2009, the Commission directed the Applicant to provide notice to the public of its
application and directed the Commission Staff ("Staff") to conduct an investigation and file a Staff Report. On December 11, 2009, the Applicant filed proof
of publication and proof of service as required by the November 2, 2009 Order for Notice and Comment.

On January 7, 2010, the Staft filed its Report finding that Time Warner's application was in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Certification and Regulation of Competitive Local Exchange Carriers, 20 VAC 5-417-10 et seq., and the Rules Governing the Certification of Interexchange
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Carriers, 20 VAC 5-411-10 et seq. Based upon its review of Time Warner's application, the Staff determined it would be appropriate to grant the Applicant
certificates to provide local exchange and interexchange telecommunications services subject to the following condition: Time Warner should notify the
Division of Economics and Finance no less than thirty (30) days prior to the cancellation or lapse of its bond and should provide a replacement bond at that
time. This requirement should be maintained until such time as the Commission determines it is no longer necessary.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the application and the Staff Report, finds that the Applicant should be granted certificates to
provide local exchange and interexchange telecommunications services. Having considered § 56-481.1 of the Code of Virginia, the Commission further
finds that the Applicant may price its interexchange telecommunications services competitively.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) Time Warner Cable Information Services (Virginia), LLC, is hereby granted a certificate of public convenience and necessity, No. TT-251A ,
to provide interexchange telecommunications services subject to the restrictions set forth in the Rules Governing the Certification of Interexchange Carriers,
§ 56-265.4:4 of the Code of Virginia, and the provisions of this Order.

(2) Time Warner Cable Information Services (Virginia), LLC, is hereby granted a certificate of public convenience and necessity, No. T-695, to
provide local exchange telecommunications services subject to the restrictions set forth in the Rules Governing the Certification and Regulation of
Competitive Local Exchange Carriers, § 56-265.4:4 of the Code of Virginia, and the provisions of this Order.

(3) Pursuant to § 56-481.1 of the Code of Virginia, the Applicant may price its interexchange telecommunications services competitively.

(4) The Applicant shall provide tariffs to the Division of Communications that conform to all applicable Commission rules and regulations.

(5) Time Warner Cable Information Services (Virginia), LLC, shall notify the Division of Economics and Finance no less than thirty (30) days
prior to the cancellation or lapse of its bond and shall provide a replacement bond at that time. This requirement shall be maintained until such time as the

Commission determines it is no longer necessary.

(6) There being nothing further to come before the Commission, this case shall be dismissed and the papers filed herein placed in the file for
ended causes.

CASE NO. PUC-2009-00058
OCTOBER 22, 2010

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In the Matter of Investigating the Practices and Charges of Verizon Virginia Inc. and Verizon South Inc. for customer-requested
relocation and rearrangement of network facilities

INTERIM ORDER IMPLEMENTING STAFF PROPOSALS

On July 19, 2010, the Staff of the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") filed its Report with four recommendations designed to
improve the process of relocating or rearranging Verizon's outside plant when requested by one of its retail customers. On August 16, 2010, Verizon filed its
Response to Staff's Report ("Response"), which generally concurred with the Staff's recommendations.

Verizon's Response indicated that it had begun the study to revise the methodology by which exempt material loadings are determined and
applied and that it was prepared to implement the remaining Staff recommendations within thirty (30) days after adoption by the Commission.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the Staff Report and Verizon's Response, is of the opinion and finds that the Staff
recommendations should be implemented, and that Verizon should report on its study regarding exempt material loadings when complete.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) Verizon shall implement recommendations 1, 2, and 4 of the Staff's July 19, 2010 Report. Verizon shall also implement the temporary
material loading factor of Staff recommendation 3.

(2) Verizon shall file a report on its study of Staff recommendation 3, exempt material loadings. If the Staff's review of that study finds the
technique to be satisfactory, Verizon shall be prepared to implement it within 30 days.

(3) This matter is continued generally.
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CASE NO. PUC-2009-00060
AUGUST 10, 2010

THEODORE R. REIFF
and
BRENDA REIFF,
Petitioners,
v.
COX VIRGINIA TELCOM, L.L.C,,
Respondent

ORDER DISMISSING CASE

On October 19, 2009, Theodore R. Reiff and Brenda Reiff ("Petitioners") filed a Petition with the State Corporation Commission
("Commission"). Among other things, the Petitioners alleged that Cox Virginia Telcom, L.L.C. ("Cox"), had violated the terms of an "agreement" between
Cox and the Petitioners by threatening to disconnect their telephone service on October 23, 2009."

On October 19, 2009, the Commission filed an Order in which it, among other things, docketed the matter; directed Cox to file an answer to the
Petition; restrained Cox from disconnecting Petitioners' service; and assigned the matter to a Hearing Examiner to conduct all further proceedings.

On November 9, 2009, Cox, by counsel, filed an Answer and Motion for Leave to Disconnect Petitioners' Telephone Service ("Motion"). By
Hearing Examiner's Ruling dated May 12, 2010, Cox's Motion was taken under advisement and an evidentiary hearing was scheduled for July 21, 2010, in a
Commission courtroom.

On July 8, 2010, Cox filed a Motion to Dismiss, stating that Petitioners had transferred their telephone service from Cox to another telephone
company and, therefore, this proceeding had been rendered moot. Cox requested that the hearing scheduled for July 21, 2010, be cancelled and that the
Commission's Order requiring Cox to refrain from disconnecting the Petitioners' telephone service without first obtaining leave for disconnection from the
Commission be dissolved.

Petitioners were directed to file a response to the Motion to Dismiss on or before July 19, 2010. On July 19, 2010, Petitioners filed a Motion to
Non-Suit and Withdraw Petition. As a result of that motion, the Report of Howard P. Anderson, Jr., Hearing Examiner, was issued July 20, 2010,
recommending that the Commission's Order of October 19, 2009 requiring Cox to refrain from disconnecting Petitioners' telephone service be dissolved and
that this matter be dismissed.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the Motion to Dismiss, Petitioner's response thereto, and the Hearing Examiner's Report
finds that the recommendations of the Hearing Examiner should be adopted.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
(1) The Commission's previous directive that Cox refrain from disconnecting Petitioner's telephone service is dissolved; and

(2) This matter is dismissed and the papers submitted herein shall be sent to the file for ended causes.

! See Petition at 1.

CASE NO. PUC-2009-00061
JANUARY 28, 2010

APPLICATION OF
FIBER ROADS, LLC

For a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide local exchange telecommunications services
EINAL ORDER

On October 16, 2009, Fiber Roads, LLC ("Fiber Roads" or the "Company"), filed an application with the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide local exchange telecommunications services throughout the Commonwealth
of Virginia.

By Order for Notice and Comment dated October 30, 2009, the Commission directed the Company to provide notice to the public of its
application and directed the Commission Staff to conduct an investigation and file a Staff Report. On December 10, 2009, Fiber Roads filed proof of
publication and proof of service as required by the October 30, 2009 Order.

On January 12, 2010, the Staff filed its Report finding that Fiber Roads' application was in compliance with the Rules Governing the Certification
and Regulation of Competitive Local Exchange Carriers, 20 VAC 5-417-10 et seq. Based upon its review of Fiber Roads' application, the Staff determined
it would be appropriate to grant the Company a certificate to provide local exchange telecommunications services subject to the following condition: Fiber
Roads should notify the Division of Economics and Finance no less than 30 days prior to the cancellation or lapse of its bond and should provide a
replacement bond at that time. This requirement should be maintained until such time as the Commission determines it is no longer necessary.
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NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the application and the Staff Report, finds that the Company should be granted a certificate to
provide local exchange telecommunications services.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) Fiber Roads, LLC, is hereby granted a certificate of public convenience and necessity, No.T-694, to provide local exchange
telecommunications services subject to the restrictions set forth in the Rules Governing the Certification and Regulation of Competitive Local Exchange
Carriers, § 56-265.4:4 of the Code of Virginia, and the provisions of this Order.

(2) The Company shall provide tariffs to the Division of Communications that conform with all applicable Commission rules and regulations.

(3) Fiber Roads, LLC, shall notify the Division of Economics and Finance no less than 30 days prior to the cancellation or lapse of its bond and
shall provide a replacement bond at that time. This requirement shall be maintained until such time as the Commission determines it is no longer necessary.

(4) There being nothing further to come before the Commission, this case shall be dismissed and the papers filed herein placed in the file for
ended causes.

CASE NO. PUC-2009-00065
MARCH 18, 2010

JOINT APPLICATION OF
DSLNET COMMUNICATIONS VA, INC.,
DSL.NET, INC.,
and
MEGAPATH INC.

For approval of the transfer of direct control of DSLnet Communications VA, Inc., to MegaPath Inc., pursuant to the Utility Transfers Act,
Chapter 5 of Title 56, Va. Code §§ 56-88 et seq.

ORDER GRANTING APPROVAL AND DIRECTING RESPONSE

On December 7, 2009, MegaPath Inc. ("MegaPath") and its wholly owned subsidiaries DSL.net, Inc. ("DSLnet"), and DSLnet Communications
VA, Inc. ("DSLnet-VA") (MegaPath, DSLnet, and DSLnet-VA collectively, the "Joint Applicants"), filed with the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") a notice of a pro forma internal change of direct control of DSLnet-VA from DSLnet to MegaPath, DSLnet's current direct parent company.
This change was to result from the merger of DSLnet, with and into MegaPath, with MegaPath surviving. The Joint Applicants stated that the change of
direct control is pro forma in nature because MegaPath ultimately controls DSLnet-VA both before and after the merger. The Joint Applicants stated that
they had to complete the internal merger before December 31, 2009, in order to realize significant financial benefits. The Joint Applicants also stated that it
was their understanding that Commission approval would not be required to complete the transaction. Accordingly, the Joint Applicants submitted their
letter purportedly for informational purposes only to ensure the continuing accuracy of the Commission's records.

The Staft of the Commission ("Staff") filed a Memorandum of Incompleteness on December 10, 2009, stating that since the direct ownership of
DSLnet-VA, the entity certificated in Virginia, will transfer to MegaPath, prior Commission approval is required for the transfer pursuant to § 56-88.1 of the
Code of Virginia ("Code"). Furthermore, treating the Joint Applicants' notice as an application, the Staff's memorandum stated that the filing was
incomplete, listing the items necessary for the filing to be deemed a complete application pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 5 of Title 56 of the Code (the
"Utility Transfers Act"). The matter was docketed as Case No. PUC-2009-00065.

On December 21, 2009, the Joint Applicants filed a Supplement to the Joint Application that contained Confidential Attachment 1 to the
Transaction Summary ("Confidential Attachment")," which was filed with the Commission under seal, pursuant to 5 VAC 5-20-170 of the Commission's
Rules of Practice and Procedure ("Rules") regarding confidential information. Rule 5 VAC 5-20-170 states, in part: "When an application (including
supporting documents and prefiled testimony) contains information that the applicant claims to be confidential, the filing shall be made under seal and
accompanied by a motion for protective order or other confidential treatment." Therefore, on December 21, 2009, the Joint Applicants filed with the
Commission, concurrently with the Confidential Attachment, a Motion for Protective Order ("Motion"), pursuant to 5 VAC 5-20-170 of the Commission's
Rules, to obtain confidential treatment of the financial information contained in the Confidential Attachment. The Joint Application and Supplement to the
Joint Application are referred to herein collectively as the "Joint Application."

On December 28, 2009, Staff filed a Memorandum of Completeness, which deemed the Joint Application complete as of December 21, 2009.

On January 12, 2010, the Joint Applicants filed a Response to Commission Inquiry that contained a copy of the Joint Applicants' finalized
Agreement and Plan of Merger ("Agreement"), filed as Confidential Attachment A ("Confidential Exhibit"), which was filed with the Commission under
seal, pursuant to 5 VAC 5-20-170 of the Commission's Rules. Therefore, on January 12, 2010, the Joint Applicants also filed with the Commission,
concurrently with the Confidential Exhibit, a second Motion for Protective Order (collectively with the Motion filed December 21, 2009, "Motions"),
pursuant to 5 VAC 5-20-170 of the Commission's Rules, to obtain confidential treatment of the Agreement.

' The Joint Applicants state that the Confidential Attachment contains confidential financial statements of MegaPath that have not been made available to the
public and that general dissemination of the information contained therein would harm the Joint Applicants' position in the marketplace.

2 The Joint Applicants state that the information contained in the Confidential Exhibit is extremely sensitive information that could be used by competitors to
gain insight into the Joint Applicants' internal business operations and, therefore, disclosure of such information would be extremely detrimental and could
be used by the Joint Applicants' competitors to materially affect their ability to compete effectively.
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MegaPath is a Delaware corporation that provides a variety of managed Internet Protocol ("IP") services, including cable and satellite system
broadband Internet access, mobility services such as digital certificates, global remote access, personal firewalls, and remote access virtual private networks
("VPNs"), and security services. MegaPath does not currently offer any regulated telecommunications services and, therefore, does not hold any
telecommunications authorizations from the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") or any state regulatory authority.

DSLnet, a wholly owned direct subsidiary of MegaPath, is a Delaware corporation that provides a variety of IP and data services. DSLnet does
not offer any regulated telecommunications services and, therefore, does not hold any telecommunications authorizations from the FCC or any state
regulatory authority.

DSLnet-VA is a Virginia corporation that is certificated as a Competitive Local Exchange Carrier in the Commonwealth of Virginia.
DSLnet-VA is currently a wholly owned direct subsidiary of DSLnet and, therefore, a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of MegaPath. DSLnet-VA is an
affiliate of DSLnet Communications, LLC ("DSLnet-LLC"), which is also a wholly owned subsidiary of DSLnet with the authority to provide intrastate
telecommunications services in forty-seven (47) states and the District of Columbia. DSLnet-VA is authorized by the FCC to provide domestic interstate
and international telecommunications services as a non-dominant carrier. In Virginia, DSLnet-VA is certificated to provide both local exchange and
interexchange telecommunications services pursuant to its certificates of public convenience and necessity ("CPCNs"), Nos. T-450 and TT-71A,
respectively, issued pursuant to the Commission's Final Order entered July 28, 1999, in Case No. PUC-1999-00028. DSLnet-VA currently provides
telecommunications services to 645 customers in Virginia.

The Joint Applicants request Commission approval to consummate a transaction that will result in the transfer of direct control of DSLnet-VA to
MegaPath. Pursuant to the Agreement, dated as of December 30, 2009, between MegaPath and DSLnet, DSLnet will merge with and into MegaPath, with
MegaPath as the surviving entity. Upon completion of the proposed transaction, DSLnet-VA will become a wholly owned direct subsidiary of MegaPath,
and DSLnet's separate corporate existence will cease to exist. The proposed transaction will effectively eliminate DSLnet from direct ownership of
DSLnet-VA, and MegaPath will remain the ultimate parent and become the sole parent of DSLnet-VA, with no other changes taking place.

The Joint Applicants state that since MegaPath already indirectly wholly owns DSLnet-VA, the proposed transaction is simply a pro forma
internal merger, which is being undertaken for significant tax benefits that will improve the Joint Applicants' financial position and, therefore, DSLnet-VA's
competitive position in the telecommunications market. Upon completion of the proposed transaction, DSLnet-VA will continue to hold its current CPCNs
to provide local exchange and interexchange telecommunications services in Virginia. The Joint Applicants represent that DSLnet-VA will continue to
operate in Virginia under the same name offering the same services it currently offers with no change in the rates, terms or conditions of such services and,
therefore, the internal merger will be seamless and transparent to Virginia customers.

The Joint Applicants advised Staff that the proposed transaction was completed on December 30, 2009, prior to receiving Commission approval.
The Joint Applicants explained that the proposed transaction needed to be completed by December 31, 2009,

[IIn order to realize significant financial savings that will allow them to provide services more efficiently and
cost-effectively. Specifically, had [DSLnet] remained a separate entity past December 31, 2009, the [Joint
Applicants] would have had to incur another year's worth of expenses related to corporate, regulatory and tax
compliance for [DSLnet], including the preparation of sales, use and income tax returns and other governmental
reports and filings for the year 2010.?

The Joint Applicants further state that,

The purely internal restructuring was completely transparent outside of the [Joint Applicants] internal systems
and did not result in any alteration in service to any end user customer in Virginia, but in total, the [Joint
Applicants] estimate that they will save approximately $75,000 in 2010 alone by completing the merger before
December 31, 2009.*

The Joint Applicants represent that the savings realized by the completion of the proposed transaction prior to December 31, 2009, are extremely
significant to a small competitive entity and, therefore, made it imperative for the Joint Applicants to complete the proposed transaction prior to year-end
2009.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the Joint Application and representations of the Joint Applicants and having been advised
by its Staff, is of the opinion and finds that the Joint Applicants' Motions for Protective Orders for the Confidential Attachment, filed on December 21, 2009,
and for the Confidential Exhibit, filed on January 12, 2010, are no longer necessary and should, therefore, be denied.” The Commission is also of the
opinion and finds that the above-described proposed transfer of direct control of DSLnet-VA to MegaPath will neither impair nor jeopardize the provision of
adequate service to the public at just and reasonable rates and should, therefore, be approved. However, the Commission is concerned with the Joint
Applicants' failure to obtain the necessary prior approval required under the Utility Transfers Act as evidenced by its actions in connection with the instant
Joint Application.

? Response to Staff Inquiry at 1.

4 Response to Staff Inquiry at 2. The Joint Applicants state that because the merger of DSLnet-VA's parent, DSLnet, and MegaPath was part of an overall
corporate consolidation that included several legal entities, the total company savings, including legal administration and risk management, will be
approximately $250,000 per year.

* The Commission held the Joint Applicants' Motions for the Confidential Attachment and Confidential Exhibit in abeyance. We note that the Commission
has received no request for leave to review the confidential information filed by the Joint Applicants on December 21, 2009, or on January 12, 2010, in this
proceeding. Accordingly, we deny the Motions as moot but direct the Clerk of the Commission to retain the confidential information, to which the Motions
pertain, under seal.
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Section 56-88.1 of the Code provides, in part:

No person, whether acting alone or in concert with others, shall, directly or indirectly, acquire or dispose of
control of ... (ii) a telephone company, or all of the assets thereof, without the prior approval of the
Commission. Any person proposing an acquisition or disposition for which Commission approval is required
by this section shall seek such approval pursuant to the procedure of § 56-90. . . .

Any such acquisition or disposition of control without prior approval shall be voidable by the Commission. In
addition, the Commission is authorized to revoke any certificate of public convenience and necessity it has
issued, order compliance with this chapter, or take such other action as may be appropriate within the authority
of the Commission.

Section 12.1-13 of the Code provides, in part:

Whenever no fine or other penalty is specifically imposed by statute' for the failure of any such individual or
business conducted by any entity other than an individual to comply with any provision of law or with any valid
rule, regulation, or order of the Commission, the Commission may impose and collect from such individual or
business conducted by an entity other than an individual a fine in an amount not to exceed $5,000 in the case of
an individual, and in the case of a business conducted by an entity other than an individual not to exceed

$10,000.
Therefore, the Joint Applicants are directed to file a response within ten (10) days of the date of the receipt of this Order stating why they should
not be found in violation of § 56-88.1 of the Code and fined pursuant to § 12.1-13 of the Code (or any applicable law) for failing to obtain prior approval of
the Commission before acquiring and disposing of control of DSLnet-VA.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Joint Applicants' Motions filed on December 21, 2009, and January 12, 2010, are hereby denied; however, we direct the Clerk of the
Commission to retain the confidential information, to which the Motions pertain, under seal.

(2) Pursuant to §§ 56-88.1 and 56-90 of the Code, the Joint Applicants are hereby granted approval for the transfer of direct control of DSLnet
Communications VA, Inc., from DSL.net, Inc., to MegaPath Inc. as described herein.

(3) The Joint Applicants shall, either individually or jointly, file a response within ten (10) days of the date of issuance of this order stating why
they should not be found in violation of § 56-88.1 of the Code and fined pursuant to § 12.1-13 of the Code.

(4) This case is continued pending further order of the Commission.

® For example, § 56-91 of the Code provides for a fine of not more than $1,000 for any company violating any provision of § 56-89 of the Code.

CASE NO. PUC-2009-00065
APRIL 26, 2010

JOINT APPLICATION OF
DSLNET COMMUNICATIONS VA, INC.,
DSL.NET, INC.,
and
MEGAPATH INC.

For approval of the transfer of direct control of DSLnet Communications VA, Inc., to MegaPath Inc., pursuant to the Utility Transfers Act,
Chapter 5 of Title 56, Va. Code §§ 56-88 et seq.

EINAL ORDER

On December 7, 2009, MegaPath Inc. ("MegaPath") and its wholly owned subsidiaries DSL.net, Inc. ("DSLnet"), and DSLnet Communications
VA, Inc. ("DSLnet-VA") (collectively, the "Joint Applicants"), filed with the State Corporation Commission ("Commission") notice of a pro forma internal
change of direct control of DSLnet-VA from DSLnet to MegaPath, DSLnet's direct parent company. This change was to result from the merger of DSLnet
and MegaPath, with MegaPath surviving. The Joint Applicants stated that the change of direct control is pro forma in nature because MegaPath ultimately
controls DSLnet-VA both before and after the merger. The Joint Applicants stated that they had to complete the internal merger before December 31, 2009,
in order to realize significant financial benefits. The Joint Applicants also stated that it was their understanding that Commission approval would not be
required to complete the transaction. Accordingly, the Joint Applicants submitted their letter purportedly for informational purposes only to ensure the
continuing accuracy of the Commission's records.

The Staft of the Commission ("Staff") filed a Memorandum of Incompleteness on December 10, 2009, stating that since the direct ownership of
DSLnet-VA, the entity certificated in Virginia, would transfer to MegaPath, prior Commission approval would be required for the transfer pursuant to
§ 56-88.1 of the Code of Virginia ("Code"). Furthermore, treating the Joint Applicants' notice as an application, the Staff's memorandum stated that the
filing was incomplete, listing the items necessary for the filing to be deemed complete pursuant to the provisions of the Utility Transfers Act, Chapter 5 of
Title 56 of the Code. The matter was docketed as Case No. PUC-2009-00065.
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On December 21, 2009, the Joint Applicants filed supplemental information in accordance with the Staff's memorandum dated December 10,
2009. On December 28, 2009, the Staff filed a Memorandum of Completeness documenting that the application was complete as of December 21, 2009.

On March 18, 2010, the Commission issued an Order Granting Approval and Directing Response ("March 18 Order"), which (1) granted
approval for the transfer of direct control of DSLnet-VA from DSLnet to MegaPath, and (2) directed the Joint Applicants to file a response stating why they
should not be fined for proceeding with the transfer prior to receipt of Commission approval. The March 18 Order documented that the Joint Applicants had
informed the Staff that the proposed transaction was completed on December 30, 2009.

Section 56-88.1 of the Code provides, in part:

No person, whether acting alone or in concert with others, shall, directly or indirectly, acquire or dispose of
control of ... (ii) a telephone company, or all of the assets thereof, without the prior approval of the
Commission. Any person proposing an acquisition or disposition for which Commission approval is required
by this section shall seek such approval pursuant to the procedure of § 56-90. . . .

Any such acquisition or disposition of control without prior approval shall be voidable by the Commission. In
addition, the Commission is authorized to revoke any certificate of public convenience and necessity it has
issued, order compliance with this chapter, or take such other action as may be appropriate within the authority
of the Commission.

Section 12.1-13 of the Code provides, in part:

Whenever no fine or other penalty is specifically imposed by statute!"! for the failure of any such individual or
business conducted by any entity other than an individual to comply with any provision of law or with any valid
rule, regulation, or order of the Commission, the Commission may impose and collect from such individual or
business conducted by an entity other than an individual a fine in an amount not to exceed $5,000 in the case of
an individual, and in the case of a business conducted by an entity other than an individual not to exceed
$10,000.

Accordingly, the Commission directed the Joint Applicants to file a response within ten (10) days of the date of the receipt of the March 18 Order
stating why they should not be found in violation of § 56-88.1 of the Code and fined pursuant to § 12.1-13 of the Code (or any applicable law) for failing to
obtain prior approval of the Commission before acquiring and disposing of control of DSLnet-VA.

On April 1, 2010, a Response to Commission Order ("Response") was filed on behalf of MegaPath and DSLnet-VA ("Companies").” The
Response stated that since MegaPath was already an indirect owner of DSLnet-VA, it was unclear to the Companies that removing DSLnet from the chain of
ownership would require Commission approval under § 56-88.1 of the Code. However, the Response acknowledges that it is for the Commission to
interpret the correct scope of its rules, and therefore, given the Commission's March 18 Order, the Companies should have sought approval under § 56-88.1
of the Code. The Companies submit that such violation was minor insofar as there has been no change in the control of DSLnet-VA even though as a
structural matter its corporate parent has changed.

The Companies further assert that the public interest in a competitive telecommunications market is best served by elimination of unnecessary
inefficiencies and costs in the corporate structure of telephone companies as such duplication tends to increase the costs that telephone companies must pass
on to their customers. According to the Companies, the internal corporate restructuring that merged DSLnet with and into MegaPath, with MegaPath
surviving the merger, eliminated needless duplication within their respective operations. In addition, the Companies submit that the event was completely
transparent outside of the Companies' internal systems and did not result in any alteration in service to any end user customer in Virginia.

Furthermore, the Companies assert that this merger did not harm end users in that DSLnet-VA continues to provide high-quality communications
services, did not interrupt end user service, and did not change rates, terms, or conditions of service. The Companies state that to their knowledge, this is the
first occurrence in which either MegaPath or DSLnet-VA apparently violated Virginia law or the Commission's rules, and that the Companies fully intend to
comply with all applicable Virginia law and the Commission's rules in the future.

For the reasons set out in the Response, the Companies submit that if the Commission determines that the violation of § 56-88.1 of the Code
should be punished with a fine, that the fine should be minimal. Additionally, the Companies request that the Commission suspend all or a portion of any
penalty imposed on the condition that the Companies not violate § 56-88.1 of the Code in the future. The Companies submit that should the Commission
determine by order that the Companies violated § 56-88.1 of the Code a second time in the future, the suspended portion of the fine would come due upon
the issuance of that order.

NOW THE COMMISSION, having considered the filings herein and the applicable law, is of the opinion and finds that the Companies should
be and hereby are found in violation of § 56-88.1 of the Code and fined $5,000 pursuant to § 12.1-13 of the Code. The Commission further finds that the
fine, assessed jointly and severally upon the Companies, should be and hereby is suspended on the condition that the Companies, either individually or
collectively, do not violate § 56-88.1 of the Code in the future.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) MegaPath Inc. and DSLnet Communications VA, Inc., are hereby assessed a fine of $5,000 pursuant to § 12.1-13 of the Code for violation of
§ 56-88.1 of the Code.

! For example, § 56-91 of the Code provides for a fine of not more than $1,000 for any company violating any provision of § 56-89 of the Code.

? DSLnet was merged into MegaPath in a transaction that was executed by the Joint Applicants on December 30, 2009. Said transaction was approved in the
Commission's March 18 Order. Accordingly, DSLnet no longer exists.
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(2) This fine shall be suspended on the condition that the Companies, either individually or collectively, do not violate § 56-88.1 of the Code in
the future.

(3) There being nothing further to come before the Commission, this matter is dismissed from the Commission's active docket and the papers
filed herein placed in the Commission's file for ended causes.

CASE NO. PUC-2009-00066
FEBRUARY 16, 2010

JOINT PETITION OF

ZAYO BANDWIDTH NORTHEAST, LLC,

ZAYO BANDWIDTH NORTHEAST SUB, LLC,

ZAYO BANDWIDTH CENTRAL, LLC,

ZAYO BANDWIDTH CENTRAL (VIRGINIA), LLC,
and

ZAYO BANDWIDTH, LLC

For approval of pro forma intra-corporate mergers, pursuant to the Utility Transfers Act, Chapter 5 of Title 56, Va. Code §§ 56-88 et seq.

ORDER GRANTING APPROVAL

On December 7, 2009, Zayo Bandwidth Northeast, LLC ("Zayo-NE"), Zayo Bandwidth Northeast Sub, LLC ("Zayo-NE Sub"), Zayo Bandwidth
Central (Virginia), LLC ("Zayo-VA"), and Zayo Bandwidth, LLC ("ZB") (collectively, the "Joint Petitioners"), filed a Joint Petition with the State
Corporation Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to the Utility Transfers Act, Chapter 5 of Title 56 of the Code of Virginia ("Code"), for approval of pro
forma intra-corporate mergers.

The Joint Petitioners filed the Joint Petition with the Commission under seal, pursuant to 5 VAC 5-20-170 of the Commission's Rules of Practice
and Procedure ("Rules") regarding confidential information, in order to obtain confidential treatment of Confidential Exhibit E of the Joint Petition
("Confidential Exhibit")," which contains consolidated financial statements of the Joint Petitioners. Rule 5 VAC 5-20-170 states, in part: "When an
application (including supporting documents and prefiled testimony) contains information that the applicant claims to be confidential, the filing shall be
made under seal and accompanied by a motion for protective order or other confidential treatment." Therefore, on December 18, 2009, the Joint Petitioners
filed with the Commission a Motion for Protective Order ("Motion"), pursuant to 5 VAC 5-20-170 of the Commission's Rules, to obtain confidential
treatment of the financial information contained in the Confidential Exhibit.

On December 23, 2009, Staff filed a Memorandum of Completeness, which deemed the Joint Petition complete as of December 18, 2009.

On January 21, 2010, the Joint Petitioners filed an Amendment to the Joint Petition in which it added Zayo Bandwidth Central, LLC
("Zayo-Central"), as a Petitioner in this proceeding’ Accordingly, Zayo-NE, Zayo-NE Sub, Zayo-Central, Zayo-VA and ZB are referred to herein
collectively as the "Joint Petitioners." The Joint Petition and the Amendment to the Joint Petition are referred to herein collectively as the "Joint Petition."

The Joint Petitioners are all Delaware limited liability companies with principal business headquarters located in Louisville, Colorado. Zayo-NE,
Zayo-Central, and ZB are direct subsidiaries of Zayo Group, LLC ("Zayo Group"), and Zayo-NE Sub and Zayo-VA are direct subsidiaries of Zayo-NE and
Zayo-Central, respectively.

Zayo Group is a Delaware limited liability company that is wholly owned by Zayo Group Holdings, Inc. ("Zayo Holdings"), which in turn is
wholly owned by Communications Infrastructure Investment, LLC ("CII"). Zayo Group, through its operating subsidiaries, provides bandwidth, voice,
collocation and interconnection, and managed services to carrier, enterprise, small and medium enterprise, and government customers. Zayo Group has
begun to market its telecommunications services through four specialized business units: Zayo Bandwidth, Zayo Enterprise Networks, Onvoy Voice
Services, and zColo. These business units focus on defined service and customer segments, which allows each unit to target its sales, operations, customer
service, and management teams on its specific segment. The Zayo Bandwidth business unit is currently the only unit that has companies that provide
telecommunications services in Virginia.

Since May 2007, Zayo Group has acquired the following entities that currently comprise the Zayo Bandwidth business unit: (1) Memphis
Networx, LLC (now known as Zayo Bandwidth Tennessee, LLC) ("Zayo-TN"); (2) PPL Telcom, LLC (now known as Zayo-NE) and PPL Prism, LLC (now
known as Zayo-NE Sub);’ (3) Indiana Fiber Works, LLC (now known as Zayo Bandwidth Indiana, LLC) ("Zayo-IN"); (4) Citynet Fiber Network, LLC (now
known as Zayo-Central) and Citynet Virginia, LLC (now known as Zayo-VA);* (5) Northwest Telephone, Inc. (now known as Zayo Bandwidth Northwest,

' The Joint Petitioners state that the information contained in the Confidential Exhibit is extremely sensitive financial information that could be used by
competitors to determine revenue and other information damaging to the Joint Petitioners and, therefore, disclosure of such information would be extremely
detrimental and could be used by the Joint Petitioners' competitors to materially affect their ability to compete effectively.

? Zayo-Central was added as a Petitioner in this proceeding because of their disposal of direct control of Zayo-VA as a result of the proposed mergers.

* The acquisition of Zayo-NE and Zayo-NE Sub by Zayo Group was completed on August 24, 2007, pursuant to the Commission's Order Granting Approval
entered July 30, 2007, in Case No. PUC-2007-00053.

* The acquisition of Zayo-Central and Zayo-VA by Zayo Group was completed on February 15, 2008, pursuant to the Commission's Order Granting
Approval entered February 15, 2008, in Case No. PUC-2008-00007.



232
ANNUAL REPORT OF THE STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Inc.) ("Zayo-NW"); (6) Fiberlink, LLC d/b/a Columbia Fiber Solutions ("CFS"); and (7) NTI of California, LLC ("NTIC"). In addition, there are three other
entities, Zayo Bandwidth Tri-State, LLC, Zayo Bandwidth Midwest, LLC, and ZB, which are included in the Zayo Bandwidth business unit, for a total of
twelve current Zayo Bandwidth companies.’

The Zayo Bandwidth business unit provides Private Line, Ethernet, Wavelength, Dedicated Internet Access and Collocation services to wholesale
and large enterprise customers. In Virginia, (1) Zayo-NE is certificated to provide interexchange telecommunications services pursuant to the Commission's
Order entered October 15, 2007, in Case No. PUC-2007-00074;° (2) Zayo-NE Sub is certificated to provide interexchange telecommunications services
pursuant to the Commission's Order entered October 15, 2007, in Case No. PUC-2007-00074;” (3) Zayo-VA is certificated to provide both local exchange
and interexchange telecommunications services pursuant to the Commission's Order entered June 19, 2008, in Case No. PUC-2008-00032;® and (4) ZB
currently has an application pending at the Commission for certificates of public convenience and necessity ("CPCNs") to provide resold and facilities-based
local exchange and interexchange telecommunications services in Virginia.” Zayo-Central provides interstate or non-regulated telecommunications services
and, therefore, does not hold a CPCN in Virginia.

Collectively, Zayo-NE, Zayo-NE Sub, and Zayo-Central provide Private Line, Ethernet, Wavelength, Dedicated Internet Access and Collocation
services to approximately thirty-one customers in Virginia. Zayo-VA currently provides wholesale access to collocation space, pole attachments, and
conduit leases in Virginia but does not provide any retail telecommunications services. Zayo-VA's sole customer is its parent company, Zayo-Central.

The Joint Petitioners request Commission approval of pro forma intra-corporate mergers that will result in the transfer of direct control of
Zayo-NE, Zayo-NE Sub, and Zayo-VA to ZB.' As part of its effort to streamline its corporate structure, Zayo Group will merge Zayo-NE, Zayo-NE Sub,
Zayo-Central, and Zayo-VA with and into ZB, with ZB as the surviving entity. Upon completion of the proposed mergers and the issuance of the requested
CPCNs in the Pending Application, ZB will remain a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Zayo Group, and the customers of Zayo-NE, Zayo-NE Sub,
Zayo-Central, and Zayo-VA will become customers of ZB. The proposed mergers will effectively eliminate Zayo-NE, Zayo-NE Sub, Zayo-Central, and
Zayo-VA from the corporate structure of Zayo Group, and ZB will be the only remaining Zayo Bandwidth business unit that provides telecommunications
services in Virginia.

The Joint Petitioners represent that the proposed mergers will create efficiencies for Zayo Group and its specialized business units by reducing
the accounting, reporting, managerial, and operating complexities involved with having such a complex corporate structure. Specifically, the Joint
Petitioners state that Zayo Group has determined the Zayo Bandwidth business unit would be more efficient by consolidating the twelve current Zayo
Bandwidth companies into ZB and two subsidiaries, Zayo-TN and Adesta Communications, Inc. ("ACI")."" As a result, all of the various existing Zayo
Bandwidth entities, except Zayo-TN and ACI, will be consolidated into ZB, which will streamline the operations of the Zayo Bandwidth business unit and
possibly make it a stronger competitor to the ultimate benefit of its customers. The Joint Petitioners further state that, because all operating entities currently
comprising the Zayo Bandwidth business unit currently include the Zayo Bandwidth name and logo on all marketing materials, correspondence, and bills,
even the change in the legal name of their provider will be virtually transparent to the affected customers. Upon completion of the proposed mergers, the
current customers of Zayo-NE, Zayo-NE Sub, Zayo-Central, and Zayo-VA will begin to receive telecommunications service from ZB with no change in the
rates, terms, and conditions of such service. The Joint Petitioners state that the only perceptible change resulting from the proposed intra-corporate mergers
will be the name of the company providing the affected customer's telecommunications service.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the Joint Petition and representations of the Joint Petitioners and having been advised by its
Staff, is of the opinion and finds that the Joint Petitioners' Motion is no longer necessary and should, therefore, be denied.'> The Commission is also of the

* Zayo Bandwidth Tri-State, LLC, and Zayo Bandwidth Midwest, LLC, are direct subsidiaries of Zayo Group.

¢ Zayo-NE was formally known as PPL Telcom, LLC ("Telcom"), which was issued Certificate No. TT-197A to provide interexchange telecommunications
services in Virginia pursuant the Commission's Final Order entered September 23,2003, in Case No. PUC-2003-00095. On October 15,2007, in
Case No. PUC-2007-00074, the Commission approved Telcom's name change to Zayo-NE, cancelled Certificate No. TT-197A, and issued Certificate No.
TT-197B in the name of Zayo Bandwidth Northeast, LLC.

7 Zayo-NE Sub was formally known as PPL Prism, LLC ("Prism"), which was issued Certificate No. TT-193A to provide interexchange telecommunications
services in Virginia pursuant to the Commission's Final Order entered June 20, 2003, in Case No. PUC-2003-00035. On October 15, 2007, in Case No.
PUC-2007-00074, the Commission approved Prism's name change to Zayo-NE Sub, cancelled Certificate No. TT-193A, and issued Certificate No. TT-193B
in the name of Zayo Bandwidth Northeast Sub, LLC.

8 Zayo-VA was formally known as Citynet Virginia, LLC ("Citynet VA"). Citynet VA was certificated to provide local exchange and interexchange
telecommunications services in Virginia pursuant to Certificate Nos. T-621 and TT-200A, respectively, issued pursuant to the Commission's Final Order
entered March 5, 2004, in Case No. PUC-2003-00174. On June 19, 2008, in Case No. PUC-2008-00032, the Commission approved Citynet VA's name
change to Zayo-VA, cancelled Certificate Nos. T-621 and TT-200A, and issued Certificate Nos. T-621a and TT-200B in the name of Zayo Bandwidth
Central (Virginia), LLC.

’ See Application of Zayo Bandwidth, LLC, for certificates of public convenience and necessity to provide local exchange and interexchange
telecommunications services, Case No. PUC-2009-00067 ("Pending Application").

1 Since Zayo-Central does not currently provide, or hold a CPCN to provide, regulated telecommunications services in Virginia, the Joint Petitioners do not
need Commission approval of the transfer of direct control of Zayo-Central to ZB. As previously stated, Zayo-Central was added as a Petitioner in this
proceeding because of its disposal of direct control of Zayo-VA as a result of the proposed mergers.

" ACI does not provide, or hold any authorizations to provide, regulated telecommunications services in any state. The Joint Petitioners state that, for
various business and legal reasons, Zayo-TN will not be consolidated into ZB at this time and will maintain its separate corporate existence for the near
future. Ultimately, Zayo Group expects that Zayo-TN will also be consolidated into ZB.

'2 The Commission held the Joint Petitioners' Motion in abeyance. We note that the Commission has received no request for leave to review the confidential
financial information filed by the Joint Petitioners in this proceeding. Accordingly, we deny the Motion as moot but direct the Clerk of the Commission to
retain such information under seal.
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opinion and finds that the above-described pro forma intra-corporate mergers, resulting in the transfer of direct control of Zayo-NE, Zayo-NE Sub, and
Zayo-VA to ZB, will neither impair nor jeopardize the provision of adequate service to the public at just and reasonable rates and should, therefore, be
approved. However, such approval is subject to ZB obtaining the CPCNs in Case No. PUC-2009-00067.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Joint Petitioners' Motion for Protective Order is hereby denied; however, we direct the Clerk of the Commission to retain the confidential
information, to which the Motion pertains, under seal.

(2) Pursuant to §§ 56-88.1 and 56-90 of the Code, the Joint Petitioners are hereby granted approval for the pro forma intra-corporate mergers,
resulting in the transfer of direct control of Zayo-NE, Zayo-NE Sub, and Zayo-VA to ZB, as described herein, subject to ZB obtaining the certificates of
public convenience and necessity in Case No. PUC-2009-00067.

(3) The Joint Petitioners shall file a report of the action taken pursuant to the approval granted herein within thirty (30) days of the transaction
taking place, subject to administrative extension by the Commission's Director of Public Utility Accounting. Such report shall include the date the
transaction took place.

(4) Upon completion of the mergers approved herein and the issuance by the Commission of the requested certificates of public convenience and
necessity in Case No. PUC-2009-00067, the Joint Petitioners shall file a letter with the Clerk of the Commission, with a copy provided to the Division of
Communications, requesting that the current certificates of public convenience and necessity issued to Zayo-NE, Zayo-NE Sub, and Zayo-VA be canceled.

(5) There appearing nothing further to be done in this matter, it hereby is dismissed.

CASE NO. PUC-2009-00067
APRIL 21, 2010

APPLICATION OF
ZAYO BANDWIDTH, LLC

For certificates of public convenience and necessity to provide local exchange and interexchange telecommunications services
EINAL ORDER

On December 15, 2009, Zayo Bandwidth, LLC ("Zayo" or "Applicant"), completed an application with the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") for certificates of public convenience and necessity ("certificates") to provide local exchange and interexchange telecommunications
services throughout the Commonwealth of Virginia. The Applicant also requested authority to price its interexchange telecommunications services on a
competitive basis pursuant to § 56-481.1 of the Code of Virginia.

By Order for Notice and Comment dated December 29, 2009, the Commission directed the